
 
 

October 7, 2019                                                                           - 1 -                                                                               7:18 PM 

A G E N D A  •  C I T Y  C O U N C I L  M E E T I N G  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to access the 
City Council Chamber to participate at this meeting, please contact the City Clerk or General Services 
Director at (559) 324-2060 (TTY – 711).  Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the 
City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the Council Chamber. 

 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
agenda will be made available for public inspection at City Hall, in the City Clerk’s office, during 
normal business hours.  In addition, such writings and documents may be posted on the City’s 
website at www.cityofclovis.com. 

 
October 7, 2019 6:00 PM           Council Chamber 

 
The City Council welcomes participation at Council Meetings.  Members of the public may 
address the Council on any item of interest to the public that is scheduled on the Agenda.  In 
order for everyone to be heard, please limit your comments to 5 minutes or less, or 10 minutes 
per topic. 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
FLAG SALUTE - Councilmember Whalen 
 
ROLL CALL 
 

PRESENTATIONS/PROCLAMATIONS 
 

1. Presentation of Proclamation Recognizing Luna Pizzeria & Italian Restaurant's 50th 
Anniversary. 

2. Presentation - Recognizing Members of the September 2019 Clovis Citizens Academy. 
3. Presentation of Proclamation Recognizing Cristelle Rodriguez for her Success as a 

Wrestler at Buchanan High School. 
 

Public Comments - This is an opportunity for the members of the public to address the City Council 
on any matter within the City Council’s jurisdiction that is not listed on the Agenda.  In order for 
everyone to be heard, please limit your comments to 5 minutes or less, or 10 minutes per 
topic.  Anyone wishing to be placed on the Agenda for a specific topic should contact the City 
Manager’s office and submit correspondence at least 10 days before the desired date of appearance. 
 

Council Chamber, 1033 Fifth Street, Clovis, CA 93612 (559) 324-2060 
www.cityofclovis.com 

1

http://www.ci.clovis.ca.us/
http://www.ci.clovis.ca.us/


October 7, 2019                                                                           - 2 -                                                                               7:18 PM 

ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS - With respect to the approval of resolutions and ordinances, 
the reading of the title shall be deemed a motion to waive a reading of the complete resolution or 
ordinance and unless there is a request by a Councilmember that the resolution or ordinance be 
read in full, further reading of the resolution or ordinance shall be deemed waived by unanimous 
consent of the Council. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR - Items considered routine in nature are to be placed upon the Consent 
Calendar.  They will all be considered and voted upon in one vote as one item unless a 
Councilmember requests individual consideration.  A Councilmember’s vote in favor of the Consent 
Calendar is considered and recorded as a separate affirmative vote in favor of each action 
listed.  Motions in favor of adoption of the Consent Calendar are deemed to include a motion to 
waive the reading of any ordinance or resolution on the Consent Calendar.  For adoption of 
ordinances, only those that have received a unanimous vote upon introduction are considered 
Consent items. 
 

4. Administration - Approval - Minutes from the September 16, 2019 Council Meeting. 
5. Administration - Approval – Agreement Between City of Clovis and the Business 

Organization of Old Town for Fiscal Year 2019-2020. 
6. Administration - Receive and File – Business Organization of Old Town (BOOT) First 

Quarter Report, July through September 2019. 
7. Finance – Receive and File – Investment Report for the Month of June 2019. 
8. Finance – Receive and File – Treasurer’s Report for the Month of June 2019. 
9. Finance - Approval – Res. 19-___, A Resolution of Intention (ROI) to Annex Territory 

(Annexation #59) (T6200-North West Corner of Shepherd and Sunnyside.), to the 
Community Facilities District (CFD) 2004-1 and to Authorize the Levy of Special Taxes 
Therein and Setting the Public Hearing for November 18, 2019. 

10. General Services – Approval – Res. 19-___, Approving Side-Letters to the Clovis 
Police Officers’ Association (CPOA) and Clovis Firefighters Association (CFFA) 
Memorandums of Understanding, and Amending the Management and Executive 
Management Benefit Summaries. 

11. General Services – Approval – Res. 19-___, Renewing Medical Plan Option for Eligible 
Retirees and Restating the Eligibility Requirements for Participation in the Plan.  

12. Planning and Development Services - Approval - A request to adopt a resolution 
authorizing the Director of Planning and Development Services to apply for, and 
receive Per Capita Grant Funds through the California Department of Parks and 
Recreation.   

13. Planning and Development Services – Approval - Res. 19-___, A request to adopt a 
resolution authorizing the Director of Planning and Development Services to apply for, 
and receive SB2 Planning Grants Program Funds from the State of California 
Department of Housing and Community Development. 

14. Planning and Development Services Department - Approval - Bid Award for CIP 16-
10, Owens Mountain Parkway Extension, and; Authorize the City Manager to execute 
the contract on behalf of the City. 

15. Planning and Development Services - Approval - Final Acceptance for CIP 17-15, 
Armstrong Avenue Reconstruction. 

16. Planning and Development Services - Approval - Final Acceptance for CIP 19-01, 
Rubberized Cape Seal 2019. 

17. Planning and Development Services - Approval - Final Acceptance for CIP 19-02, Trail 
Pavement Maintenance 2019. 

2



October 7, 2019                                                                           - 3 -                                                                               7:18 PM 

18. Planning and Development Services - Approval – Res. 19- ___, Final Map Tract 6273, 
located at the northwest corner of Ashlan Avenue and Armstrong Avenue (Joseph 
Crown Construction and Development, Inc.). 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS - A public hearing is an open consideration within a regular or special meeting 
of the City Council, for which special notice has been given and may be required.  When a public 
hearing is continued, noticing of the adjourned item is required as per Government Code 54955.1. 

 
19. Consider Actions related to Annexation of Territory (Annexation #58 - PM18-11- North 

East Corner of Locan and Powers) to the City of Clovis Community Facilities District 
No. 2004-1 (Police and Fire Services) 

 
a. Consider Approval - Res. 19-___, A Resolution annexing territory (Annexation #58) 

(PM18-11-North East Corner of Locan and Powers) to the City of Clovis 
Community Facilities District No. 2004-1 (Police and Fire Services) and calling a 
special landowner election to annex territory (Annexation #58) to City of Clovis 
Community Facilities District No. 2004-1 (Police and Fire Services) 

 
b. Consider Approval - Res. 19-___, A Resolution of the City of Clovis declaring the 

results of a special landowner election and directing recording of the Notice of 
Special Tax Lien for City of Clovis Community Facilities District No. 2004-1 (Police 
and Fire Services). 

 
Staff: Jay Schengel, Finance Director 
Recommendation: Approve  
 

CORRESPONDENCE- Correspondence is communication addressed to City Council that requests 
action. 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS- Administrative Items are matters on the regular City Council Agenda 
other than Public Hearings. 
 

20. Consider – Report on results of independent traffic study provided by DeBenedetto to 
evaluate Second Street access to the Landmark Commons and DeBenedetto sites. 

 
Staff: Mike Harrison, City Engineer 
Recommendation: Receive and File   
 

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS 
 

COUNCIL ITEMS 

21. Consider - League of California Cities’ Annual Resolutions set for Consideration at the 
Annual Conference on October 16-18, 2019 
 
Staff:  Luke Serpa, City Manager 
Recommendation: Consider 
 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

3



October 7, 2019                                                                           - 4 -                                                                               7:18 PM 

CLOSED SESSION - A “closed door” (not public) City Council meeting, allowed by State law, for 
consideration of pending legal matters and certain matters related to personnel and real estate 
transactions. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

MEETINGS AND KEY ISSUES 
 
Regular City Council Meetings are held at 6:00 P.M. in the Council Chamber. The following are future 
meeting dates: 
 
Oct. 14, 2019 (Mon.) Joint Meeting with Clovis Unified School District (1680 David E. Cook Way) 
 
Oct. 21, 2019 (Mon.) 
 
Nov. 4, 2019 (Mon.) 
 
Nov. 12, 2019 (Tue.) 
 
Nov. 18, 2019 (Mon.) 
  
  

4



5

AGENDA ITEM NO: 1.



6

AGENDA ITEM NO: 3.



PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

  CLOVIS  CITY  COUNCIL  MEETING 
 
September 16, 2019           6:00 P.M.         Council Chamber 
 
Meeting called to order by Mayor Bessinger 
Flag Salute led by Councilmember Mouanoutoua 
 
Roll Call: Present: Councilmembers Ashbeck, Flores, Mouanoutoua, Whalen 

Mayor Bessinger 
Absent: None 

 
PRESENTATION 
1. 6:04 P.M. - PRESENTATION OF CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION TO STUDENTS 

RECEIVING AMERICAN LEGION BOYS AND GIRLS STATE AWARDS. 

 
 Councilmember Whalen presented Certificates of Recognition to Students Receiving 

American Legion Boys and Girls State Awards. 

 
2. 6:11 P.M. - PRESENTATION OF PROCLAMATION RECOGNIZING SEPTEMBER AS 

SUICIDE PREVENTION MONTH. 
 

Councilmember Ashbeck presented a Proclamation Recognizing September as Suicide 
Prevention Month. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS – 6:18 - None 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR – 6:19 
 
Motion by Councilmember Ashbeck, seconded by Councilmember Flores, that the items on the 
Consent Calendar be approved.  Motion carried by unanimous vote. 
 
3. Administration – Approved – Minutes from the September 3, 2019 Council Meeting. 
4. General Services - Approved – Res. 19-112, Authorizing Amendments to the Firefighter 

Classification. 
5. General Services – Approved - Res. 19-113, Amending the City’s FY19-20 Classification 

and Compensation Plans to Adopt a Staff Analyst Classification and Salary Range; and 
Approved – Res. 19-114, Amending the City’s FY 19-20 Position Allocation Plan. 

6. Planning and Development Services - Approved - Final Acceptance for CIP 16-24,  
7. Public Utilities – Approved – Res. 19-115, Authorize the submittal of a grant application 

under the United States Bureau of Reclamation WaterSMART Grant Program to fund Big 
Dry Creek Reservoir Weather Station Network in a joint project with Fresno Metropolitan 
Flood Control District (FMFCD), and Authorize the Public Utilities Director to be the 
Contract Authority and enter into an agreement with FMFCD for the implementation of the 
Grant. 

8. Public Utilities – Approved – Final Acceptance for CIP 17-29, Downtown Special Event 
Bollards - Phase 1. 

 

7

AGENDA ITEM NO: 4.



PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
9. 6:21 - APPROVED - RES. 19-116, ADOPTION OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS 2018-2019 

CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL PERFORMANCE AND EVALUATION REPORT (CAPER) 
FOR EXPENDITURE OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUNDS.    

 
Heidi Crabtree, Housing Program Coordinator, presented a report City of Clovis 2018- 
2019 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) for expenditure 
of Community Development Block Grant Funds. The U. S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development (HUD) requires the City to adopt the 2018-19 CAPER reporting on the 
expenditure of Community Development Block Grant Funds.  Heidi Crabtree provided an 
update of projects completed over the past year.  
 
There being no public comment, Mayor Bessinger closed the public portion.  Discussion 
by the Council.  Motion by Councilmember Mouanoutoua, seconded by Councilmember 
Whalen, for the Council to adopt City of Clovis 2018-2019 Consolidated Annual 
Performance and Evaluation Report for expenditure of Community Development Block 
Grant Funds. Motion carried by unanimous vote.  

 
ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 
 
10. 6:44 - RECEIVED AND FILED – A SUMMARY OF THE SUSTAINABLE GROUNDWATER 

MANAGEMENT ACT (SGMA). 
 

Public Utilities Director Scott Redelfs and Assistant Public Utilities Director Paul 
Armendariz presented an informational summary report on the Sustainable Groundwater 
Management Act. The City of Clovis is a member of the North Kings Groundwater 
Sustainability Agency (NKGSA), which was created after the signing of the Sustainable 
Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) of 2014. The NKGSA is governed by a seven-
member Board of Directors that has the final decision-making authority for the NKGSA. 
Directors are elected officials by their respective boards, councils, or commissions. Mayor 
Pro Tem Jose Flores was elected to serve on the NKGSA Board to represent the City of 
Clovis. SGMA requires public agencies that have water supply, water management, and/or 
land use responsibilities within a groundwater basin to manage and regulate the underlying 
groundwater in a sustainable manner. Under SGMA, basins must reach sustainability 
within 20 years of implementing their GSP to avoid intervention by the State Water 
Resources Control Board. For critically over-drafted high priority basins, including the Kings 
Groundwater Subbasin of which the NKGSA is a part, the deadline for achieving 
sustainability is 2040. The Executive Summary was included in the staff report from the 
draft GSP highlights each of the seven chapters in the plan that describes how the NKGSA 
will achieve sustainability. 
 
There being no public comment, Mayor Bessinger closed the public portion.  Discussion 
by the Council.  It was the consensus of Council to receive and file the update on SGMA.  

 
 
 
 

8

AGENDA ITEM NO: 4.



PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS 8:14 
 

City Manager Luke Serpa reminded Council of the Salvation Army luncheon on Friday and 
the Taking It to the Streets event on Saturday. 

 
COUNCIL COMMENTS  8:15  
 

Councilmember Whalen commented on the recent Hall of Fame Dinner and congratulated 
 Councilmember Ashbeck who acted as emcee that evening.  
 

Councilmember Mouanoutoua requested staff look into possibly adding a light on Sierra 
Avenue, east of Willow Avenue, on south side. 

 
Councilmember Flores commented on the success of Sudz in the City this past weekend 
and congratulated staff.  

 
Mayor Bessinger indicated that he will be out of town next week, and he will miss the 
October 14, 2019 meeting. 

 
CLOSED SESSION – 8:19 
 
11. Government Code Section 54956.9(a) 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNCIL- EXISTING LITIGATION 
Workers Compensation Case in Regards to: Richard Collins 
 

12. Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2) 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  
Significant exposure to litigation - One Potential Case 

 
Mayor Bessinger adjourned the meeting of the Council to October 7, 2019  
 

Meeting adjourned:   8:40 p.m. 
 
 

______________________________  ________________________________ 
Mayor      City Clerk 

9

AGENDA ITEM NO: 4.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Community & Economic Development 

DATE: October 7, 2019 

SUBJECT: Administration - Approval – Agreement Between City of Clovis and 
the Business Organization of Old Town for Fiscal Year 2019-2020. 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Proposed Agreement Between the City of Clovis and 
Business Organization of Old Town for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the City Council approve the request to enter into an agreement between the City of 
Clovis and Business Organization of Old Town (BOOT). 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
This agreement will serve as a mechanism for the City of Clovis to process payments to 
BOOT.  This will enable BOOT to continue marketing Old Town as a destination for 
shopping, dining and community events. 
 
The amount requested for funding has increased from $45,000 to $60,000.  

 
BACKGROUND 
 
Although many shopping areas exist in the City of Clovis, Old Town showcases as a turn-
of-the century Central Business District, which reflects the unique diversity and positive 
image of our community.  BOOT represents business owners and operators within Old 
Town Clovis.  The City of Clovis and the former Clovis Community Development Agency 
has invested a great deal of financial assistance in regard to development, sustainability 

10

AGENDA ITEM NO: 5.



and marketability of Old Town.  In 1992, the Agency expanded its promotion of Old Town 
by entering into annual contracts with BOOT for the following: 
 

 Old Town attractions (Farmer’s Market, Antiques and Collectibles Fairs, Old Town 
Christmas activities, etc.). 

 Multi-media advertising (print, radio and television) for special events. 

 Participation on the Tourism Committee regarding activities and opportunities in 
Old Town related to the patronage of retail and restaurants. 

 
Attached is the proposed Agreement between the City of Clovis and Business 
Organization of Old Town for Fiscal Year 2019-2020. For performance of services 
described in Section 1, paragraphs (a) through (d), the City of Clovis, subject to the terms 
and conditions of this agreement, wishes to support BOOT by payment of a sum of 
$60,000 during the fiscal year 2019-2020.  Payment shall be made as follows: $15,000 on 
September 30, 2019, $15,000 on December 31, 2019, $15,000 on March 31, 2020, and 
$15,000 on June 30, 2020. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 

 
It is expected that the entire contract will be paid using PBIA Funds.  If a shortfall exists, 
other General Fund monies will be used. 

 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approval of this Agreement will allow the City of Clovis to continue its coordinated approach 
to promote Clovis as an ideal place to conduct business, reside, and promote tourism. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
 
After approval, the City Manager will execute the agreement, and it will be administered by 
staff. 
 
Prepared by: Shawn Miller, Business Development Manager 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager _LS_ 

11

AGENDA ITEM NO: 5.



12

AGENDA ITEM NO: 5.



13

AGENDA ITEM NO: 5.



14

AGENDA ITEM NO: 5.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Community & Economic Development 

DATE: October 7, 2019 

SUBJECT: Administration - Receive and File – Business Organization of Old 
Town (BOOT) First Quarter Report, July through September 2019 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Business Organization of Old Town (B.O.O.T.) First Quarter 
Report, July through September 2019 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the City Council receive and file the B.O.O.T. First Quarter Report, July through 
September 2019. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
According to the 2019–2020 agreement between the City of Clovis and the Business 
Organization of Old Town, B.O.O.T. is to submit quarterly reports to the City Manager and 
City Council.  The amount to be funded is $15,000.  

 
BACKGROUND 
 
According to the 2019-2020 agreement between the City of Clovis and the Business 
Organization of Old Town, B.O.O.T. is to submit quarterly reports to the City Manager and 
City Council detailing progress of B.O.O.T.’s promotional and marketing activity.  Attached, 
as Attachment “1”, is the First Quarter Report covering July through September 2019 
activities. The amount to be funded is $15,000. 
 
 
 

15

AGENDA ITEM NO: 6.



FISCAL IMPACT 
 

The amount to be funded is $15,000, which is called out in the 2019-2020 Budget. 
 

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
The attached report meets the requirement established in the 2019-2020 agreement between 
the City of Clovis and the Business Organization of Old Town. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
 
Staff will process payment to B.O.O.T. 
 
Prepared by: Shawn Miller, Business Development Manager 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH  
 

16

AGENDA ITEM NO: 6.



17

AGENDA ITEM NO: 6.



18

AGENDA ITEM NO: 6.



19

AGENDA ITEM NO: 6.



20

AGENDA ITEM NO: 6.



21

AGENDA ITEM NO: 6.



22

AGENDA ITEM NO: 6.



23

AGENDA ITEM NO: 6.



24

AGENDA ITEM NO: 6.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Finance Department 

DATE: October 7, 2019 

SUBJECT: Finance – Receive and File – Investment Report for the Month of 
June 2019 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Distribution of Investments 
2. Monthly Investment Transactions 
3. Certificates of Deposit 
4. Graph of June 30, 2019 Treasury Rates 
 

 
Attached is the Investment Report for the month of June 2019.  Shown in Attachment 1 is 
the distribution of investments which lists all the individual securities owned by the City with 
the book and market values. Book value is the actual price paid for the investment.  Market 
value is the amount that the investment is worth if sold in the open market. The market value 
(which fluctuates daily) that is used in the report is as of the last working day of the month.  
Attachment 2 reflects the monthly investment transactions for the month of June 2019.  
Attachment 3 lists the certificates of deposit.  Attachment 4 is a graph of Treasury rates on 
June 30, 2019. 
 
The investment of the City’s funds is performed in accordance with the adopted Investment 
Policy.  Funds are invested with the following objectives in mind: 
 
1. Assets are invested in adherence with the safeguards and diversity of a prudent investor. 
 
2. The portfolio is invested in a manner consistent with the primary emphasis on 

preservation of the principal, while attaining a high rate of return consistent with this 
guideline. Trading of securities for the sole purpose of realizing trading profits is 
prohibited. 

 
3. Sufficient liquidity is maintained to provide a source for anticipated financial obligations 

as they become due.   
 

25

AGENDA ITEM NO: 7.



4. Investments may be made, consistent with the Investment Policy Guidelines, in fixed 
income securities maturing in three years or less and can be extended to five years with 
the City Manager’s approval. 

 
The Finance Department invests the City’s assets with an expectation of achieving a total 
rate of return at a level that exceeds the annualized rate of return on short-term government 
guaranteed or insured obligations (90-day Treasury bills) and to assure that the principal is 
preserved with minimal risk of depreciation or loss.  In periods of rising interest rates, the City 
of Clovis portfolio return may be less than that of the annualized 90-day Treasury bill.  In 
periods of decreasing interest rates, the City of Clovis portfolio return may be greater than 
the annualized 90-day Treasury bill.  The current 90-day Treasury bill rate (annualized) is 
2.29%.  The rate of return for the City of Clovis portfolio is 2.14%.  The goal for the City of 
Clovis investment return is 120% of the 90-day Treasury bill rate.  The current rate of return 
is 93% of the Treasury bill rate. 
 
In accordance with the Investment Policy, the investment period on each investment does 
not exceed three years and can be extended to five years with the City Manager’s approval.  
As of June 2019 the average investment life of the City’s investment portfolio is 0.89 years. 
 
Current Investment Environment and Philosophy 
During the month of June 2019, the federal funds rate remained at 2.25%-2.50%. 
 
On June 30, 2019, the Treasury yield curve declines from 6-month to 3-year notes, followed 
by a slight increase from 5-year to 10-year notes. 
 
Certificates of Deposit (CD’s) 
The City purchases both negotiable and non-negotiable Certificates of Deposit (CD’s). 
Although negotiable CD’s can be traded, it is the City’s policy to buy and hold all CD’s. 
Negotiable CD’s are held by U.S. Bank, a third party custodian. Non-negotiable CD’s are 
held in the City’s safe. 
 
Purchases and Maturities 

 1 government security totaling $6,000,000.00 was purchased.  

 2 government securities totaling $6,000,000.00 matured.  

 2 certificates of deposit totaling $500,000 were purchased. 

 1 certificate of deposit totaling $245,000 matured. 
 

Market Environment 

 During June, the federal funds rate remained at 2.25%-2.5%. 

 On June 30, the yield curve declines from 6-month to 3-year notes, followed by a slight 
increase from 5-year to 10-year notes. See Attachment 4, Graph of Treasury Rates on 
June 30, 2019. 

 
Prepared by: Jeffrey Blanks, Deputy Finance Director 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH  

26

AGENDA ITEM NO: 7.



STATED

DAYS TO 

MATURITY

NET BOOK MARKET YIELD TO INTEREST INVEST MATURITY FROM

COST VALUE VALUE * MATURITY RATE DATE DATE 6/30/2019

GOV'T SECURITIES

FNMA 3,002,400 3,002,400 2,997,600 1.125% 1.125% 07/26/16 07/26/19 26

FHLMCMTN 2,997,000 2,997,000 2,995,470 1.500% 1.500% 10/12/17 09/27/19 89

FHLB 2,498,750 2,498,750 2,495,200 1.625% 1.625% 11/16/17 10/30/19 122

FNMA 3,000,000 3,000,000 2,990,580 1.250% 1.250% 11/16/16 11/15/19 138

FHLMCMTN 3,000,000 3,000,000 2,990,400 1.300% 1.300% 11/28/16 11/27/19 150

FFCB 2,502,117 2,502,117 2,505,125 2.750% 2.750% 06/05/18 12/05/19 158

FFCB 994,500 994,500 996,270 1.400% 1.400% 03/30/17 02/24/20 239

FHLB 1,008,597 1,008,597 998,450 1.875% 1.875% 03/22/17 03/13/20 257

FNMAMTN 3,006,210 3,006,210 2,992,140 1.700% 1.700% 05/02/17 04/27/20 302

FNMAMTN 3,007,770 3,007,770 2,994,900 1.800% 1.800% 05/02/17 04/27/20 302

FFCB 1,990,555 1,990,555 1,988,980 1.320% 1.320% 08/31/17 05/07/20 312

FHLMCMTN 2,498,750 2,498,750 2,490,400 1.550% 1.550% 05/25/17 05/22/20 327

FFCB 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,493,150 1.670% 1.670% 06/01/17 06/01/20 337

FHLB 5,000,000 5,000,000 4,985,650 1.625% 1.625% 06/26/17 06/26/20 362

FAMCMTN 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,495,275 1.650% 1.650% 07/27/17 06/29/20 365

FHLB 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,492,925 1.640% 1.640% 07/27/17 06/29/20 365

FFCB 5,000,000 5,000,000 4,974,300 1.625% 1.625% 07/06/17 07/06/20 372

FHLB 2,455,547 2,455,547 2,493,675 2.750% 2.750% 06/01/18 08/28/20 425

FHLB 2,465,678 2,465,678 2,492,150 1.950% 1.950% 01/18/18 08/28/20 425

FHLB 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,487,150 1.800% 1.800% 03/16/18 09/18/20 446

FNMAMTN 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,499,125 1.600% 1.600% 09/18/17 10/13/20 471

FNMAD 2,442,365 2,442,365 2,485,750 2.100% 2.100% 12/22/17 10/28/20 486

FHLB 2,488,750 2,488,750 2,498,750 1.950% 1.850% 11/16/17 11/25/20 514

FFCB 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,060 1.500% 1.500% 03/01/18 12/22/20 541

FHLB 2,486,055 2,486,055 2,500,550 2.300% 2.300% 03/01/18 01/26/21 576

FHLMCMTN 2,497,500 2,497,500 2,500,425 2.150% 2.150% 01/26/18 01/26/21 576

FHLMCMTN 2,477,875 2,477,875 2,521,650 2.375% 2.375% 08/02/18 02/16/21 597

FHLMCMTN 2,258,140 2,258,140 2,299,747 2.750% 2.750% 06/01/18 03/29/21 638

FAMCMTN 2,502,236 2,502,236 2,520,950 2.750% 2.750% 06/28/18 04/19/21 659

FFCB 2,452,750 2,452,750 2,500,025 2.020% 2.020% 12/13/18 05/17/21 687

FHLB 2,568,983 2,568,983 2,584,275 3.625% 3.625% 06/28/18 06/11/21 712

FHLB 2,418,750 2,418,750 2,476,550 2.820% 2.820% 08/02/18 06/14/21 715

FHLMCMTN 2,471,750 2,471,750 2,495,450 1.500% 1.500% 02/22/19 06/30/21 731

FAMCMTN 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,039,660 2.750% 2.750% 09/06/18 08/17/21 779

FFCB 1,998,520 1,998,520 2,038,040 2.700% 2.700% 09/06/18 08/27/21 789

FFCB 2,490,878 2,490,878 2,553,175 2.850% 2.850% 10/05/18 09/20/21 813

FFCB 2,500,200 2,500,200 2,556,300 2.780% 2.780% 12/17/18 12/17/21 901

FFCB 2,498,750 2,498,750 2,508,300 2.800% 2.800% 01/24/19 01/24/22 939

FHLB 12,110,520 12,110,520 12,218,040 2.500% 2.500% 04/25/19 03/11/22 985

FFCB 5,979,668 5,979,668 6,034,321 2.280% 2.280% 03/28/19 03/28/22 1,002

FFCB 6,017,400 6,017,400 6,006,840 1.875% 1.875% 06/27/19 06/14/22 1,080

SECURITIES TOTAL 123,588,962$   123,588,962$       $124,187,773

LAIF 65,000,000$         65,000,000$         

MONEY MARKET (Rabo) -$                         -$                         

Sweep Account (Union Bank) 31,967,930$         31,967,930$         

TOTAL CD'S 12,670,000$         12,713,242$         

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 233,226,892$       233,868,945$       

* Market values for securities obtained from US Bank.

City of Clovis
Distribution of Investments

As of June 30, 2019Attachment 1

H:\Bank Reconciliation\FY2019\06 June 2019\Treasury Reports\0619 Inv  Exhibit A  9/16/2019  8:55 AM

27

AGENDA ITEM NO: 7.



Activity Maturity

Institution Description Activity Amount Market Value Rate Date Date

FFCB Gov Security Purchase 6,000,000 6,085,740 2.350% 06/19/19 06/20/22

Captial One Bank CD Purchase 250,000 250,613 1.875% 06/27/19 06/14/22

Flagstar Bank CD Purchase 250,000 249,343 2.500% 06/13/19 06/13/22

FNMA Gov Security Maturity 3,000,000 3,000,000 1.250% 06/28/19 06/28/19

FFCB Gov Security Maturity 3,000,000 3,000,000 1.300% 06/06/19 06/06/19

Quantum National Bank CD Maturity 245,000 245,000 1.150% 06/21/19 06/21/19

PORTFOLIO DATA

Current Month (06/19)

Book Market

CD'S 12,670,000$        12,713,242$        

Gov't Securities* 123,588,962 124,187,773

LAIF 65,000,000 65,000,000

Sweep Account (Union Bank) 31,967,930 31,967,930

TOTAL 233,226,892$      $233,868,945

One Month Previous (05/19) Three Months Previous (03/19)

Book Market Book Market

CD'S 12,415,000$        $12,415,160 CD'S 12,905,000$        $12,891,345

Gov't Securities* 123,585,272 123,972,130 Gov't Securities* 122,139,088 121,959,354

LAIF 65,000,000 65,000,000 LAIF 65,000,000 65,000,000

Sweep Account (Union Bank) 24,639,055 24,639,055 Sweep Account (Union Bank) 10,995,694 10,995,694

TOTAL 225,639,327$      226,026,345$      TOTAL 211,039,782$      210,846,393$      

Six Months Previous (12/18) One Year Previous (06/18)

Book Market Book Market

CD'S 11,890,000$        11,785,812$        CD'S 12,484,000$        12,354,163$        

Gov't Securities* 111,184,545 110,572,430 Gov't Securities* 91,704,091 90,508,977

LAIF 65,000,000 65,000,000 LAIF 65,000,000 65,000,000

Sweep Account (Union Bank) 8,707,423 8,707,423 Sweep Account (Union Bank) 24,686,705 24,686,705

TOTAL 196,781,968$      196,065,665$      TOTAL 193,874,797$      192,549,845$      

*Adjusted Quarterly for Premium/Discount Amortization

As of June 30, 2019

Monthly Investment Transactions
City of Clovis

Attachment 2

H:\Bank Reconciliation\FY2019\06 June 2019\Treasury Reports\0619 Inv  Exhibit B  9/16/2019  8:56 AM

28

AGENDA ITEM NO: 7.



MARKET INTEREST INVEST MATURITY MATURITY FROM INTEREST 

Negotiable CDs   COST PRICE RATE DATE DATE 06/30/19 FREQUENCY

Discovery Bank 245,000 244,977.95 1.200% 07/01/16 07/01/19 1 SEMI-ANNUALLY

Northern Bank Trust 245,000 244,897.10 1.100% 07/12/16 07/12/19 12 QUARTERLY

Morgan Stanley Bank 250,000 249,817.50 1.700% 09/30/17 08/12/19 43 SEMI-ANNUALLY

Wex Bank 245,000 244,630.05 1.200% 08/12/16 08/12/19 43 SEMI-ANNUALLY

Fnb Of Mcgregor 245,000 244,588.40 1.100% 08/18/16 08/19/19 50 MONTHLY

Hamni Bank 250,000 249,970.00 2.100% 09/09/18 09/09/19 71 SEMI-ANNUALLY

Ally Bank 245,000 244,370.35 1.300% 09/15/16 09/16/19 78 MONTHLY

Atlantic 245,000 244,296.85 1.200% 09/30/16 09/30/19 92 MONTHLY

First Technology Fed Cr Un Mtn 250,000 249,710.00 1.800% 10/16/17 10/16/19 108 MONTHLY

Morton Community Bank 245,000 244,294.40 1.500% 12/15/16 12/16/19 169 SEMI-ANNUALLY

Sallie Mae 245,000 244,507.55 1.750% 01/11/17 01/13/20 197 SEMI-ANNUALLY

Stearns Bank 245,000 244,176.80 1.600% 02/10/17 02/10/20 225 MONTHLY

Crescent Bank 245,000 244,078.80 1.550% 02/15/17 02/14/20 229 MONTHLY

Pyramax Bank 245,000 244,140.05 1.600% 02/17/17 02/18/20 233 MONTHLY

American Express 245,000 244,468.35 1.900% 04/17/17 04/06/20 281 MONTHLY

First Bank 245,000 243,853.40 1.600% 04/17/17 04/20/20 295 MONTHLY

Ion Bank 245,000 243,858.30 1.600% 04/17/17 04/20/20 295 MONTHLY

Communitywide 250,000 249,480.00 1.950% 12/01/17 06/01/20 337 MONTHLY

Nthwt Dist Ch8 250,000 248,862.50 1.700% 06/16/17 06/16/20 352 MONTHLY

Tbk Bank Ssb 250,000 249,085.00 1.800% 06/23/17 06/23/20 359 MONTHLY

Amer Natl 250,000 248,775.00 1.700% 07/12/17 07/13/20 379 MONTHLY

Mb Financial Bank 250,000 248,957.50 1.800% 08/10/17 08/10/20 407 MONTHLY

East Boston Svgs Bk Boston Ma 250,000 248,822.50 1.800% 09/28/17 09/28/20 456 MONTHLY

Medallion Bk Salt Lake City Utah 250,000 248,975.00 1.850% 09/29/17 09/29/20 457 MONTHLY

Eagle Bank 250,000 250,982.50 2.500% 03/29/19 09/29/19 91 QUARTERLY

Illinois Cmnty 250,000 249,347.50 2.000% 11/28/17 11/30/20 519 MONTHLY

First Bank 250,000 249,990.00 2.300% 02/06/18 02/08/21 589 MONTHLY

Merchants Manufacturers 250,000 249,987.50 2.300% 02/16/18 02/16/21 597 MONTHLY

Merrick Bank 250,000 251,480.00 2.550% 03/09/18 03/09/21 618 MONTHLY

Towne Bank 250,000 252,240.00 2.700% 04/27/18 04/27/21 667 MONTHLY

Citibank 250,000 253,257.50 2.900% 05/22/18 05/24/21 694 MONTHLY

University Of Iowa Cmnty Fcu 250,000 253,277.50 2.900% 05/24/18 05/28/21 698 MONTHLY

B Bay Llc 250,000 253,827.50 3.000% 06/15/18 06/15/21 716 MONTHLY

Connectone Bk Englewood Cliffs 250,000 253,830.00 3.000% 06/15/18 06/15/21 716 MONTHLY

Bar Harbor Bank Trust 250,000 253,900.00 3.000% 06/29/18 06/29/21 730 MONTHLY

Spiritbank Na 250,000 250,070.00 3.000% 07/13/18 07/13/21 744 MONTHLY

Keesler Fed Cr Un 250,000 254,432.50 3.050% 02/20/19 08/30/21 792 QUARTERLY

Ubs Bank Usa 250,000 255,605.00 3.200% 11/07/18 11/08/21 862 MONTHLY

Mountain America Fd Credit 250,000 255,642.50 3.200% 11/15/18 11/15/21 869 MONTHLY

Saco Biddleford 250,000 250,275.00 2.600% 03/29/19 12/29/21 913 QUARTERLY

Jp Morgan Chase 250,000 251,195.00 3.000% 01/18/19 01/18/22 933 SEMI-ANNUALLY

Wells Fargo 250,000 254,740.00 3.000% 01/18/19 01/18/22 933 MONTHLY

Security First 250,000 251,272.50 3.000% 01/25/19 01/25/22 940 QUARTERLY

Bmo Harris Bank 250,000 250,120.00 3.000% 01/25/19 01/28/22 943 QUARTERLY

Goldman Sachs Bk USA Ny 245,000 248,501.05 2.800% 02/20/19 02/22/22 968 QUARTERLY

Tiaa FSB Jacksonville Fla 245,000 248,814.65 2.850% 02/28/19 02/22/22 968 QUARTERLY

Comenity Capital Bank 250,000 252,042.50 2.550% 04/30/19 04/29/22 1,034 QUARTERLY

Jefferson Financial Bank 250,000 251,107.50 2.650% 05/15/19 05/16/22 1,051 QUARTERLY

Synchrony Bank 250,000 251,355.00 2.450% 05/17/19 05/17/22 1,052 QUARTERLY

Flagstar Bank 250,000 251,715.00 2.500% 06/12/19 06/13/22 1,079 QUARTERLY

Capital One Bank 250,000 250,640.00 2.350% 06/19/19 06/20/22 1,086 QUARTERLY

Negotiable CD TOTAL 12,670,000$  12,713,242$  

CD TOTAL 12,670,000$  12,713,242$  

City of Clovis

Certificates of Deposit

As of June 30, 2019Attachment 3

H:\Bank Reconciliation\FY2019\06 June 2019\Treasury Reports\0619 Inv  Exhibit C  9/16/2019  8:56 AM

29

AGENDA ITEM NO: 7.



Attachment 4
 

Treasury Rates as of June 30, 2019

3 month Treasury bill 2.12

6 month Treasury bill 2.09

2 Yr Treasury note 1.75

3 Yr Treasury note 1.71

5 Yr Treasury note 1.76

10 Yr Treasury note 2.00

CITY OF CLOVIS

FINANCE DEPARTMENT

JUNE 30, 2019 TREASURY RATES

As indicated in the above graph, treasuries decline from 6-month to 3-year notes, followed by a slight 

increase from 5-year to 10-year notes

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5

4

3 month
Treasury bill

6 month
Treasury bill

2 Yr Treasury
note

3 Yr Treasury
note

5 Yr Treasury
note

10 Yr
Treasury note

IN
T

E
R

E
S

T
 R

A
T

E
S

TREASURIES

TREASURY RATES ON JUNE 30, 2019

H:\Investments\Monthly Reports to the City Council\Calendar Year 2019\2018-2019 Interest Rate Graphs
30

AGENDA ITEM NO: 7.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Finance Department 

DATE: October 7, 2019 

SUBJECT: Finance – Receive and File – Treasurer’s Report for the Month of 
June 2019 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Summary of Cash Balances 
2. Summary of Investment Activity 
3. Investments with Original Maturities Exceeding One Year 
 

Attached for the Council’s information is the Treasurer’s Report for the month ended June 
30, 2019. 
 
Pursuant to Section 41004 of the Government Code of the State of California, the City 
Treasurer is required to submit a monthly report of all receipts, disbursements and fund 
balances.  Attachment 1 provides a summary of the beginning balance, total receipts, total 
disbursements, ending balance for all funds, and a listing, by fund, of all month end fund 
balances.  Attachment 2 summarizes the investment activity for the month and distribution, 
by type of investment, held by the City.  Attachment 3 lists all investments with original 
maturities exceeding one year as of the month ended June 30, 2019. 
 
 
Prepared by: Jeffrey Blanks, Deputy Finance Director 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH  

31

AGENDA ITEM NO: 8.



Previous Balance 6,097,263.46$      
Deposits 21,218,829.78
Disbursements (21,824,534.01)

Current  Balance 5,491,559.23$   

FUNDS BALANCE

100  General Fund 11,245,774.18$   
201  Local Transportation 14,873,457.46
202  Parking and Business Improvements 103,466.55
203  Off Highway Use 68,353.88
205  Senior Citizen Memorial Trust 51,554.50
207  Landscape Assessment District 4,875,770.43
208  Blackhorse III (95-1) Assessment District 143,221.84
301  Park & Recreation Acquisition 8,858,228.59
305  Refuse Equipment Reserve 1,033,730.93
310  Special Street Deposit Fund 24,904,540.18
313  Successor Agency 746,832.78
314  Housing Successor Agency 1,936,898.97
402  1976 Fire Bond Redemption 25,475.23
404  1976 Sewer Bond Redemption Fund 394,073.93
501  Community Sanitation Fund 16,480,204.66
502  Sewer Service Fund 30,137,394.07
504  Sewer Capital Projects-Users 836,930.21
506  Sewer Capital Projects-Developer 4,061,568.39
507  Water Service Fund 49,291,917.98
508  Water Capital Projects-Users 4,435,682.61
509  Water Capital Projects-Developer 7,955,973.94
515  Transit Fund 2,147,526.52
540  Planning & Development Services 12,384,553.71
601  Property & Liability Insurance 1,707,714.90
602  Fleet Maintenance 11,501,310.94
603  Employee Benefit Fund 10,017,483.91
604  General Government Services 14,569,931.98
701  Curb & Gutter Fund 155,922.92
702  Sewer Revolving Fund 121,966.25
703  Payroll Tax & Withholding Fund 3,232,171.07
712  Temperance/Barstow Assmt Dist (98-1) 73,575.14
713  Shepherd/Temperance Assmt Dist (2000-1) 5,592.02
715  Supp Law Enforcement Serv 227,170.30
716  Asset Forfeiture 23,400.89
720  Measure A-Public Safety Facility Tax 14,045.84
736  SA Admin Trust Fund 1,421.40
741  SA Debt Service Trust Fund 72,473.93
747  Housing Successor Trust Fund 1,137.98

SUBTOTALS 238,718,451.01$   

999  Invested Funds (233,226,891.78)

TOTAL 5,491,559.23$   

Statement of Cash Balances

As of June 30, 2019

City of Clovis

H:\Bank Reconciliation\FY2019\06 June 2019\Treasury Reports\0619 TR  cashbal  9/16/2019  9:01 AM

Attachment 1

32

AGENDA ITEM NO: 8.



Balance of Investments Previous Month End 229,917,635.28$   

Time Certificates of Deposit Transactions

Investments 500,000.00
Withdrawals (245,000.00)

Total CD Changes 255,000.00

Other Changes

Government Securities 3,690.00

US Treasury Notes 0.00

Local Agency Investment Fund 0.00

Money Market 0.00

Sweep Account 3,050,566.50

Total Other Changes 3,054,256.50

Balance of Investments Current Month End 233,226,891.78$   

Insured CD's 12,670,000.00

Government Securities 123,588,961.97

US Treasury Notes 0.00

Local Agency Investment Fund 65,000,000.00

Money Market 0.00

Sweep Account 31,967,929.81

Investment Total 233,226,891.78$   

Distribution of Investments

As of June 30, 2019

City of Clovis

Summary of Investment Activity

For the month of June 30, 2019

City of Clovis

H:\Bank Reconciliation\FY2019\06 June 2019\Treasury Reports\0619 TR  invact-distof inv  9/16/2019  9:02 AM

Attachment 2

33

AGENDA ITEM NO: 8.



Investment

Balance At Stated

Institution Face Value Amortized Cost Maturity Rate

FNMA/3135G0M91 3,000,000.00 3,002,400.00 7/26/2019 1.125%

FHLMCMTN/3134GB30 3,000,000.00 2,997,000.00 9/27/2019 1.500%

FHLB/3130ACLX0 2,500,000.00 2,498,750.00 10/30/2019 1.625%

FNMA/3135G0R62 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 11/15/2019 1.250%

FHLMCMTN/3134GAWD2 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 11/27/2019 1.300%

FFCB/3133EJRD3 2,500,000.00 2,502,117.00 12/5/2019 2.390%

FFCB/3133EFZT7 1,000,000.00 994,500.00 2/24/2020 1.400%

FHLB/313378J77 1,000,000.00 1,008,596.72 3/13/2020 1.875%

FNMA/3136G4NJ8 3,000,000.00 3,006,210.00 4/27/2020 1.700%

FNMA/3136G4NK5 3,000,000.00 3,007,770.00 4/27/2020 1.800%

FFCB/3133EGD69 2,000,000.00 1,990,555.00 5/7/2020 1.320%

FHLMC/3134GBQZ8 2,500,000.00 2,498,750.00 5/22/2020 1.550%

FFCB/3133EHKR3 2,500,000.00 2,500,000.00 6/1/2020 1.670%

FHLB/3130ABNQ5 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 6/26/2020 1.625%

FAMCMTN/3132X0UC3 2,500,000.00 2,500,000.00 6/29/2020 1.650%

FHLB/3130ABNM4 2,500,000.00 2,500,000.00 6/29/2020 1.640%

FFCB/3133EHQJ5 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 7/6/2020 1.625%

FHLB/3130ACBY9 2,500,000.00 2,455,546.50 8/28/2020 1.680%

FHLB/3130ABZN9 2,500,000.00 2,465,677.50 8/28/2020 1.800%

FHLB/3130ACD92 2,500,000.00 2,500,000.00 9/18/2020 1.600%

FNMAMTN/3136G4QB2 2,500,000.00 2,500,000.00 10/13/2020 1.850%

FNMA/3135G0Q97 2,500,000.00 2,442,365.00 10/28/2020 1.500%

FHLB/3130ACTL8 2,500,000.00 2,488,750.00 11/25/2020 1.950%

FFCB/3133EH4B6 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 12/22/2020 2.100%

FHLB/3130ADG30 2,500,000.00 2,486,055.00 1/26/2021 2.300%

FHLMC/3134GSBK0 2,500,000.00 2,497,500.00 1/26/2021 2.150%

FHLMCMTN/3137EAEL9 2,500,000.00 2,477,875.00 2/16/2021 2.375%

FHLMCMTN/3134GBTG7 2,300,000.00 2,258,140.00 3/29/2021 1.875%

FAMCMTN/3132X0T84 2,500,000.00 2,502,236.25 4/19/2021 2.650%

FFCB/3133EHJP9 2,500,000.00 2,452,750.00 5/17/2021 2.000%

FHLB/313373ZY1 2,500,000.00 2,568,982.50 6/11/2021 3.625%

FHLB/3130A8EN9 2,500,000.00 2,418,750.00 6/14/2021 1.640%

FHLMCMTN/3134G9UL9 2,500,000.00 2,471,750.00 6/30/2021 1.500%

FAMCMTN/3132X05D9 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 8/17/2021 2.750%

FFCB/3133EJYF0 2,000,000.00 1,998,520.00 8/27/2021 2.700%

FFCB/3133EJZU6 2,500,000.00 2,490,877.50 9/20/2021 2.850%

FFCB/3133EJ3B3 2,500,000.00 2,500,200.00 12/17/2021 2.800%

FFCB/3133EJ5Q8 2,500,000.00 2,498,750.00 1/24/2022 2.800%

FFCB/3133EKEW2 5,960,000.00 5,979,668.00 3/29/2022 2.280%

FHLB/313378WG2 6,000,000.00 6,034,800.00 3/11/2022 2.500%

FHLB/313378WG2 6,000,000.00 6,075,720.00 3/11/2022 2.500%

FFCB 6,000,000.00 6,017,400.00 6/14/2022 1.875%

Original Maturities Exceeding One Year

As of June 30, 2019

City of Clovis

H:\Bank Reconciliation\FY2019\06 June 2019\Treasury Reports\0619 TR  mat>1yr   9/16/2019  9:02 AM
Attachment 3

34

AGENDA ITEM NO: 8.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Finance Department 

DATE: October 7, 2019 

SUBJECT: Finance - Approval – Res. 19-___, A Resolution of Intention (ROI) to 
Annex Territory (Annexation #59) (T6200-North West Corner of 
Shepherd and Sunnyside.), to the Community Facilities District 
(CFD) 2004-1 and to Authorize the Levy of Special Taxes Therein 
and Setting the Public Hearing for November 18, 2019. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Res. 19-___, Intention to Annex Territory to CFD 
2. Annexation Map 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
That the Council approve Res. 19-___, A Resolution of Intention to Annex Territory 
(Annexation #59) to Community Facilities District (CFD) 2004-1 and to Authorize the Levy of 
Special Taxes therein and setting the Public Hearing for November 18, 2019. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Since the condition to establish a CFD was imposed on the developments being processed 
by the City, developments proceeding after March 8, 2004, must petition to be annexed to 
the existing CFD.  This action is required to begin the process of annexation provided by the 
conditions of approval of the development entitlements. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Since the condition to establish a CFD was imposed on the developments being processed 
by the City, developments proceeding after March 8, 2004, must petition to be annexed to 
the existing CFD.  Recently, a developer has submitted a petition to annex territory to the 
Community Facilities District 2004-1 and to include his subdivision within the District as 
provided by the conditions of approval of the development entitlements. 
 

35

AGENDA ITEM NO: 9.



 
 

To initiate the process for annexation of territory to a CFD, the Council must approve a 
Resolution of Intention (ROI) to annex territory to the CFD.  The ROI included with this report 
includes various actions necessary for the annexation to the CFD.  The Rate and Method of 
Apportionment (RMA) referred to in the ROI is as adopted by the Council with the Resolution 
of Formation adopted March 8, 2004.   

 
The area to be annexed, T6200-North West Corner of Shepherd and Sunnyside, is shown 
in the attached map. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
No fiscal impact by this action. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
All requirements to begin the process for annexation of territory to the CFD have been 
completed, and the Council may take action on the ROI.  
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
The Staff will take appropriate steps to schedule the Public Hearing on the Annexation of 
Territory to the CFD for November 18, 2019, and will provide the notices in accordance with 
the law.   
 
Prepared by: Steve Nourian, Senior Accounting Systems Technician 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH  
 
 
 
  
 

36

AGENDA ITEM NO: 9.



 

 

RESOLUTION 19-___ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS 
APPROVING THE INTENTION TO ANNEX TERRITORY TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES  

DISTRICT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE LEVY OF SPECIAL TAXES THEREIN 
 
 

CITY OF CLOVIS 
Community Facilities District No. 2004-1 

(Police and Fire Services) 
Annexation No. 59 

 
 

WHEREAS, this Council has conducted proceedings to establish Community Facilities 
District No. 2004-1 (Police and Fire Services) (the “CFD”) pursuant to the Mello-Roos 
Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended (the "Act"), Chapter 2.5 of Part 1 of Division 2 
of Title 5, commencing at Section 53311, of the California Government Code; and 
 

WHEREAS, under the Act, this Council, as the legislative body for the CFD, is empowered 
with the authority to annex territory to the CFD, and now desires to undertake proceedings to 
annex territory to the CFD. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Clovis: 

 

1. Findings. This Council hereby finds and determines that public convenience and 
necessity require that territory be added to the CFD. 
 
2.  Territory Described. The name of the existing CFD is “Community Facilities District 
No. 2004-1 (Police and Fire Services)”. The territory included in the existing CFD is as shown 
on the map thereof filed in Book 40 of Maps of Assessment and Community Facilities Districts 
at Page 57, in the office of the County Recorder, County of Fresno, State of California, to which 
map reference is hereby made.  The territory now proposed to be annexed to the CFD is as 
shown on the Annexation Map No. 59 to the CFD, on file with the Clerk, the boundaries of 
which territory are hereby preliminarily approved and to which map reference is hereby made 
for further particulars.  The City Clerk is hereby directed to cause to be recorded said 
Annexation Map No. 59 to the CFD, showing the territory to be annexed, in the office of the 
County Recorder of the County of Fresno within fifteen days of the date of adoption of this 
resolution. 
 
3.  The Services.  The types of public services financed by the CFD and pursuant to the 
Act consist of those of the police and fire services (the “Services”) as described in Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 04-33, adopted by the Council on March 8, 2004 (the “Resolution of 
Formation”).  It is presently intended that the Facilities (and the Services) will be shared, 
without preference or priority, by the existing territory in the CFD and the territory proposed to 
be annexed to the CFD. 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
37

AGENDA ITEM NO: 9.



 

 

4.  Special Tax.   Except to the extent that funds are otherwise available to the CFD to pay 
for the Services, a special tax sufficient to pay the costs thereof is intended to be levied 
annually within the CFD, and collected in the same manner as ordinary ad valorem property 
taxes.  The proposed rate and method of apportionment of the special tax among the parcels 
of real property within the CFD, as now in existence and following the annexation proposed 
herein, in sufficient detail to allow each landowner within the territory proposed to be annexed 
to the CFD to estimate the maximum amount such owner will have to pay, are described in 
Exhibit B attached to the Resolution of Formation, by which this reference is incorporated 
herein. 
 
5.  Hearing.  Monday, November 18, 2019, at 6:00 p.m. or as soon as possible thereafter, 
in the City Hall, Council Chambers, 1033 Fifth Street, Clovis, California, be, and the same are 
hereby appointed and fixed as the time and place when and where this Council, as legislative 
body for the CFD, will conduct a public hearing on the annexation of territory to the CFD and 
consider and finally determine whether the public interest, convenience and necessity require 
said annexation of territory to the CFD and the levy of such special tax therein. 
 
6. Notice.  The City Clerk is hereby directed to cause notice of said public hearing to be 
given by publication one time in a newspaper of general circulation in the area of the CFD.  
The publication of said notice shall be completed at least seven (7) days before the date herein 
set for said hearing.  The City Clerk shall also cause a copy of such notice and a copy of the 
Resolution of Formation to be mailed to each landowner (and to each registered voter, if any) 
within the territory proposed to be annexed, which notice and resolution shall be mailed at least 
fifteen (15) days before the date of said hearing.  Such notice shall be substantially in the form 
specified in Section 53339.4 of the Act, with a summary form specifically authorized. 
 
7. Annexation Contingency. Section 53316 of the Act shall apply to the proceedings of 
the Council for the CFD to the extent that the proceedings, if appropriate, include territory which 
on the date of adoption of this Resolution of Intention are not annexed to the City and which 
territory is proposed to be annexed to the City.  This Council determines that the City has filed 
appropriate documents, including a “resolution of application”, with the Fresno County Local 
Agency Formation Commission (“LAFCO”) for the annexation of territory as therein described, 
which territory includes all or a portion of the lands proposed for inclusion in the boundaries of 
the CFD as herein described.  A certificate of filing of such application has been issued by the 
official who is the executive officer of LAFCO, a copy of which certificate of filing is on file with 
the City Clerk.  It is hereby specifically provided that these proceedings for the CFD, to the 
extent applicable to such territory subject to such LAFCO annexation to the City, shall be 
contingent upon and shall be completed only if the annexation of such territory to the City by 
LAFCO is completed.  It is further provided that this Council shall not authorize the levy of the 
Special Tax nor cause any amended notice of special tax lien to be recorded for the territory 
to be annexed to the CFD unless and until such annexation proceedings through LAFCO are 
completed to the satisfaction of this Council. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

38

AGENDA ITEM NO: 9.



 

 

8. Effective Date.  This resolution shall take effect upon its adoption. 
 

 

*  *  *  *    * 

 

The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 

Council of the City of Clovis held on October 7, 2019 by the following vote, to wit. 

 

AYES:   

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 

DATED: October 7, 2019 

 

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 

 Mayor       City Clerk 
 

 

39

AGENDA ITEM NO: 9.



A
i----..... 

Bi---
-..... 

(f) >
z 
z 
=:) 
(f) 

If-
0:'.'. 

EAS T  SHEPHERD A V E. 
o 

--=---- -- - ��-===4iliiilliiil liiilliiilliiiiili.i liiiiili.iliiiiili.i.....;. .....;..-..i .-..i....iiii ....iiii�� � ����iii.l �z-------::

._____,----, 
f II 111 11 11  /111 lr-----,....._J
[ 1111111111111 J

LEGEND  

@ 
® 

N

s

PARCEL 

ANNEXATION BOUNDARY 

APN 556-05- 28S 
APN 556-05 -27S 

F IL E D  I N  T H E  O F FIC E  O F  T H E  C IT Y  CLER K  T HIS D A Y
OF NOVEMBER 2019. I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE 

W IT HI N  MA P  S H O WI NG PROPOSED BOUNDARI ES O F
ANNEXATIO N  N O. 5 9  T O  C OMMU NI TY F A CILITIE S  D IS T RIC T  N O.
2004-1 (POLICE AND FIRE SERVI CES), CITY OF CLOVIS, 

C OUN T Y  O F  FR E S N O, S T A TE O F  CALIFORNIA, WA S  APPROVED
B Y  T H E  C IT Y  C O U N CI L  O F  T H E  C IT Y  O F  C L O VI S  A T  A 
R EGU LAR MEETI NG THEREOF, H ELD O N  T H E  1._8Tt!_ DAY O F
__ N O VEM B E R  _ _  , 2019, B Y  I TS RESOLUTIO N  NO. 1 9-

J O H N  H O L T  
C IT Y  CLER K  
C ITY O F  C L OVI S

F IL E D  THIS _ __ _  DAY OF- - - - - -� 2019, 
A T  T H E  H O UR OF _ _ __ O'C L O C K_ .M. I N  T H E  
B O O K  P AGE 

OF MAPS OF 

ASSESSME N
T AN D  C OM M

UNITY F A CILI TI ES D ISTR ICTS A N D  A S
I NS T R UME N T  NO. I N  T H E  
O F FIC E  O F  THE COUNTY RECORDER IN THE COUNTY OF
FRESNO, STATE O F  CALIFORNIA. 

PAUL A. DICTOS, C.P.A. B Y: D E P U TY C O UNTY RECORDER
COUNTY ASSESSOR

-RECORDER
COUNTY OF F RES N O
ST

ATE OF CALI F O R NIA

REFERENCE
IS MADE TO THAT BOUNDARY MAP O F

COMMUN I TY FAC ILIT IE S  D IS TRI CT N O  20 04-1 (P
O

LICE A N D
FIRE SERVICES) OF T H E  C IT Y O F  C L O VI S  RECORDED W IT H  THE
FRESNO COUNTY RECORDER 'S O F FIC E  ON F E B R UAR Y  19,
2004, IN BOOK 40 O F  MA P S  O F  ASSESSME N T  AND
COMMUN I TY FA C ILITIES D IS TRI CTS, P AGE 57.

THE LINE
S A ND D IME N SIO N S  O F  E A C H  L O T  O R  PARCEL

S
HOWN ON THIS D IAGR AM SH A LL BE T H O SE LI N E S  AND

DIME
NSIONS AS SHO W N  O N  T H E  FRESNO COUNTY ASSESSORS

MAPS FOR THOSE PARCELS LIS T E D. 

THE FRESNO COUNTY ASSESSORS MA P S  SHALL  GOVERN  F O R
ALL DETA

ILS C ONC

E R NI NG T H E  LI N E S  AN D  D IME N SIO N S  OF
SUCH LOTS OF PAR C E LS.

ANNEXAT I
ON M A P  NO. 5 9

COMMUN I TY FACIL I TIES DISTRI CT N O. 20 04
-

1 
(POLICE AND FIR E  SE R VICES)0 

250' 

�-

SCALE  : 1
" =

5 0 0
' 

C IT Y  O F  C L O VI S  
COUNTY OF FRESNO 
ST A T E  O F  CALI F O R NIA 

40

AGENDA ITEM NO: 9.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: General Services 

DATE: October 7, 2019 

SUBJECT: General Services – Approval – Res. 19-___, Approving Side-Letters 
to the Clovis Police Officers’ Association (CPOA) and Clovis 
Firefighters Association (CFFA) Memorandums of Understanding, 
and Amending the Management and Executive Management Benefit 
Summaries. 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Res. 19-___, Side-Letters and Benefit Summaries 
 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to approve a resolution, approving side-letters to the CPOA and CFFA 
Memorandums of Understanding, and Amending the Management and Executive 
Management Benefit Summaries providing designated benefits to certain sworn lateral 
transfer employees in order to enhance the ability of the City to recruit the highest quality 
candidates. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Staff is requesting approval of certain benefits for sworn safety employees and is defining 
those benefits in side-letters to the Clovis Police Officers’ Association (CPOA) and Clovis 
Firefighters Association (CFFA) Memorandums of Understanding and in the Benefit 
Summaries for management and executive management. The following benefits would be 
provided consistently across all the classifications for sworn lateral transfer employees who 
have a minimum of five (5) years of experience in a sworn safety position.   

  

• Accrual of vacation leave at a level that takes into account their prior sworn 
safety service with a public agency. 

41

AGENDA ITEM NO: 10.



• Credit upon hire of 40 hours of sick leave and 40 hours of comp time or 
management comp time without cash value. 

• Upon successful completion of probation, credit of an additional 40 hours of sick 
leave and an additional 40 hours of comp time or management comp time 
without cash value. 

 
BACKGROUND 
Employee benefits are set forth in Memorandums of Understanding (MOU) for represented 
employees and in Benefit Summaries for management and executive management 
employees.  Due to an oversight during recent negotiations, a side-letter to the 2016-2019 
Clovis Police Officers’ Association (CPOA) Memorandum of Understanding providing 
additional benefits to lateral CPOA hires as an incentive for employment with the City of 
Clovis was not incorporated into the 2019-2022 CPOA MOU.  After review, staff recommends 
a modified version of the previous side-letter be incorporated into the 2019-2022 CPOA MOU 
in order to preserve the incentive for those with previous law enforcement experience to 
transfer to the Clovis Police Department. For equity and consistency between sworn safety 
employees, it is recommended to provide the same benefit to Clovis Firefighters Association 
(CFFA) lateral hires and to sworn management lateral hires. Specific benefits are 
enumerated above and highlighted in the attachments. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The fiscal impact could be anywhere between $0 and $68,500 depending on the percentage 
of new hires that are lateral transfers, the usage of the hours provided, and the number of 
absences that would require a backfill at the OT rate for that position. The expected fiscal 
impact is about $22,000, assuming the benefit applies to approximately half of the new hires 
and they actually utilize 50% of those benefits. This would be included in the department’s 
budget. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
It is to the City’s strong advantage to preserve the incentive for highly qualified and 
experienced law enforcement professionals to transfer to the Clovis Police Department. It is 
also recommended to extend those benefits to sworn firefighters and to sworn management 
employees who transfer from other public agencies for equity and consistency between 
sworn safety employees. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
Personnel/Risk Management Personnel will finalize and post the side letters and benefit 
summaries on the City’s website. The new benefit will be applied as appropriate for any 
qualifying sworn lateral transfer employees hired after October 16, 2019. 
 
 
Prepared by: Andy Soldo, Management Analyst 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH  

42

AGENDA ITEM NO: 10.



 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 

RESOLUTION 19-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS 
APPROVING SIDE-LETTERS TO THE CLOVIS POLICE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION 

(CPOA) AND CLOVIS FIREFIGHTERS ASSOCIATION (CFFA) MEMORANDUMS OF 
UNDERSTANDING, AND AMENDING THE MANAGEMENT AND EXECUTIVE 

MANAGEMENT BENEFIT SUMMARIES 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City maintains Memorandums of Understanding and Benefit Summaries 

that describe various employee benefits provided to different classes of employees of the City 

of Clovis; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City desires to preserve the previous recruitment incentive for experienced 

law enforcement professionals to transfer to the Clovis Police Department with specified 

modifications; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City desires for equity and consistency to provide the same level of benefit 

to transfers of sworn firefighters and sworn safety management. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Clovis hereby adopts the side-

letters to the Clovis Police Officers Association (CPOA) and Clovis Firefighters Association 

(CFFA) Memorandums of Understanding represented by Attachments A and B to this 

resolution and hereby amends the Management and Executive Management Benefit 

Summaries as represented in Attachments C and D to this Resolution. 

 

*   *  *  *    * 

The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 

Council of the City of Clovis held on October 7, 2019 by the following vote, to wit. 
 

AYES:   
 

NOES:  
 

ABSENT:  
 

ABSTAIN:  

 

DATED: October 7, 2019 

 

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 

Mayor       City Clerk 
  

43

AGENDA ITEM NO: 10.



 

 

ATTACHMENT A of ATTACHMENT 1 

Side-Letter Agreement to the 2019-2022 Memorandum of 
Understanding Between the City of Clovis and  

Clovis Police Officers Association (CPOA) 
 
 
Lateral Police Officers 
 
During the term of the 2019-2022 MOU between the City of Clovis and CPOA, lateral police 
officer candidates who have a minimum of five (5) or more years of sworn law enforcement 
experience will receive the following: 
 
Received upon hire: 

 40 hours of sick leave 

 40 hours of no-cash-value compensation leave time 

 Credit for time served at former agency(ies) toward Years of Service accrual for vacation 
time.  Credited time is calculated per complete month at former employer. Per the CPOA 
MOU, vacation increases as per the following: 

 
 Years of Service Accrual  
  1 through end of year 7 5 hours posted on each pay period to a maximum of 280 hours 
  8 through end of year 14 6 hours posted on each pay period to a maximum of 328 hours 
15 through end of year 19 6.667 hours posted each pay period to a maximum of 360 hours 
20 Years or more 8 hours posted on each pay period to a maximum of 360 hours   

 
Received upon successful completion of the Field Training Program: 

 40 hours of sick leave 

 40 hours of no-cash-value compensation leave time 
 
In the event a lateral officer leaves employment with the City for any reason prior to completing 
their probation period, the sick leave and compensation leave time provided above shall have 
no cash-out value. 
 
 For the CITY: For the ASSOCIATION: 
 
 
___________________________  _____________________________ 
 Luke Serpa, City Manager Jordan Hunter, CPOA President 
 
Date: _______________    Date: __________________ 
 
    
   ATTEST: ________________________ 
     John Holt, City Clerk 
 
   DATE: __________________________ 
  

44

AGENDA ITEM NO: 10.



 

 

ATTACHMENT B of ATTACHMENT 1 

Side-Letter Agreement to the 2019-2022 Memorandum of 
Understanding Between the City of Clovis and  

Clovis Firefighters Association (CFFA) 
 
 
Lateral Firefighters 
 
During the term of the 2019-2022 MOU between the City of Clovis and CFFA, lateral firefighter 
candidates who have a minimum of five (5) or more years as a full-time sworn firefighter will 
receive the following: 
 
Received upon hire: 

 40 hours of sick leave 

 40 hours of no-cash-value compensation leave time 

 Credit for time served at former agency(ies) toward Years of Service accrual for vacation 
time. Credited time is calculated per complete month at former employer. 
 
Per the CFFA MOU, vacation increases as per the following: 

 

Years of Service 40 Hour Week Employees 56 Hour Week Employees 
 
Year 1 Thru End 5 hours posted on each pay 7 hours posted on each pay  
Of Year 7 period to a maximum of 280 period to a maximum of 392 
 
Year 8 Thru End  6 hours posted on each pay 8.4 hours posted on each pay 
Of Year 14 period to a maximum of 328 period to a maximum of 459.2 
 
Year 15 Thru End 6.7 hours posted on each pay 9.333 hours posted on each pay 
Of Year 19 period to a maximum of 360 period to a maximum of 504 
 
20+ years 8 hours posted on each pay 11.2 hours posted on each pay 
 period to a maximum of 360 period to a maximum of 504 
 
Received upon successful completion of the probationary period and eligible to act as 
Engineer: 

 40 hours of sick leave 

 40 hours of no-cash-value compensation leave time 
 
In the event a lateral firefighter leaves employment with the City for any reason prior to 
completing their probation period, the sick leave and compensation leave time provided above 
shall have no cash-out value. 
  

45

AGENDA ITEM NO: 10.



 

 

 
  
 For the CITY: For the ASSOCIATION: 
 
 
___________________________  _____________________________ 
 Luke Serpa, City Manager Tim Lesmeister, CFFA President 
 
Date: _______________    Date: __________________ 
 
    
   ATTEST: ________________________ 
     John Holt, City Clerk 
 
   DATE: _________________ 
  

46

AGENDA ITEM NO: 10.



 

 

ATTACHMENT C of ATTACHMENT 1 

MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEES 

BENEFITS SUMMARY 

 

October 16, 2019 
 

 

 

The following is a summary of the benefits available to management employees of the City of Clovis.  

For more information on any of the benefits listed below, contact the Personnel/Risk Management 

Division at (559) 324-2725. 

 

1. PAID VACATION 
Vacation is provided to allow employees paid time away from work to rest, recreate and return 

to work with renewed vigor and a fresh perspective.  Increases in vacation accrual rates provide 

reinforcement for and recognition of length of service.  Paid vacation time will accrue as follows 

per pay period/work days per year/maximum accrual. However, sworn Police and Fire command 

staff that enter City employment with a minimum of five (5) or more years of prior sworn law 

enforcement or sworn fire service experience with a public agency will accrue vacation leave at 

the level commensurate with their years of public service for benefit accrual purposes. 

 

Years of Service 40 hour week Employees 56 hour week Employees 

0 to 7th anniversary 5 hrs./15 days/280 hrs. Max. 7 hrs./15 days/392 hrs. Max. 

8th to 14th anniversary 6 hrs./18 days/328 hrs. Max. 8.4 hrs./18 days/459.2 hrs. Max. 

15th to 19th anniversary 6.7hrs./20 days/360 hrs. Max. 9.3 hrs./20 days/504 hrs. Max. 

20th anniversary plus 8 hrs./24 days/424 hrs. Max. 11.2 hrs./24 days/593.6 hrs. Max. 

 

2. PAID SICK LEAVE and SICK LEAVE INCENTIVE 
a. In order to ensure that employees have the opportunity to tend to their health issues and provide 

incentive for judicious use of sick leave benefit, the City provides sick leave and a sick leave 

incentive program.   

 

b. The sick leave incentive benefit compensates employees up to 50% of a calendar year’s unused 

accrual based on usage after an accumulation of 20 days of sick leave.  The incentive is paid 

automatically on December 1st of each year.  
 

Annual Sick Leave Incentive -  40 Hour Week Employees 
Hours Used During Preceding 12 
Month Period 

Number of Cash-out 
Hours Available 

Percent of 
Cash-Out 

 -0- 96 50% 
.1 to 8 88 45% 
8 to 16 80 40% 
16 to 24 72 35% 
24 to 32 64 30% 
32 to 40 56 25% 

47

AGENDA ITEM NO: 10.



 

 

 
Annual Sick Leave Incentive 56 Hour Week Employees 

Hours Used During Preceding 12 
Month Period 

Number of Cash-out 
Hours Available 

Percent of 
Cash-Out 

  -0- 134.4 50% 
.1 to 11.2 123.2 45% 
11.2 to 22.4 112 40% 
22.4 to 33.6 100.8 35% 
33.6 to 44.8 89.6 30% 
44.8 to 56 78.4 25% 

 

c. Managers who retire from the City with a normal retirement have the choice to cash-out up to 

25% of their sick leave balance on their date of retirement.   The cash-out may be applied to the 

deferred compensation plan, or may be received in cash.  The balance of unused sick leave hours 

after the cash-out will be certified to PERS for the benefit known as “Credit for Unused Sick 

Leave.”  

 

d. One-half (½) the annual accrual of sick leave per calendar year may be used to attend to an 

illness of a child, parent, spouse, registered domestic partner, sibling, parent-in-law, a 

grandparent, or a grandchild.  (Labor Code 233(a)).  Leave taken under Labor Code 233(a) will 

count toward the satisfaction of leave rights under AB1522.   

 

e. Up to 24 hours or three (3) days of sick leave may be used by an employee who is a victim of 

domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking for the purposes of:  

 Seeking medical attention for injuries cause by domestic violence or sexual assault. 

 To obtain services from a domestic violence shelter, program, or rape crisis center as a 

result of domestic violence or sexual assault. 

 To obtain psychological counseling related to an experience of domestic violence or 

sexual assault. 

 To participate in safety planning and take other actions to increase safety from future 

domestic violence or sexual assault, including temporary or permanent relocation. 

 

3. PAID HOLIDAYS 

a. The City recognizes 10 scheduled paid holidays and one (1) paid floating holiday to be used 

at the mutual agreement of the employee and their supervisor.  A four (4) hour floating holiday 

for all managers is available to be used on either the workday before Christmas Day or the 

workday before New Year’s Day, subject to the needs of the City. 

 

b. On July 1st of each year, the Deputy Police Chief and Police Captains and Lieutenants shall 

be provided with 100 hours of holiday time in lieu of paid leave time off for holidays observed 

by the City.  Up to 100 hours may be cashed-out each year at the employee’s option.  56/40 hour 

week Battalion Chiefs are provided with 200/142.86 hours of holiday time and are allowed to 

cash out up to 200/142.86 hours each year. The Deputy Fire Chief is provided with 100 hours 

each year.  On July 1 of each year, the safety managers will notify finance of the number of 

holiday hours they intend to cash out or use so that it may be reported to PERS as earned in 

accordance with PERS requirements.  Holiday hours must be used or cashed within the fiscal 

year unless an extension for use has been approved by the City Manager. If available carry over 

48

AGENDA ITEM NO: 10.



 

 

hours are available from previous years, the Deputy Fire Chief may cash out up to 142.86 hours 

of holiday time each year. 

 

c. If an employee leaves employment with the City prior to June 30, an amount equal to the pro-

rata holiday time that has been unearned will be deducted from the final paycheck. 

 

4. MANAGEMENT LEAVE 

 a. In recognition of the effort and contributions required of Management employees beyond the 

“normal” workday, the City provides additional leave time.  Management employees receive 56 

hours of management leave per fiscal year (posted July 16th). On June 30 of each year, remaining 

balances of management leave will automatically be cashed out to the employee.  By request, up 

to 40 hours of unused management leave may be carried over until December 31st.  Management 

leave cannot accumulate to an amount greater than 56 hours, except for hours carried over.  After 

December 31st, balances exceeding the 56 hours will be reduced to the normal maximum of 56 

hours. 

 

b. Fifty-six (56) hour per week Fire Management employees will receive 78.4 hours of 

management leave.  By request, they may carry over fifty-six (56) hours of unused management 

leave until December 31st.  For these employees Management Leave cannot accumulate to an 

amount greater than 78.4 hours, except for hours carried over. After December 31st, balances 

exceeding the 78.4 hours will be reduced to the normal maximum of 78.4 hours.   

 

5. MANAGEMENT INCENTIVE PAY 

 In recognition of the unique nature of the efforts and contributions required of Management 

employees, the City also provides Management Incentive Pay equal to one (1) hour of pay each 

pay period that a Manager is in paid status.  In addition to the one (1) hour of incentive pay, forty 

hour per week Battalion Chiefs will also receive 5% of base salary as additional management 

incentive pay. 

 

6 LATERAL TRANSFER BENEFIT FOR SWORN COMMAND STAFF 

 In order to provide equity with lateral hires of sworn officers and firefighters and to enhance the 

ability of the City of Clovis to recruit the highest quality candidates for sworn Police and Fire 

command staff, the City will provide the following benefits: 

 On hire to a sworn command staff position, a lateral hire with a minimum of five (5) 

or more years sworn law enforcement experience or sworn fire service experience 

with a public agency will receive 40 hours of management compensation time with 

no cash value and 40 hours of sick leave. 

 Upon successful completion of probation, the lateral hire in a sworn command staff 

position will receive an additional 40 hours of management compensation time with 

no cash value and 40 hours of sick leave. 

   

7. FAMILY ILLNESS & BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 

The City provides paid leave of up to 24 hours per calendar year to provide required personal 

care for immediate family members.  The City also provides 40 hours of paid bereavement leave 

per calendar year for employees who experience the death of a family member to allow the 

employee to attend to various matters related to the passing of the family member.  For the 

49

AGENDA ITEM NO: 10.



 

 

purposes of this Section, ‘immediate family” shall include husband, wife, registered domestic 

partner, mother/step, father/step, brother/step, sister/step, child/step, grandparent, grandchildren, 

mothers/fathers in-law, brothers/sisters in-law, sons/daughters in law or legal dependent of the 

employee.  

 

8. VICTIMS OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, SEXUAL ASSAULT, AND STALKING 

As a victim of domestic violence, an employee has certain rights afforded by AB 2337. Those 

rights include the right to take time off for certain reasons related to the situation, a right to 

reasonable accommodation for the employee’s safety, and the right to be free from retaliation 

and discrimination.  An employee who is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking 

should contact the Personnel office for more information. 

 

9. MILITARY LEAVE 

The City supports employees who serve in the military.  Military Leave requests shall be 

administered in accordance with the provisions of applicable federal and state law.  Employees 

on Military Orders for 30 or less days in a fiscal year will receive paid Military Leave for that 

period of service. Copies of the orders must be provided to the department.  Employees may be 

on unpaid leave for any period of active duty over (30) calendar days in one fiscal year pursuant 

to state law. Employees that are on active military leave may be able to reinstate PERS credit for 

time missed while on an active leave.  For more information, please contact the Personnel/Risk 

Management Division. 

 

10. MEDICAL, DENTAL, PHARMACY, OPTICAL, and GROUP LIFE INSURANCE 

a. In order to provide employees with an opportunity to maintain the health and wellness of 

themselves and their dependents, the City provides health insurance that includes medical, 

prescription, dental, and vision coverage.  In addition, the City provides life insurance coverage.  

 

b. The City provides a variety of medical plan choices to employees.  Each year before the open 

enrollment period in October/November, the City will provide the details of those options to 

employees.  Employees may also elect dental, vision and life coverage only at a reduced rate or 

waive health benefits entirely. Employees who waive all health coverage (medical, dental, 

prescription, and vision coverage) are eligible for a $420.00 health insurance rebate each month. 

To receive the $420.00 insurance rebate the employee must annually provide evidence of being 

covered on another group health plan.  Employees who have exhausted their FMLA/CFRA 

rights and are on an unpaid leave of absence approved by the City Manager are eligible to 

continue their health insurance coverage for a period of up to 6 (six) months. After that, if eligible, 

employees will have to enroll in COBRA to continue health insurance coverage. 

 

c. City paid life insurance coverage is $175,000 for the employee and $10,000 for dependents. 

 

11. RETIREE HEALTH INSURANCE  

a. Employees with a minimum of five (5) years of service as a regular full time employee 

immediately preceding separation, and who are currently enrolled in a City health plan or other 

approved group health plan, and who retire in accordance with PERS age and service 

requirements are allowed to continue in a City sponsored Medical and Prescription plan at their 

50

AGENDA ITEM NO: 10.



 

 

expense.  Details of the retiree health insurance program are provided to retirees active in the 

program each year before open enrollment.   

 

b. Retiring Managers who do not meet the eligibility guidelines for the Retiree Health Insurance 

program will be eligible to continue the City Health Insurance at their own expense by exercising 

their COBRA rights. 

 

12. SUPPLEMENTAL LIFE INSURANCE 

Employees have the option to purchase supplemental life insurance in addition to the life 

insurance coverage provided by the City in item 8 above.  Supplemental Group Life Insurance is 

available at the employee's expense by payroll deduction.  There is a 30 day guaranteed purchase 

provision from date of hire.  After 30 days from the date of hire, the insurance company has 

discretion, through the underwriting process, over policy issuance and amount of issuance.  The 

guaranteed issue amounts are: $100,000 for the employee, $25,000 for the spouse and $2,000 for 

children.  The maximum additional insurance amount is $500,000 for employees, $250,000 for 

spouses and $2,000 for children. 

 

13. BUSINESS TRAVEL INSURANCE 
A $500,000 death benefit for Management employees who die while traveling on City business 

is provided by the City.  Benefits are also paid for bodily dismemberment. 

 

14. SHORT TERM/LONG TERM DISABILITY INSURANCE 

a. In order to provide income replacement due to a non-work related event, the City provides 

Short and Long Term Disability Insurance.  Short Term Disability Insurance provides a benefit 

equal to 66.67% of base salary up to $7,000 per month for up to 24 weeks after 14 days of 

disability.  This benefit is paid for by each employee through payroll deduction. 

 

b. If an employee continues to be disabled the Long Term Policy begins after 24 weeks.  Long 

Term Disability provides a benefit equal to 66.67% of base salary up to $7,000 per month for up 

to two years after 180 days of disability.  If an employee is permanently disabled from all 

occupations, a lifetime monthly benefit (to age 65) is paid to the employee.  This benefit is paid 

for by each employee through payroll deduction.   

 

15. EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 
The Insight program is available to full-time City employees and household members to provide 

guidance, to promote wellness, and to help resolve personal issues that may be interfering with 

work or home life.  Each employee or household member is entitled to three (3) free visits every 

six (6) months. (Sworn safety managers are eligible for an additional (3) free visits every six (6) 

month period.)  Insight can be reached 24 hours a day at (559) 226-7437. 

 

16. RETIREMENT 

a. The City has contracted with the California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) for 

employee retirement benefits.  The benefits provided are based on the benefit formula, age at 

retirement, compensation, and length of service in the system. The contract provisions also 

include a 2% cost of living adjustment, the Level 4 1959 Survivor Benefit, and sick leave service 

credit conversion for all Managers.  

51

AGENDA ITEM NO: 10.



 

 

 

b. Employees hired before January 1, 2013 are classified by PERS as “Classic Employees” 

for retirement purposes.  The following retirement formulas apply to PERS Classic 

Employees: 

 

 Misc.  2.7% at 55 formulas with 8% Employee paid contribution on a pre-tax basis.  

 Safety 3% at 50 formula with 9% Employee paid contribution on a pre-tax basis. 

 

   The PERS retirement benefit for Classic Employees will be based on  

   the Employee’s highest 12 consecutive months of compensation.   

 

c. Employees hired after January 1, 2013 are classified as “New Employees” by PERS for 

retirement purposes.  The following retirement formulas apply to PERS New Employees: 

 

 Misc.  2.0% at 62 formulas with 6.25% Employee paid contribution on a pre-tax basis.  

 Safety 2.7% at 57 formula with 11.25% Employee paid contribution on a pre-tax basis. 

 

The PERS retirement benefit for New Employees is based on the  

Employee’s highest 36 consecutive months of compensation. 

 

The employee contribution rate for new members may be subject to change. 

For example, the employee contributions may increase or decrease based on 

PERS funding requirements. 

 

d. Additional Employee Cost-Sharing of PERS Contributions  

All employees participate in PERS retirement benefit cost-sharing in the form of additional 

percentages of employee compensation paid toward the City’s PERS retirement costs as follows: 

 

Miscellaneous Employees:  8.4% 

Safety Employees:  8.0% 

 

17.       PRE-RETIREMENT DEATH BENEFITS 

a. The retirement contract with PERS includes a pre-retirement death benefit.  If an employee is 

not eligible to retire (i.e., has not attained age 50 and at least five (5) years of PERS service 

credit) the employee’s beneficiary will receive the Basic Death Benefit which is a refund of the 

employee’s contributions plus interest and up to six (6) months’ pay.  In addition the beneficiary 

will receive the 1959 Survivor Benefit which provides a monthly allowance of up to $2,280 for 

three (3) or more eligible survivors.   

 

b.  Beneficiaries of employees who are eligible to retire may elect to receive the same benefit 

as noted above or the 1957 Survivor Benefit which provides a monthly allowance equal to one 

half of what the highest service retirement allowance would have been had the employee retired 

on the date of their death.  In lieu of either of these benefits, an eligible survivor may receive the 

Pre-Retirement Option 2W Death Benefit.  It provides a monthly benefit to the eligible survivor 

equal to the amount the employee would have received had the employee retired on the date of 

their death and elected Option 2W. 

52

AGENDA ITEM NO: 10.



 

 

 

c. When the death of a safety employee who is not eligible to retire is determined to be job 

related the beneficiaries may receive the Special Death Benefit which provides a monthly 

allowance equal to one half of final compensation.  If the cause of death is some external violence 

or physical force while on the job, and there are eligible children in addition to a spouse or 

registered domestic partner, the allowance may be increased to 75 percent.  The beneficiary may 

elect to receive the Basic Death Benefit and the 1959 Survivor Benefit in place of the Special 

Death Benefit.    

 

d. When the death of a safety employee who is eligible to retire is determined to be job related 

the beneficiaries may receive the Special Death Benefit which provides a monthly allowance 

equal to one half of final compensation.  If the cause of death is some external violence or 

physical force while on the job, and there are eligible children in addition to a spouse or registered 

domestic partner, the allowance may be increased to 100 percent.  The beneficiary may elect to 

receive the Basic Death Benefit and the 1959 Survivor Benefit in place of the Special Death 

Benefit.    

 

18. DEFERRED COMPENSATION  

An IRC Section 457 deferred compensation plan is available to all Management employees as a 

supplemental retirement plan, with the City matching the employee's contribution on a dollar for 

dollar basis up to 3% of the employee’s base pay.   

 

19. VEHICLE ALLOWANCE 
Designated management positions receive a $455 per month vehicle allowance in lieu of an 

assigned City vehicle for business and personal use pursuant to IRS regulations.  Miles driven in 

excess of 50 miles round trip will be paid at the current IRS set mileage rate.  To receive a vehicle 

allowance, the employee must maintain a valid California Driver’s license, maintain current 

registration and qualifying insurance (minimum limit of $300,000 combined single limit personal 

liability) on the vehicle, and provide proof of that insurance to the City of December 16 of each 

year.  Failure to provide proof of insurance will result in the vehicle allowance being suspended 

until the proof is provided.  For more information, see the City’s Business Travel Policy. 

 

20. CELLULAR TELEPHONE PROGRAM 
Designated management employees will receive a $50 per month cellular phone allowance for 

business and personal use pursuant to IRS regulations.  

 

21. COMPUTER LOAN PROGRAM 
The computer loan program is intended to encourage computer ownership in order to improve 

computer skills and organizational efficiency.  The City will loan up to $3,000 for a period of 24 

months, interest free, for Management employees to purchase a computer, software, and related 

devices for professional development and personal use. 

 

22. PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 

The City shall reimburse employees in the Unit for the cost of tuition, required fees (such as a 

health fee), required textbooks or e-books, for job-related courses leading to a college degree. To 

53

AGENDA ITEM NO: 10.



 

 

be eligible for reimbursement, the course must be related to job duties or related to a position to 

which an employee might reasonably aspire.  

 

The maximum reimbursement rate will be calculated September 1 of each year as the total of 

eight (8) semesters full-time undergraduate tuition, including required fees, at California State 

University Fresno. A total of $2,000 for required textbooks or e-books will be added to the tuition 

fees noted above for a grand total maximum reimbursement. Expenses for courses which began 

prior to July 1, 2019 will not be included in the maximum lifetime allocation.  

 

Reimbursement under this Section shall be made under the following conditions:  

 

A. Employees must have completed their initial probationary period with the City. 

  

B. By February 28 of each year, employees must submit a written request to participate 

in the Educational Incentive Program including an estimate of costs to be incurred during 

the following fiscal year.  

 

C. Course work must be for an accredited college or university degree program, and have 

the prior approval of the Department Head. Accreditation shall be through the U.S. 

Department of Education unless otherwise approved by the Department Head.  

 

D. An employee will be eligible for reimbursement of approved expenses for either an 

Associates, Bachelor’s or Master’s degree. Fees for any combination of these degrees 

may be reimbursed as long as they do not exceed the employee’s maximum allocation for 

the Educational Incentive Program.  

 

E. Course work must be work-related and determined by the Department Head to be of 

benefit to the City. Required course work as part of an approved undergraduate or 

master’s degree program is eligible for reimbursement.  

 

F. Reimbursement of approved course work and related expenses shall be contingent 

upon the attainment of a letter grade of “C” or better, or “Pass” in a course with Pass/Fail 

grading. Reimbursement shall be made after the employee submits expense receipts and 

proof of letter grade.  

 

G. Fees not required for enrollment such as parking, graduation related expenses, or travel 

will not be reimbursed.  

 

H. All courses for which reimbursement is sought shall be taken while off duty and not 

in paid status.  

 

23. SOCIAL SECURITY/MEDICARE 
The City of Clovis does not participate in Social Security, except as required for Medicare for 

employees hired after April 30, 1986. 

  

54

AGENDA ITEM NO: 10.



 

 

24. STAND-BY COMPENSATION 

Stand-by compensation shall be provided for managers in the Information Technology Division 

who participate in the regularly scheduled rotation of 24-hour/7-day coverage for computer 

services.  Compensation for the 24/7 period shall be equivalent to 30% of the weekly base salary.  

Actual callbacks shall be paid at the straight time rate for actual hours worked. 

 

25. PUBLIC SAFETY FITNESS INCENTIVE 

In the interest of public safety, the City encourages its public safety managers to maintain a high 

state of health, wellness, and fitness.  To that end, employees in police management 

classifications who participate in physical fitness testing and attain the necessary benchmarks 

will receive the same incentive provided to represented employees in the respective departments. 

(Note: Fire Management Fitness Incentive was added into step one of the salary schedule for 

Deputy Chief and Battalion Chiefs on July 1, 2019.) 

 

26. PUBLIC SAFETY MANAGERS EXTRA SHIFT COVERAGE 

Subject to approval by the City Manager, the Deputy Police Chief, Police Captains and Police 

Lieutenants, and Deputy Fire Chief and Battalion Chiefs, and the Communications Supervisor, 

Supervisor of Animal Services, and Public Safety Management Analysts who are required to 

back fill for a subordinate’s shift or fill a shift for another safety manager in the same position 

due to staffing will be provided with additional compensation provided that the extra shift 

requires working hours beyond those hours regularly scheduled for the work week.  The 

additional compensation will be paid at the straight time rate of pay of the manager filling the 

shift, unless the manager is filling the shift for a subordinate.  When filling a shift for a 

subordinate, the rate of compensation will be the straight time rate for step 5 of the classification 

being filled for the duration of the extra shift coverage assignment. If the assignment includes a 

56 hour week assignment, the public safety manager will be paid at the 56 hour rate of pay.   

 

Deployment pay for Safety Managers under a contract for service with another government 

agency will be provided at the contracted rate up to 1.5 times the employee’s normal hourly rate 

(56 or 40 hour). 

 

27. SAFETY COMMAND STAFF EXTRAORDINARY EVENT LEAVE 

Each fiscal year, upon recommendation of the Police Chief, the City Manager will have discretion 

to authorize up to an additional 40 hours of paid compensation to Police Department Command 

Staff who have worked during extraordinary law enforcement event(s) which required significant 

additional time in excess of their regular work schedule.   

 

Each fiscal year, upon recommendation of the Fire Chief, the City Manager will have the 

discretion to authorize up to an additional 40 hours of paid compensation to the Deputy Fire 

Chief, and Special Projects and Life Safety Manager who have worked during incidents or events 

which required significant additional time in excess of their regular work schedule and for which 

they have not otherwise received compensation for those hours worked.  

 

 

 

  

55

AGENDA ITEM NO: 10.



 

 

28. UNIFORMS  
Uniform allowance is provided to management employees as follows: 

 Sworn Fire Management:  $1,500.00 per fiscal year, paid each pay period. 

 Sworn Police Management: $1200.00 per fiscal year, paid annually in January. 

 Utility Managers:  Purchased by City. 

  

56

AGENDA ITEM NO: 10.



 

 

ATTACHMENT D of ATTACHMENT 1 

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT 

EMPLOYEES BENEFITS SUMMARY 

 

October 16, 2019 
 

 

 

The following is a summary of the benefits available to Executive Management employees of the City 

of Clovis. For more information on any of the benefits listed below, contact the Personnel/Risk 

Management Division at (559) 324-2725.  

 

Executive Management classifications include the City Manager, Assistant City Manager/City Clerk, 

Community and Economic Development Director, Planning and Development Services Director, 

Finance Director, Fire Chief, General Services Director, Police Chief, and Public Utilities Director. 

 

1. PAID VACATION 
Vacation is provided to allow employees paid time away from work to rest, recreate, and return 

to work with renewed vigor and fresh perspectives.  Increases in vacation accrual rates provide 

reinforcement for and recognition of length of service.  Paid vacation time will accrue as follows 

per pay period/work days per year/maximum accrual.   However, Executive Managers that enter 

City employment with prior public agency experience will accrue vacation leave at the level 

commensurate with their years of public service for benefit accrual purposes. 

 

Years of Service 40 hour week Employees 56 hour week Employees 

0 to 7th anniversary 5 hrs./15 days/280 hrs. Max. 7 hrs./15 days/392 hrs. Max. 

8th to 14th anniversary 6 hrs./18 days/328 hrs. Max. 8.4 hrs./18 days/459.2 hrs. Max. 

15th to 19th anniversary 6.7hrs./20 days/360 hrs. Max. 9.3 hrs./20 days/504 hrs. Max. 

20th anniversary plus 8 hrs./24 days/424 hrs. Max. 11.2 hrs./24 days/593.6 hrs. Max. 

 

 

2. PAID SICK LEAVE and SICK LEAVE INCENTIVE 
a. In order to ensure that employees have the opportunity to tend to health issues and to provide 

incentive for judicious use of the sick leave benefit, the City provides paid sick leave and a sick 

leave incentive program.   

 

b. The sick leave incentive benefit compensates employees up to 50% of a calendar year’s unused 

accrual based on usage after an accumulation of 20 days of sick leave.  The incentive is paid 

automatically on December 1st of each year. 

 

 

 

 

 

57

AGENDA ITEM NO: 10.



 

 

 
Annual Sick Leave Incentive -  40 Hour Week Employees 

Hours Used During Preceding 12 
Month Period 

Number of Cash-Out 
Hours Available 

Percent of 
Cash-Out 

 -0- 96 50% 
.1 to 8 88 45% 
8 to 16 80 40% 
16 to 24 72 35% 
24 to 32 64 30% 
32 to 40 56 25% 

 

c. Executive Managers have the choice to receive up to 50% cash-out of total accrued sick leave 

at the time of retirement, or a 25% cash-out at the time of separation of employment in good 

standing for reasons other than a “normal” retirement.  The cash-out may be applied to the 

deferred compensation plan, or may be received in cash.   The balance of unused sick leave hours 

after the cash-out will be certified to PERS for the benefit known as “Credit for Unused Sick 

Leave.”   

 

d. One-half (½) of the annual accrual of sick leave per calendar year may be used to attend to the 

health issues of a child, parent, spouse, registered domestic partner, sibling, parent-in-law, 

grandparent, or grandchild. (Labor Code 233(a)).  Leave taken under Labor Code 233(a) will 

count toward the satisfaction of leave rights under AB1522. 

 

e. Up to 24 hours or three (3) days of sick leave may be used by an employee who is a victim of 

domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking for the purposes of:  

 Seeking medical attention for injuries cause by domestic violence or sexual assault. 

 To obtain services from a domestic violence shelter, program, or rape crisis center as 

a result of domestic violence or sexual assault. 

 To obtain psychological counseling related to an experience of domestic violence or 

sexual assault. 

 To participate in safety planning and take other actions to increase safety from future 

domestic violence or sexual assault, including temporary or permanent relocation.   

 

3. PAID HOLIDAYS 

a. The City recognizes 10 scheduled paid holidays, and one (1) paid floating holiday to be used 

at the mutual agreement of the employee and their supervisor.  A four (4) hour floating holiday 

for all managers is available to be used on either the workday before Christmas Day or the 

workday before New Year’s Day, subject to the needs of the City. 

 

b. On July 1st of each year, the Fire Chief and Police Chief shall receive 100 hours in the Holiday 

Hour Bank in lieu of paid leave time-off for holidays observed by the City.  Up to 100 hours may 

be cashed-out each year at the Fire and Police Chief’s option.  On July 1 of each year, the Fire 

Chief and Police Chief will notify finance of the number of holiday hours they intend to cash out 

or use so that it may be reported to PERS as earned in accordance with PERS requirements.  

Holiday hours must be used or cashed within the fiscal year unless an extension for use has been 

approved by the City Manager.  If available carry over hours are available from previous years, 

the Fire Chief may cash out up to 142.86 hours of holiday time each year. 

58

AGENDA ITEM NO: 10.



 

 

 

c. If the Fire / Police Chief leaves City employment prior to June 30th, an amount equal to the 

pro-rata holiday time that has been unearned during the fiscal year will be deducted from their 

final paycheck. 

 

4. MANAGEMENT LEAVE 

In recognition of the effort and contributions required of Executive Management employees 

beyond the “normal” workday, the City provides additional leave time.  Executive Management 

employees receive 96 hours of management leave per fiscal year (posted July 16th).  Up to 56 

hours of unused management leave is automatically cashed out on July 1st of each year.  Forty 

(40) hours of management leave has no cash-out value.  On June 30th of each year, up to a 

maximum of 40 hours of unused management leave will automatically be carried over until 

December 31st.  Management leave cannot accumulate to an amount greater than 96 hours, except 

for hours carried over.   After December 31st, balances exceeding the 96 hours will be reduced to 

the normal maximum of 96 hours. 

 

5. MANAGEMENT INCENTIVE PAY 

 In recognition of the unique nature of the effort and contributions required of Management 

employees, the City also provides Management Incentive Pay equal to one (1) hour of pay each 

pay period that a Manager is in paid status.   

 

6. LATERAL TRANSFER BENEFIT FOR POLICE AND FIRE CHIEF 

 In order to provide equity with other sworn command staff and to enhance the ability of the City 

of Clovis to recruit the highest quality candidates for the sworn positions of Police and Fire 

Chiefs’ the City will provide the following benefits: 

 On hire, a lateral hire for Police Chief or Fire Chief will receive 40 hours of 

management compensation time with no cash value and 40 hours of sick leave. 

 Upon successful completion of probation, the lateral hire Police Chief or Fire Chief 

will receive an additional 40 hours of management compensation time with no cash 

value and 40 hours of sick leave. 

  

7. FAMILY ILLNESS & BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 

The City provides paid leave of up to 24 hours per calendar year for the purpose of providing 

personal care for immediate family members. The City also provides 40 hours of paid 

bereavement leave per calendar year for employees who experience the death of a family member 

to allow the employee to attend to various matters related to the passing of the family member.  

For the purposes of this Section, ‘immediate family” shall include husband, wife, registered 

domestic partner, mother/step, father/step, brother/step, sister/step, child/step, grandparent, 

grandchildren, mothers/fathers in-law, brothers/sisters in-law, sons/daughters in law or legal 

dependent of the employee.  

 

8. VICTIMS OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, SEXUAL ASSAULT, AND STALKING 

As a victim of domestic violence, an employee has certain rights afforded by AB 2337.  Those 

rights include the right to take time off for certain reasons related to the situation, a right to 

reasonable accommodation for the employee’s safety, and the right to be free from retaliation 

59

AGENDA ITEM NO: 10.



 

 

and discrimination.  An employee who is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking 

should contact the Personnel office for more information. 

 

9. MILITARY LEAVE 

The City supports employees who serve in the military.  Military Leave requests shall be 

administered in accordance with the provisions of applicable federal and state law.  Employees 

on Military Orders for 30 or less days in a fiscal year will receive paid Military Leave for that 

period of service. Copies of the orders must be provided to the department.  Employees may be 

on unpaid leave for any period of active duty over 30 calendar days in one fiscal year pursuant 

to state law.  Employees that are on active military leave may be able to reinstate PERS credit 

for time missed while on an active leave.  For more information, please contact the 

Personnel/Risk Management Division. 

 

10. MEDICAL, DENTAL, PHARMACY, OPTICAL, and GROUP LIFE INSURANCE 

a. In order to provide employees with an opportunity to maintain the health and wellness of 

themselves and their dependents, the City provides health insurance that includes medical, 

prescription, dental, and vision coverages.  In addition, the City provides life insurance coverage. 

 

b. The City provides a variety of medical plan choices to employees.  Each year before the open 

enrollment period in October/November, the City will provide the details of those options to 

employees.  Employees may also elect dental, vision and life coverage only at a reduced rate or 

waive health benefits entirely.  Employees who waive all health coverage (medical, dental, 

prescription, and vision coverage) are eligible for a $420.00 health insurance rebate each month. 

To receive the $420.00 health rebate the employee must annually provide evidence of being 

covered on another group health plan. Employees who have exhausted their FMLA/CFRA 

rights and are on an unpaid leave of absence approved by the City Manager are eligible to 

continue their health insurance coverage for a period of up to 6 (six) months.  After that, if 

eligible, employees will have to enroll in COBRA to continue health insurance coverage. 

 

c. City-paid life insurance coverage for Executive Managers is $275,000 for the employee and 

$10,000 for dependents. 

 

11. RETIREE HEALTH INSURANCE 

a. Employees with a minimum of five (5) years of service as a regular full time employee 

immediately preceding separation, and who are currently enrolled in a City health plan or other 

approved group health plan, and who retire in accordance with PERS age and service 

requirements are allowed to continue in a City sponsored Medical and Prescription plan at their 

expense.  Details of the retiree health insurance program are provided to retirees active in the 

program each year before open enrollment.   

 

b. Retiring Managers who do not meet the eligibility guidelines for the Retiree Health Insurance 

program will be eligible to continue the City Health Insurance at their own expense by exercising 

their COBRA rights. 

 

  

60

AGENDA ITEM NO: 10.



 

 

12. SUPPLEMENTAL LIFE INSURANCE 

Employees have the option to purchase supplemental life insurance in addition to the life 

insurance coverage provided by the City in Item 8 above.  Supplemental Group Life Insurance is 

available at the employee's expense by payroll deduction.  There is a 30 day guaranteed purchase 

provision from date of hire.  After 30 days from the date of hire, the insurance company, through 

the underwriting process, has discretion over policy issuance and amount of issuance.  The 

guaranteed issue amounts are: $100,000 for the employee, $25,000 for the spouse and $2,000 for 

children.  The maximum additional insurance amount is $500,000 for employees, $250,000 for 

spouses and $2,000 for children. 

 

13. BUSINESS TRAVEL INSURANCE 
A $500,000 death benefit for Executive Management employees who die while traveling on City 

business is provided by the City.  Benefits are also paid for bodily dismemberment. 

 

14. SHORT TERM/LONG TERM DISABILITY INSURANCE 

a. In order to provide income replacement due to a non-work related event, the City provides 

Short and Long Term Disability Insurance.  Short Term Disability Insurance provides a benefit 

equal to 66.67% of base salary up to $7,000 per month for up to 24 weeks after 14 days of 

disability.  This benefit is paid for by each employee through payroll deduction. 

 

b. If an employee continues to be disabled, the Long Term Policy begins after 24 weeks.  Long 

Term Disability provides a benefit equal to 66.67% of base salary up to $7,000 per month for up 

to two years after 180 days of disability.  If an employee is permanently disabled from all 

occupations, a lifetime monthly benefit (to age 65) is paid to the employee.  This benefit is paid 

for by each employee through payroll deduction.   

 

15. EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 
The Insight program is available to full-time City employees and household members to provide 

guidance to promote wellness and to help resolve personal issues that may be interfering with 

work or home life.  Each employee or household member is entitled to three (3) free visits every 

six (6) months. (Each sworn safety employee is entitled to an additional (3) free visits every (6) 

month period.)  Insight can be reached 24 hours a day at (559) 226-7437. 

 

16. RETIREMENT 

a. The City has contracted with the California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) for 

employee retirement benefits.  The benefits provided are based on the benefit formula, age at 

retirement, compensation, and length of service in the system.  The contract provisions also 

include a 2% cost of living adjustment, the Level 4 1959 Survivor Benefit, and sick leave service 

credit conversion for all Managers.   

 

b. Employees hired before January 1, 2013, are classified by PERS as “Classic Employees” 

for retirement purposes.  The following retirement formulas apply to PERS Classic 

Employees: 

 

 Misc.  2.7% at 55 formulas with 8% Employee paid contribution on a pre-tax basis.  

 Safety 3% at 50 formula with 9% Employee paid contribution on a pre-tax basis. 

61

AGENDA ITEM NO: 10.



 

 

      

  The PERS retirement benefit for Classic Employees will be based on the 

employee’s highest 12 consecutive months of compensation. 

 

c. Employees hired after January 1, 2013, are classified as “New Employees” by PERS for 

retirement purposes.  The following retirement formulas apply to PERS New Employees:   

 

 Misc.  2.0% at 62 formulas with 6.25% Employee paid contribution on a pre-tax basis.  

 Safety 2.7% at 57 formula with 11.25% Employee paid contribution on a pre-tax basis. 

   

  The PERS retirement benefit for New Employees is based on the employee’s 

highest 36 consecutive months of compensation. 

 

  The employee contribution rate for PERS New Employees may be subject to 

change. For example the employee contributions may increase or decrease 

based on PERS funding requirements. 

 

d. Additional Employee Cost-Sharing of PERS Contributions:  

All employees participate in PERS retirement benefit cost-sharing in the form of additional 

percentages of employee compensation paid toward the City’s PERS retirement costs as 

follows: 

 

Miscellaneous Employees:  8.4% cost sharing 

Safety Employees:  8.0% cost sharing 

 

17. PRE-RETIREMENT DEATH BENEFITS 

a. The City’s retirement contract with PERS includes a pre-retirement death benefit.  If an 

employee is not eligible to retire (i.e., has not attained age 50 and at least five (5) years of PERS 

service credit) the employee’s beneficiary will receive the Basic Death Benefit which is a refund 

of the employee’s contributions plus interest and up to six (6) month’s pay.  In addition, the 

beneficiary will receive the 1959 Survivor Benefit which provides a monthly allowance of up to 

$2,280 for three (3) or more eligible survivors. 

 

b. Beneficiaries of employees who are eligible to retire, may elect to receive the same benefit 

as noted above or the 1957 Survivor Benefit which provides a monthly allowance equal to one 

half of what the highest service retirement allowance would have been had the employee retired 

on the date of their death.  In lieu of either of these benefits, an eligible survivor may receive the 

Pre-Retirement Option 2W Death Benefit.  It provides a monthly benefit to the eligible survivor 

equal to the amount the employee would have received had the employee retired on the date of 

their death and elected Option 2W.    

 

c. When the death of a safety employee who is not eligible to retire is determined to be job 

related the beneficiaries may receive the Special Death Benefit which provides a monthly 

allowance equal to one half of final compensation.  If the cause of death is some external violence 

or physical force while on the job, and there are eligible children in addition to a spouse or 

registered domestic partner, the allowance may be increased to 75 percent.  The beneficiary may 

62

AGENDA ITEM NO: 10.



 

 

elect to receive the Basic Death Benefit and the 1959 Survivor Benefit in place of the Special 

Death Benefit.    

 

d. When the death of a safety employee who is eligible to retire is determined to be job related 

the beneficiaries may receive the Special Death Benefit which provides a monthly allowance 

equal to one half of final compensation.  If the cause of death is some external violence or 

physical force while on the job, and there are eligible children in addition to a spouse or registered 

domestic partner, the allowance may be increased to 100 percent.  The beneficiary may elect to 

receive the Basic Death Benefit and the 1959 Survivor Benefit in place of the Special Death 

Benefit.    

 

18. DEFERRED COMPENSATION  

An IRC Section 457 deferred compensation plan is available to all Management employees as a 

supplemental retirement plan, with the City matching the employee's contribution on a dollar for 

dollar basis up to 3% of the employee’s base pay.   

 

19. VEHICLE ALLOWANCE 
Executive Managers receive a $500 per month vehicle allowance, unless modified by an 

employment agreement, in lieu of an assigned City vehicle for business and personal use pursuant 

to IRS regulations.  Miles driven in excess of 50 miles round-trip will be paid at the current IRS 

set mileage rate.  To receive a vehicle allowance, the employee must maintain a valid California 

Driver’s license, maintain current registration and qualifying insurance (minimum limit of 

$300,000 combined single limit personal liability) on the vehicle, and provide proof of that 

insurance to the City by December 16 of each year.  Failure to provide proof of insurance will 

result in the vehicle allowance being suspended until the proof is provided.  For more 

information, see the City’s Business Travel Policy. 

 

20. CELLULAR TELEPHONE PROGRAM 
Executive Management employees will receive a $50 per month cellular phone allowance for 

business and personal use pursuant to IRS regulations.  

 

21. COMPUTER LOAN PROGRAM 
The computer loan program is intended to encourage computer ownership in order to improve 

computer skills and organizational efficiency.  The City will loan up to $3,000 for a period of 24 

months, interest free, for Executive Management employees to purchase a computer, software, 

and related devices for professional development and personal use. 

 

22. PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
The City shall reimburse employees in the Unit for the cost of tuition, required fees (such as a 

health fee), required textbooks or e-books, for job-related courses leading to a college degree. To 

be eligible for reimbursement, the course must be related to job duties or related to a position to 

which an employee might reasonably aspire.  

 

The maximum reimbursement rate will be calculated September 1 of each year as the total of 

eight (8) semesters full-time undergraduate tuition, including required fees, at California State 

University Fresno. A total of $2,000 for required textbooks or e-books will be added to the tuition 

63

AGENDA ITEM NO: 10.



 

 

fees noted above for a grand total maximum reimbursement. Expenses for courses which began 

prior to July 1, 2019 will not be included in the maximum lifetime allocation.  

 

Reimbursement under this Section shall be made under the following conditions:  

 

A. Employees must have completed their initial probationary period with the City.  

 

B. By February 28 of each year, employees must submit a written request to participate 

in the Educational Incentive Program including an estimate of costs to be incurred during 

the following fiscal year.  

 

C. Course work must be for an accredited college or university degree program, and have 

the prior approval of the Department Head. Accreditation shall be through the U.S. 

Department of Education unless otherwise approved by the Department Head.  

 

D. An employee will be eligible for reimbursement of approved expenses for either an 

Associates, Bachelor’s or Master’s degree. Fees for any combination of these degrees 

may be reimbursed as long as they do not exceed the employee’s maximum allocation for 

the Educational Incentive Program.  

 

E. Course work must be work-related and determined by the Department Head to be of 

benefit to the City. Required course work as part of an approved undergraduate or 

master’s degree program is eligible for reimbursement.  

 

F. Reimbursement of approved course work and related expenses shall be contingent 

upon the attainment of a letter grade of “C” or better, or “Pass” in a course with Pass/Fail 

grading. Reimbursement shall be made after the employee submits expense receipts and 

proof of letter grade.  

 

G. Fees not required for enrollment such as parking, graduation related expenses, or travel 

will not be reimbursed.  

 

H. All courses for which reimbursement is sought shall be taken while off duty and not 

in paid status.  
 

23. SOCIAL SECURITY/MEDICARE 
The City of Clovis does not participate in Social Security, except as required for Medicare for 

employees hired after April 30, 1986. 

 

24. PUBLIC SAFETY FITNESS INCENTIVE 

In the interest of public safety, the City encourages its public safety managers to maintain a high 

state of health, wellness, and fitness. To that end, employees in police management classifications 

who participate in physical fitness testing and attain the necessary benchmarks will receive the 

same incentive provided to represented employees in the respective departments. (Note: The Fire 

Management Fitness Incentive was added into step one of the salary schedule for the Fire Chief 

on July 1, 2019.) 

64

AGENDA ITEM NO: 10.



 

 

 

25. SAFETY COMMAND STAFF EXTRAORDINARY EVENT LEAVE 

Each fiscal year, upon recommendation, the City Manager will have the discretion to authorize 

up to an additional 40 hours of paid compensation to the Police and Fire Chiefs who have worked 

extraordinary law enforcement or fire events or other major incidents which required significant 

additional time in excess of their regular work schedule and for which they have not otherwise 

received compensation for those hours worked.    

 

26. UNIFORMS 
 Uniform allowance is provided to public safety Executive Management employees as 

 follows: 

   Fire $1500.00 per fiscal year, paid each pay period. 

       Police $1200.00 per fiscal year, paid annually each January.  

 

65

AGENDA ITEM NO: 10.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: General Services Department 

DATE: October 7, 2019 

SUBJECT: General Services – Approval – Res. 19-___, Renewing Medical Plan 
Option for Eligible Retirees and Restating the Eligibility 
Requirements for Participation in the Plan.                                              

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Res. 19-___, Renew Retiree Health Plan 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to approve a resolution renewing the City’s Retiree Medical Plan option 
for eligible retirees and restating eligibility requirements for participation in the plan.  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The City has sponsored a group retiree medical plan for retirees who meet certain eligibility 
requirements for many years. Approval of the attached Resolution renews the retiree medical 
plan for the 2020 plan year.     
 
BACKGROUND 
For many years, the City has offered employees who retire from City service the option of 
purchasing the same medical and prescription drug benefit package offered to full-time, 
regular employees. The retiree medical plan option is renewed annually at the discretion of 
the Council. This option provides qualifying retirees (those with a minimum of five (5) years 
of full-time City service immediately preceding retirement) with the opportunity to continue 
participation in the City’s medical/prescription plans beyond the continuation coverage period 
provided through COBRA. Eligibility requirements for participation in the plan and rate 
information are listed in the attached (Attachment A of Attachment 1, and Attachment B of 
Attachment 1). 
 

  

66

AGENDA ITEM NO: 11.



FISCAL IMPACT 
The retiree medical plan option is rated separately from the active City employee medical 
plan.  In addition, monthly premiums are paid entirely by the retirees. Consequently, there is 
no fiscal impact to the City for offering this program.   
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
Council action is necessary to renew the retiree medical plan option for eligible retirees for 
the 2020 plan year. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
Upon adoption, the program renewal will become effective with the 2020 plan year, i.e., 
January 1, 2020. Eligible retirees will be provided with an open enrollment notice of their 
available options during the City’s open enrollment period (i.e., October 14 through 
November 15, 2019). Additionally, employees who retire and become eligible during the 2020 
plan year will be provided with similar notice at the time of retirement. 
 
 
Prepared by: Lori Shively/Personnel/Risk Manager 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH  

67

AGENDA ITEM NO: 11.



 

 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION 19-____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS 
RENEWING THE RETIREE MEDICAL PLAN OPTION FOR ELIGIBLE 

RETIREES AND RESTATING THE ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS 
FOR PARTICIPATION IN THE PLAN 

 

The City Council of the City of Clovis resolves as follows: 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City offers a retiree health plan that allows retirees to purchase medical 

and prescription coverage; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City has established eligibility requirements for participation in the plan 

listed in the attached Attachment A of Attachment 1; and,  
 
WHEREAS, continued offering of the retiree health plan is determined on an annual 

basis at the discretion of the Council. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Clovis, 

hereby renews the Retiree Medical Plan Option and rates effective January 1, 
2020, as summarized in the Attachment B of Attachment 1.   

 
             *  *  *  *  *  * 

  

 

The foregoing Resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the City of Clovis held on October 7, 2019, by the following vote to wit: 
 
AYES:   

 
NOES:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
 Dated:  October 7, 2019: 
 
 

___________________________  __________________________ 
                  Mayor                         City Clerk 
 
 
  

ATTACHMENT 1 
68

AGENDA ITEM NO: 11.



 

 

 
Retiree Medical/Prescription Plan Summary  

For the 2020 Plan Year 
 
Retiree Benefits 
 
Effective January 1, 2020, retirees of the City of Clovis will be allowed to continue in a 
City sponsored Retiree Medical/Prescription Plan at their own expense, provided they 
meet the plan eligibility requirements. Enrolled retirees will participate in the annual open 
enrollment for the medical/prescription plans. 

Eligibility Requirements 

 
To be eligible for the Retiree Medical/Prescription Plan, a retired/retiring employee must 
meet the following eligibility requirements: 
 

1. Been continuously covered in the medical/prescription portion of the City’s health 
plan through December 31, 2019, as a full-time regular employee or a retired 
enrollee; or, was continuously covered by a City-approved group 
medical/prescription plan as a full-time regular City employee immediately 
preceding retirement from the City. 

 
2. Be eligible to retire in accordance with CalPERS age and service requirements, 

including disability retirement. 
 

3. Have a minimum of five (5) years of service with the City of Clovis as a full-time 
regular employee immediately preceding employment separation with the City of 
Clovis. 

4. Retired employees and their dependents are eligible for City coverage until they 
become eligible for Medicare. Retired employees and/or their dependents that 
become eligible for Medicare are no longer eligible to remain on the City’s retiree 
plans. They have the option of enrolling in Medicare and may seek supplemental 
coverage other than through the City’s plan.   

a. If a retired employee becomes Medicare eligible, and has a spouse who is 
not Medicare eligible or a dependent child under the age of 26, the spouse 
and child may continue City coverage even after the retired employee 
becomes Medicare eligible and enrolls in Medicare and a supplemental 
plan.   

b. A spouse who becomes Medicare eligible, or a dependent child who 
reaches the age of 26, will not be eligible to continue in the City’s Retiree 
Medical/Prescription Plan.   

 
 
 

  
 
 

ATTACHMENT A of ATTACHMENT 1 

69

AGENDA ITEM NO: 11.



 

 

 
5. An eligible employee who plans on retiring must enroll in the Retiree 

Medical/Prescription Plan within thirty (30) calendar days of the effective date of 
employment separation. If an eligible employee fails to enroll, or waives 
enrollment, they shall not be eligible to enroll in the plan at a future date. A 
dependent who enrolls or has been enrolled in an alternative insurance plan for a 
period of time, may be added to the retiree’s plan upon loss of other coverage or 
during open enrollment if the retiree has maintained continuous coverage with the 
City under this plan.   
 

6. Eligibility for dependents normally extends through the retiree. Dependents may 
only be enrolled for coverage if the retiree is concurrently enrolled (except as 
provided for in 4-a. above). Dependents of a retiree lose eligibility for coverage 
under the Retiree Medical/Prescription Plan when a non-Medicare eligible retiree 
elects to discontinue coverage. Upon the death of a covered retiree or the death 
of a covered employee who was eligible to retire, a spouse or covered child may 
continue coverage until the spouse is Medicare eligible and the child reaches the 
age of 26 respectively.  

 
7. A retiree or eligible dependent that enrolls in the Retiree Medical/Prescription Plan 

shall not be allowed to re-enroll in the plan if they drop coverage in the plan or fail 
to make their monthly premium payment within thirty (30) days of the due date. 

 
8. Continued enrollment in the Retiree Medical/Prescription Plan is also subject to 

terms and conditions set forth in the Evidence of Coverage/Disclosure Document 
of the medical plan in which the retiree and dependents are enrolled. 

 
A Retiree who returns to work for the City and enrolls in an active plan because of 
reinstatement from retirement or who has returned as an elected official, will again be 
eligible for retiree coverage upon retiring subject to the normal retiree requirements.   
 
 
Dental and Vision Coverage    
 
Dental and/or Vision Coverage is not available to retirees through the City of Clovis 
Retiree Medical/Prescription Plan. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

               

70

AGENDA ITEM NO: 11.



 

 

                                                                                                                                                                

 
Pre 65 Retiree Health Plan Monthly Rates charged by Vendor  

for the 2020 Program Year 
 

 Blue Cross HMO 15  Kaiser HMO 15    

 
Retiree Only $   977.00       $   852.00 
Retiree & Spouse $2,021.00       $1,765.00 
Retiree & Child(ren) $1,755.00       $1,516.00 
Retiree & Family $2,925.00       $2,513.00 

 

 

 Blue Cross PPO 80                                             

 
Retiree Only $   941.00            
Retiree & Spouse $1,974.00          
Retiree & Child(ren) $1,695.00          
Retiree & Family $2,820.00          

 

 

 Blue Cross HDHP  Kaiser HDHP                                        

 
Retiree Only $   676.00             $   665.00 
Retiree & Spouse $1,417.00         $1,377.00 
Retiree & Child(ren) $1,238.00         $1,183.00 
Retiree & Family $2,026.00         $1,961.00 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT B of ATTACHMENT 1 
71

AGENDA ITEM NO: 11.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Planning and Development Services 

DATE: October 7, 2019 

SUBJECT: Planning and Development Services - Approval - A request to adopt 
a resolution authorizing the Director of Planning and Development 
Services to apply for, and receive Per Capita Grant Funds through 
the California Department of Parks and Recreation.   

ATTACHMENT: 1. Draft Resolution 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
For the City Council to approve a resolution authorizing the Director of Planning and 
Development Services to apply for, and receive Per Capita Grant Funds from the California 
Department of Parks and Recreation. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The Per Capita Grant Program originates from Proposition 68, approved by voters on June 
5, 2018.  Funds are available for local park rehabilitation, creation, and improvement grants 
to local governments on a per capita basis.  Grants to cities are a minimum of $200,000.  To 
be eligible to apply for the funds, the attached resolution needs to be approved by the City 
Council and submitted to the State Department of Parks and Recreation Office of Grants 
and Local Services by November 1, 2019.  Grant proposals are due by January 31, 2020. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
City staff is actively researching potential grant funding available to help fund the 
development of future parks. This includes funding for the Loma Vista Village Green to be 
developed south of Shaw Avenue between DeWolf and Leonard Avenues. If this resolution 

72

AGENDA ITEM NO: 12.



is approved, staff plans to submit a proposal to help with funding for the construction of the 
Loma Vista Village Green.  

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
If grant funds are awarded, staff will ensure that funds are appropriately addressed in the 
CIP Program budget. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Per Capita Program provides the City of Clovis with an opportunity to receive partial 
grant funding for the Loma Vista Village Green.  Staff therefore recommends that the City 
Council approve the attached resolution authorizing the Director of Planning and 
Development Services to apply for, and receive Per Capita Grant Funds through the 
California Department of Parks and Recreation.   
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
 
Staff will move forward and submit an application for the grant funding. 
 
Prepared by: Ryan Burnett, AICP, Engineering Program Supervisor 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH   

73

AGENDA ITEM NO: 12.



RESOLUTION 19-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS APPROVING 
APPLICATION(S) FOR PER CAPITA GRANT FUNDS 

 
WHEREAS, the State Department of Parks and Recreation has been delegated 

the responsibility by the Legislature of the State of California for the administration of the 
Per Capita Grant Program, setting up necessary procedures governing application(s); 
and  

 
WHEREAS, said procedures established by the State Department of Parks and 

Recreation require the grantee’s Governing Body to certify by resolution the approval of 
project application(s) before submission of said applications to the State; and  

 
WHEREAS, the grantee will enter into a contract with the State of California to 

complete project(s). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Clovis City Council 
hereby:  

 
1. Approves the filing of project application(s) for Per Capita program grant project(s); and  
 
2. Certifies that said grantee has or will have available, prior to commencement of project 
work utilizing Per Capita funding, sufficient funds to complete the project(s); and  
 
3. Certifies that the grantee has or will have sufficient funds to operate and maintain the 
project(s); and  
 
4. Certifies that all projects proposed will be consistent with the parks and recreation 
element of the City of Clovis general or recreation plan (PRC §80063(a)); and  
 
5. Certifies that these funds will be used to supplement, not supplant, local revenues in 
existence as of June 5, 2018 (PRC §80062(d)); and  
 
6. Certifies that it will comply with the provisions of §1771.5 of the State Labor Code; and  
 
7. (PRC §80001(b)(8)(A-G)) To the extent practicable, as identified in the “Presidential 
Memorandum--Promoting Diversity and Inclusion in Our National Parks, National Forests, 
and Other Public Lands and Waters,” dated January 12, 2017, the City of Clovis will 
consider a range of actions that include, but are not limited to, the following:  
 

(A) Conducting active outreach to diverse populations, particularly minority, low-
income, and disabled populations and tribal communities, to increase awareness 
within those communities and the public generally about specific programs and 
opportunities.  

 ATTACHMENT 1 

74

AGENDA ITEM NO: 12.



(B) Mentoring new environmental, outdoor recreation, and conservation leaders to 
increase diverse representation across these areas.  

 
(C) Creating new partnerships with state, local, tribal, private, and nonprofit 
organizations to expand access for diverse populations.  

 
(D) Identifying and implementing improvements to existing programs to increase 
visitation and access by diverse populations, particularly minority, low-income, and 
disabled populations and tribal communities.  

 
(E) Expanding the use of multilingual and culturally appropriate materials in public 
communications and educational strategies, including through social media 
strategies, as appropriate, that target diverse populations.  

 
(F) Developing or expanding coordinated efforts to promote youth engagement 
and empowerment, including fostering new partnerships with diversity-serving and 
youth-serving organizations, urban areas, and programs.  

 
(G) Identifying possible staff liaisons to diverse populations.  

 
8. Agrees that to the extent practicable, the project(s) will provide workforce education 
and training, contractor and job opportunities for disadvantaged communities (PRC 
§80001(b)(5)).  
 
9. Certifies that the grantee shall not reduce the amount of funding otherwise available to 
be spent on parks or other projects eligible for funds under this division in its jurisdiction. 
A one-time allocation of other funding that has been expended for parks or other projects, 
but which is not available on an ongoing basis, shall not be considered when calculating 
a recipient’s annual expenditures. (PRC §80062(d)).  
 
10. Certifies that the grantee has reviewed, understands, and agrees to the General 
Provisions contained in the contract shown in the Procedural Guide; and  
 
11. Delegates the authority to the Planning and Development Services Director, or 
designee to conduct all negotiations, sign and submit all documents, including, but not 
limited to applications, agreements, amendments, and payment requests, which may be 
necessary for the completion of the grant scope(s); and  
 
12. Agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules, 
regulations and guidelines.  
 

*   *  *  *    * 

 

 

 

 

75

AGENDA ITEM NO: 12.



 

The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 

Council of the City of Clovis held on October 7, 2019, by the following vote, to wit. 

 

AYES:   

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 

DATED:  October 7, 2019  

 

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Mayor       City Clerk 
 

76

AGENDA ITEM NO: 12.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Planning and Development Services 

DATE: October 7, 2019 

SUBJECT: Planning and Development Services – Approval - Res. 19-___, A 
request to adopt a resolution authorizing the Director of Planning and 
Development Services to apply for, and receive SB2 Planning Grants 
Program Funds from the State of California Department of Housing 
and Community Development. 

ATTACHMENT: 1. Draft Resolution 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve a resolution authorizing the Director of Planning and Development Services to apply 
for, and receive Planning Grants Program (PGP) Funds from the State of California 
Department of Housing and Community Development. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
In 2017, Governor Brown signed a 15-bill housing package http://www.hcd.ca.gov/policy-
research/lhp.shtml aimed at addressing the State’s housing shortage and high housing costs 
with the intent to streamline residential permits for all income levels. 
 
On March 28, 2019, the State of California issued a Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) 
for $123 million under the Senate Bill 2 (SB2, 2017) PGP.  The award amount is dependent 
upon the size of the community and varies from $25,000 to $625,000.  The City of Clovis is 
classified as a medium community with a maximum award of $310,000 with no requirement 
of matching funds.  SB2 PGP Funds is a non-competitive, over the counter grant. 
 

77

AGENDA ITEM NO: 13.



The NOFA provides an opportunity to apply for the SB2, PGP Funds between March 28 and 
November 30, 2019.  Upon adoption of a resolution, the Director of Planning and 
Development Services is prepared to submit an application for several programs listed below.  
The PGP Funds are required to be utilized by June 30, 2022.  
 
Planning Programs 
 
1. Update Development Code to provide a review process for multiple-family development.  

Currently, the site plan review process is required for standard multiple-family 
development.  The Code update would eliminate the site plan review process, and create 
a new ministerial review, measuring projects against objective development standards.  
The new process would streamline the design review process. 
 

2. Update Multiple-Family Design Guidelines to address contemporary architectural and 
site design by identifying and establishing objective design standards.  The current 
Multiple-Family Design Guidelines were adopted in 1991. 
 

3. Update Technical Studies within the Heritage Grove Area to assist in streamlining 
environmental review that would otherwise be required on a project-by-project basis.  The 
list of studies are specific to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) guidelines.  
 

4. Cottage Home Program Update to revise the standard plans used for Accessory 
Dwelling Units within alley loaded homes.  The updates are necessary to address new 
Building Codes in effect on January 1, 2020. 
 

Staff is currently working with private consultants regarding cost estimates for each program.  
In the event the above programs exceed the maximum award of $310,000, staff has placed 
the items in the recommended order of priority for purposes of the grant.  For instance, the 
plan update for the Cottage Home Program was an expected expense and could be covered 
within the current budget and, therefore, has been placed as the lowest priority. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Affordable Housing has been on the top of the list for the City of Clovis over the past several 
years. After the recent adoption of a rezone program to address the City’s Regional Housing 
Needs Allocation (RHNA), staff has been seeking opportunity to update codes, standards 
and procedures to address recent state legislation and stay ahead of future laws.  
Additionally, with the cost of development continually on the rise, staff understands the need 
of exploring opportunities to expedite an already streamlined permit process.  Awarded funds 
from the SB2 Grant could provide the opportunity to review and update the City’s codes, 
standards, and procedures to address this need. 
 
 
 
 
 

78

AGENDA ITEM NO: 13.



FISCAL IMPACT 
 
If the Planning Grants Program Funds are awarded and received by the Planning Division, a 
budget amendment will be necessary to address the appropriate account to allocate revenue 
and expenditures. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
The SB2 Planning Grants Program Funds would provide the City of Clovis with an opportunity 
to review and modify codes and processes to help streamline housing permits. Since the 
Planning Division is primarily funded by entitlement applications, the cost of modifying the 
Code or standards would otherwise come from the General Fund or the Planning Program 
Fee, or the programs may not be considered at all.  Staff therefore recommends that the City 
Council authorize the Director of Planning and Development Services to apply for, and 
receive Planning Grants Program Funds, from the State of California Department of Housing 
and Community Development. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
 
Upon approval of a resolution, staff will prepare and submit the grant application. 
 
 
Prepared by: Bryan Araki, Consulting Planner 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH   

79

AGENDA ITEM NO: 13.



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

DRAFT 
RESOLUTION 19-__ 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS 

AUTHORIZING APPLICATION FOR, AND RECEIPT OF, SB2 PLANNING GRANTS 
PROGRAM FUNDS 

 
WHEREAS, the State of California, Department of Housing and Community Development 

(Department) has issued a Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) dated March 28, 2019, for its 

Planning Grants Program (PGP); and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Clovis desires to submit a project application 

for the PGP program to accelerate the production of housing and will submit a 2019 PGP grant 

application as described in the Planning Grants Program NOFA and SB2 Planning Grants 

Program Guidelines released by the Department for the PGP Program; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Department is authorized to provide up to $123 million under the SB2 

Planning Grants Program from the Building Homes and Jobs Trust Fund for assistance to 

Counties as described in Health and Safety Code section 50470 et seq. (Chapter 364, Statutes 

of 2017 (SB 2)) related to the PGP Program.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Clovis City Council RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:  

 

SECTION 1. The City Council is hereby authorized and directed to apply for and submit to the 

Department the 2019 Planning Grants Program application in the amount of $310,000.  

 

SECTION 2. In connection with the PGP grant, if the application is approved by the 

Department, Dwight Kroll (Planning and Development Services Director) or his designee, is 

authorized to enter into, execute, and deliver a State of California Agreement (Standard 

Agreement) for the amount of $310,000, and any and all other documents required or deemed 

necessary or appropriate to evidence and secure the PGP grant, the City’s obligations related 

thereto, and all amendments thereto (collectively, the “PGP Grant Documents”).  

 

SECTION 3. The City shall be subject to the terms and conditions as specified in the Standard 

Agreement, the SB2 Planning Grants Program Guidelines, and any applicable PGP guidelines 

published by the Department. Funds are to be used for allowable expenditures as specifically 

identified in the Standard Agreement. The application in full is incorporated as part of the 

Standard Agreement. Any and all activities funded, information provided, and timelines 

represented in the application will be enforceable through the executed Standard Agreement. 

The City Council hereby agrees to use the funds for eligible uses in the manner presented in 

the application as approved by the Department and in accordance with the Planning Grants 

NOFA, the Planning Grants Program Guidelines, and 2019 Planning Grants Program 

Application.  

80

AGENDA ITEM NO: 13.



 

 

 

SECTION 4. The Planning and Development Services Director or his designee is authorized 

to execute the City of Clovis Planning Grants Program application, the PGP Grant Documents, 

and any amendments thereto, on behalf of the City as required by the Department for receipt 

of the PGP Grant. 

 

*   *  *  *    * 

 

The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 

Council of the City of Clovis held on October 7, 2019, by the following vote, to wit. 

 

AYES:   

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 

DATED:  October 7, 2019  

 

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 

Mayor       City Clerk 
 

81

AGENDA ITEM NO: 13.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Planning and Development Services Department 

DATE: October 7, 2019 

SUBJECT: Planning and Development Services Department - Approval - Bid 
Award for CIP 16-10, Owens Mountain Parkway Extension, and; 
Authorize the City Manager to execute the contract on behalf of the 
City. 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Vicinity Map 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

1. For the City Council to award a contract for CIP 16-10 Owens Mountain Parkway 
Extension to Avison Construction in the amount of $1,927,707.00 and; 

2. For the City Council to authorize the City Manager to execute the contract on behalf 
of the City. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Staff is recommending that City Council authorize the City Manager to award and execute 
the contract to Avison Construction who was the lowest responsible bidder from a bid opening 
that took place on September 24, 2019. 
 
This project involves extending Owens Mountain Parkway, formerly known as Alluvial 
Avenue, beyond the Enterprise Canal. Construction will consist of a new roadway, reinforced 
concrete box culvert, concrete sidewalk, extension of a potable water main, a recycled water 
main, and a sewer main. 
 

82

AGENDA ITEM NO: 14.



BACKGROUND 
 
The following is a summary of the bid results of September 24, 2019: 

 
BIDDERS BASE BIDS 
 
Avison Construction $1,927,707.00 
Yarbs Grading & Paving, Inc. $2,106,606.00 
Agee Construction Corp. $2,199,197.00 
Dave Christian Construction $2,239,893.50 
Granite Construction $2,242,616.00 
AJ Excavation, Inc. $2,249,939.00 
Emmett's Excavation, Inc. $2,288,970.00 
Bush Engineering, Inc. $2,728,662.10 
Dawson-Mauldin, LLC $3,251,481.00 
 

 ENGINEER’S ESTIMATE  $1,901,375.00 
 
All bids were examined and the bidder’s submittals were found to be in order. Avison 
Construction is the lowest apparent bidder. Staff has validated the lowest bidder contractor’s 
license status and completeness of federal funding paperwork.    
  
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
This project was budgeted in the 2019-2020 Community Investment Program. The project 
is supported by Regional Surface Transportation Program (RSTP).  
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
Avison Construction is the lowest responsible bidder.  There are sufficient funds available 
for the anticipated cost of this project. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
 

1. The contract will be prepared and executed, subject to the Contractor providing 
performance security that is satisfactory to the City. 

 
2. Construction will begin approximately five (5) weeks after contract execution and 

shall be completed in seventy-five (75) working days thereafter. 
 

Prepared by: John Armendariz, Civil Engineer 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH 

83

AGENDA ITEM NO: 14.



84

AGENDA ITEM NO: 14.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Planning and Development Services 

DATE: October 7, 2019 

SUBJECT: Planning and Development Services - Approval - Final Acceptance 
for CIP 17-15, Armstrong Avenue Reconstruction. 

ATTACHMENT: 1. Vicinity Map 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
For the City Council to accept the work performed as complete and authorize recording of 
the notice of completion. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The project involved street improvements on Armstrong Avenue from Barstow Avenue to 
Bullard Avenue. The work included full street reconstruction, grinding, grading, compacting, 
asphalt concrete paving, ADA concrete improvements, and installation of traffic markings 
and signs. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Bids were received on June 4, 2019 and the project was awarded by City Council to the low 
bidder, Bush Engineering, Inc., on June 17, 2019.  The project was completed in accordance 
with the construction documents and the contractor has submitted a request for acceptance 
of the project. 
 
 
 
 

85

AGENDA ITEM NO: 15.



FISCAL IMPACT 
 

1. Award $ 627,973.25 
 

2. Cost increases/decreases resulting from differences $ 5,256.77 
 between estimated quantities used for award and 
 actual quantities installed. 

 
3. Contract Change Orders 0.00 

 
4. Liquidated Damages Assessed           $ 0.00 

 
 
Final Contract Cost $ 633,230.02 
 

This project was approved in the Community Investment Program 2018-2019 fiscal year 
budget and is fully funded by Regional Surface Transportation Program (RSTP). 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Public Utilities Department, the City Engineer, the engineering inspector, and the project 
Engineer agree that the work performed by the contractor is in accordance with the project 
plans and specifications, and has been deemed acceptable. The contractor, Bush 
Engineering, Inc., has requested final acceptance from City Council. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
 

1. The notice of completion will be recorded; and 

2. All retention funds will be released pursuant to Federal requirements and the Prompt 
Payment of Funds Withheld to Subcontractors clause of the Local Assistance 
Procedures Manual. 

 
Prepared by: Eric Easterling, Construction Manager 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH   

86

AGENDA ITEM NO: 15.



Wi
llo

w

Pe
ac

h

Clo
vis

Su
nn

ys
ide

Fo
wle

r

Ar
ms

tro
ng

Te
mp

era
nc

e

Lo
ca

n

De
 W

olf

Shepherd

Teague

Nees

Alluvial

Herndon

Sierra

Bullard

Barstow

Shaw

Gettysburg

Ashlan

Dakota

Le
on

ard

Hig
hla

nd

Mi
nn

ew
aw

a

4ATTACHMENT A
CITY LIMITS SPHERE OF INFLUENCE

VICINITY MAP

Prepared By: 

Project Location

1

CIP 17-15 Armstrong Avenue Street Reconstruction

June 6, 2019 John Armendariz

87

AGENDA ITEM NO: 15.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Planning and Development Services 

DATE: October 7, 2019 

SUBJECT: Planning and Development Services Approval - Final Acceptance for 
CIP 19-01, Rubberized Cape Seal 2019. 

ATTACHMENT: 1. Vicinity Map 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
For the City Council to accept the work performed as complete and authorize recording of 
the notice of completion. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The project involved crack sealing and installation of approximately 290,000 square yards 
of Type II slurry seal to additional streets within the City boundary. 
 
The proposed installation of approximately 26,000 square yards of rubberized cape seal 
was removed from the scope of work by Addendum. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Bids were received on April 9, 2019 and City Council pre-authorized the City Manager to 
award the project to the low bidder, Pavement Coatings Company, on April 1, 2019.  The 
project was completed in accordance with the construction documents and the contractor 
has submitted a request for acceptance of the project. 
 
 
 

88

AGENDA ITEM NO: 16.



FISCAL IMPACT 
 

1. Award $ 673,500.00 
 

2. Cost increases/decreases resulting from differences $ 0.00 
 between estimated quantities used for award and 
 actual quantities installed. 

 
3. Contract Change Orders $ 0.00 

 
4. Liquidated Damages Assessed           $ 0.00 

 
 
Final Contract Cost $ 673,500.00 

 
This project was approved in the Community Investment Program 2018-2019 fiscal year 
budget and is fully funded by City Community Investment Program. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Public Utilities Department, the City Engineer, the engineering inspector, and the project 
Engineer agree that the work performed by the contractor is in accordance with the project 
plans and specifications, and has been deemed acceptable. The contractor, Pavement 
Coatings Company, has requested final acceptance from City Council. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
 
1. The notice of completion will be recorded; and 

 
2. All remaining retention funds will be released 35 calendar days following recordation of 

the notice of acceptance, provided no liens have been filed.  Retention funds may be 
released within 60 days after the date of completion, provided no liens have been filed, 
with “completion” defined as the earlier of either (a) beneficial use and occupancy and 
cessation of labor, or (b) acceptance by the City Council per Public Contract Code Section 
7107(c)(2). 
 

Prepared by: Eric Easterling, Construction Manager 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH   

89

AGENDA ITEM NO: 16.




















































































































 

µ











ATTACHMENT 1

90

AGENDA ITEM NO: 16.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Planning and Development Services 

DATE: October 7, 2019 

SUBJECT: Approval - Final Acceptance for CIP 19-02, Trail Pavement 
Maintenance 2019 

ATTACHMENT: 1. Vicinity Map 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
For the City Council to accept the work performed as complete and authorize recording of 
the notice of completion. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The project involved 12,600 square yards of Type I slurry seal for Clovis Old Town Trail, 
which is an existing asphalt-concrete pavement 12 feet in width by 3 inches in thickness over 
compacted subgrade, and approximately 2 miles from Herndon Avenue to Willow Avenue.  
The work also involved site preparation, crack sealing, removal of traffic striping and 
reinstallation of thermoplastic striping. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Bids were received on March 26, 2019 and the project was awarded by City Council to the 
low bidder, Pavement Coatings Company, on April 8, 2019.  The project was completed in 
accordance with the construction documents and the contractor has submitted a request for 
acceptance of the project. 
 
 
 

91

AGENDA ITEM NO: 17.



FISCAL IMPACT 
 

1. Award $ 90,490.00 
 

2. Cost increases/decreases resulting from differences $ 1,125.60 
 between estimated quantities used for award and 
 actual quantities installed. 

 
3. Contract Change Orders $ 0.00 

 
4. Liquidated Damages Assessed           $ 0.00 

 
Final Contract Cost $ 91,615.60 

 
This project was approved in the Community Investment Program 2018-2019 fiscal year 
budget and is fully funded by Measure “C” pass through funds. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Public Utilities Department, the City Engineer, the engineering inspector, and the project 
Engineer agree that the work performed by the contractor is in accordance with the project 
plans and specifications, and has been deemed acceptable.  The contractor, Pavement 
Coatings Company, has requested final acceptance from City Council. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
 
1. The notice of completion will be recorded; and 

 
2. All remaining retention funds will be released 35 calendar days following recordation of 

the notice of acceptance, provided no liens have been filed.  Retention funds may be 
released within 60 days after the date of completion, provided no liens have been filed, 
with “completion” defined as the earlier of either (a) beneficial use and occupancy and 
cessation of labor, or (b) acceptance by the City Council per Public Contract Code Section 
7107(c)(2). 
 

Prepared by: Eric Easterling, Construction Manager 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH   

92

AGENDA ITEM NO: 17.



1

93

AGENDA ITEM NO: 17.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Planning and Development Services 

DATE: October 7, 2019 

SUBJECT: Planning and Development Services - Approval – Res. 19- ___, Final 
Map Tract 6273, located at the northwest corner of Ashlan Avenue 
and Armstrong Avenue (Joseph Crown Construction and 
Development, Inc.) 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Res. 19-___ 
2. Vicinity Map 
3. Copy of Final Map 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
None 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
For the City Council to approve Res. 19-___, which will: 
 

1. Accept the offer of dedication of parcels and public utility easement within Tract 6273, 
and; 
 

2. Authorize recording of the final map. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The owner, Joseph Crown Construction and Development, Inc., acting as the subdivider, has 
submitted a final map.  The improvement plans are being processed by City staff.  The 
improvements to be installed include curb, gutter, sidewalk, street lights, a fire hydrant, street 
paving, sanitary sewer, water main and landscaping.  The subject tract is located on the 
northwest corner of Ashlan Avenue and Armstrong Avenue.  It contains approximately 2.49 
acres and consists of 8 units, zoned R-1-C. 
 

94

AGENDA ITEM NO: 18.



 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The subdivider will be installing sidewalk, sanitary sewer, water main, street lighting and 
street landscaping, which will be perpetually maintained by the City of Clovis. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
The subdivision agreement has been executed by the subdivider and all development fees 
paid or deferred in accordance with Municipal Code.  The agreement provides for the 
developer to complete a technically correct map and improvement plans and to complete all 
required improvements in compliance with the conditions of approval.  The improvements 
are adequately secured. 
 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 

 
The final map will be filed with the Fresno County Recorder's office for recording. 
 
 
Prepared by: Jose Sandoval, Engineer II 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH   
 

95

AGENDA ITEM NO: 18.



RESOLUTION  19-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS  
APPROVING FINAL SUBDIVISION MAP FOR TRACT NO. 6273 

 
 

WHEREAS, a final map has been presented to the City Council of the City of Clovis 
for Tract 6273, by The City of Clovis, a Municipal Corporation; and 

  
WHEREAS, said final tract conforms to the requirements of Chapter 2, Part 2, of 

Division 4 of the Business and Professions Code and to local ordinances. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Clovis as 

follows:   
 
1. The final map of Tract 6273, consisting of two (2) sheets, a copy of which is on 

file with the City Clerk, be and the same is hereby approved. 
 

2.  Approval of the Subdivision improvement plans for said tract are being 
completed by City Staff. 
 

3.  The preliminary Engineer’s Cost Estimate of development cost of said tract, a 
copy of which is on file with the City Clerk, be and the same is hereby approved and 
adopted as the estimated cost of improvements for said subdivision in the sum of 
$221,000.00. 

 
4. The offer and dedication for public use of the parcels and easements specified 

on said map are accepted by the City of Clovis, and the City Clerk is authorized and 
directed to execute said subdivision map.   

5. This Council finds that the proposed subdivision, together with the provisions for 
its design and improvement, are consistent with applicable general and specific plans of 
the City of Clovis.    

 
6. Improvement Security, as provided hereunder and in said Subdivision 

Agreement, is fixed at one hundred percent (100%) of the remaining improvements to be 
constructed or the sum of $221,000.00 for guaranteeing specific performance of said 
agreement and fifty percent (50%) of the remaining improvements or the sum of 
$111,000.00 for payment of labor and materials furnished by contractors, subcontractors, 
labormen and materialmen in connection with the improvements required to be made or 
constructed by said subdivider in conformity with said subdivision map or said agreement. 

7. Subdivider shall furnish a bond in the sum of $22,100.00 being the amount 
determined by the City Council of the City as necessary for the guarantee and warranty 
of the work for a period of one year following the completion and acceptance of the tract 
against any defective work or labor done, or defective materials furnished.  Said bond is 
required to be furnished prior to acceptance of the tract by the City Council.  

ATTACHMENT  1 96

AGENDA ITEM NO: 18.



   *  *  *  *  * 

 
 The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the City of Clovis held on October 7, 2019, by the following vote, to wit:   
 
 
AYES:  
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 

DATED:   
 
 
            

                 Mayor      City Clerk 
 

97

AGENDA ITEM NO: 18.



Wi
llo

w

Pe
ac

h

Clo
vis

Su
nn

ys
ide

Fo
wle

r

Ar
ms

tro
ng

Te
mp

era
nc

e

Lo
ca

n

De
 W

olf

Shepherd

Teague

Nees

Alluvial

Herndon

Sierra

Bullard

Barstow

Shaw

Gettysburg

Ashlan

Dakota

Le
on

ard

Hig
hla

nd

Mi
nn

ew
aw

a

HOLT

SERPA

WOLFE

SCHENGEL

BINASKI

BASGALL

HAUSSLER

HALTERMAN
HINKLE

ANTUNA

CUNNINGHAM

FLORES

ASHBECK

WHALEN

BESSINGER

MOUANOUTOUA

4ATTACHMENT A
CITY LIMITS SPHERE OF INFLUENCE

VICINITY MAP

Prepared By: 

Tract 6209

B2

Tract 6273 - Joseph Crown Construction and Development, Inc.

October 3, 2019 Jose Sandoval
98

AGENDA ITEM NO: 18.



ATTACHMENT 3
99

AGENDA ITEM NO: 18.



100

AGENDA ITEM NO: 18.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Finance Department 

DATE: October 7, 2019 

SUBJECT: Consider Actions related to Annexation of Territory (Annexation #58 
- PM18-11- North East Corner of Locan and Powers) to the City of 
Clovis Community Facilities District No. 2004-1 (Police and Fire 
Services) 
 
a. Consider Approval - Res. 19-___, A Resolution annexing territory 

(Annexation #58) (PM18-11-North East Corner of Locan and 
Powers) to the City of Clovis Community Facilities District No. 
2004-1 (Police and Fire Services) and calling a special landowner 
election to annex territory (Annexation #58) to City of Clovis 
Community Facilities District No. 2004-1 (Police and Fire 
Services) 

 
b. Consider Approval - Res. 19-___, A Resolution of the City of 

Clovis declaring the results of a special landowner election and 
directing recording of the Notice of Special Tax Lien for City of 
Clovis Community Facilities District No. 2004-1 (Police and Fire 
Services). 

Staff: Jay Schengel, Finance Director 
Recommendation: Approve  

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Resolution of Annexation 
2. Resolution Declaring Results 
3. Map 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None. 
 
 
 

101

AGENDA ITEM NO: 19.



RECOMMENDATION 

 That the Council hold a public hearing and approve actions related to the Annexation 
of Territory (Annexation #58) to Community Facilities District No. 2004-1.   

 

 Consider Approval – Res. 19-___, A Resolution of annexation of territory (Annexation 
#58) to the Community Facilities District (City of Clovis Community Facilities District 
No. 2004-1) and to authorize the levy of Special Taxes therein and submitting Levy of 
Special Taxes to Qualified Electors.  

 

 Call for Special Election and have Clerk announce the vote.  
 

 Consider Approval – Res. 19-___, A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Clovis 
Declaring the Results of the Special Annexation Election; Determining Validity of Prior 
Proceedings and Directing Recording of the Notice of Special Tax Lien (City of Clovis 
Community Facilities District No. 2004-1) (Police and Fire Services).  

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Since the condition to establish a CFD was imposed on the developments being processed 
by the City, developments proceeding after March 8, 2004, must petition to be annexed to 
the existing CFD.  Several property owners have submitted petitions to annex territory to the 
Community Facilities District 2004-1 and to include their property within the District as 
provided by the conditions of approval of the development entitlements. 

 

To initiate the process for annexation of territory to a CFD, the Council approved a Resolution 
of Intention-Annexation #58 (ROI) to annex territory to the CFD on September 3, 2019.  The 
ROI set a public hearing for October 7, 2019.  The action today finalizes the annexation to 
the CFD.  
 
BACKGROUND 
Since the condition to establish a CFD was imposed on the developments being processed 
by the City, developments proceeding after March 8, 2004 must petition to be annexed to the 
existing CFD.  Several property owners have submitted petitions to annex territory to the 
Community Facilities District 2004-1 and to include their property within the District as 
provided by the conditions of approval of the development entitlements. 
 
To initiate the process for annexation of territory to a CFD, the Council approved a Resolution 
of Intention-Annexation #58 (ROI) to annex territory to the CFD.  The ROI set a public hearing 
for October 7, 2019.  The Rate and Method of Apportionment (RMA) referred to in the ROI 
is the same as adopted by the Council with the Resolution of Formation adopted March 8, 
2004.  RMA provides, among other things, definitions, identifies what properties will be taxed, 
and the maximum special tax.   

 
The conditions as provided in the Rate and Method of Apportionment will apply to territory 
annexed to the Community Facilities Districts to provide funding for public safety operations 
in new growth areas.  The major conditions include: 
 

102

AGENDA ITEM NO: 19.



1. The maximum annual tax will be $255.33 for single family residential and $220.46 
for multi-family residential. 

2. The maximum tax will be increased by the Escalator Factor, which is the greater of 
the change in CPI or percentage change in population. 

3. There will be a review not later than five years of inception of the CFD. 
4. The annual tax will not apply to commercially zoned property. 
5. The tax will apply only to that property for which a building permit is issued after 

January 1, 2004. 
6. The costs of salary and benefit increases funded by the CFD will be limited to the 

Escalator Factor. 
 
The purpose of the hearing is to take public comment on the annexation of territory to the 
CFD and to accept protests from any interested person within the proposed boundaries.  If 
no property owner protests are received, the Council may take the initial actions to annex the 
territory to the CFD by approving a resolution on the annexation to the CFD and calling a 
special property owner election.  Once the election is called, the City Clerk tabulates the 
ballots.  If the property owners of two-thirds (2/3) of the property within the proposed 
boundaries vote in favor of the CFD, then the Council can take action to direct the recording 
of Notice of Special Tax Lien.  A unanimous vote is required to have the election the same 
night as approval of the resolution of annexation.  The recording of the Tax Lien is contingent 
upon the property being annexed to the City.  The property included within the CFD is being 
processed for annexation to the City and the Local Agency Formation Commission has 
approved the annexations.  
 
After the annexation is complete and the Notice of Tax Lien has been recorded, any final 
maps within the CFD may be recorded and construction permits for homes can be issued.  
One of the conditions of the CFD is that the tax will only be collected on those properties 
where a building permit for a residence has been issued. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
If approved, residential units built within the boundaries of the CFD will be assessed annually 
according to the conditions of the CFD formation and those assessments will be utilized to 
fund police and fire services. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
All requirements for the annexation of territory to the CFD have been completed and the 
Council may take action to annex territory to the CFD. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
After approval of the resolution directing the recordation of the Notice of Tax Lien, the lien 
will be recorded. 
 
Prepared by: Steve Nourian, Senior Accounting Systems Technician 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH  

103

AGENDA ITEM NO: 19.



RESOLUTION NO. 19- 
 

 
A RESOLUTION OF ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
DISTRICT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE LEVY OF SPECIAL TAXES THEREIN AND 

SUBMITTING LEVY OF SPECIAL TAXES TO QUALIFIED ELECTORS 
 

CITY OF CLOVIS 
Community Services District No. 2004-1 

(Police and Fire Services) 
Annexation No. 58 

 
RESOLVED by the City Council (the “Council”) of the City of Clovis (the “City”), County of 
Fresno, State of California, that: 
 
WHEREAS, this Council, on September 3, 2019, adopted A Resolution of Intention to Annex 
Territory to the Community Services District and to Authorize the Levy of Special Taxes Therein 
(the “Resolution of Intention”) stating its intention to annex the territory to the City’s Community 
Services District 2004-1 (the “District”), pursuant to Mello Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, 
Sections 53311 and following of the California Government Code (the “Act”); and 
 
WHEREAS, a copy of the Resolution of Intention, incorporating a description and map of the 
proposed boundaries of the territory to be annexed to the District and stating the services to be 
provided and the rate and method of apportionment of the special tax to be levied within the 
District to pay for the services for the District, is on file with the Clerk of the Council and the 
provisions thereof are fully incorporated herein by this reference as if fully set forth herein; and 
 
WHEREAS, on the date hereof, this Council held a noticed public hearing as required by the Act 
and the Resolution of Intention relative to the proposed annexation of territory to the District; and 
 
WHEREAS, at such hearing all interested persons desiring to be heard on all matters pertaining 
to the annexation of territory to the District and the levy of said special taxes within the area 
proposed to be annexed were heard and a full and fair hearing was held; and 
 
WHEREAS, prior to the time fixed for said hearing, written protests had not been filed against 
the proposed annexation of territory to the District by (i) 50% or more of the registered voters, or 
six registered voters, whichever is more, residing in the existing District, or (ii) 50% or more of 
the registered voters, or six registered voters, whichever is more, residing in the territory 
proposed to be annexed to the District, or (iii) owners of one-half or more of the area of land in 
the territory proposed to be annexed to the District; and 
 
WHEREAS, Annexation Map No. 58 to the District, has been filed with the City Clerk, which map 
shows the territory to be annexed in these proceedings, and a copy thereof is on file with the 
City Clerk. 
 
 
 
 ATTACHMENT 1 

104

AGENDA ITEM NO: 19.



 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED,  
 
1. All prior proceedings taken by this Council with respect to the District and the proposed 
annexation of territory thereto have been duly considered and are hereby determined to be valid 
and in conformity with the Act, and the District has been validly established pursuant to the Act. 
 
2. The description and map of the boundaries of the territory to be annexed to District, as 
described in said Annexation Map No. 58 to the District on file with the Clerk are hereby finally 
approved, are incorporated herein by reference, and shall be included within the boundaries of 
the District, and said territory is hereby ordered annexed to the District, subject to voter approval 
of the levy of the special taxes therein as hereinafter provided. 
 
3. The provisions of the Resolution of Intention and Resolution No. 19-36 adopted by this 
Council for the District on September 3, 2019 each as heretofore adopted by this Council are by 
this reference incorporated herein, as if fully set forth herein. 
 
4. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the proposition of the levy of the special tax within 
the territory to be annexed to the District shall be submitted to the voters of the area to be 
annexed to the District at an election called therefore as hereinafter provided. 
 
5. This Council hereby finds that fewer than 12 persons have been registered to vote within 
the territory proposed to be annexed to the District for each of the 90 days preceding the close 
of the hearing heretofore conducted and concluded by this Council for the purposes of these 
annexation proceedings.  Accordingly, and pursuant to the Act, this Council finds that for 
purposes of these proceedings the qualified electors are the landowners within the territory 
proposed to be annexed to the District and that the vote shall be by said landowners, each 
having one vote for each acre or portion thereof such landowner owns in the territory proposed 
to be annexed to the District. 
 
6. Pursuant the Act, the election shall be conducted by mail ballot under Section 4000 of the 
California Elections Code.  This Council hereby determines that paragraphs (a), (b), (c)(1), and 
(c)(3) of said Section 4000 are applicable to this election. 
 
7. The Council hereby calls a special election to consider the measure described in the ballot 
referred to below, which election shall be held on October 7, 2019, in the regular meeting place 
of this Council, City Council Chambers, City Hall, 1033 5th Street, Clovis, California. This Council 
hereby further finds that the provision of the Act requiring a minimum of 90 days to elapse before 
said election is for the protection of voters and that the voters have waived such requirement 
and the date for the election herein specified is established accordingly. 

8.  The City Clerk is hereby appointed as the election official to conduct the election and shall 
cause to be provided to each landowner in the territory to be annexed to the District. The City 
Clerk shall accept the ballots of the qualified electors received prior to 5:00 o’clock p.m. on 
October 7, 2019, whether received by mail or by personal delivery. 
 
 
 

105

AGENDA ITEM NO: 19.



 
 

*  *  *  *    * 

 
 

The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of 

the City of Clovis held on October 7, 2019 by the following vote, to wit. 

 

AYES:    

 

NOES:  

 

ABSENT:  

  

ABSTAIN:  

 

 DATED: October 7, 2019 

 

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 

Mayor       City Clerk 

106

AGENDA ITEM NO: 19.



RESOLUTION NO. 19- 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING RESULTS OF SPECIAL ANNEXATION ELECTION, 
DETERMINING VALIDITY OF PRIOR PROCEEDINGS, AND DIRECTING 

RECORDING OF AMENDED NOTICE OF SPECIAL TAX LIEN 
 

CITY OF CLOVIS 
Community Facilities District No. 2004-1 

(Police and Fire Services) 
Annexation No. 58 

 
 

RESOLVED by the City Council (the “Council”) of the City of Clovis (the “City”), County 
of Fresno, State of California, that: 
 
WHEREAS, in proceedings heretofore conducted by the Council pursuant to the Mello-
Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended (the “Act”), this Council has 
heretofore adopted a resolution calling a special election of the qualified landowner 
electors in the territory of land proposed to be annexed to Community Facilities District 
No. 2004-1 (Police and Fire Services) (the “CFD”); and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the resolution which is hereby incorporated herein 
by this reference, the special election has been held and the City Clerk has filed a 
Canvass of Votes Cast in Special Election, a copy of which is attached hereto as 
Attachment A of Attachment 2; and 
 
WHEREAS, this Council has reviewed the Canvass and hereby approves it. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED as follows: 
 
1. The issue presented at the special election was the levy of a special tax within the 
territory annexed to the CFD, to be levied in accordance with the formula heretofore 
approved by this Council as described in Resolution No. 19-, a Resolution of Annexation 
of Territory to Community Facilities District, authorizing the Levy of a Special Tax and 
Submitting Levy of Tax to Qualified Electors, adopted October 7, 2019. 
 
2. Pursuant to the Canvass on file with the City Clerk, the issue presented at the 
special election was approved by the landowners of the territory annexed to the CFD by 
more than two-thirds (2/3) of the landowners voting at the special election. 
 
3. Pursuant to the voter approval, said annexed territory to the CFD is hereby 
declared to be fully annexed to and part of the CFD and this Council may levy special 
taxes therein as heretofore provided in these proceedings. 
 

ATTACHMENT 2 

107

AGENDA ITEM NO: 19.



4. It is hereby found that all prior proceedings and actions taken by this Council 
pursuant to the CFD and the territory annexed thereto were valid and in conformity with 
the Act. 
 
Within 15 days of the date hereof, the City Clerk shall execute and cause to be recorded 
in the office of the County Recorder of the County of Fresno, an amendment to the Notice 
of Special Tax Lien as required by Section 3117.5 of the California Streets and Highways 
Code. 

 
*  *  *  *    * 

 
 

The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 

Council of the City of Clovis held on October 7, 2019 by the following vote, to wit. 

 

AYES:   

 

NOES:  

 

ABSENT:  

  

ABSTAIN:  

 

 DATED: October 7, 2019 

 

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 

Mayor       City Clerk 
 

  

108

AGENDA ITEM NO: 19.



CITY OF CLOVIS 
Community Facilities District No. 2004-1 

(Police and Fire Services) 
Annexation No. 58 

 
CANVASS AND STATEMENT OF RESULT OF ELECTION 

 
 

I hereby certify that on this date, I canvassed the returns of the election held on this date, in the 

territory annexed to Community Facilities District No. 2004-1 (Police and Fire Services) of the 

City of Clovis which election is designated as the Special Tax Annexation Election, and the total 

number of ballots cast in the territory to be annexed and the total number of votes cast for and 

against the measure are as follows and the totals as shown for and against the measure are full, 

true and correct: 

 
 Qualified 

Landowner 

Votes 

Votes 

Cast 

YES NO 

City of Clovis     

Community Facilities District No. 2004-1     

(Police and Fire Services), Annexation No. 58         

Special Tax Annexation Election,     

October 7, 2019.     

     

 
 

BALLOT MEASURE:  Shall the City of Clovis, by and for its Community 
Facilities District No. 2004-1 (Police and Fire Services) (the “CFD”), be 
authorized to levy special taxes within the territory annexed to the CFD 
pursuant to and as described in Resolution No. 19-___ of the City of Clovis, 
adopted by its Council on October 7, 2019? 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I HAVE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND this ____ day of    
2019. 

 
 
CITY OF CLOVIS   
 
 
By:     
 City Clerk 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT A OF ATTACHMENT 2 

109

AGENDA ITEM NO: 19.



3

110

AGENDA ITEM NO: 19.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Planning and Development Services 

DATE: October 7, 2019 

SUBJECT: Consider – Report on results of independent traffic study provided by 
DeBenedetto to evaluate Second Street access to the Landmark 
Commons and DeBenedetto sites. 

Staff: Mike Harrison, City Engineer 
Recommendation: Receive and File   

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Traffic Impact Analysis by AMG for DeBenedetto (Aug. 6, 2019) 
2. Traffic Analysis by Peters Engineering Group for Landmark 

Commons (Nov 23, 2016) 
3. Peters Engineering Technical Memorandum – Review of AMG 

Traffic Impact Study 
4. Landmark Commons EIR – Chapter 3.5 Transportation/Traffic 
5. Property Exchange Agreement  
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Consider – Report on results of independent traffic study provided by DeBenedetto 
Properties to evaluate Second Street Access to the Landmark Commons and 
DeBenedetto sites. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
On February 11, 2019, staff introduced to Council, the Site Plan Review for the Landmark 
Commons project (“Project”).  During public comment, representatives for DeBenedetto 
Properties, who own property immediately north of the Project site, requested further 
evaluation of the viability of an access at Second Street to the Project and DeBenedetto 

111

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



sites.  The City Council agreed to allow the DeBenedetto team to provide their own study, 
specifically to evaluate the Second Street access.  The DeBenedetto representatives 
indicated that the study would take approximately 8 – 10 weeks to complete.   
 
The final study was received August 6, 2019.  Staff, in conjunction with the City’s Project 
traffic consultant, reviewed the new study and determined that it does not contain 
significant new information that would warrant further analysis of providing access to the 
project site at Second Street. 
 
BACKGROUND 

 
Property Exchange Agreement 
    

In December 2016 the City and DeBenedetto Properties entered into a Property Exchange 
Agreement (“Agreement”). (Attachment 5.) The attorney for DeBenedetto Properties sent 
several letters to the City arguing that the Agreement promised DeBenedetto Properties 
access to the Project site and their property from Second Street.  Similar verbal comments 
were made by DeBenedetto Properties and their attorney at the February 11, 2019 Council 
meeting.  Staff and the City Attorney reviewed the Agreement and have determined that 
no such promises were made, nor could the City promise access from Second Street 
before the Traffic Study and EIR were completed.  The Agreement, in Section 2G, 
specifically states that the Exhibit 6 site plan, which the DeBenedetto Properties rely upon, 
“represents tentative locations for the Utility Stubs and Conduits.  Exhibit 6 is not a final 
site or design plan of City improvements and the exact location of the Utility Stubs and 
Conduits may change as the project goes through the public review and design process.”   
 
Attachment 6 itself states at the top of each page “Proposed Site Plan”.     
 
The Agreement, in plain and unambiguous language, provides that Exhibit 6 which depicts 
the Development and shows potential points of access, is not the final rendering of the 
development.   
 
The quoted language from Section 2G above falls under the section titled “Utility Stubs to 
DeBenedetto Parcels”.  That section primarily addresses the obligation of the City to install 
utility stubs and conduits to the DeBenedetto Properties site.  Nowhere in that section, or 
anywhere else in the Agreement, does it say that the City will provide access to the Project 
site from Second Street.  Final access to the Project site could not be determined before 
completion of the EIR and public review process.   
 
It should also be noted that the DeBenedetto Properties site has never had access off of 
Clovis Avenue or a parcel configuration that would allow such access.  The Agreement 
provided a squared off parcel with frontage on the trail to DeBenedetto Properties, 
providing significant potential for negotiating with adjacent property owners for direct 
access. 
 
 

112

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Second Street Access 
 
In October 2015, the City entered into a contract with ICF Jones and Stokes for the 
environmental review of the Project based on an early concept that included a Second 
Street access.  Fairly early in the process the first drafts of the traffic analyses were 
completed.  These analyses identified significant impacts from providing access at 
Second Street. 
 
As a result, during the time of negotiating the Property Exchange Agreement, there was 
much internal discussion about the issues introduced by the Second Street access point, 
not the least of which was the impact to the trail and the desire to avoid pedestrian/bike 
vs. vehicle conflicts via a grade separated crossing.  Significant conceptual work was put 
into developing these concepts with an emphasis on preserving the continuity of the trail.  
The issue of Second Street access was not a point of discussion with DeBenedetto 
Properties in connection with preparing the Agreement. 
 
In April 2017, the City entered into a contract with Paul Halajian Architects and began 
exploring alternative concepts as the environmental work was progressing. In working 
together with Fresno County, various configurations were reviewed, including the Library 
being the centerpiece of the site and lining up with the Veterans Parkway Alignment to 
visually anchor the Library.  Because the County desired trail adjacency, for parking 
efficiency, and other reasons, the current concept was developed placing the Library pad 
at the northwest corner of the site and removing the access directly to Clovis Avenue.  
This concept also removed a significant project cost by eliminating the grade separated 
trail crossing.  The EIR consultant prepared a revised traffic analysis without Second 
Street access. 
 
EIR 
 
On July 9, 2018, the City Council certified the Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the 
Project.  The EIR included the Traffic analysis in Chapter 3.5.  (Attachment  4.) A Traffic 
Impact Study dated November 23, 2016, prepared by Peters Engineering Group (“Traffic 
Study”) (Attachment 2), supported the EIR Traffic Analysis.  The Traffic Study analyzed 
the following 7 intersections:   
 

1. Veterans Way/Third Street 
2. Veterans Way/Fifth Street 
3. Clovis Avenue/Sierra Avenue 
4. Clovis Avenue/Second Street 
5. Clovis Avenue/Third Street 
6. Clovis Avenue/Fourth Street 
7. Clovis Avenue/Fifth Street 

 
With respect to Clovis Avenue/Second Street, the Traffic Study noted that Second Street 
is an east-west local road with one lane in each direction extending between Clovis 
Avenue at the east end and DeWitt Avenue at the west end.  Second Street has never 

113

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



been a through street east of Clovis Avenue.  An existing driveway serves the hotel on 
the east side of Clovis Avenue, creating a two way stop control condition.  (Traffic Study, 
pp. 18, 21, 26, 32-33.) 
 
The traffic study made the following conclusions with respect to Clovis Avenue/Second 
Street: 
 
1. The seven study intersections, including Clovis Avenue/Second Street, have 

been constructed to the ultimate configuration.   
 
2. The Landmark Commons project is expected to cause or contribute to significant 

traffic impacts at four of the study intersections, including Clovis Avenue/Second 
Street with the year 2039 cumulative impact.  
 

3. A traffic signal is not warranted at Clovis Avenue/Second Street, and there are no 
feasible mitigation measures.  Other possible mitigation measures, such as an 
all-way stop or roundabout were evaluated, and also determined to be infeasible. 

 
(Pp. 2-3, 32-33, 35, 39.) 

 
Because of these conclusions, no further consideration was given to opening up Second 
Street as an access point east into the Project site and the EIR evaluated the Project 
without access from Second Street.   
 
The EIR noted that one of the Project objectives is to “optimize public transit, pedestrian, 
and bicycle access to the site by locating the proposed project adjacent to local transit 
lines and adjacent to routes that provide safe and convenient access to pedestrians and 
bicycles.” (EIR p. 2-2.) 

 
The EIR also noted City policy allows unacceptable levels of service in instances that 
result in other public benefits.   
 

[T]he City permits a lower LOS in instances that would result in other public 
benefits.  As discussed in Chapter 2, Section 2.3, Project Overview, the 
Landmark Commons Civic Center North project would provide numerous 
public benefits, specifically a senior activity center and clinic that would offer 
services to as many as 500 people per day, a county regional branch library 
that would replace a smaller facility, a transit center that would serve as a hub 
for bus riders, and a public plaza.  Furthermore, Circulation Element Policy 3.3 
prioritizes pedestrians, bicyclists, and mass transit ahead of motorists for 
transportation decisions in Old Town Clovis.  One of the project’s objectives is 
to optimize public transit, pedestrian, and bicycle access to the site, and the 
services that would be provided there.  (EIR p. 3.5-14.) 

 
This was the basis for the EIR concluding that the impacts would be less than significant 
despite the Traffic Report conclusion that the impacts are significant and unavoidable. 

114

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



 
Site Plan Review and DeBenedetto Traffic Study 
 
On February 11, 2019, staff presented the Site Plan Review for the Landmark Commons 
Project which included the senior activity center, transit building and a pad for the library.  
During public comment, representatives for DeBenedetto Properties expressed concern 
that the Project did not have access to the site from Second Street.  They asserted that 
the City promised them access with the Property Exchange Agreement (Attachment 5).  
The Agreement squared off the two properties by providing to DeBenedetto Properties 
an odd shaped, City-owned, sliver fronting on the Clovis Old Town Trail in exchange for 
DeBenedetto Properties providing land adjacent to the Project’s northern boundary to the 
City. 
 
The Council approved phase 1 of the Project allowing for the planning and construction 
of a roundabout at Veterans Way/Third Street.  The Council deferred action on phases 2 
and 3, which addressed placement of the senior activity center, transit building, and 
library.  DeBenedetto Properties requested deferral of action on phases 2 and 3 so they 
would have an opportunity to perform their own traffic study and provide a report on 
alternatives for access to the Project site across Clovis Avenue at Second Street.  The 
Council agreed to continue Site Plan Approval for phases 2 and 3 for that purpose.  
DeBenedetto Properties indicated that they would need 8 – 10 weeks to complete the 
study.  Council delayed the approval of the site plan to allow the study to occur.   
 
Immediately after that meeting, staff met with Mr. Vote, DeBenedetto’s attorney, and their 
traffic engineer and came to agreement on the scope of the study so that they could 
proceed.   Staff finally received the study, which was prepared by Advanced Mobility 
Group (AMG), on August 6, 2019 (“DeBenedetto Study”). (Attachment 1.) 
 
In discussing the scope of the DeBenedetto Study with the DeBenedetto team, staff made 
clear, and the DeBenedetto team agreed that the study would need to address certain 
aspects of the existing transportation system.  Some of the key points staff asked for 
were: 
 

 Staff reminded the team that preservation of trail continuity is important to the City 
and that the early concepts where the Second Street alignment was shown as a 
site access, including the preliminary concept that was depicted in the property 
exchange agreement, included a grade separated crossing. We would expect that 
a new Second Street crossing would likely need to include provision of a grade 
separated crossing. 
 

 Staff asked that any analysis that would introduce another controlled intersection 
at Second Street would need to include an evaluation of traffic progression on 
Clovis Avenue through Sierra, Second Third, Fourth, and Fifth with due 
consideration of the need to preserve adequate levels of service at each of these 
east-west cross streets. 
 

115

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



 Any proposed new traffic signals would need to meet warrants. 
 
Staff reviewed the DeBenedetto Study and asked the City’s consultant, Peters 
Engineering Group, who prepared the traffic analysis for the Project EIR, to also review 
and comment on the DeBenedetto Study (“Review”). (Attachment 3.) The DeBenedetto 
Study presents a basic analysis assuming that a project consisting of 200 multi-family 
units is built on the DeBenedetto site.  This assumption is based upon an allowable use 
under the General Plan.  It should be noted that no formal project has ever been proposed 
for the DeBenedetto site. While in June 2018 DeBenedetto Properties submitted a site 
plan review application with a hand drawn layout for a multi-family complex, the site plan 
was incomplete and submitted solely in an effort to qualify for a core fee reduction that 
ended in 2018.   No additional materials were ever received.  There are many unknowns 
associated with development of the DeBenedetto site and any development is speculative 
at this time. 
    
The DeBenedetto Study starts with the assumption there will be access to the Project site 
from Second Street that will serve the DeBenedetto site. The DeBenedetto Study then 
analyzes how to address impacts to the intersection of Clovis Avenue/Second Street.  
The DeBenedetto Study does not analyze the viability of opening up the Project site to 
access off of Second Street, nor does the DeBenedetto Study particularly address 
alternatives for access across Clovis Avenue at Second Street, which was the basis for 
continuing the site plan.  Based upon the assumption that there will be Second Street 
access, the DeBenedetto Study recommends that a traffic signal be installed at that 
intersection. 
 
The Peter’s Engineering Group Review notes that the warrants shown in the DeBenedetto 
Study do not justify a traffic signal at the intersection of Clovis Avenue/Second Street, 
similar to the conclusion in the Traffic Study.  The Review also concludes that the 
concerns expressed in the Traffic Study and EIR remain.   
 

As we understand it, the purpose of the TIS was to provide a traffic analysis 
that would determine whether the Second Street access is viable for the 
Landmark Commons Project and future development of the DeBenedetto site.  
The analysis has generally shown that, if access to Second Street is allowed, 
there will be levels of service below the City target LOS of D, and that the levels 
of service will either need to be mitigated by traffic signals or left unmitigated 
if warrants are not met.  In general, a fourth signalized intersection in the 
downtown area adjacent to Third Street is expected to result in queuing issues 
along Clovis Avenue.  The connection would also result in a private driveway 
crossing the Old Town Trail.   

With regards to the necessity of Second Street access, no analyses were 
performed for the case in which the Second Street access does not exist; 
therefore, the necessity of the connection has not been proven with the traffic 
analyses presented.  Our conclusion from a traffic perspective is that the 
proposed Second Street access poses potential problems, potentially 

116

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



significant impacts, and potential hazards, the necessity of which has not been 
proven by an alternate analysis. (Review p. 4.) 

 
City engineering staff also reviewed the DeBenedetto Study and found that the 
DeBenedetto Study does not provide significant new information and does not 
demonstrate that providing access off of Second Street is viable. 
 
To the contrary, access to the Project Site and future DeBenedetto Properties 
development from Second Street will only exacerbate traffic impacts and would 
substantially interfere with pedestrian and bicycle trail access to the Project site.   
 
The Traffic Study notes that there are a negligible amount of vehicle trips using the 
existing Second Street driveway from the hotel during peak hours. (Traffic Study pp. 21, 
26, 32.)  This allows vehicles traveling on Clovis Avenue to experience little or no delay 
at Second Street, even with the anticipated LOS dropping to an unacceptable E in 2039 
cumulative conditions (Traffic Study pp. 32-33, 35.).  Opening up Second Street to full 
access to the Project site and DeBenedetto Properties future development will completely 
change this.  The problems noted in the Traffic Report would be substantially worse. 
 
Effect of Further Consideration of Second Street Access 
 
If the Council were to provide any further consideration to providing access to the Project 
site at Second Street, a new traffic study would have to be done evaluating queuing 
impacts on other Clovis Avenue intersections with a traffic signal, traffic flow on Clovis 
Avenue, ability to require a traffic signal even when warrants are not met, impacts to the 
Old Town Trail, and access to the DeBenedetto Properties site by other means. (Review 
p. 4.) The EIR would have to be updated to show a revised Project description, address 
the impacts from the new configuration, evaluate the effect of the change on City 
objectives and policies regarding optimizing pedestrian and bicycle access, evaluate 
whether there are still significant benefits warranting an unacceptable level of service with 
Second Street access, and further evaluate access to the DeBenedetto Properties site by 
other means.   
 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Various fiscal impacts are in play if further consideration is given to Second Street access.  
In addition to the additional studies and environmental review, there would be costs 
associated with redesigning the site and construction cost escalation associated with 
extending the project timeline. Further, the County of Fresno will be in a position to either 
consider redesigning their building on the Project site or withdrawing from the Project.    
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff is requesting Council direction in order to move forward with the next steps in the 
Landmark Commons Project.   
 

117

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
 
Staff is prepared to move forward with the Site Plan unless otherwise directed by the 
Council. 
 
Prepared by: Mike Harrison, City Engineer 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

118

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Traffic Impact Study for 
Proposed DeBenedetto 
Development Project 

August 6, 2019

for the City of Clovis

LEGEND 

Project. Site 

- Study lntersecti on 

ATTACHMENT 1 119

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Traffic Impact Study for 
Proposed DeBenedetto 
Development Project in the 
City of Clovis, California 

 
Final Report 

Prepared for: 
The City of Clovis 

Prepared by: 
Advanced Mobility Group 

 
 

 

August 6, 2019 
`

~ ----AMG ADVANCED 
MOBILITY 
GROUP 

120

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Traffic Impact Study for Proposed DeBenedetto Project in Clovis, CA August 6, 2019  

   1 
 

Table of Contents 

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ........................................................................... 4 
INTRODUCTION .............................................................................................................................. 4 

2.0 PURPOSE OF PROJECT AND STUDY APPROACH ...................................................................... 6 
PROJECT OBJECTIVES DESCRIPTION ........................................................................................... 6 
STUDY APPROACH ........................................................................................................................ 6 

3.0 SETTING ..................................................................................................................................... 8 
EXISTING STREET SYSTEM................................................................................................................ 8 
ROADWAY AND INTERSECTION OPERATING CONDITIONS ...................................................... 9 

Traffic Data Collection ..................................................................................................... 9 
LEVEL OF SERVICE METHODOLOGY.......................................................................................... 11 
SIGNIFICANCE CRITERIA ............................................................................................................. 12 

City Standards ................................................................................................................. 12 

4.0 EXISTING TRAFFIC CONDITION ............................................................................................... 13 
INTERSECTION LEVEL OF SERVICE .............................................................................................. 13 
QUEUING ANALYSIS .................................................................................................................... 13 

5.0 TRIP GENERATION AND DISTRIBUTION METHODOLOGY ....................................................... 15 
TRIP GENERATION ........................................................................................................................ 15 
TRIP DISTRIBUTION ........................................................................................................................ 16 

6.0 EXISTING PLUS PROJECT TRAFFIC CONDITION ...................................................................... 18 
INTERSECTION LEVEL OF SERVICE ANALYSIS ............................................................................ 18 
QUEUING ANALYSIS .................................................................................................................... 18 

7.0 NEAR-TERM (INCLUDE LANDMARK COMMONS CIVIC CENTER NORTH) TRAFFIC 
CONDITION .............................................................................................................................. 21 

INTERSECTION LEVEL OF SERVICE ANALYSIS ............................................................................ 21 
QUEUING ANALYSIS .................................................................................................................... 21 

8.0 NEAR-TERM + PROPOSED DEBENEDETTO PROJECT TRAFFIC CONDITION ............................ 24 
INTERSECTION LEVEL OF SERVICE ANALYSIS ............................................................................ 24 
PEAK HOUR SIGNAL WARRANT ................................................................................................. 24 
QUEUING ANALYSIS .................................................................................................................... 26 

9.0 2039 CUMULATIVE NO PROJECT (INCLUDE LANDMARK COMMONS CIVIC CENTER 
NORTH) TRAFFIC CONDITION ................................................................................................. 28 

INTERSECTION LEVEL OF SERVICE ANALYSIS ............................................................................ 28 
QUEUING ANALYSIS .................................................................................................................... 29 

10.0 2039 CUMULATIVE PLUS PROPOSED DEBENEDETTO PROJECT TRAFFIC CONDITION ............ 32 
INTERSECTION LEVEL OF SERVICE ANALYSIS ............................................................................ 32 
PEAK HOUR SIGNAL WARRANT ................................................................................................. 32 

~ ....... AMG ADVANCED 
MOBILITY 
GROUP 

121

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Traffic Impact Study for Proposed DeBenedetto Project in Clovis, CA August 6, 2019  

   2 
 

QUEUING ANALYSIS .................................................................................................................... 33 

11.0 CONCLUSION ........................................................................................................................... 35 

REFERENCES ......................................................................................................................................... 36 

 

LIST OF TABLES 

Table 1: Signalized Intersection LOS Criteria ........................................................................... 11 
Table 2: Signalized Intersection ................................................................................................ 12 
Table 3: Existing LOS of Study Intersections ............................................................................. 13 
Table 4: Queuing Analysis Summary – Existing Conditions .................................................... 14 
Table 5: Proposed Project Trip Generation ............................................................................. 15 
Table 6: Existing plus Proposed DeBenedetto Project Intersection LOS .............................. 18 
Table 7: Queuing Analysis Summary – Existing plus Project Conditions .............................. 19 
Table 8: Near-Term Intersection LOS ........................................................................................ 21 
Table 9: Queuing Analysis Summary – Near-Term Conditions .............................................. 22 
Table 10: Near-Term plus Proposed DeBenedetto Project Intersection LOS ...................... 24 
Table 11: Queuing Analysis Summary – Near-Term plus Project Conditions ...................... 26 
Table 12: 2039 Cumulative No Project Intersection LOS ....................................................... 28 
Table 13: Queuing Analysis Summary – Cumulative Conditions .......................................... 30 
Table 14: 2039 Cumulative plus DeBenedetto Project Intersection LOS ............................ 32 
Table 15: Queuing Analysis Summary – Cumulative plus Project Conditions .................... 33 

LIST OF FIGURES 

Figure 1: Site Vicinity and Study Intersections ........................................................................... 7 
Figure 2: Existing Peak Hour Volumes, Lane Geometry and Controls ................................. 10 
Figure 3: Project Trip Distribution ............................................................................................... 17 
Figure 4: Existing plus Project Peak Hour Volumes and Lane Configurations..................... 20 
Figure 5: Near-Term Peak Hour Volumes and Lane Configurations .................................... 23 
Figure 6: Near-Term plus Project Peak Hour Volumes and Lane Configurations ............... 27 
Figure 7: 2039 Cumulative No Project Peak Hour Volumes and Lane 

Configurations .............................................................................................................. 31 
Figure 8: 2039 Cumulative plus Project Peak Hour Volumes and Lane 

Configurations .............................................................................................................. 34 

 

  

~ ....... AMG ADVANCED 
MOBILITY 
GROUP 

122

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Traffic Impact Study for Proposed DeBenedetto Project in Clovis, CA August 6, 2019  

   3 
 

LIST OF APPENDICES 

 TRAFFIC VOLUME COUNTS ....................................................................... A.1 

 INTERSECTION LOS ANALYSIS: EXISTING CONDITIONS LOS 
CALCULATION SHEETS ................................................................................................ B.2 

 INTERSECTION LOS ANALYSIS: EXISTING PLUS PROJECT 
CONDITIONS LOS CALCULATION SHEETS .................................................................. C.3 

 INTERSECTION ANALYSIS: NEAR TERM LOS CALCULATION SHEETS ......... D.4 

 INTERSECTION ANALYSIS: NEAR TERM PLUS PROJECT LOS 
CALCULATION SHEETS ................................................................................................. E.5 

 INTERSECTION ANALYSIS: SIGNAL WARRANTS ......................................... F.6 

 INTERSECTION ANALYSIS: CUMULATIVE NO PROJECT LOS 
CALCULATION SHEETS ................................................................................................G.7 

 INTERSECTION ANALYSIS: CUMULATIVE PLUS PROJECT LOS 
CALCULATION SHEETS ................................................................................................ H.8 

 INTERSECTION QUEUING ANALYSIS WORKSHEETS .................................... I.9 

  

APPENDIX A 

APPENDIX B 

APPENDIX C 

APPENDIX D 

APPENDIX E 

APPENDIX F 

APPENDIX G 

APPENDIX H 

APPENDIX I 

~ ....... AMG ADVANCED 
MOBILITY 
GROUP 

123

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Traffic Impact Study for Proposed DeBenedetto Project in Clovis, CA August 6, 2019  

   4 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

INTRODUCTION 

The purpose of this traffic impact study is to evaluate potential impacts of the proposed DeBenedetto 
Project located at the northeast quadrant of the intersection of Clovis Avenue/2nd Street in the City of 
Clovis.  

Summary 

Based on the results of the analysis, the following is a summary of our findings: 

Existing Traffic Conditions 
• All the intersections operate at acceptable LOS D or better, except the intersection of Veterans 

Parkway/5th Street that operates at LOS F during the AM peak hour.  

Existing plus Proposed DeBenedetto Project Traffic Conditions 
• The project will generate approximately 72 and 88 total trips during the AM and PM peak hours, 

respectively.  
• All intersections operate at acceptable LOS D or better, except the intersection of Veterans 

Parkway/5th Street which will continue to operate at LOS F during the AM peak hour, similar to 
the existing condition.  
 

Near-Term Project Condition.  
• All intersections operate at acceptable LOS D or better except the intersections of Clovis Ave/2nd 

St and Veterans Parkway/5th St. which operate at LOS F.  
• As indicated in the traffic impact study report for the proposed Clovis Civic Center North Project, 

Clovis Ave/2nd St was one of two access points for the City’s Landmark Commons Civic Center 
North Project. 

 
Near-Term plus Proposed DeBenedetto Project Condition.  

• All intersections operate at acceptable LOS except the intersections of Clovis Ave/2nd St and 
Veterans Parkway/5th St. which continues to operate at LOS F.  

• A signal is nearly warranted based on peak hour volumes. The main street volumes are met while 
the minor street volumes on 2nd Street has total volumes of 99 which barely missed the 100 peak 
hour threshold. Since Clovis Ave/2nd St is approximately 500 feet to the north of signalized 
intersections of Clovis Ave/3rd St and nearly 1,000 feet to the south of Clovis Ave/Sierra Ave, the 
City might consider a signal for the intersection in order to provide the necessary degree of 
platooning and provide vehicle progressive operation along the corridor.  

 
2039 Cumulative No Project (include Landmark Commons Civic Center North) Condition 

• All intersections operate at unacceptable LOS E or worse except the intersections of Clovis 
Ave/Sierra Ave and Clovis Ave/4th St, and Clovis Ave/3rd St during the AM peak hour.  

 

~ ....... AMG ADVANCED 
MOBILITY 
GROUP 

124

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Traffic Impact Study for Proposed DeBenedetto Project in Clovis, CA August 6, 2019  

   5 
 

2039 Cumulative plus Proposed DeBenedetto Project Condition.  
• Similar to the base 2039 Cumulative Condition, all intersections operate at unacceptable LOS E or 

worse except the intersections of Clovis Ave/Sierra Ave and Clovis Ave/4th St, at Clovis Ave/3rd 
St during the AM peak hour.  

• A signal is warranted at Clovis Ave/2nd St based on peak hour volumes. The City might consider a 
signal for the intersection in order to provide the necessary degree of platooning and provide 
vehicle progressive operation along the corridor.  

 
  

~ ....... AMG ADVANCED 
MOBILITY 
GROUP 

125

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Traffic Impact Study for Proposed DeBenedetto Project in Clovis, CA August 6, 2019  

   6 
 

2.0 PURPOSE OF PROJECT AND STUDY APPROACH 

PROJECT OBJECTIVES DESCRIPTION 

The purpose of this traffic impact study is to evaluate potential traffic impacts of the proposed 
DeBenedetto Project located at the northeast quadrant of the intersection of Clovis Avenue/2nd Street in 
the City of Clovis.  
 
It is our understanding that previously, when the owner of the DeBenedetto property entered into the 
Property Exchange Agreement with the City (2014-2015), an access point for the future project to cross 
the Trail from Second Street to Clovis Avenue was a part of the plan. However, apparently the approved 
Landmark Commons Civic Center North EIR did not show this access point. The study assumed project traffic 
would be able to access Second Street.  
 
The proposed project site and vicinity map are shown in Figure 1.  

STUDY APPROACH 

The following are key steps of the study approach: 

• Conduct traffic counts to establish baseline traffic conditions 

• Conduct trip generation and distribution of project trips 

• Determine Project related traffic conditions 

• Determine impact of project trips based on established Significance Criteria 

  

~ ....... AMG ADVANCED 
MOBILITY 
GROUP 

126

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Pr
oj

ec
t S

ite

St
ud

y 
In

te
rs

ec
tio

n

LE
G

EN
D

FI
G

U
RE

 1
Vi

ci
ni

ty
 M

ap
Tr

affi
c 

Im
pa

ct
 A

na
ly

sis
 fo

r t
he

 D
eB

en
ed

et
to

 P
ro

je
ct

 
Ci

ty
 o

f C
lo

vi
s

N
N

O
T 

TO
 S

CA
LE

1

2 3
4

5 6
7

yle Ave 

Russell Ave 

N Manila Ave 

Q) 

< Q) < N Baron Ave ..S? 
C: 

(/) 

0 

~ 
(/) 

.3 

Q) 

~ 

Q) 

< 
~ 
Q) 

Cole Ave 

Phillip Ave 

vis Ave en aAV S!AO/Q . 

P' Sf'10/Q 

en 
't; 

Pollasky Ave 

4.'<- i3A'rf lflJOMpOOM N Woodworth Ave 
~ 
~ 

'$:,'I> 
~o 
~ 

'1-1t..:t 0 

N Dewitt Ave Dewitt Ave 
Q.) 

> 
<( 

~ 
Q) 
u5 

aAlf PJo, 
.. :i,o 

Osmun Ave 

en 
"O 
C: 
N 

"O 
C: 
N 

en 
"O 
C: 
N 

Elm Ave 
Music Ave 

Russell Ave 

aA'r/ a10:, 

u5 
-0 
L. 

(") 

Baron Ave Baron Ave 

-(.I) 
..:: 
ih 

Osmun Ave 

en 
.c: 

. eterans Pkw: ====• - ! I c 
(.I) 0 

Q) 

~ "O 
0 

. lovis A. ==• lovis Ave 
0: 

en 
I I .c: .; 

Pollasky Ave 

en en 
"O .c: 

.c: 
~ 11-- ~ 

Pollasky Ave 

-(.I) 
..:: 
ih 

•. 

!l! Woodworth Ave 
<( 
"O 

.!ii 
"3 
ai Dewitt Ave 

en 
,s 
.c: 
Cl 
iii 

M .; 
o) Harvard Ave 

Harvard Ave a. 
-0 
co en 

.c: 
:.I✓ .... 

~<5' ----- __j ::=:===- Oxford Ave en 
,s 

"S 
CD Oxford Ave 

~ 11 

Q) 
> 

<( 
C: 
0 
(/) 

0 
Q. 

Oxford Ave 

en 
"O 

i'i 

It) 11 

Cherry Ln en 
.c: 
.E 
Cl 

Music Ave , 
II 

~ ~I.? 

Russell Avei 
c.:::, 

" :E: 
Cole ' L c::z:: 

c 
.:,(. 

0 0 

Brookfiell • 
0 .i ..0 

J2 !'9 
(/) 0 UJ e 

IIl 
Rosebr 

Brookhav 

Clovis Av 
en 
.c: 
~ 

Dewitt Ave 

en 
"E 
"' ;:: 
0 
J: 

I I 
a. 
0 

Q. 

Cherry Ln i...= •• en 
.c: 

127

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Traffic Impact Study for Proposed DeBenedetto Project in Clovis, CA August 6, 2019  

   8 
 

3.0 SETTING 

The following section describes the existing transportation conditions in the vicinity of the study area, 
including descriptions of the existing street system and intersection operating conditions. 

EXISTING STREET SYSTEM 

Clovis Avenue is a north-south arterial roadway that extends into south Fresno. The posted speed limit on 
Clovis Avenue is 35 miles per hour (mph) south of Sierra Avenue and 40 mph north of Sierra Avenue. 
 
Sierra Avenue is an east-west collector street with one lane in each direction extending east to Sunnyside 
Avenue and west into Fresno. The posted speed limit on Sierra Avenue is 40 mph west of Clovis Avenue 
and 25 mph east of Clovis Avenue.  
 
Second Street is an east-west local road with one lane in each direction extending between Clovis 
Avenue at the east end and DeWitt Avenue at the west end. Assumed the speed limit for residential streets 
is 25 mph. Proposed project is located to the eastside of Clovis Avenue at Second Street. 
 
Third Street is an east-west collector street with one lane in each direction extending to Sunnyside 
Avenue to the east and to Minnewawa Avenue to the west. The posted speed limit on Third Street west of 
Clovis Avenue is 25 mph.  
 
Fourth Street is an east-west local road with one lane in each direction extending between Clovis 
Avenue at the east end and Minnewawa Avenue at the west end. Assumed the speed limit for residential 
streets is 25 mph.  
 
Fifth Street is an east-west arterial street between Clovis Avenue and Sunnyside Avenue. It is a one lane 
roadway in each direction connecting to Bullard Avenue near Minnewawa Avenue to the west and 
connecting to Bullard Avenue near Sunnyside Avenue. The posted speed limit on Fifth Street is 25 mph.  
 
Veterans Parkway is a north-south local street with one lane in each direction between Third Street and 
Fifth Street. Assumed the speed limit for residential streets is 25 mph.  
 
 

 

 

  

~ ....... AMG ADVANCED 
MOBILITY 
GROUP 

128

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Traffic Impact Study for Proposed DeBenedetto Project in Clovis, CA August 6, 2019  

   9 
 

ROADWAY AND INTERSECTION OPERATING CONDITIONS 

This section summarizes existing roadway and intersection operating conditions.  

Traffic Data Collection  

Based on discussions with City staff1, AMG collected AM and PM peak hour intersection turning movement 
counts on Tuesday, February 26, 2019 for the seven study intersections.  Figure 2 shows the turning 
movement volumes and lane configuration at each study intersection. Intersection turning movement counts 
collected by AMG are included in Appendix A.  

Pedestrians and bicycles count were also collected on Tuesday, February 26, 2019 near Clovis Old Town 
Trail and Second Street during the AM and PM peak hour which showed no pedestrians and 
approximately seven and nine bicycles respectively during the AM and PM peak hour. 

 

  

 
1 Discussions with City of Clovis Staff, March 29, 2019 

~ ....... AMG ADVANCED 
MOBILITY 
GROUP 

129

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#1
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 S

ie
rra

 A
ve

66 (62)
285 (639)

13 (19)

35
 (4

2)
12

4 
(6

3)
21

(1
4)

12
6 

(1
67

)
89

 (1
05

)
94

 (8
3)

105 (180)
319 (500)
35 (116)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#5
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 4

th
 A

ve

9 (20)
293 (558)

16 (19)

4 
(1

4)
7 

(6
)

7(
9)

4 
(3

1)
10

 (8
)

9 
(4

1)

4 (35)
310 (489)
9 (6)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#2
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 2

nd
 A

ve

31 (13)
382 (709)

2 (2)

0 
(1

)
0 

(0
)

2 
(0

)

4 
(8

)
0 

(0
)

19
 (1

5)
12 (20)
392 (557)
0 (3)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#6
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 5

th
 A

ve

84 (68)
264 (476)

124 (49)

24
 (4

6)
21

6 
(2

07
)

99
 (8

3)
33

 (7
5)

15
2 

(2
69

)
  2

6 
(3

5)7 (45)
285 (434)
32 (61)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#3
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 3

rd
 A

ve

8 (16)
254 (569)

37 (30)

15
3 

(1
36

)
14

6 
(1

03
)

24
 (3

6)

8 
(2

1)
65

 (9
4)

18
 (2

6)

14 (25)
292 (465)
110 (83)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#7
Ve

te
ra

ns
 P

kw
y 

&
 5

th
 A

ve

16 (2)
15 (3)

61 (23)

10
5 

(3
8)

26
6 

(2
51

)
31

 (1
7)

53
 (5

6)
23

4 
(3

47
)

17
 (1

)77 (75)
22 (0)
21 (37)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#4
Ve

te
ra

ns
 P

kw
y 

&
 3

rd
 A

ve

54 (49)
0 (0)

71 (41)

28
1 

(1
93

)
71

 (1
5)

16
0 

(1
93

)
45

 (2
0)

LE
G

EN
D

ST
U

D
Y 

IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
O

N
S

1.
 

Cl
ov

is 
Av

e 
&

 S
ie

rra
 A

ve
2.

 
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 2

nd
 A

ve
3.

 
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 3

rd
 A

ve
4.

 
Ve

te
ra

ns
 P

kw
y 

&
 3

rd
 A

ve
5.

 
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 4

th
 A

ve
6.

 
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 5

th
 A

ve
7.

 
Ve

te
ra

ns
 P

kw
y 

&
 5

th
 A

ve

St
ud

y 
In

te
rs

ec
tio

n

St
op

 C
on

tro
l

Si
gn

al
 C

on
tro

l

AM
 (P

M
) P

ea
k 

H
ou

r T
ur

ni
ng

  
M

ov
em

en
t V

ol
um

es
xx

 (x
x)

Pr
oj

ec
t S

ite

St
ud

y 
In

te
rs

ec
tio

n

LE
GE

N
D

FI
GU

RE
 1

Vi
cin

ity
 M

ap
Tr

affi
  c

 Im
pa

ct
 A

na
ly

sis
 fo

r t
he

 D
eB

en
ed

et
to

 P
ro

jec
t

Ci
ty

 o
f C

lo
vis

N
N

O
T 

TO
 S

CA
LE

1

2 3
4

5 6
7

N
N

O
T 

TO
 S

CA
LE

FI
G

U
RE

 2
Ex

ist
in

g 
Vo

lu
m

es
Tr

affi
c 

Im
pa

ct
 A

na
ly

sis
 fo

r t
he

 D
eB

en
ed

et
to

 P
ro

je
ct

 
Ci

ty
 o

f C
lo

vi
s

• 
+ i.. +-

~ 

• 
)+~ ~ +-~.,... ~ i.. 

£ -, ~ -+ ,~ 
~ 

• 
+ ~ ~~ 

~ • .,... ~.,... 
--4 t . --4 ,~ 
~ ~ 

L 
-+-

~ )+~ -+- +_ F _.,... 
J -, tr"' --4--+ __. 

~ __. 
~ 

--~ 
In 
;ll 

on Ave 

. 
~ 

J 
"' oh'</SIAOIJ A{A_ 

in 
"E 
"' 

aA'tf.llJO:J 

Baron Ave 

Osmun Ave 

In 
,s 

. eterans Pkw; 
in 
'E 

RussellAYe 

en 
~ 

Music Ave 

• 
Baron Ave 

• 

0 
w >-
u ~ c.. 
z:::!::, 

"'O 0 a: 
<::!:I.? 

C!) 

:E: c::c 

~ fy".IAOJ:J 

In 
e:lovlsA- • lovisAve 

(S' 

Pollasky A,e ;;;;;;;;;;;;;;; :;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;:: 

\'/oodworth Ave 

N Dewitt Ave Dewitt Ave J"---'===== 
"' ~ 
e ., 
en 

,s ~. 
Po11cisky _A;_ve 

l :. Woodwo 

i 
a, Oei.YitlA\IE' 

0 a. 
-0 
]i 
"3 
al Oxford Av 

130

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Traffic Impact Study for Proposed DeBenedetto Project in Clovis, CA August 6, 2019  

   11 
 

LEVEL OF SERVICE METHODOLOGY 

Level of Service is a qualitative index of the performance of an element of the transportation system. Level 
of Service (LOS) is a rating scale running from A to F, with A indicating no congestion of any kind, and F 
indicating intolerable congestion and delays. 

The 2010 Highway Capacity 
Manual (HCM) is the standard 
reference published by the 
Transportation Research Board and 
contains the specific criteria and 
methods to be used in assessing 
LOS. There are several software 
packages that have been 
developed to implement HCM. In 
this study the Synchro software was 
used to calculate the LOS at the 
study intersections. 

Signalized Intersections 
The relationship between average 
control delay, driver’s perception 
of traffic, and LOS for signalized 
intersections is summarized in Table 
1. 

Unsignalized Intersections 
The method of unsignalized intersection capacity analysis used in this study is from Chapter 19, “Two-Way 
Stop-Controlled Intersections” of the Highway Capacity Manual. This method applies to two-way STOP 
sign or YIELD sign-controlled intersections (or one-way STOP sign or YIELD sign controlled intersections at 
three-way intersections). At such intersections, drivers on the minor street are forced to use judgment when 
selecting gaps in the major flow through which to execute crossings or turning maneuvers. Thus, the capacity 
of the controlled legs of an intersection is based on three factors: 

1. The distribution of gaps in the major street traffic stream. 
2. Driver judgment in selecting gaps through which to execute their desired maneuvers. 
3. Follow-up time required to move into the front-of-queue position. 

The level of service criterion for two-way STOP controlled intersections is somewhat different from the 
criterion used for signalized intersections. The primary reason for this is the difference that drivers expect 
a signalized intersection to carry higher traffic volumes than unsignalized intersections. Additionally, 
several driver behavior conditions combine to make delays at signalized intersections less onerous than at 
unsignalized intersections.  

Table 1: Signalized Intersection LOS Criteria 

LOS Driver’s Perception and Traffic Operation Description Delay in 
Seconds 

A Operations with very low delay occurring with favorable 
Progression and/or short cycle length. < 10 

B Operations with low delay occurring with good 
progression and/or short cycle lengths. > 10 – 20 

C 
Operations with average delays resulting from fair 
progression and/or longer cycle lengths. Individual cycle 
failures begin to appear. 

> 20 - 35 

D 

Operations with longer delays due to a combination of 
unfavorable progression, long cycle lengths, or high 
volume-to-capacity (V/C) ratios. Many vehicles stop, and 
individual cycle failures are noticeable. 

> 35 – 55 

E 

Operations with high delay values indicating poor 
progression, long cycle lengths, and high V/C ratios. 
Individual cycle failures are frequent occurrences. This is 
considered to be the limit of acceptable delay. 

> 55 - 80 

F 
Operation with delays unacceptable to most drivers 
occurring due to over saturation, poor progression, or very 
long cycle lengths. 

> 80 

~ ....... AMG ADVANCED 
MOBILITY 
GROUP 

131

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Traffic Impact Study for Proposed DeBenedetto Project in Clovis, CA August 6, 2019  

   12 
 

The LOS is reported for the minor approach. Depending on the availability of gaps, the minor approach 
might be operating at LOS D, E, or F while the overall intersection operates at LOS C or better. A minor 
approach that operates at LOS D, E, or F does not automatically translate into a need for a traffic signal. 
A signal warrant would still need to be met. There are many instances where only a few vehicles are 
experiencing LOS D, E, or F on the minor approach while the whole intersection operates at an acceptable 
LOS. A signal is usually not warranted under such conditions. 

Table 2 summarizes the relationship between 
delay and LOS for unsignalized intersections. At 
side-street stop-controlled intersections, the delay 
is calculated for each stop-controlled movement, 
the left-turn movement from the major street, as 
well as the intersection average. The intersection 
average delay and highest movement/approach 
delay are reported for side street stop-controlled 
intersections.  

The City of Clovis Guidelines for Traffic Impact 
Studies generally defines acceptable citywide 
unsignalized intersection operations as LOS D (35 
seconds of delay per vehicle) or better during the morning and evening peak periods. 

SIGNIFICANCE CRITERIA 

City Standards 

Policy 2.1 of the Clovis General Plan states the following LOS standards: 
A. Achieve LOS D vehicle traffic operations during the AM and PM peak hours 
B. Allow exceptions on a case-by-case basis where lower levels of service would result in 
other public benefits, such as: 

i. Preserving agriculture or open space land 
ii. Preserving the rural/historic character of a neighborhood 
iii. Preserving or creating a pedestrian-friendly environment in Old Town or mixed-use 
village districts 
iv. Avoiding adverse impacts to pedestrians, cyclists, and mass transit riders 
v. Where right-of-way constraints would make capacity expansion infeasible 

The City Guidelines indicate that an impact is considered significant if the addition of the 
traffic generated by a proposed project results in any one of the following: 

• Triggers an intersection operating at acceptable LOS to operate at unacceptable levels of service;  
• Increases the average delay for a study intersection that is already operating at unacceptable 

LOS. 
  

Table 2: Signalized Intersection 
LOS Criteria 

LOS Driver’s Perception and Traffic 
Operation Description 

Delay in 
Seconds 

A Little or no delays < 10 

B Short traffic delays > 10 – 
15 

C Average traffic delays > 15 - 25 

D Long traffic delays > 25 - 35 

E Very long traffic delays > 35 – 
50 

F Extreme traffic delays with intersection 
capacity exceeded > 50 

~ ....... AMG ADVANCED 
MOBILITY 
GROUP 

132

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Traffic Impact Study for Proposed DeBenedetto Project in Clovis, CA August 6, 2019  

   13 
 

4.0 EXISTING TRAFFIC CONDITION 

This section presents the assessment of traffic conditions without the proposed project. 

INTERSECTION LEVEL OF SERVICE 

To accurately model the traffic condition, AMG created a Synchro traffic analysis model to determine the 
intersection LOS. The Existing Conditions traffic operations were evaluated based on levels of service 
criteria using Synchro. The macroscopic simulation model, Synchro, was used to evaluate several measures 
(such as lane geometries, signal optimization, signal phasing and traffic control) at the study intersections. 

The results of the LOS analysis for the existing intersections are shown in Table 3. All the intersections 
operate at acceptable LOS D or better, except the intersection of Veterans Parkway/5th Street that 
operates at LOS F during the AM peak hour.  

Table 3: Existing LOS of Study Intersections 
 

Intersection Existing Control 
AM PM 

 Delay LOS Delay LOS 
1 Clovis Ave/Sierra Ave Signal 28.4 C 30.5 C 
2 Clovis Ave/2nd St Two-Way Stop  19.1 C 16.5 C 
3 Clovis Ave/3rd St Signal 32.3 C 35.8 D 
4 Veterans Pkwy/3rd St One-Way Stop  17.3 C 12.5 B 
5 Clovis Ave/4th St Signal 19.0 B 27.8 C 
6 Clovis Ave/5th St Signal 39.6 D 45.8 D 
7 Veterans Pkwy/5th St Two-Way Stop  93.7 F 19.6 C 

 

Detailed level of service worksheets are provided in Appendix B. 

QUEUING ANALYSIS 

The results of the Existing Conditions queuing analysis are summarized in Table 4, and queue analysis 
sheets are provided in Appendix I. The calculated 95th Percentile queues do not exceed the existing 
storage capacity at the study intersections except for the following: 

• Clovis Ave/Sierra Ave – eastbound and northbound left-turn during both peak hours 
• Clovis Ave/3rd St – eastbound left-turn during the PM peak hour 
• Clovis Ave/5th St – eastbound and westbound left-turn during both peak hours 
• Veterans Pkwy/5th St – eastbound left-turn during the AM peak hour 

  

~ ....... AMG ADVANCED 
MOBILITY 
GROUP 

133

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Traffic Impact Study for Proposed DeBenedetto Project in Clovis, CA August 6, 2019  

   14 
 

Table 4: Queuing Analysis Summary – Existing Conditions 

Intersection Turning Movement Existing Storage 
Length (ft) 

AM Queue 
(ft) 

PM Queue 
(ft) Notes 

1. Clovis Ave/Sierra Ave 

EBL 110 142 141 x 
WBL 65 62 36 x 
NBL 115 117 131 x 
SBL 155 50 144 x 

2. Clovis Ave/2nd St 

EBL 300 40 42 x * L 
WBL 130 15 10 x * L 
NBL 400 49 15 x * L 
SBL 470 0 14 x * L 

3. Clovis Ave/3rd St 

EBL 50 49 52 x 
WBL 75 69 65 x 
NBL 410 168 270 x * L 
SBL 400 225 278 x * L 

4. Veterans Pkwy/3rd St 

EBL 375 12 0 x * L 
WBL 330 81 27 x * L 
NBL 410 74 54 x * L 
SBL - 0 0 x * 

5. Clovis Ave/4th St 

EBL 310 45 82 x * L 
WBL 130 57 51 x * L 
NBL 410 146 239 x * L 
SBL 410 152 225 x * L 

6. Clovis Ave/5th St 

EBL 70 72 117 x 
WBL 150 151 151 x 
NBL 500 225 252 x * L 
SBL 410 142 243 x * L 

7. Veterans Pkwy/5th St 

EBL 50 54 40 x 
WBL 100 40 23 x 
NBL - 75 50 x * 
SBL 410 85 74 x * 

Notes: Bold represents 95th Percentile queues that exceed available storage 
x = From SimTraffic rather than from Synchro 

 * = No turn bay available, queue length given for left-turning lane on approach 
 L = Storage length identified using distance between adjacent intersections 
 
  

~ ....... AMG ADVANCED 
MOBILITY 
GROUP 

134

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Traffic Impact Study for Proposed DeBenedetto Project in Clovis, CA August 6, 2019  

   15 
 

5.0 TRIP GENERATION AND DISTRIBUTION METHODOLOGY 

The proposed project consists of approximately 200 multifamily (mid-rise) residential dwelling units.  

TRIP GENERATION 

Trip generation is defined as the number of “vehicle trips” produced by a particular land use or project. A 
trip is defined as a one-direction vehicle movement. The total number of trips generated by each land use 
includes the inbound and outbound trips. 

The trip generation estimates for the proposed land use was calculated using the standard reference Trip 
Generation, 10th Edition, published by the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE). In consultation with 
staff2, the project’s land use was based on ITE trip generation data.  

The estimated potential trip generation of the proposed project is shown in Table 5. It is estimated that the 
project will generate approximately 72 and 88 total trips during the AM and PM peak hours, respectively.  

Table 5: Proposed Project Trip Generation 

Land Use ITE Code Size 
A.M. Peak P.M. Peak 

Rate In Out Total Rate In Out Total 

Multifamily Housing (Mid-Rise) ITE 221 200 Unit 0.36 19 53 72 0.44 54 34 88 

Total New Trips       19 53 72   54 34 88 
Source: ITE Trip Generation Manual 10th Edition, 2017 

  

 
2 Email of Mike Harrison, March 29, 2019 

~ ....... AMG ADVANCED 
MOBILITY 
GROUP 

135

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Traffic Impact Study for Proposed DeBenedetto Project in Clovis, CA August 6, 2019  

   16 
 

TRIP DISTRIBUTION 

Trip distribution is a process that determines in what proportion vehicles would be expected to travel 
between a project site and various destinations outside the project study area. The process of trip 
assignment determines the various routes that vehicles would take from the project site to each destination 
using the estimated trip distribution. 

The project is expected to “generate” and “attract” trips throughout the City and from other locations 
throughout the area. Typically, directional trip distribution for project generated trips are estimated based 
on existing traffic flow patterns, geographic location of the project site, and location of other similar 
destinations. The estimated trip distribution patterns were discussed with the City and approved trip 
distribution3 are shown on Figure 3.  

Based on input from City staff, the weekday AM and PM peak hour traffic conditions for the following 
scenarios were analyzed: 

i. Existing 
ii. Existing + Proposed DeBenedetto Project 
iii. Near-Term (include Landmark Commons Civic Center North) 
iv. Near-Term + Proposed DeBenedetto Project  
v. 2039 Cumulative No Project (include Landmark Commons Civic Center North) 
vi. 2039 Cumulative + Proposed DeBenedetto Project  

 
  

 
3 Email of Mike Harrison, March 29, 2019 

~ ....... AMG ADVANCED 
MOBILITY 
GROUP 

136

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Project Site

Project Trip Percentages

30%
16%

13%

20%

XX%

5%

15%

1%

LEGEND

FIGURE 3
Peak-Hour Project Traffic Distribution Precentages

Traffic Impact Analysis for the DeBenedetto Project 
City of Clovis

N
NOT TO SCALE

Intersection #1
Clovis Ave & Sierra Ave

8 
(5

)
16

 (1
0)

3 (9)

6 
(1

6)
Intersection #5

Clovis Ave & 4th Ave

6 
(1

8)

18
 (1

2)

Intersection #2
Clovis Ave & 2nd Ave

3 
(8

)

24 (15)
9 (6)

9 
(2

5)

Intersection #6
Clovis Ave & 5th Ave

4 
(1

1)

2 (7)

7 
(5

)
11

 (7
)

Intersection #3
Clovis Ave & 3rd Ave

3 
(8

)
3 

(1
0)

9 (6)

9 
(6

)

Intersection #7
Veterans Pkwy & 5th Ave

1 (2)

2 
(2

)

Intersection #4
Veterans Pkwy & 3rd Ave

1 
(2

)

1 (4)

3 (10)

9 
(6

)
2 

(2
)

4 
(2

)
flf,0 

0-\ 
~ 

-1,1,~ 

QI ,. 
<( 
.r; 

• 
z t:: 
0 0 
[I) :'.: 
! 'Cl 

0 , t :=: ~ 

" > 
"' z "' 

ve 
0 == 

,a 
Q Q. 

:;;: 0 iii' 
;:i" 0. "' ~ ,.. 
)> 0 ... 
"' ;i )>, 
11) :::r "' 

~ 
ffJ 

ID s s 

L Zndst 

I._ ,.-

r"' 

41ih SI 

• 5th St ,.-

tr 
Cl 

~ ~ 
g 

a' Q, 

~ ;i; 
0 

11) ::i 
::::r 
l> 
"' m 

Ei hth Sl 

t 

:5. 
(fl 

)> 
< co 

Gl 

Ji: 
(/) 

'> 
0 
G 
~ 

SlerraA~e 
~ 
~ -r 

0 

5 

C") 

0 
< 
(h 
):-
< 
~ 

(") 

0 
< 
1n· 
)> 
< 
re, 

(") 

0 
< 
1n· 
)> 
< 

3rd St 

Rodea Dr 

< 
ID 

lo 
0:: 
:, .. 
"!;I ,.. 
;i; ... 4th S 

Los Altos Ave 

0 .., 
3 
C: 
;i; 
)>, 

"' .. 

0 .., 
:J 
:, 

~ 
m 

gi 
0 
0 

~ 
m 
"' 

5t St 

z 

"' 0 = 
):,, 

"' "' 
enloAve 

-u 
2: 
ii' 
):,, 
< 

2nd S 

3r 
Cl! .. 
0 
~ 
):,, 
< 
'" 

zi a 
= 
):,, 

"' ID 

tabro 

• 
t 

). 
J t 

~ L 

(A~M:::...G :ANC~ 
MOBILITY 
GROUP 137

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Traffic Impact Study for Proposed DeBenedetto Project in Clovis, CA August 6, 2019  

   18 
 

6.0 EXISTING PLUS PROJECT TRAFFIC CONDITION 

This section presents the assessment of potential transportation impacts of the proposed DeBenedetto 200-
unit multi-family residential project.  

It is our understanding that previously, when the owner of the DeBenedetto property entered into the 
Property Exchange Agreement with the City (2014-2015), an access point for the future project to cross 
the Trail from Second Street to Clovis Avenue was a part of the plan. However, apparently the approved 
Landmark Commons Civic Center North EIR did not show this access point. The study assumed project traffic 
would be able to access Second Street.  
 

INTERSECTION LEVEL OF SERVICE ANALYSIS 

Figure 4 shows the Existing plus Project Conditions peak hour turning movement volumes and lane 
geometry. Table 6 shows the LOS under Existing plus Project Conditions. All intersections operate at 
acceptable LOS D or better, except the intersection of Veterans Parkway/5th Street which will continue to 
operate at LOS F during the AM peak hour, similar to existing conditions.  

Detailed level of service worksheets is provided in Appendix C. 

 
Table 6: Existing plus Proposed DeBenedetto Project Intersection LOS 
             

  Existing Existing plus Project  
 

Intersection 
AM PM 

Existing Control 
AM PM Diff 

 Delay LOS Delay LOS Delay LOS Delay LOS AM PM 

1 Clovis Ave/Sierra Ave 28.4 C 30.5 C Signal 28.5 C 30.6 C 0.1 0.1 

2 Clovis Ave/2nd St 19.1 C 16.5 C Two-Way Stop  14.2 B 21.4 C -4.9 4.9 

3 Clovis Ave/3rd St 32.3 C 35.8 D Signal 32.7 C 36.5 D 0.4 0.7 

4 Veterans Pkwy/3rd St 17.3 C 12.5 B One-Way Stop  19.2 C 13.4 B 1.9 0.9 

5 Clovis Ave/4th St 19.0 B 27.8 C Signal 19.2 B 28.2 C 0.2 0.4 

6 Clovis Ave/5th St 39.6 D 45.8 D Signal 40.0 D 46.8 D 0.4 1.0 

7 Veterans Pkwy/5th St 93.7 F 19.6 C Two-Way Stop  93.7 F 20.1 C 0.0 0.5 

 

QUEUING ANALYSIS 

The results of the Existing plus Project Conditions queuing analysis are summarized in Table 7, and queue 
analysis sheets are provided in Appendix I. The calculated 95th Percentile queues do not exceed the 
existing storage capacity at the study intersections except for the following: 

• Clovis Ave/Sierra Ave – eastbound left-turn during both peak hours and northbound left-turn 
during the PM peak hour 

• Clovis Ave/3rd St – eastbound and westbound left-turn during the PM peak hour 
• Clovis Ave/5th St – eastbound left-turn during both peak hours and westbound left-turn during the 

AM peak hour 

~ ....... AMG ADVANCED 
MOBILITY 
GROUP 

138

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Traffic Impact Study for Proposed DeBenedetto Project in Clovis, CA August 6, 2019  

   19 
 

• Veterans Pkwy/5th St – eastbound left-turn during the AM peak hour 
 
Table 7: Queuing Analysis Summary – Existing plus Project Conditions 

Intersection Turning 
Movement 

Existing 
Storage 
Length 

(ft) 

Existing 
Conditions (ft) 

Existing Plus Project 
Conditions (ft) Change (ft) 

Notes 

AM PM AM PM AM PM 

1. Clovis Ave/Sierra Ave 

EBL 110 142 141 130 142 -12 1 x 
WBL 65 62 36 47 30 -15 -6 x 
NBL 115 117 131 97 134 -20 3 x 
SBL 155 50 144 57 142 7 -2 x 

2. Clovis Ave/2nd St 

EBL 300 40 42 48 47 8 5 x * L 
WBL 130 15 10 49 41 34 31 x * L 
NBL 400 49 15 36 17 -13 2 x * L 
SBL 470 0 14 34 57 34 43 x * L 

3. Clovis Ave/3rd St 

EBL 50 49 52 29 58 -20 6 x 
WBL 75 69 65 64 87 -5 22 x 
NBL 410 168 270 138 272 -30 2 x * L 
SBL 400 225 278 201 220 -24 -58 x * L 

4. Veterans Pkwy/3rd St 

EBL 375 12 0 14 7 2 7 x * L 
WBL 330 81 27 45 39 -36 12 x * L 
NBL 410 74 54 73 54 -1 0 x * L 
SBL - 0 0 44 26 44 26 x * 

5. Clovis Ave/4th St 

EBL 310 45 82 45 79 0 -3 x * L 
WBL 130 57 51 48 49 -9 -2 x * L 
NBL 410 146 239 126 269 -20 30 x * L 
SBL 410 152 225 132 224 -20 -1 x * L 

6. Clovis Ave/5th St 

EBL 70 72 117 103 109 31 -8 x 
WBL 150 151 151 180 136 29 -15 x 
NBL 500 225 252 183 300 -42 48 x * L 
SBL 410 142 243 166 267 24 24 x * L 

7. Veterans Pkwy/5th St 

EBL 50 54 40 55 39 1 -1 x 
WBL 100 40 23 36 23 -4 0 x 
NBL - 75 50 70 45 -5 -5 x * 
SBL 410 85 74 79 66 -6 -8 x * 

Notes: Bold represents 95th Percentile queues that exceed available storage 
x = From SimTraffic rather than from Synchro 

 * = No turn bay available, queue length given for left-turning lane on approach 
 L = Storage length identified using distance between adjacent intersections 
  

~ ....... AMG ADVANCED 
MOBILITY 
GROUP 

139

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#1
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 S

ie
rra

 A
ve

74 (67)
301 (649)

13 (19)

35
 (4

2)
12

4 
(6

3)
21

(1
4)

12
6 

(1
67

)
89

 (1
05

)
97

 (9
2)

105 (180)
325 (516)
35 (116)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#5
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 4

th
 A

ve

9 (20)
299 (576)

16 (19)

4 
(1

4)
7 

(6
)

7(
9)

4 
(3

1)
10

 (8
)

9 
(4

1)

4 (35)
328 (501)
9 (6)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#2
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 2

nd
 A

ve

31 (13)
382 (709)

5 (10)

24
 (1

6)
0 

(0
)

11
 (6

)

4 
(8

)
0 

(0
)

19
 (1

5)
12 (20)
392 (557)
9 (28)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#6
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 5

th
 A

ve

84 (68)
268 (487)

124 (49)

24
 (4

6)
21

6 
(2

07
)

99
 (8

3)
35

 (8
2)

15
2 

(2
69

)
  2

6 
(3

5)14 (50)
296 (441)
32 (61)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#3
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 3

rd
 A

ve

8 (16)
257 (577)

40 (40)

15
3 

(1
36

)
14

6 
(1

03
)

33
 (4

2)

8 
(2

1)
65

 (9
4)

18
 (2

6)

14 (25)
301 (471)
110 (83)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#7
Ve

te
ra

ns
 P

kw
y 

&
 5

th
 A

ve

16 (2)
15 (3)

61 (23)

10
6 

(4
0)

26
6 

(2
51

)
31

 (1
7)

53
 (5

6)
23

4 
(3

47
)

17
 (1

)77 (75)
22 (0)
23 (39)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#4
Ve

te
ra

ns
 P

kw
y 

&
 3

rd
 A

ve

54 (49)
1 (2)

71 (41)

28
1 

(1
93

)
1 

(4
)

71
 (1

5)

16
0 

(1
93

)
3 

(1
0)

45
 (2

0)

9 (6)
2 (2)
4 (2)

LE
G

EN
D

ST
U

D
Y 

IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
O

N
S

1.
 

Cl
ov

is 
Av

e 
&

 S
ie

rra
 A

ve
2.

 
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 2

nd
 A

ve
3.

 
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 3

rd
 A

ve
4.

 
Ve

te
ra

ns
 P

kw
y 

&
 3

rd
 A

ve
5.

 
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 4

th
 A

ve
6.

 
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 5

th
 A

ve
7.

 
Ve

te
ra

ns
 P

kw
y 

&
 5

th
 A

ve

St
ud

y 
In

te
rs

ec
tio

n

St
op

 C
on

tro
l

Si
gn

al
 C

on
tro

l

AM
 (P

M
) P

ea
k 

H
ou

r T
ur

ni
ng

  
M

ov
em

en
t V

ol
um

es
xx

 (x
x)

Pr
oj

ec
t S

ite

St
ud

y 
In

te
rs

ec
tio

n

LE
GE

N
D

FI
GU

RE
 1

Vi
cin

ity
 M

ap
Tr

affi
  c

 Im
pa

ct
 A

na
ly

sis
 fo

r t
he

 D
eB

en
ed

et
to

 P
ro

jec
t

Ci
ty

 o
f C

lo
vis

N
N

O
T 

TO
 S

CA
LE

1

2 3
4

5 6
7

N
N

O
T 

TO
 S

CA
LE

FI
G

U
RE

 4
Ex

ist
in

g 
Pl

us
 P

ro
je

ct
 V

ol
um

es
Tr

affi
c 

Im
pa

ct
 A

na
ly

sis
 fo

r t
he

 D
eB

en
ed

et
to

 P
ro

je
ct

 
Ci

ty
 o

f C
lo

vi
s

• 
~i.. +-
-+ , }' 

• ).~ ~ +-~.,... ~ i.. 
£ -, }' -+ , }' 
~ 

• 
+ ~ ~~ 

~ • .,... ~.,... 
--4 t . --4 , }' 
~ ~ 

L 
-+-

~ ).~ -+- +_ F _.,... 
J -, tr"' --4--+ __. 

~ __. 
~ 

--~ 
In 
;ll 

on Ave 

. 
~ 

J 
"' oh'</SIAOIJ A{A_ 

in 
"E 
"' 

aA'tf.llJO:J 

Baron Ave 

Osmun Ave 

In 
,s 

. eterans Pkw; 
iii 
'E 

RussellAYe 

en 
~ 

Music Ave 

• 
Baron Ave 

• 

0 
w >-
u ~ c.. 
z:::!::, 

"'O 0 a: 
<::!:I.? 

C!) 

:E: c::c 

~ fy".IAOJ:J 

In 
e:lovlsA- • lovisAve 

(S' 

Pollasky A,e ;;;;;;;;;;;;;;; :;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;:: 

\'/oodworth Ave 

N Dewitt Ave Dewitt Ave J"---'===== 
"' ~ 
e ., 
en 

,s ~. 
Po11cisky _A;_ve 

l :. Woodwo 

i 
a, Oei.YitlA\IE' 

0 a. 
-0 
]i 
"3 
al Oxford Av 

140

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Traffic Impact Study for Proposed DeBenedetto Project in Clovis, CA August 6, 2019  

   21 
 

7.0 NEAR-TERM (INCLUDE LANDMARK COMMONS CIVIC CENTER 
NORTH) TRAFFIC CONDITION 

This section presents the assessment of potential transportation for the Near-Term Condition. The scenario 
includes the Landmark Commons Civic Center North Project.  

INTERSECTION LEVEL OF SERVICE ANALYSIS 

Figure 5 shows the Near-Term Condition Conditions peak hour turning movement volumes and lane 
geometry which are based on volumes contained in the report Traffic Impact Study Proposed Clovis Civic 
Center North Project, California dated September 9, 2016.  

Table 8 shows the LOS under Near-Term Conditions. All intersections operate at acceptable LOS D or 
better except the intersections of Clovis Ave/2nd St and Veterans Parkway/5th St. As indicated in the 
traffic impact study report for the proposed Clovis Civic Center North Project, Clovis Ave/2nd St was one 
of two access points for the Citys Landmark Commons Civic Center North Project.4  
 
Detailed level of service worksheets is provided in Appendix D. 

 
Table 8: Near-Term Intersection LOS 
 

Intersection Existing Control 
AM PM 

 Delay LOS Delay LOS 

1 Clovis Ave/Sierra Ave Signal 26.5 C 29.3 C 
2 Clovis Ave/2nd St Two-Way Stop  18.8 C 419.7 F 
3 Clovis Ave/3rd St Signal 32.2 C 38.2 D 
4 Veterans Pkwy/3rd St One-Way Stop  19.3 C 23.2 C 
5 Clovis Ave/4th St Signal 20.7 C 29.8 C 
6 Clovis Ave/5th St Signal 42.4 D 50.1 D 
7 Veterans Pkwy/5th St Two-Way Stop  87.7 F 20.1 C 

 

QUEUING ANALYSIS 

The results of the Near-Term Conditions queuing analysis are summarized in Table 9, and queue analysis 
sheets are provided in Appendix I. The calculated 95th Percentile queues do not exceed the existing 
storage capacity at the study intersections except for the following: 

• Clovis Ave/Sierra Ave – eastbound left-turn during both peak hours and northbound left-turn 
during the PM peak hour 

• Clovis Ave/3rd St – eastbound and westbound left-turn during the PM peak hour 
• Clovis Ave/5th St – eastbound left-turn during both peak hours and westbound left-turn during the 

AM peak hour 
• Veterans Pkwy/5th St – eastbound left-turn during both peak hours 

 
 

4 Page 25, last second paragraph 

~ ....... AMG ADVANCED 
MOBILITY 
GROUP 

141

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Traffic Impact Study for Proposed DeBenedetto Project in Clovis, CA August 6, 2019  

   22 
 

Table 9: Queuing Analysis Summary – Near-Term Conditions 

Intersection Turning Movement Existing Storage 
Length (ft) AM Queue (ft) PM Queue (ft) Notes 

1. Clovis Ave/Sierra Ave 

EBL 110 118 147 x 
WBL 65 47 24 x 
NBL 115 104 129 x 
SBL 155 46 119 x 

2. Clovis Ave/2nd St 

EBL 300 37 50 x * L 
WBL 130 33 65 x * L 
NBL 400 41 42 x * L 
SBL 470 9 74 x * L 

3. Clovis Ave/3rd St 

EBL 50 39 71 x 
WBL 75 69 91 x 
NBL 410 159 283 x * L 
SBL 400 198 305 x * L 

4. Veterans Pkwy/3rd St 

EBL 375 0 20 x * L 
WBL 330 71 27 x * L 
NBL 410 67 62 x * L 
SBL 0 31 72 x * 

5. Clovis Ave/4th St 

EBL 310 52 77 x * L 
WBL 130 62 44 x * L 
NBL 410 135 240 x * L 
SBL 410 149 317 x * L 

6. Clovis Ave/5th St 

EBL 70 75 116 x 
WBL 150 170 117 x 
NBL 500 219 310 x * L 
SBL 410 181 384 x * L 

7. Veterans Pkwy/5th St 

EBL 50 53 52 x 
WBL 100 32 30 x 
NBL 0 56 34 x * 
SBL 410 98 72 x * 

Notes: Bold represents 95th Percentile queues that exceed available storage 
x = From SimTraffic rather than from Synchro 

 * = No turn bay available, queue length given for left-turning lane on approach 
 L = Storage length identified using distance between adjacent intersections 
 
  

~ ....... AMG ADVANCED 
MOBILITY 
GROUP 

142

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#1
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 S

ie
rra

 A
ve

61 (70)
383 (728)

11 (19)

40
 (2

5)
95

 (5
5)

8 
(1

4)

12
2 

(1
50

)
95

 (8
8)

56
 (9

6)

94 (143)
366 (544)
24 (63)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#5
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 4

th
 A

ve

8 (17)
357 (601)

13 (16)20
 (1

6)
6 

(4
)

11
 (1

1)
12

 (3
5)

5 
(1

)
17

 (4
6)

13 (38)
345 (545)
5 (9)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#2
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 2

nd
 A

ve

16 (18)
479 (765)

14 (32)

6 
(4

0)
2 

(4
)

6 
(3

4)

8 
(1

0)
2 

(3
)

12
 (1

1)
12 (18)
402 (588)
14 (35)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#6
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 5

th
 A

ve

64 (75)
318 (531)

 79 (57)

46
 (5

0)
23

1 
(1

80
)

11
0 

(7
1)

27
 (7

4)
17

8 
(2

54
)

  1
7 

(4
4)25 (85)

311 (443)
30 (63)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#3
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 3

rd
 A

ve

16 (13)
322 (628)

53 (36)

11
9 

(1
55

)
13

4 
(9

9)
29

 (3
9)

9 
(2

8)
65

 (8
1)

13
 (2

5)

11 (21)
326 (513)
104 (101)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#7
Ve

te
ra

ns
 P

kw
y 

&
 5

th
 A

ve

13 (1)
18 (1)

60 (10)

88
 (3

4)
26

6 
(2

54
)

38
 (2

3)
57

 (4
1)

22
5 

(3
33

)
22

 (3
)107 (61)

11 (8)
28 (39)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#4
Ve

te
ra

ns
 P

kw
y 

&
 3

rd
 A

ve

49 (48)
12 (30)
65 (25)

23
5 

(2
03

)
6 

(1
3)

63
 (2

2)

16
0 

(1
90

)
8 

(1
8)

70
 (2

0)

5 (21)
6 (33)
2 (16)

LE
G

EN
D

ST
U

D
Y 

IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
O

N
S

1.
 

Cl
ov

is 
Av

e 
&

 S
ie

rra
 A

ve
2.

 
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 2

nd
 A

ve
3.

 
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 3

rd
 A

ve
4.

 
Ve

te
ra

ns
 P

kw
y 

&
 3

rd
 A

ve
5.

 
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 4

th
 A

ve
6.

 
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 5

th
 A

ve
7.

 
Ve

te
ra

ns
 P

kw
y 

&
 5

th
 A

ve

St
ud

y 
In

te
rs

ec
tio

n

St
op

 C
on

tro
l

Si
gn

al
 C

on
tro

l

AM
 (P

M
) P

ea
k 

H
ou

r T
ur

ni
ng

  
M

ov
em

en
t V

ol
um

es
xx

 (x
x)

Pr
oj

ec
t S

ite

St
ud

y 
In

te
rs

ec
tio

n

LE
GE

N
D

FI
GU

RE
 1

Vi
cin

ity
 M

ap
Tr

affi
  c

 Im
pa

ct
 A

na
ly

sis
 fo

r t
he

 D
eB

en
ed

et
to

 P
ro

jec
t

Ci
ty

 o
f C

lo
vis

N
N

O
T 

TO
 S

CA
LE

1

2 3
4

5 6
7

N
N

O
T 

TO
 S

CA
LE

FI
G

U
RE

 5
N

ea
r-

Te
rm

 V
ol

um
es

Tr
affi

c 
Im

pa
ct

 A
na

ly
sis

 fo
r t

he
 D

eB
en

ed
et

to
 P

ro
je

ct
 

Ci
ty

 o
f C

lo
vi

s

• 
~i.. +-
-+ , }' 

).~ ~ ~.,... ~ i.. 
£ -, }' -+ ~ 

• 
+ ~ ~~ • .,... 
--4 t . --4 
~ ~ 

L 
-+-).~ -+- +_ F 

J -, tr"' --4-
__. 

~ __. 
~ 

• 
+-, }' 

~ ~.,... , }' 

~ _.,... 
-+ 

--~ 
Russell Ave 

ila Ave 

w 

-'< 
onAve ~ 

~ 

i 
~ 

Cole Ave 

Phillip Ave 

in a,vs,,01.J . 
lrs!~O/J 

1n 
;!! 

Pollasky Ave 

II\V 4µ0MpooM N Woodworth Ave 

($' 

N Dewitt Ave Dewitt Ave 
Q) 

~ 
<O 

~ 
U) 

<M\fpJo 
~~o 

Osmun Ave 

1n 

~ 

1n 
~ 
C 

N 

Music Ave 

0 
w >-
u ~ c.. 
z:::!::, 

"'O 0 a: 
<::!:I.? 

C!) 

:E: c::c 

Russell Ave • 
1i5 
~ 
M 

a1o.va100 

Baron Ave 

Osmun Ave 

1n 
;:; 

. eterans Pkwy~ 

1i5 

. lovisA~ 

~ 

1n 1n 
;\l ~ 

Oxford Ave 

Baron Ave 

1i5 
_,:: 

in 

• /5 
0 
w 
~ 

• lovisAve 
~ 

Pollasky Ave 

~ Woodwo 
1i5 < 
_,:: ] 
in '§ 

m Dewitt Ave 

"' ~ 
-0 

.1'i 
:, 

1n co Oxford Av 
;7i 

143

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Traffic Impact Study for Proposed DeBenedetto Project in Clovis, CA August 6, 2019  

   24 
 

8.0 NEAR-TERM + PROPOSED DEBENEDETTO PROJECT TRAFFIC 
CONDITION 

This section presents the assessment of potential transportation impact for the Near-Term plus Proposed 
DeBenedetto Project Condition.  

INTERSECTION LEVEL OF SERVICE ANALYSIS 

Figure 6 shows the Near-Term plus Proposed DeBenedetto Project peak hour turning movement volumes 
and lane geometry. Table 10 shows the LOS under Near-Term plus Proposed DeBenedetto Traffic 
Conditions. All intersections operate at acceptable LOS except the intersections of Clovis Ave/2nd St and 
Veterans Parkway/5th St. Detailed level of service worksheets is provided in Appendix E. 

Table 10: Near-Term plus Proposed DeBenedetto Project Intersection LOS 
  Near-Term Near-Term plus Project  
 

Intersection 
AM PM 

Existing Control 
AM PM Diff 

 Delay LOS Delay LOS Delay LOS Delay LOS AM PM 

1 Clovis Ave/Sierra Ave 26.5 C 29.3 C Signal 26.7 C 29.5 C 0.2 0.2 

2 Clovis Ave/2nd St 18.8 C 419.7 F Two-Way Stop  18.5 C 705.9 F -0.3 286 

3 Clovis Ave/3rd St 32.2 C 38.2 D Signal 32.7 C 38.9 D 0.5 0.7 

4 Veterans Pkwy/3rd St 19.3 C 23.2 C One-Way Stop  21.5 C 28.6 D 2.2 5.4 

5 Clovis Ave/4th St 20.7 C 29.8 C Signal 20.9 C 30.3 C 0.2 0.5 

6 Clovis Ave/5th St 42.4 D 50.1 D Signal 42.9 D 51.9 D 0.5 1.8 

7 Veterans Pkwy/5th St 87.7 F 20.1 C Two-Way Stop  89.0 F 20.6 C 1.3 0.5 

 

PEAK HOUR SIGNAL WARRANT 

AMG completed a peak hour traffic signal warrant analysis for the intersection of Clovis Ave/2nd St which 
is a Two-Way stop controlled under existing conditions. Using the peak hour turning movement volumes, the 
CAMUTCD criteria were evaluated for Warrant 3, Peak Hour.  

Generally, it is necessary to have a minimum volume of 100 vehicles per hour approaching from the higher 
volume side street to warrant a traffic signal. Based on the projected traffic volumes under Near-Term plus 
Proposed DeBenedetto Project scenario, a signal is nearly warranted based on peak hour volumes. The 
main street volumes are met while the minor street volumes on 2nd Street has total volumes of 99 which 
barely missed the 100 peak hour threshold. Since Clovis Ave/2nd St is approximately 500 feet to the 
north of signalized intersections of Clovis Ave/3rd St and nearly 1,000 feet to the south of Clovis 
Ave/Sierra Ave, the City might consider a signal for the intersection in order to provide the necessary 
degree of platooning and provide vehicle progressive operation along the corridor. The rational is 
provided in MUTCD Warrant 6, Coordinated Signal System.  

The intersection of Clovis Ave/2nd St would improve to LOS D or better after signal improvement. See 
Appendix F for peak hour signal warrant analysis worksheet. 

  

~ ....... AMG ADVANCED 
MOBILITY 
GROUP 

- -

144

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Traffic Impact Study for Proposed DeBenedetto Project in Clovis, CA August 6, 2019  

   25 
 

Clovis Avenue/2nd Street  
The proposed improvement and striping layout at Clovis Avenue/2nd Street are shown Exhibit 1. The 
proposed improvement analysis at 2nd Street makes the 
following assumptions about the signal: 
 

• Protected northbound (75-foot storage) and 
southbound (125-foot storage) left-turns 

• Permissive eastbound and westbound left-turns 
• All signal timing settings are per MUTCD 

standards with Bike Minimum Green, Ped Walk 
Time, and Yellow Change Interval 

o This assumption was made at all 
signals for analysis, not just the new 
signal 

• Optimized cycle length and splits 
 
The proposed improvement to provide left-turn pockets 
at 2nd Street would involve restriping and transitioning 
in the two city blocks between 1 Street to the north and 
3rd Street to the south. The width of the existing four-
lane Clovis Avenue in this area is approximately 67-
feet so would be adequate to provide for a future five 
lane section (four lanes plus left-turn lane).  
 
Providing protected left-turn on Clovis Avenue is a 
good safety improvement since Clovis Avenue is a 
higher speed four-lane roadway. Permissive left-turn 
should work well on the side street since it involves much 

lighter traffic.  
 
Pedestrian Trail Crossing 
It is our understanding that a 
grade-separated crossing as shown 
in Exhibit 2 at the Clovis Old Town 
Trail and Second Street might be 
contemplated in the future.  
 
Rectangular Rapid Flash Beacons 
(RRFB) as shown in Exhibit 3 can 
enhance safety by reducing crashes 
between vehicles and pedestrians 
at unsignalized intersections and 
mid-block pedestrian crossings by 
increasing driver awareness of 

potential pedestrian conflicts. Several studies5 have shown RRFB to increase yielding to 
pedestrians from 18 percent to 81 percent. This might be a good alternative to 
consider over grade separation.  
 

 
5 "An Analysis of the Effects of Stutter Flash LED Beacons to Increase Yielding to Pedestrians Using Multilane 
Crosswalks," & "The Use of Stutter Flash LED Beacons to Increase Yielding to Pedestrians at Crosswalks," 
presented at the Transportation Research Board Annual Meeting in 2008 

Exhibit 1: Clovis Ave/2nd St  
Recommended Improvement 

Exhibit 2: Clovis Old Town Trail and 2nd St Grade-
Separated Crossing Illustration 

Exhibit 3: RRFB 

~ ....... AMG ADVANCED 
MOBILITY 
GROUP 

145

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Traffic Impact Study for Proposed DeBenedetto Project in Clovis, CA August 6, 2019  

   26 
 

QUEUING ANALYSIS 

The results of the Near-Term plus Project Conditions queuing analysis are summarized in Table 11, and 
queue analysis sheets are provided in Appendix I. The calculated 95th Percentile queues do not exceed 
the existing storage capacity at the study intersections except for the following: 

• Clovis Ave/Sierra Ave – eastbound left-turn during both peak hours and northbound left-turn 
during the PM peak hour 

• Clovis Ave/3rd St – westbound left-turn during both peak hours 
• Clovis Ave/5th St – eastbound left-turn during both peak hours and westbound left-turn during the 

AM peak hour 
• Veterans Pkwy/5th St – eastbound left-turn during the AM peak hour 

 
Table 11: Queuing Analysis Summary – Near-Term plus Project Conditions 

Intersection Turning 
Movement 

Existing 
Storage 
Length 

(ft) 

Near-Term 
Conditions (ft) 

Near-Term Plus 
Project Conditions (ft) Change (ft) 

Notes 

AM PM AM PM AM PM 

1. Clovis Ave/Sierra Ave 

EBL 110 118 147 129 136 11 -11 x 
WBL 65 47 24 48 57 1 33 x 
NBL 115 104 129 93 137 -11 8 x 
SBL 155 46 119 31 102 -15 -17 x 

2. Clovis Ave/2nd St 

EBL 300 37 50 44 46 7 -4 x * L 
WBL 130 33 65 56 77 23 12 x * L 
NBL 400 41 42 27 32 -14 -10 x * L 
SBL 470 9 74 31 116 22 42 x * L 

3. Clovis Ave/3rd St 

EBL 50 39 71 30 59 -9 -12 x 
WBL 75 69 91 78 85 9 -6 x 
NBL 410 159 283 157 295 -2 12 x * L 
SBL 400 198 305 197 253 -1 -52 x * L 

4. Veterans Pkwy/3rd St 

EBL 375 0 20 23 10 23 -10 x * L 
WBL 330 71 27 41 28 -30 1 x * L 
NBL 410 67 62 65 66 -2 4 x * L 
SBL - 31 72 44 65 13 -7 x * 

5. Clovis Ave/4th St 

EBL 310 52 77 61 62 9 -15 x * L 
WBL 130 62 44 49 51 -13 7 x * L 
NBL 410 135 240 138 248 3 8 x * L 
SBL 410 149 317 141 259 -8 -58 x * L 

6. Clovis Ave/5th St 

EBL 70 75 116 85 106 10 -10 x 
WBL 150 170 117 199 126 29 9 x 
NBL 500 219 310 189 282 -30 -28 x * L 
SBL 410 181 384 186 389 5 5 x * L 

7. Veterans Pkwy/5th St 

EBL 50 53 52 53 37 0 -15 x 
WBL 100 32 30 40 25 8 -5 x 
NBL - 56 34 54 30 -2 -4 x * 
SBL 410 98 72 78 67 -20 -5 x * 

Notes: Bold represents 95th Percentile queues that exceed available storage 
x = From SimTraffic rather than from Synchro 

 * = No turn bay available, queue length given for left-turning lane on approach 
 L = Storage length identified using distance between adjacent intersections 
  

~ ....... AMG ADVANCED 
MOBILITY 
GROUP 

146

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#1
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 S

ie
rra

 A
ve

69 (75)
399 (738)

11 (19)

40
 (2

5)
95

 (5
5)

8 
(1

4)

12
2 

(1
50

)
95

 (8
8)

59
 (1

05
)

94 (143)
372 (560)
24 (63)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#5
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 4

th
 A

ve

8 (17)
363 (619)

13 (16)20
 (1

6)
6 

(4
)

11
 (1

1)
12

 (3
5)

5 
(1

)
17

 (4
6)

13 (38)
363 (557)
5 (9)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#2
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 2

nd
 A

ve

16 (18)
479 (765)

17 (40)

30
 (5

5)
2 

(4
)

15
 (4

0)

8 
(1

0)
2 

(3
)

12
 (1

1)
12 (18)
402 (588)
23 (60)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#6
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 5

th
 A

ve

64 (75)
322 (542)

 79 (57)

46
 (5

0)
23

1 
(1

80
)

11
0 

(7
1)

29
 (8

1)
17

8 
(2

54
)

  1
7 

(4
4)32 (90)

322 (450)
30 (63)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#3
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 3

rd
 A

ve

16 (13)
325 (636)

56 (46)

11
9 

(1
55

)
13

4 
(9

9)
38

 (4
5)

9 
(2

8)
65

 (8
1)

13
 (2

5)

11 (21)
335 (519)
104 (101)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#7
Ve

te
ra

ns
 P

kw
y 

&
 5

th
 A

ve

13 (1)
18 (1)

60 (10)

89
 (3

6)
26

6 
(2

54
)

38
 (2

3)
57

 (4
1)

22
5 

(3
33

)
22

 (3
)107 (61)

11 (8)
30 (41)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#4
Ve

te
ra

ns
 P

kw
y 

&
 3

rd
 A

ve

49 (48)
13 (32)
65 (25)

23
5 

(2
03

)
7 

(1
7)

63
 (2

2)

16
0 

(1
90

)
11

 (2
8)

70
 (2

0)

14 (27)
8 (35)
6 (18)

LE
G

EN
D

ST
U

D
Y 

IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
O

N
S

1.
 

Cl
ov

is 
Av

e 
&

 S
ie

rra
 A

ve
2.

 
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 2

nd
 A

ve
3.

 
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 3

rd
 A

ve
4.

 
Ve

te
ra

ns
 P

kw
y 

&
 3

rd
 A

ve
5.

 
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 4

th
 A

ve
6.

 
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 5

th
 A

ve
7.

 
Ve

te
ra

ns
 P

kw
y 

&
 5

th
 A

ve

St
ud

y 
In

te
rs

ec
tio

n

St
op

 C
on

tro
l

Si
gn

al
 C

on
tro

l

AM
 (P

M
) P

ea
k 

H
ou

r T
ur

ni
ng

  
M

ov
em

en
t V

ol
um

es
xx

 (x
x)

Pr
oj

ec
t S

ite

St
ud

y 
In

te
rs

ec
tio

n

LE
GE

N
D

FI
GU

RE
 1

Vi
cin

ity
 M

ap
Tr

affi
  c

 Im
pa

ct
 A

na
ly

sis
 fo

r t
he

 D
eB

en
ed

et
to

 P
ro

jec
t

Ci
ty

 o
f C

lo
vis

N
N

O
T 

TO
 S

CA
LE

1

2 3
4

5 6
7

N
N

O
T 

TO
 S

CA
LE

FI
G

U
RE

 6
N

ea
r-

Te
rm

 P
lu

s P
ro

je
ct

 V
ol

um
es

Tr
affi

c 
Im

pa
ct

 A
na

ly
sis

 fo
r t

he
 D

eB
en

ed
et

to
 P

ro
je

ct
 

Ci
ty

 o
f C

lo
vi

s

• 
~i.. +-
-+ , }' 

).~ ~ ~.,... ~ i.. 
£ -, }' -+ ~ 

• 
+ ~ ~~ • .,... 
--4 t . --4 
~ ~ 

L 
-+-).~ -+- +_ F 

J -, tr"' --4-
__. 

~ __. 
~ 

• 
+-, }' 

~ ~.,... , }' 

~ _.,... 
-+ 

--~ 
Russell Ave 

ila Ave 

w 

-'< 
onAve ~ 

~ 

i 
~ 

Cole Ave 

Phillip Ave 

in a,vs,,01.J . 
lrs!~O/J 

1n 
;!! 

Pollasky Ave 

II\V 4µ0MpooM N Woodworth Ave 

($' 

N Dewitt Ave Dewitt Ave 
Q) 

~ 
<O 

~ 
U) 

<M\fpJo 
~~o 

Osmun Ave 

1n 

~ 

1n 
~ 
C 

N 

Music Ave 

0 
w >-
u ~ c.. 
z:::!::, 

"'O 0 a: 
<::!:I.? 

C!) 

:E: c::c 

Russell Ave • 
1i5 
~ 
M 

a1o.va100 

Baron Ave 

Osmun Ave 

1n 
;:; 

. eterans Pkwy~ 

1i5 

. lovisA~ 

~ 

1n 1n 
;\l ~ 

Oxford Ave 

Baron Ave 

1i5 
_,:: 

in 

• /5 
0 
w 
~ 

• lovisAve 
~ 

Pollasky Ave 

~ Woodwo 
1i5 < 
_,:: ] 
in '§ 

m Dewitt Ave 

"' ~ 
-0 

.1'i 
:, 

1n co Oxford Av 
;7i 

147

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Traffic Impact Study for Proposed DeBenedetto Project in Clovis, CA August 6, 2019  

   28 
 

9.0 2039 CUMULATIVE NO PROJECT (INCLUDE LANDMARK 
COMMONS CIVIC CENTER NORTH) TRAFFIC CONDITION 

This section presents the assessment of potential transportation impact for the 2039 Cumulative No Project 
(include Landmark Commons Civic Center North) Condition.  

INTERSECTION LEVEL OF SERVICE ANALYSIS 

Figure 7 shows the 2039 Cumulative No Project (include Landmark Commons Civic Center North) 
Conditions peak hour turning movement volumes and lane geometry which are based on volumes contained 
in the report Traffic Impact Study Proposed Clovis Civic Center North Project, California dated September 
9, 2016.  

Table 12 shows the LOS under Near-Term Conditions. All intersections operate at unacceptable LOS E or 
worse except the intersections of Clovis Ave/Sierra Ave and Clovis Ave/4th St, and Clovis Ave/3rd St 
during the AM peak hour.  
 
Detailed level of service worksheets is provided in Appendix G. 

Table 12: 2039 Cumulative No Project Intersection LOS 
 

Intersection Existing 
Control 

AM PM 
 Delay LOS Delay LOS 

1 Clovis Ave/Sierra Ave Signal 28.6 C 32 C 
2 Clovis Ave/2nd St Two-Way Stop  38.7 E 1463 F 
3 Clovis Ave/3rd St Signal 41.7 D 59 E 
4 Veterans Pkwy/3rd St One-Way Stop  49.7 E 52 F 
5 Clovis Ave/4th St Signal 23.6 C 35 C 
6 Clovis Ave/5th St Signal 58.9 E 74 E 
7 Veterans Pkwy/5th St Two-Way Stop  609.0 F 35 E 

 

The report for the City’s approved Landmark Commons Civic Center North project recommended the 
following improvements for impacted intersections as follows: 
Veterans Pkwy/3rd Street – All Way Stop control and a roundabout were evaluated but not considered 
solution could potentially result in queues extending into the intersection of Clovis Avenue and Third Street. 
The report concluded there appears to be no feasible mitigation. 

Clovis Avenue/5th Street - The intersection has been constructed to its maximum configuration with little to 
no opportunity to widen the intersection. The report concluded there appears to be no feasible mitigation. 

Veterans Way and 5th Street - All Way Stop control and a roundabout were evaluated but not considered 
solution could potentially result in queues extending into the intersection of Clovis Avenue and Fifth Street. 
The report concluded there appears to be no feasible mitigation. 

 

~ ....... AMG ADVANCED 
MOBILITY 
GROUP 

148

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Traffic Impact Study for Proposed DeBenedetto Project in Clovis, CA August 6, 2019  

   29 
 

Overall Corridor Signal Operations 
Our review of traffic operations of study intersections along Clovis Avenue is that most of the signals are 
split phasing. The only existing signal with protected phasing on Clovis Avenue is at Sierra Avenue. The 
intersections at 3rd Street, 4th Street and 5th Street operate with split phasing. The City should consider 
removing split phasing and the corridor could improve significantly.  
 
AMG recommends using current MUTCD standard timings for Min Green, Yellow, and Ped Clearance.  
 

QUEUING ANALYSIS 

The results of the Cumulative Conditions queuing analysis are summarized in Table 13, and queue analysis 
sheets are provided in Appendix I. The calculated 95th Percentile queues do not exceed the existing 
storage capacity at the study intersections except for the following: 

• Clovis Ave/Sierra Ave – eastbound and northbound left-turn during both peak hours 
• Clovis Ave/3rd St – eastbound and westbound left-turn during both peak hours and southbound 

left during the PM peak hour 
• Clovis Ave/4th St – southbound left-turn during the PM peak hour 
• Clovis Ave/5th St – eastbound and westbound left-turn during both peak hours and southbound 

left-turn during the PM peak hour 
• Veterans Pkwy/5th St – eastbound left-turn during both peak hours 

  

~ ....... AMG ADVANCED 
MOBILITY 
GROUP 

149

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Traffic Impact Study for Proposed DeBenedetto Project in Clovis, CA August 6, 2019  

   30 
 

Table 13: Queuing Analysis Summary – Cumulative Conditions 

Intersection Turning Movement Existing Storage 
Length (ft) AM Queue (ft) PM Queue (ft) Notes 

1. Clovis Ave/Sierra Ave 

EBL 110 135 141 x 
WBL 65 39 29 x 
NBL 115 148 158 x 
SBL 155 121 152 x 

2. Clovis Ave/2nd St 

EBL 300 49 120 x * L 
WBL 130 44 181 x * L 
NBL 400 33 37 x * L 
SBL 470 44 416 x * L 

3. Clovis Ave/3rd St 

EBL 50 58 77 x 
WBL 75 85 110 x 
NBL 410 235 375 x * L 
SBL 400 322 478 x * L 

4. Veterans Pkwy/3rd St 

EBL 375 21 15 x * L 
WBL 330 72 97 x * L 
NBL 410 107 78 x * L 
SBL 0 40 64 x * 

5. Clovis Ave/4th St 

EBL 310 56 93 x * L 
WBL 130 52 43 x * L 
NBL 410 212 291 x * L 
SBL 410 221 471 x * L 

6. Clovis Ave/5th St 

EBL 70 90 107 x 
WBL 150 186 181 x 
NBL 500 257 400 x * L 
SBL 410 322 452 x * L 

7. Veterans Pkwy/5th St 

EBL 50 60 52 x 
WBL 100 46 38 x 
NBL 0 75 41 x * 
SBL 410 141 61 x * 

Notes: Bold represents 95th Percentile queues that exceed available storage 
x = From SimTraffic rather than from Synchro 

 * = No turn bay available, queue length given for left-turning lane on approach 
 L = Storage length identified using distance between adjacent intersections 
 
  

~ ....... AMG ADVANCED 
MOBILITY 
GROUP 

150

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#1
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 S

ie
rra

 A
ve

119 (127)
531 (851)

13 (23)

47
 (2

9)
11

9 
(6

9)
11

 (1
8)

15
1 

(1
50

)
10

9 
(1

11
)

15
4 

(2
25

)

128 (165)
546 (638)
30 (75)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#5
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 4

th
 A

ve

10 (21)
478 (700)

16 (20)25
 (2

0)
8 

(5
)

14
 (1

4)
16

 (4
3)

6 
(1

)
21

 (5
8)

15 (46)
552 (676)
6 (11)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#2
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 2

nd
 A

ve

20 (23)
630 (934)

22 (38)

9 
(4

8)
3 

(5
)

9 
(4

1)

10
 (1

3)
3 

(3
)

15
 (1

4)
15 (23)
668 (788)
22 (42)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#6
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 5

th
 A

ve

68 (91)
401 (607)

97 (67)

62
 (6

0)
25

8 
(2

34
)

13
1 

(7
8)

43
 (8

2)
22

5 
(2

86
)

24
 (5

5)37 (120)
510 (521)
43 (86)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#3
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 3

rd
 A

ve

20 (16)
454 (718)

66 (45)

18
6 

(2
34

)
17

1 
(1

26
)

37
 (4

1)

22
 (3

8)
81

 (1
19

)
13

 (3
1)

26 (33)
521 (661)
164 (151)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#7
Ve

te
ra

ns
 P

kw
y 

&
 5

th
 A

ve

16 (1)
23 (1)

73 (12)

11
2 

(4
2)

33
4 

(3
14

)
48

 (2
9)

73
 (5

1)
28

2 
(4

13
)

28
 (4

)136 (76)
14 (10)
36 (48)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#4
Ve

te
ra

ns
 P

kw
y 

&
 3

rd
 A

ve

62 (60)
19 (36)
79 (31)

29
5 

(2
50

)
10

 (1
6)

79
 (2

8)

20
1 

(2
35

)
13

 (2
2)

88
 (2

5)

8 (25)
10 (40)
3 (19)

LE
G

EN
D

ST
U

D
Y 

IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
O

N
S

1.
 

Cl
ov

is 
Av

e 
&

 S
ie

rra
 A

ve
2.

 
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 2

nd
 A

ve
3.

 
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 3

rd
 A

ve
4.

 
Ve

te
ra

ns
 P

kw
y 

&
 3

rd
 A

ve
5.

 
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 4

th
 A

ve
6.

 
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 5

th
 A

ve
7.

 
Ve

te
ra

ns
 P

kw
y 

&
 5

th
 A

ve

St
ud

y 
In

te
rs

ec
tio

n

St
op

 C
on

tro
l

Si
gn

al
 C

on
tro

l

AM
 (P

M
) P

ea
k 

H
ou

r T
ur

ni
ng

  
M

ov
em

en
t V

ol
um

es
xx

 (x
x)

Pr
oj

ec
t S

ite

St
ud

y 
In

te
rs

ec
tio

n

LE
GE

N
D

FI
GU

RE
 1

Vi
cin

ity
 M

ap
Tr

affi
  c

 Im
pa

ct
 A

na
ly

sis
 fo

r t
he

 D
eB

en
ed

et
to

 P
ro

jec
t

Ci
ty

 o
f C

lo
vis

N
N

O
T 

TO
 S

CA
LE

1

2 3
4

5 6
7

N
N

O
T 

TO
 S

CA
LE

FI
G

U
RE

 7
20

39
 C

um
ul

at
iv

e 
Vo

lu
m

es
Tr

affi
c 

Im
pa

ct
 A

na
ly

sis
 fo

r t
he

 D
eB

en
ed

et
to

 P
ro

je
ct

 
Ci

ty
 o

f C
lo

vi
s

• 
~i.. +-
-+ , }' 

• ).~ ~ +-~.,... ~ i.. 
£ -, }' -+ , }' 
~ 

• 
+ ~ ~~ 

~ • .,... ~.,... 
--4 t . --4 , }' 
~ ~ 

L 
-+-

~ ).~ -+- +_ F _.,... 
J -, tr"' --4--+ __. 

~ __. 
~ 

--~ 
In 
;ll 

on Ave 

. 
~ 

J 
"' oh'</SIAOIJ A{A_ 

in 
"E 
"' 

aA'tf.llJO:J 

Baron Ave 

Osmun Ave 

In 
,s 

. eterans Pkw; 
iii 
'E 

RussellAYe 

en 
~ 

Music Ave 

• 
Baron Ave 

• 

0 
w >-
u ~ c.. 
z:::!::, 

"'O 0 a: 
<::!:I.? 

C!) 

:E: c::c 

~ fy".IAOJ:J 

In 
e:lovlsA- • lovisAve 

(S' 

Pollasky A,e ;;;;;;;;;;;;;;; :;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;:: 

\'/oodworth Ave 

N Dewitt Ave Dewitt Ave J"---'===== 
"' ~ 
e ., 
en 

,s ~. 
Po11cisky _A;_ve 

l :. Woodwo 

i 
a, Oei.YitlA\IE' 

0 a. 
-0 
]i 
"3 
al Oxford Av 

151

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Traffic Impact Study for Proposed DeBenedetto Project in Clovis, CA August 6, 2019  

   32 
 

10.0 2039 CUMULATIVE PLUS PROPOSED DEBENEDETTO PROJECT 
TRAFFIC CONDITION 

This section presents the assessment of potential transportation impact for the 2039 Cumulative plus 
Proposed DeBenedetto Project Condition.  

INTERSECTION LEVEL OF SERVICE ANALYSIS 

Figure 8 shows the 2039 Cumulative plus Proposed DeBenedetto Project peak hour turning movement 
volumes and lane geometry. Table 14 shows the LOS under 2039 Cumulative plus Proposed DeBenedetto 
Project Conditions. Similar to the base 2039 Cumulative Condition, all intersections operate at 
unacceptable LOS E or worse except the intersections of Clovis Ave/Sierra Ave and Clovis Ave/4th St, and 
Clovis Ave/3rd St during the AM peak hour.  

Detailed level of service worksheets is provided in Appendix H. 

Table 14: 2039 Cumulative plus DeBenedetto Project Intersection LOS 
  Cumulative  Cumulative plus Project  
 

Intersection 
AM PM 

Existing Control 
AM PM Diff 

 Delay LOS Delay LOS Delay LOS Delay LOS AM PM 

1 Clovis Ave/Sierra Ave 28.6 C 32 C Signal 28.8 C 32 C 0.2 0.2 

2 Clovis Ave/2nd St 38.7 E 1463 F Two-Way Stop  46.8 E 2113 F 8.1 651 

3 Clovis Ave/3rd St 41.7 D 59 E Signal 42.1 D 60 E 0.4 1.7 

4 Veterans Pkwy/3rd St 49.7 E 52 F One-Way Stop  66.0 F 79 F 16.3 27.6 

5 Clovis Ave/4th St 23.6 C 35 C Signal 23.9 C 36 D 0.3 0.9 

6 Clovis Ave/5th St 58.9 E 74 E Signal 60.6 E 78 E 1.7 3.5 

7 Veterans Pkwy/5th St 609.0 F 35 E Two-Way Stop  644.3 F 37 E 35.3 1.8 

 

PEAK HOUR SIGNAL WARRANT 

AMG completed a peak hour traffic signal warrant analysis for the intersection of Clovis Ave/2nd St which 
is a Two-Way stop controlled under existing conditions. Using the peak hour turning movement volumes, the 
CAMUTCD criteria were evaluated for Warrant 3, Peak Hour.  

Based on the projected traffic volumes under 2039 Cumulative plus Proposed DeBenedetto Project 
scenario, a signal is warranted considering peak hour volumes. Since Clovis Ave/2nd St is approximately 
500 feet to the north of signalized intersections of Clovis Ave/3rd St and nearly 1,000 feet to the south of 
Clovis Ave/Sierra Ave, the City might consider signal installation in order to provide the necessary degree 
of platooning and vehicle progressive operation along the corridor. The rationale is provided in MUTCD 
Warrant 6, Coordinated Signal System. The intersection of Clovis Ave/2nd St would improve to LOS D or 
better after signal improvement. See Appendix H for peak hour signal warrant analysis worksheet. 

~ ....... AMG ADVANCED 
MOBILITY 
GROUP 

152

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Traffic Impact Study for Proposed DeBenedetto Project in Clovis, CA August 6, 2019  

   33 
 

QUEUING ANALYSIS 

The results of the Cumulative plus Project Conditions queuing analysis are summarized in Table 15, and 
queue analysis sheets are provided in Appendix I. The calculated 95th Percentile queues do not exceed 
the existing storage capacity at the study intersections except for the following: 

• Clovis Ave/Sierra Ave – eastbound and northbound left-turn during both peak hours 
• Clovis Ave/3rd St – eastbound and westbound left-turn during both peak hours 
• Clovis Ave/5th St – eastbound and westbound left-turn during both peak hours and southbound 

left-turn during the PM peak hour 
• Veterans Pkwy/5th St – eastbound left-turn during both the AM peak hour 

 
Table 15: Queuing Analysis Summary – Cumulative plus Project Conditions 

Intersection Turning 
Movement 

Existing 
Storage 
Length 

(ft) 

Cumulative 
Conditions (ft) 

Cumulative Plus 
Project Conditions (ft) Change (ft) 

Notes 

AM PM AM PM AM PM 

1. Clovis Ave/Sierra Ave 

EBL 110 135 141 122 135 -13 -6 x 
WBL 65 39 29 19 57 -20 28 x 
NBL 115 148 158 137 161 -11 3 x 
SBL 155 121 152 94 154 -27 2 x 

2. Clovis Ave/2nd St 

EBL 300 49 120 52 94 3 -26 x * L 
WBL 130 44 181 50 122 6 -59 x * L 
NBL 400 33 37 74 85 41 48 x * L 
SBL 470 44 416 71 98 27 -318 x * L 

3. Clovis Ave/3rd St 

EBL 50 58 77 52 82 -6 5 x 
WBL 75 85 110 98 81 13 -29 x 
NBL 410 235 375 246 361 11 -14 x * L 
SBL 400 322 478 252 389 -70 -89 x * L 

4. Veterans Pkwy/3rd St 

EBL 375 21 15 14 30 -7 15 x * L 
WBL 330 72 97 70 40 -2 -57 x * L 
NBL 410 107 78 74 87 -33 9 x * L 
SBL - 40 64 48 59 8 -5 x * 

5. Clovis Ave/4th St 

EBL 310 56 93 56 72  -21 x * L 
WBL 130 52 43 71 58 19 15 x * L 
NBL 410 212 291 196 305 -16 14 x * L 
SBL 410 221 471 215 325 -6 -146 x * L 

6. Clovis Ave/5th St 

EBL 70 90 107 92 114 2 7 x 
WBL 150 186 181 188 156 2 -25 x 
NBL 500 257 400 243 389 -14 -11 x * L 
SBL 410 322 452 307 497 -15 45 x * L 

7. Veterans Pkwy/5th St 

EBL 50 60 52 65 39 5 -13 x 
WBL 100 46 38 39 36 -7 -2 x 
NBL - 75 41 100 36 25 -5 x * 
SBL 410 141 61 136 96 -5 35 x * 

Notes: Bold represents 95th Percentile queues that exceed available storage 
x = From SimTraffic rather than from Synchro 

 * = No turn bay available, queue length given for left-turning lane on approach 
 L = Storage length identified using distance between adjacent intersections 
 
  

~ ....... AMG ADVANCED 
MOBILITY 
GROUP 

153

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#1
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 S

ie
rra

 A
ve

127 (132)
547 (861)

13 (23)

47
 (2

9)
11

9 
(6

9)
11

 (1
8)

15
1 

(1
50

)
10

9 
(1

11
)

15
7 

(2
34

)

128 (165)
552 (654)
30 (75)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#5
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 4

th
 A

ve

10 (21)
484 (718)

16 (20)25
 (2

0)
8 

(5
)

14
 (1

4)
16

 (4
3)

6 
(1

)
21

 (5
8)

15 (46)
570 (688)
6 (11)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#2
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 2

nd
 A

ve

20 (23)
630 (934)

25 (46)

33
 (6

3)
3 

(5
)

18
 (4

7)

10
 (1

3)
3 

(3
)

15
 (1

4)
15 (23)
668 (788)
31 (67)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#6
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 5

th
 A

ve

68 (91)
405 (618)

97 (67)

62
 (6

0)
25

8 
(2

34
)

13
1 

(7
8)

45
 (8

9)
22

5 
(2

86
)

24
 (5

5)44 (125)
521 (528)
43 (86)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#3
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 3

rd
 A

ve

20 (16)
457 (726)

69 (55)

18
6 

(2
34

)
17

1 
(1

26
)

46
 (4

7)

22
 (3

8)
81

 (1
19

)
13

 (3
1)

26 (33)
530 (667)
164 (151)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#7
Ve

te
ra

ns
 P

kw
y 

&
 5

th
 A

ve

16 (1)
23 (1)

73 (12)

11
3 

(4
4)

33
4 

(3
14

)
48

 (2
9)

73
 (5

1)
28

2 
(4

13
)

28
 (4

)136 (76)
14 (10)
38 (50)

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

#4
Ve

te
ra

ns
 P

kw
y 

&
 3

rd
 A

ve

62 (60)
20 (38)
79 (31)

29
5 

(2
50

)
11

 (2
0)

79
 (2

8)

20
1 

(2
35

)
16

 (3
2)

88
 (2

5)

17 (31)
12 (42)
7 (21)

LE
G

EN
D

ST
U

D
Y 

IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
O

N
S

1.
 

Cl
ov

is 
Av

e 
&

 S
ie

rra
 A

ve
2.

 
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 2

nd
 A

ve
3.

 
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 3

rd
 A

ve
4.

 
Ve

te
ra

ns
 P

kw
y 

&
 3

rd
 A

ve
5.

 
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 4

th
 A

ve
6.

 
Cl

ov
is 

Av
e 

&
 5

th
 A

ve
7.

 
Ve

te
ra

ns
 P

kw
y 

&
 5

th
 A

ve

St
ud

y 
In

te
rs

ec
tio

n

St
op

 C
on

tro
l

Si
gn

al
 C

on
tro

l

AM
 (P

M
) P

ea
k 

H
ou

r T
ur

ni
ng

  
M

ov
em

en
t V

ol
um

es
xx

 (x
x)

Pr
oj

ec
t S

ite

St
ud

y 
In

te
rs

ec
tio

n

LE
GE

N
D

FI
GU

RE
 1

Vi
cin

ity
 M

ap
Tr

affi
  c

 Im
pa

ct
 A

na
ly

sis
 fo

r t
he

 D
eB

en
ed

et
to

 P
ro

jec
t

Ci
ty

 o
f C

lo
vis

N
N

O
T 

TO
 S

CA
LE

1

2 3
4

5 6
7

N
N

O
T 

TO
 S

CA
LE

FI
G

U
RE

 8
20

39
 C

um
ul

at
iv

e 
Pl

us
 P

ro
je

ct
 V

ol
um

es
Tr

affi
c 

Im
pa

ct
 A

na
ly

sis
 fo

r t
he

 D
eB

en
ed

et
to

 P
ro

je
ct

 
Ci

ty
 o

f C
lo

vi
s

• 
~i.. +-
-+ , }' 

• ).~ ~ +-~.,... ~ i.. 
£ -, }' -+ , }' 
~ 

• 
+ ~ ~~ 

~ • .,... ~.,... 
--4 t . --4 , }' 
~ ~ 

L 
-+-

~ ).~ -+- +_ F _.,... 
J -, tr"' --4--+ __. 

~ __. 
~ 

--~ 
In 
;ll 

on Ave 

. 
~ 

J 
"' oh'</SIAOIJ A{A_ 

in 
"E 
"' 

aA'tf.llJO:J 

Baron Ave 

Osmun Ave 

In 
,s 

. eterans Pkw; 
iii 
'E 

RussellAYe 

en 
~ 

Music Ave 

• 
Baron Ave 

• 

0 
w >-
u ~ c.. 
z:::!::, 

"'O 0 a: 
<::!:I.? 

C!) 

:E: c::c 

~ fy".IAOJ:J 

In 
e:lovlsA- • lovisAve 

(S' 

Pollasky A,e ;;;;;;;;;;;;;;; :;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;:: 

\'/oodworth Ave 

N Dewitt Ave Dewitt Ave J"---'===== 
"' ~ 
e ., 
en 

,s ~. 
Po11cisky _A;_ve 

l :. Woodwo 

i 
a, Oei.YitlA\IE' 

0 a. 
-0 
]i 
"3 
al Oxford Av 

154

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Traffic Impact Study for Proposed DeBenedetto Project in Clovis, CA August 6, 2019  

   35 
 

11.0 CONCLUSION 

Based on the results of the analysis, the following is a summary of our findings: 

Existing Traffic Conditions 
• All the intersections operate at acceptable LOS D or better, except the intersection of Veterans 

Parkway/5th Street that operates at LOS F during the AM peak hour.  

Existing plus Proposed DeBenedetto Project Traffic Conditions 
• The project will generate approximately 72 and 88 total trips during the AM and PM peak hours, 

respectively.  
• All intersections operate at acceptable LOS D or better, except the intersection of Veterans 

Parkway/5th Street which will continue to operate at LOS F during the AM peak hour, similar to 
the existing condition.  
 

Near-Term Project Condition.  
• All intersections operate at acceptable LOS D or better except the intersections of Clovis Ave/2nd 

St and Veterans Parkway/5th St. which operate at LOS F.  
• As indicated in the traffic impact study report for the proposed Clovis Civic Center North Project, 

Clovis Ave/2nd St was one of two access points for the City’s Landmark Commons Civic Center 
North Project. 

 
Near-Term plus Proposed DeBenedetto Project Condition.  

• All intersections operate at acceptable LOS except the intersections of Clovis Ave/2nd St and 
Veterans Parkway/5th St. which continues to operate at LOS F.  

• A signal is nearly warranted based on peak hour volumes. The main street volumes are met while 
the minor street volumes on 2nd Street has total volumes of 99 which barely missed the 100 peak 
hour threshold. Since Clovis Ave/2nd St is approximately 500 feet to the north of signalized 
intersections of Clovis Ave/3rd St and nearly 1,000 feet to the south of Clovis Ave/Sierra Ave, the 
City might consider a signal for the intersection in order to provide the necessary degree of 
platooning and provide vehicle progressive operation along the corridor.  

 
2039 Cumulative No Project (include Landmark Commons Civic Center North) Condition 

• All intersections operate at unacceptable LOS E or worse except the intersections of Clovis 
Ave/Sierra Ave and Clovis Ave/4th St, and Clovis Ave/3rd St during the AM peak hour.  

 
2039 Cumulative plus Proposed DeBenedetto Project Condition.  

• Similar to the base 2039 Cumulative Condition, all intersections operate at unacceptable LOS E or 
worse except the intersections of Clovis Ave/Sierra Ave and Clovis Ave/4th St, at Clovis Ave/3rd 
St during the AM peak hour.  

• A signal is warranted at Clovis Ave/2nd St based on peak hour volumes. The City might consider a 
signal for the intersection in order to provide the necessary degree of platooning and provide 
vehicle progressive operation along the corridor.  

  

~ ....... AMG ADVANCED 
MOBILITY 
GROUP 

155

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Traffic Impact Study for Proposed DeBenedetto Project in Clovis, CA August 6, 2019  

   36 
 

REFERENCES 

1. Traffic Impact Study Proposed Clovis Civic Center North Project - North of the Intersection of Third 
Street and Veterans Way, Clovis, California dated September 9, 2016  

2. Landmark Commons Civic Center North EIR report dated April 2018.  
 

 

Advanced Mobility Group 

Christopher Thnay, PE, AICP     Project Manager 
Christopher Higbee, PE      Project Engineer 
Michael Ohnemus, AICP      Project Planner 
Christina Ramos       Senior Project Analyst 

Persons Consulted 

Mike Harrison       City Engineer, City of Clovis  
 
 

~ ....... AMG ADVANCED 
MOBILITY 
GROUP 

156

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY FOR PROPOSED DEBENEDETTO DEVELOPMENT PROJECT IN THE CITY OF 
CLOVIS, CALIFORNIA 

Appendix A  Traffic Volume Counts  
August 6, 2019 

  A.1 
 

 TRAFFIC VOLUME COUNTS 

 

  

r-? ---AMG 
ADV .... CEO 
M08IUTT 
GROUP 

Appendix A 

157

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY FOR PROPOSED DEBENEDETTO DEVELOPMENT PROJECT IN THE CITY OF 
CLOVIS, CALIFORNIA 

Appendix B  Intersection LOS Analysis: Existing Conditions LOS Calculation Sheets  
August 6, 2019 

  B.2 
 

 INTERSECTION LOS ANALYSIS: EXISTING CONDITIONS 
LOS CALCULATION SHEETS 

  

Appendix B 

~ ----
AMG ADVANCED 

MOelLITY 
CROUP 

158

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY FOR PROPOSED DEBENEDETTO DEVELOPMENT PROJECT IN THE CITY OF 
CLOVIS, CALIFORNIA 

Appendix C  Intersection LOS Analysis: Existing plus project Conditions LOS Calculation Sheets  
August 6, 2019 

  C.3 
 

 INTERSECTION LOS ANALYSIS: EXISTING PLUS PROJECT 
CONDITIONS LOS CALCULATION SHEETS 

  

Appendix C 

~ ----
AMG ADVANCED 

MOelLITY 
CROUP 

159

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY FOR PROPOSED DEBENEDETTO DEVELOPMENT PROJECT IN THE CITY OF 
CLOVIS, CALIFORNIA 

Appendix D  Intersection Analysis: near term lOS Calculation Sheets  
August 6, 2019 

  D.4 
 

 INTERSECTION ANALYSIS: NEAR TERM LOS 
CALCULATION SHEETS 

  

Appendix D 

~ ----
AMG ADVANCED 

MOelLITY 
CROUP 

160

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY FOR PROPOSED DEBENEDETTO DEVELOPMENT PROJECT IN THE CITY OF 
CLOVIS, CALIFORNIA 

Appendix E  Intersection Analysis: near term plus project lOS Calculation Sheets  
August 6, 2019 

  E.5 
 

 INTERSECTION ANALYSIS: NEAR TERM PLUS PROJECT 
LOS CALCULATION SHEETS 

  

Appendix E 

~ ----
AMG ADVANCED 

MOelLITY 
CROUP 

161

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY FOR PROPOSED DEBENEDETTO DEVELOPMENT PROJECT IN THE CITY OF 
CLOVIS, CALIFORNIA 

Appendix F  Intersection Analysis: signal warrants  
August 6, 2019 

  F.6 
 

 INTERSECTION ANALYSIS: SIGNAL WARRANTS  

  

Appendix F 

~ ----
AMG ADVANCED 

MOelLITY 
CROUP 

162

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY FOR PROPOSED DEBENEDETTO DEVELOPMENT PROJECT IN THE CITY OF 
CLOVIS, CALIFORNIA 

Appendix G  Intersection Analysis: cumulative no project lOS Calculation Sheets  
August 6, 2019 

  G.7 
 

 INTERSECTION ANALYSIS: CUMULATIVE NO PROJECT 
LOS CALCULATION SHEETS 

  

Appendix G 

~ ----
AMG ADVANCED 

MOelLITY 
CROUP 

163

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY FOR PROPOSED DEBENEDETTO DEVELOPMENT PROJECT IN THE CITY OF 
CLOVIS, CALIFORNIA 

Appendix H  Intersection Analysis: cumulative plus project lOS Calculation Sheets  
August 6, 2019 

  H.8 
 

 INTERSECTION ANALYSIS: CUMULATIVE PLUS PROJECT 
LOS CALCULATION SHEETS 

  

Appendix H 

~ ----
AMG ADVANCED 

MOelLITY 
CROUP 

164

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY FOR PROPOSED DEBENEDETTO DEVELOPMENT PROJECT IN THE CITY OF 
CLOVIS, CALIFORNIA 

Appendix I  Intersection Queuing Analysis Worksheets  
August 6, 2019 

  I.9 
 

 INTERSECTION QUEUING ANALYSIS WORKSHEETS 

 

 

Appendix I 

~ ----
AMG ADVANCED 

MOelLITY 
CROUP 

165

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



�

��

�

��������	
����������
�
�

�������������������� ��!���  �������"�#$�
�
�

%��$&��'�$&��(�$����#$�����'�)&����*$���$�����+�$������,�-�
�

������.�����'������
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

���������/��0�

1234�56�175829�
:;<<�=263>�?3@AA3�

175829B�1C7265@D2C�E<F:G�
�
�

H�$�0�

I58AJKA@�G<B�G;:F�
�
�

L�M�%�N0�

:FO;<FP;:�

ATTACHMENT 2 166

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



�����������	��	�
�

����

� � �������������������������

���� �!"��
 ##�$%�&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&'(

'�)�!	�$�* ��!�	&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&+(
,-,�.�/012345�--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------6(
,-7�.�/13859:�;5491<2:<3=�--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------6(
,->�.�?:0@A�B15C�C=@�D<E5�/51<3@�-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------F(
,-G�.�?:0@A�?95=C1<34�-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------F(
,-H�.�I<4:�3J�BKK15L<C:<3=4�-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------M(

N�)�!#�����
!O	!�!��	����$!��$!��&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&P(
7-,�.�I5L5Q�3J�?51L<95�-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------R(
7-7�.�S=:51459:<3=�T050<=U�V1<:51<C�--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------,W(
7->�.�D1C=4<:X�Y<9A9Q5X�C=@�/5@54:1<C=�ZC9<Q<:<54-------------------------------------------------------------------,,(

[�)��$���!���	��%
!
�#��\�*���O%�&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&'N(
>-,�.�S=:51459:<3=�B=CQA4<4�]5:̂3@3Q3UA�-----------------------------------------------------------------------------,7(
>-7�.�D1CJJ<9�?<U=CQ�_C11C=:4�-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------,7(
>->�.�?:32�?<U=�_C11C=:4�------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------,>(

�̀)��$�a�����$!�
�&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&'b(
G-,�.�/13859:�D1<2�c5=51C:<3=�-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------,H(
G-7�.�/13859:�D1<2�;<4:1<K0:<3=�C=@�B44<U=E5=:�-------------------------------------------------------------------,6(
G->�.�d5̂<9Q5�]<Q54�D1CL5Q5@�ed]Df�-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------,6(

b�)���!
�!	O���	*!�!�	
�&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&'g(
H-,�.�hi<4:<=U�j3C@kCA�l5:k31m�-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------,M(
H-7�.�hi<4:<=U�D1C=4<:�?51L<95�----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------,R(
H->�.�hi<4:<=U�Y<9A9Q5�ZC9<Q<:<54�-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------7W(
H-G�.�hi<4:<=U�/5@54:1<C=�ZC9<Q<:<54�--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------7W(
H-H�.�hi<4:<=U�D1CJJ<9�d3Q0E54�--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------7W(
H-6�.�hi<4:<=UnV3=@<:<3=4�S=:51459:<3=�Io?�B=CQA4<4�---------------------------------------------------------7,(
H-F�.�hi<4:<=UnV3=@<:<3=4�T050<=U�B=CQA4<4�-----------------------------------------------------------------------7,(

+�)�	��$p��$#��	*���	Op��$#���
��!	���$���!���$�a���!�	
�&&&&&&&&&&N[(
6-,�.�V0E0QC:<L5�/13859:4�-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------7>(
6-7�.�YC45Q<=5�IC=5�V3=J<U01C:<3=4�C=@�S=:51459:<3=�V3=:13Q----------------------------------------------7>(
6->�.�YC45Q<=5�l5C1nD51E�D1CJJ<9�d3Q0E54�-------------------------------------------------------------------------7>(
6-G�.�D1CJJ<9�]3@5Q<=U�C=@�YC45Q<=5�7W>R�D1CJJ<9�d3Q0E54�-----------------------------------------------7>(

q�)�%��$�Nr[P�	�p�$�a������	*!�!�	
��	��%
�
�&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&Ǹ(
F-,�.�s5C1�7W>R�l3n/13859:�S=:51459:<3=�Io?�B=CQA4<4�------------------------------------------------------7G(
F-7�.�s5C1�7W>R�l3n/13859:�V3=@<:<3=4�T050<=U�B=CQA4<4�-------------------------------------------------7G(

g�)���!
�!	Op�� 
p�$�a������	*!�!�	
��	��%
�
�&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&N+(
M-,�.�hi<4:<=Un/Q04n/13859:�IC=5�V3=J<U01C:<3=4�C=@�S=:51459:<3=�V3=:13Q�-------------------------76(
M-7�.�hi<4:<=Un/Q04n/13859:�D1CJJ<9�d3Q0E54�-----------------------------------------------------------------------76(
M->�.�hi<4:<=Un/Q04n/13859:�S=:51459:<3=�Io?�B=CQA4<4�-------------------------------------------------------76(
M-G�.�hi<4:<=Un/Q04n/13859:�V3=@<:<3=4�T050<=U�B=CQA4<4�---------------------------------------------------7F(
M-H�.�D1C=4<:X�Y<9A9Q5X�C=@�/5@54:1<C=�ZC9<Q<:<54-------------------------------------------------------------------7M(
M-6�.�hi<4:<=Un/Q04n/13859:�V3=@<:<3=4�n�SE2C9:4�C=@�]<:<UC:<3=�]5C40154�-----------------------7M(

167

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



�����������	��	�
�����������

�����

� � ��������� !����!� �"�#$%�

&�'�	��()��(*�+,�-)�(�.������	/,�,�	
��	��0
�
�1111111111111111111111111111111112&3
4567879:;<=>:<?7@ABC=D<EF:GB7H;I:7JEIKALM<;BAEIN7;IO7PIB:<N:GBAEI7JEIB<EQ755555555555555555555R43
45R7879:;<=>:<?7@ABC=D<EF:GB7><;KKAG7SEQM?:N7555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555R43
45T7879:;<=>:<?7@ABC=D<EF:GB7PIB:<N:GBAEI7HUV7WI;QXNAN755555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555R43
45Y7879:;<=>:<?7@ABC=D<EF:GB7JEIOABAEIN7ZM:MAIL7WI;QXNAN7555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555T[3
45\7879:;<=>:<?7@ABC=D<EF:GB7JEIOABAEIN7=7P?];GBN7;IO7̂ABAL;BAEI7̂:;NM<:N7555555555555555555T63

_̀�'�0��(�2̀a&�+,�-)�(�.������	/,�,�	
��	��0
�
�111111111111111111111111111111111111a23
6[56787b:;<7R[T47@ABC=D<EF:GB7H;I:7JEIKALM<;BAEIN7;IO7PIB:<N:GBAEI7JEIB<EQ75555555555555555555TR3
6[5R787b:;<7R[T47@ABC=D<EF:GB7><;KKAG7SEQM?:N755555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555TR3
6[5T787b:;<7R[T47@ABC=D<EF:GB7PIB:<N:GBAEI7HUV7WI;QXNAN75555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555TR3
6[5Y787b:;<7R[T47@ABC=D<EF:GB7JEIOABAEIN7ZM:MAIL7WI;QXNAN755555555555555555555555555555555555555555555TY3
6[5\787b:;<7R[T47@ABC=D<EF:GB7JEIOABAEIN7=7P?];GBN7;IO7̂ABAL;BAEI7̂:;NM<:N755555555555555555T\3

__�'�
,�������

c��,(�d���,�	c��	/���(e,	f�11111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111ag3
6656787VAB:7WGG:NN7;IO7JA<GMQ;BAEI7555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555Th3
665R787D;<iAIL755555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555Th3

_2�'��
�,*���/�2j)-�d(��(���,��k��d*�
�1111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111al3

_a�'���	��d
,�	
��	/�
d**�(0����,*����
��	/�*,�,f��,�	
�11111111111a&3
7

168

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



������������	
��

� � ���������������������

���� ���� �!"�#$%�

��&� '�!(�)*$ �

��+� '!,-"�. !(/0(�!�1 0�

2��� )/13(�!�4/�%�5�0!/�6,!�1 �)(/�( !$7(0�

2�&� 8($/�4(/9�:;#;�$ -�);#;�)($<�=1,/�)/13(�!�4/$>>����1*,9(0�

2�+� ?,!,/(�:;#;�$ -�);#;�)($<�=1,/�)/13(�!�4/$>>����1*,9(0�

@��� AB�0!� 7�C$ (�D1 >�7,/$!�1 0�$ -�. !(/0(�!�1 �D1 !/1*�

@�&� AB�0!� 7�:;#;�$ -�);#;�)($<�=1,/�4/$>>����1*,9(0�

E��� )( -� 7�)/13(�!0�:;#;�$ -�);#;�)($<�=1,/�4/$>>����1*,9(0�

E�&� 8($/�4(/9�81�)/13(�!�:;#;�$ -�);#;�)($<�=1,/�4/$>>����1*,9(0�

E�+� &F+G�81�)/13(�!�:;#;�$ -�);#;�)($<�=1,/�4/$>>����1*,9(0�

H��� AB�0!� 7�)*,0�)/13(�!�:;#;�$ -�);#;�)($<�=1,/�4/$>>����1*,9(0�

G��� 8($/�4(/9�I�!J�)/13(�!�:;#;�$ -�);#;�)($<�=1,/�4/$>>����1*,9(0�

�F��� K($/�&F+G�I�!J�)/13(�!�:;#;�$ -�);#;�)($<�=1,/�4/$>>����1*,9(0�
�

169

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



������������	��


 
 �����������������������


������� !�"�#���$%�&�'#()��*+�'�),�'(-,()-�%$'�./-(0/��(1�2�3/,�'-�),($/-�

������� ��"�#���$%�&�'#()��*+�'�),�'(-,()-�%$'�&(0/��(1�2�3/,�'-�),($/-�

������4 !�5'$6�),�7�+()����'(8�9�/�'�,($/�:�;��'<��'=�

������4 ��5'$6�),�7�+()����'(8�9�/�'�,($/�:�>?,?'��

������@ !�5��A�B$?'�3/,�'-�),($/�C/��D-(-�&?==�'D�:�EF(-,(/0�*$/2(,($/-�

������@ ��G?�?(/0�C/��D-(-�&?==�'D�:�EF(-,(/0�*$/2(,($/-�

������H !�5��A�B$?'�3/,�'-�),($/�C/��D-(-�&?==�'D�:��IJK�;$<5'$6�),�*$/2(,($/-�

������H ��G?�?(/0�C/��D-(-�&?==�'D�:��IJK�;$<5'$6�),�*$/2(,($/-�

������L !�5��A�B$?'�3/,�'-�),($/�C/��D-(-�&?==�'D�:�EF(-,(/0<5�?-<5'$6�),�*$/2(,($/-�

������L ��G?�?(/0�C/��D-(-�&?==�'D�:�EF(-,(/0<5�?-<5'$6�),�*$/2(,($/-�

������K !�5��A�B$?'�3/,�'-�),($/�C/��D-(-�&?==�'D�:�;��'<��'=�M(,+<5'$6�),�*$/2(,($/-�

������K ��G?�?(/0�C/��D-(-�&?==�'D�:�;��'<��'=�M(,+<5'$6�),�*$/2(,($/-�

������!I !�5��A�B$?'�3/,�'-�),($/�C/��D-(-�&?==�'D�:��IJK�M(,+<5'$6�),�*$/2(,($/-�

������!I ��G?�?(/0�C/��D-(-�&?==�'D�:��IJK�M(,+<5'$6�),�*$/2(,($/-�

������!� !�E-,(=�,�2��4<B$?'��'�%%()�7$�?=�-�
�

170

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



�����������	
���	��

  ������������������������

����� !"#�#$%&'(#$!)*'*+#,*!�#-���*'.!%�#

����� !"#/#,*'00!&#1%2�.#3'.'#45��.6#

����� !"#1#/'6�(!��#7�.�*6�&.!%�#��'(+6!6#45��.6#

����� !"#3#8*%9�&.#7�.�*6�&.!%�#��'(+6!6#45��.6#

����� !"#:#,*'00!&#4!;�'(#<'**'�.#��'(+6!6#45��.6#

����� !"#=#>!.!;'.� #7�.�*6�&.!%�#��'(+6!6#45��.6#
#

171

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#��!�

$
$

% % &'(')*+,-./-'')/-.+0)123%

4546789:4;<7==>?@;

ABCD$EFGHHCI$CJKGIE$DELMN$BGD$OPPQ$KFPKGFPM$ER$DELMN$EBP$KREPQECGS$EFGHHCI$CJKGIED$FPSGEPM$ER$
EBP$KFRKRDPM$TGQMJGFU$VRJJRQD$KFRWPIE$CQ$VSRXCDY$VGSCHRFQCGY$BPFPCQGHEPF$FPHPFFPM$ER$GD$EBP$
Z[\]̂_̀abcddef_da\ghhìdijkg̀adlamnodpiqqdr_dmaiqis_nditdaf_dk\_kg\gai]td]hdgtd_tui\]tj_tagqd
CJKGIE$FPKRFE$vwxyz$HRF$EBP${FRWPIE|$$ABP$GQGSNDPD$}PFP$KPFHRFJPM$CQ$IRQHRFJGQIP$}CEB$EBP$
~�������~�������������������������������������$vVCEN$�LCMPSCQPDz$GKKFRXPM$�L�LDE$��Y$����|$

ABP$EFGHHCI$CJKGIE$DELMN$}GD$KFPKGFPM$ER$CQXPDEC�GEP$KREPQECGS$EFGHHCI$CJKGIED$FPDLSECQ�$HFRJ$
EBP${FRWPIE$CQ$OREB$EBP$QPGF�EPFJ$GQM$SRQ��EPFJ$ILJLSGECXP$vNPGF$����z$IRQMCECRQD|$$ABP$
GQGSNDCD$HRILDPD$RQ$EBP$GQECICKGEPM$PHHPIE$RH$XPBCISP$EFGHHCI$RQ$DELMN$GFPG$CQEPFDPIECRQD|$$
�MMCECRQGS$MCDILDDCRQD$FPSGEPM$ER$EFGQDCE$HGICSCECPDY$OCINISP$HGICSCECPDY$GQM$KPMPDEFCGQ$HGICSCECPD$
GFP$CQISLMPM|$$$

ABP${FRWPIE$DCEP$IRXPFD$GKKFR CJGEPSN$DPXPQ$GIFPD$GQM$CD$SRIGEPM$RQ$EBP$QRFEB$DCMP$RH$ABCFM$
¡EFPPE$PGDE$RH$VSRXCD$�XPQLPY$QRFEB$RH$EBP$QRFEB$PQM$RH$¢PEPFGQD$£GN$vHRFJPFSN$¤L�BPD$
�XPQLPz$CQ$VSRXCDY$VGSCHRFQCG|$$ABP${FRWPIE$CD$G$JC PM�LDP$MPXPSRKJPQE$IRQDCDECQ�$RH$
IRJJLQCEN$GQM$KLOSCI$LDPD|$$¡KPICHCIGSSNY$CE$}RLSM$PQEGCS$EBP$MPXPSRKJPQE$RH$GKKFR CJGEPSN$
¥¦Y���$D§LGFP$HPPE$RH$IRJJLQCEN$GQM$RHHCIP$LDPD$EBGE$}RLSM$OP$MPXPSRKPM$CQ$JLSECKSP$KBGDPD$
}CEB$HLSS$OLCSM�RLE$GQECICKGEPM$CQ$����|$$

ABP${FRWPIE$}RLSM$CQISLMP$G$}CMP$XGFCPEN$RH$GJPQCECPD$HRF$FPDCMPQED$GQM$XCDCERFDY$CQISLMCQ�$
EBP$HRSSR}CQ�|$$

©̈¡PQCRF$�IECXCEN$VPQEPF$ª$�Q$GKKFR CJGEPSN$��Y����D§LGFP�HRRE$DPQCRF$GIECXCEN$IPQEPF$
CD$KFRKRDPM$CQ$EBP$QRFEBPGDEPFQ$KRFECRQ$RH$EBP$DCEP$ER$GIIRJJRMGEP$OGQ§LPEY$RHHCIPY$
ISGDDFRRJY$GQM$�NJ$DKGIP|$$

©̈AFGQDCE$VPQEPF$ª$�Q$GKKFR CJGEPSN$«Y¦¥¥�D§LGFP�HRRE$EFGQDCE$OLCSMCQ�$CD$KFRKRDPM$ER$
GIIRJJRMGEP$RHHCIP$DKGIP|$

©̈TCOFGFN$ª$�Q$GKKFR CJGEPSN$��Y����D§LGFP�HRRE$SCOFGFN$CD$KFRKRDPM$CQ$EBP$
DRLEB}PDEPFQ$KRFECRQ$RH$EBP$DCEP|$

ABP$KFCJGFN${FRWPIE$GIIPDD$KRCQE$}CSS$OP$G$QP}$MFCXP}GN$IRQQPIECQ�$ER$ABCFM$¡EFPPE$GE$
¢PEPFGQD$£GN|$$¡PIRQMGFN$GIIPDD$}CSS$OP$KFRXCMPM$XCG$GQ$P CDECQ�$QRFEB�DRLEB$GSSPN$GSRQ�$EBP$
PGDEPFQ$PM�P$RH$EBP${FRWPIE$DCEP$EBGE$ILFFPQESN$IRQQPIED$ER$ABCFM$¡EFPPE$GE$EBP$DRLEB$PQM$GQM$ER$
EBP$¬DJLQ$VCFISP$ILS$MP$DGI$GE$EBP$QRFEB$PQM|$

VRQDEFLIECRQ$BRLFD$RH$GSS$KBGDPD$}RLSM$IRQHRFJ$ER$VCEN$QRCDP$RFMCQGQIPDY$}BCIB$GKKSN$ER$
IRQDEFLIECRQ$GIECXCECPD$RIILFFCQ�$OPE}PPQ$EBP$BRLFD$RH$¦��$G|J|$GQM$¦��$K|J|Y$®RQMGN$
EBFRL�B$̄FCMGNY$GQM$OPE}PPQ$���$G|J|$GQM$���$K|J|$RQ$}PPUPQMD|$$

172

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#����

$
$

% % &'(')*+,-./-'')/-.+0)123%

456$789:;$<=86>76?8<@=7$A6>6$:686>B<=6:$CD76:$@=$856$D=8<?<ED86:$F@G9B6$D=:$:<78><C98<@=$@H$
I>@J6?8$8>DHH<?$<=$?@=79G8D8<@=$A<85$78DHH$@H$856$K<8;$@H$KG@F<7L$$M8DHH$@H$856$KDG<H@>=<D$
N6ED>8B6=8$@H$4>D=7E@>8D8<@=$OKDG8>D=7P$A6>6$DG7@$?@=8D?86:$D=:Q$E6>$D$G6886>$:D86:$
R@F6BC6>$STQ$UTVWQ$KDG8>D=7$:<:$=@8$>6X9678$D=DG;7<7$@H$M8D86$HD?<G<8<67L$$45<7$>6E@>8$<=?G9:67$
D=DG;7<7$@H$856$H@GG@A<=Y$<=86>76?8<@=7Z$

VL[\686>D=7$]D;$̂$45<>:$M8>668$
UL[\686>D=7$]D;$̂$_<H85$M8>668$
SL[KG@F<7$̀F6=96$̂$M<6>>D$̀F6=96$
aL[KG@F<7$̀F6=96$̂$M6?@=:$M8>668$
WL[KG@F<7$̀F6=96$̂$45<>:$M8>668$
bL[KG@F<7$̀F6=96$̂$_@9>85$M8>668$
cL[KG@F<7$̀F6=96$̂$_<H85$M8>668$

456$789:;$8<B6$E6><@:7$<=?G9:6$856$A66d:D;$DLBL$D=:$ELBL$E6Dd$5@9>7$:686>B<=6:$C68A66=$
cZTT$D=:$eZTT$DLBL$D=:$C68A66=$aZTT$D=:$bZTT$ELBL$$456$E6Dd$5@9>7$A6>6$D=DG;f6:$H@>$856$
H@GG@A<=Y$?@=:<8<@=7Z$

gD76G<=6$K@=:<8<@=7$

h[ij<78<=Y$K@=:<8<@=7k$
h[l@=Ym46>B$On6D>$UTSeP$R@mI>@J6?8$K@=:<8<@=7k$

I>@J6?8$K@=:<8<@=7$

h[ij<78<=Y$IG97$I>@J6?8$K@=:<8<@=7k$
h[R6D>m46>B$]<85mI>@J6?8$K@=:<8<@=7$O<=?G9:67$DEE>@F6:$D=:$E6=:<=Y$E>@J6?87Pk$
h[l@=Ym46>B$On6D>$UTSeP$]<85mI>@J6?8$K@=:<8<@=7L$

M8D=:D>:$8>DHH<?$6=Y<=66><=Y$E><=?<EG67$D=:$B685@:7$A6>6$6BEG@;6:$8@$678DCG<75$856$6j<78<=Y$
?@=:<8<@=7Q$8@$678<BD86$856$=9BC6>$@H$8><E7$6jE6?86:$8@$C6$Y6=6>D86:$C;$856$I>@J6?8Q$D=:$8@$
D=DG;f6$856$8>DHH<?$?@=:<8<@=7$6jE6?86:$8@$@??9>$<=$856$H989>6L$$$

456$8>DHH<?$<BED?8$789:;$H@9=:$85D8$856$<=86>76?8<@=$@H$\686>D=7$]D;$D=:$_<H85$M8>668$<7$
?9>>6=8G;$@E6>D8<=Y$C6G@A$856$8D>Y68$loM$:9><=Y$856$DLBL$E6Dd$5@9>Q$E><BD><G;$D7$D$>679G8$@H$
7?5@@G$8>DHH<?L$$456$@856>$789:;$<=86>76?8<@=7$?9>>6=8G;$@E6>D86$D8$loM$K$@>$C6886>$D=:$D>6$
6jE6?86:$8@$?@=8<=96$8@$@E6>D86$D8$loM$N$@>$C6886>$85>@9Y5$856$;6D>$UTSe$A<85@98$856$I>@J6?8L$

456$I>@J6?8$<7$6jE6?86:$8@$?D976$@>$?@=8><C986$8@$7<Y=<H<?D=8$8>DHH<?$<BED?87$D8$856$H@GG@A<=Y$
<=86>76?8<@=7Z$

h[KG@F<7$̀F6=96$̂$M6?@=:$M8>668$O;6D>$UTSe$?9B9GD8<F6$<BED?8Pk$
h[\686>D=7$]D;$̂$45<>:$M8>668$O;6D>$UTSe$?9B9GD8<F6$<BED?8Pk$
h[KG@F<7$̀F6=96$̂$_<H85$M8>668$O;6D>$UTSe$?9B9GD8<F6$<BED?8Pk$
h[\686>D=7$]D;$̂$_<H85$M8>668$OI>@J6?8$<BED?8Q$=6D>m86>B$?9B9GD8<F6$<BED?8Q$D=:$;6D>$
UTSe$?9B9GD8<F6$<BED?8PL$

p=$Y6=6>DGQ$856$789:;$<=86>76?8<@=7$5DF6$C66=$?@=78>9?86:$8@$856$9G8<BD86$?@=H<Y9>D8<@=L$$p=$
D::<8<@=Q$8>DHH<?$7<Y=DG$AD>>D=87$D>6$=@8$6jE6?86:$8@$C6$7D8<7H<6:$D8$856$7<Y=<H<?D=8G;m<BED?86:$
789:;$G@?D8<@=7L$$q6D79>67$<=86=:6:$8@$7@GF6$loM$:6H<?<6=?<67$D8$?6>8D<=$G@?D8<@=7$O79?5$D7$
DGGmAD;$78@E$?@=8>@G$@>$>@9=:DC@987$D8$?6>8D<=$G@?D8<@=7P$D>6$=@8$>6?@BB6=:6:$<H$8>DHH<?$

173

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#����

$
$

% % &'(')*+,-./-'')/-.+0)123%

456789:$;5$<5=$899=$>?@@?<=:$5@$AB$=C9@9$A:$?$CADC$E5=9<=A?6$B5@$=C9$@9:76=A<D$F7979:$=5$9G=9<;$
A<=5$?;H?I9<=$:AD<?6AJ9;$A<=9@:9I=A5<:K$$LC9@9B5@9M$>A=C$=C9$9GI9E=A5<$5B$=C9$A<=9@:9I=A5<$5B$
N9=9@?<:$O?P$?<;$LCA@;$Q=@99=M$<5$B9?:AR69$8A=AD?=A5<:$C?49$R99<$A;9<=ABA9;$B5@$=C9$
:AD<ABAI?<=$A8E?I=:$R?:9;$5<$STQK$$LC9:9$A8E?I=:$>576;$@98?A<$:AD<ABAI?<=$?<;$7<?45A;?R69K$

U=$=C9$A<=9@:9I=A5<$5B$N9=9@?<:$O?P$?<;$LCA@;$Q=@99=M$?$@57<;?R57=$:C576;$R9$I5<:A;9@9;$=5$
8A=AD?=9$=C9$P9?@$VWXY$:AD<ABAI?<=$A8E?I=:K$$U$@57<;?R57=$8?P$R9$A<I67;9;$>A=C$I5<:=@7I=A5<$
5B$=C9$Z@5H9I=$5@$8?P$R9$;9B9@@9;$7<=A6$=C9$:AD<ABAI?<=$A8E?I=$A:$5R:9@49;K$$[B$;9B9@@9;M$=C9$
Z@5H9I=$>A66$R9$@9F7A@9;$=5$E@54A;9$?::7@?<I9$=C?=$=C9$8A=AD?=A5<$>A66$949<=7?66P$R9$
I5<:=@7I=9;K$$Q7IC$?::7@?<I9$8?P$R9$A<$=C9$B5@8$5B$?;;A<D$=C9$I5:=$5B$=C9$@57<;?R57=$=5$=C9$
\]̂_̀abcdedfghidĵbkddbhlgmlnio$

LC9$Z@5H9I=$>A66$D9<9@?=9$<9>$49CAI69$=@AE:$?I@5::$=C9$p654A:$T6;$L5><$L@?A6$?=$LCA@;$Q=@99=M$
?<;$>A66$6Aq96P$D9<9@?=9$<9>$E9;9:=@A?<$?<;$RAIPI69$=@AE:$5<$=C9$=@?A6K$$LC9$?EE@5E@A?=9$
:AD<?D9$?<;$E?4989<=$8?@qA<D:$:C576;$R9$A<:=?669;$A<$?II5@;?<I9$>A=C$=C9$85:=$@9I9<=$
49@:A5<$5B$=C9$prsLptK$$p5<:=@7I=A5<$5B$?$@57<;?R57=$?=$=C9$A<=9@:9I=A5<$5B$N9=9@?<:$O?P$
?<;$LCA@;$Q=@99=$>576;$I@9?=9$?$8A<A8AJ9;$I@5::>?6q$69<D=C$?I@5::$LCA@;$Q=@99=K$$LC9$
@57<;?R57=$>576;$A<I67;9$<?@@5>$@5?;>?P:$?<;$?$E9;9:=@A?<$@9B7D9$A<$=C9$:E6A==9@$A:6?<;$=C?=$
?665>:$E9;9:=@A?<:$?<;$RAIPI69:$=5$I@5::$?D?A<:=$5<6P$5<9$;A@9I=A5<$5B$49CAI76?@$=@?496$?=$?$
=A89K$

LC9$?49@?D9$69<D=C$5B$=@AE:$D9<9@?=9;$RP$=C9$Z@5H9I=$>A66$R9$uKX$8A69:K$$v5@$I58E?@A:5<$
E7@E5:9:M$=C9$?49@?D9$>5@qwR?:9;$=@AE$69<D=C$A<$=C9$v@9:<5$p57<=P$@9DA5<$A:$?EE@5GA8?=96P$
xx$=5$xV$8A69:K$$LC9$Z@5H9I=$A:$9GE9I=9;$=5$I5<=@AR7=9$=5$?$@9;7I=A5<$A<$=C9$549@?66$<78R9@$5B$
49CAI69$8A69:$=@?4969;$A<$=C9$pA=P$5B$p654A:$RP$?II5885;?=A<D$?7=585RA69M$=@?<:A=M$
E9;9:=@A?<M$?<;$RAIPI69$85;9:$5B$=@?496$y>A=C$I5<49<A9<=$=@?<:B9@$R9=>99<$85;9:z$<9?@$
@9DA5<?6$;9:=A<?=A5<:$:7IC$?:$=C9$6AR@?@PM$:9<A5@$I9<=9@M$IA4AI$I9<=9@M$?<;$;5><=5><$p654A:K$$

LC9$Z@5H9I=$?<;$I7876?=A49$A8E?I=:$?@9$;9:I@AR9;$A<$=C9$B5665>A<D$:9I=A5<:$>A=C$?$E5::AR69$
8A=AD?=A5<$89?:7@9$5@$?$:=?=989<=$A<;AI?=A<D$=C?=$<5$B9?:AR69$8A=AD?=A5<$89?:7@9:$9GA:=K$

{|}~�}������~�������������}�}��~���������~������}�}���}������~���~$

���������������

U=$=C9$A<=9@:9I=A5<$5B$N9=9@?<:$O?P$?<;$vAB=C$Q=@99=M$=C9$Z@5H9I=$>A66$9G?I9@R?=9$=C9$
9GA:=A<D$STQ$v$;7@A<D$=C9$?K8K$E9?q$C57@$RP$A<I@9?:A<D$?49@?D9$;96?P:$B@58$�WK�$
:9I5<;:$E9@$49CAI69$=5$�uKX$:9I5<;:$E9@$49CAI69K$

�}�}���}������~������������

LC9@9$A:$<5$B9?:AR69$8A=AD?=A5<K$$

$

���������������

LC9$Z@5H9I=$>A66$D9<9@?=9$<9>$49CAI69$=@AE:$?I@5::$=C9$p654A:$T6;$L5><$L@?A6$?=$LCA@;$
Q=@99=M$?<;$>A66$6Aq96P$D9<9@?=9$<9>$E9;9:=@A?<$?<;$RAIPI69$=@AE:$5<$=C9$=@?A6K$

174

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#��$�

%
%

& & '()(*+,-./0.((*0./,1*234&

56768976:;<5=9>?@=<ABCDEFG<

HIJ%KLLMNLMOKPJ%QORSKRJ%KST%LKUJVJSP%VKMWOSRQ%QINXYT%ZJ%OSQPKYYJT%KP%PIJ%[YNUOQ%\YT%
HN]S%HMKOY%KP%HIOMT%̂PMJJP%OS%K__NMTKS_J%]OPI%PIJ%VNQP%MJ_JSP%UJMQONS%Ǹ%PIJ%[abH[cd%%%

%

D=9@FA=@e<f67gFh@:i=j7<k:;l676:;><F<men9j7><9;l<56768976:;<5=9>?@=><

men9j7<ABCDEFo<

pP%PIJ%OSPJMQJ_PONS%Ǹ%qJPJMKSQ%rKs%KST%tÒPI%̂PMJJPu%PIJ%_XVXYKPOUJ%LMNvJ_PQ%LYXQ%PIJ%
wMNvJ_P%]OYY%JxK_JMZKPJ%PIJ%JxOQPOSR%y\̂ %t%Zs%OS_MJKQOSR%KUJMKRJ%TJYKsQ%̀MNV%z{d|%
QJ_NSTQ%LJM%UJIO_YJ%PN%z}d~%QJ_NSTQ%LJM%UJIO_YJ%TXMOSR%PIJ%KdVd%LJKW%INXMd%%HIOQ%OVLK_P%OQ%
OTJSPO_KY%PN%�VLK_P%HMKSQ��%OS%PIJ%JxOQPOSR�LYXQ�wMNvJ_P%Q_JSKMONd%%%

56768976:;<5=9>?@=<ABCDEFo<

HIJMJ%OQ%SN%̀JKQOZYJ%VOPORKPONSd%%

%

�=9@<G�o�<f67gFh@:i=j7<k:;l676:;><F<men9j7><9;l<56768976:;<5=9>?@=><

men9j7<ABCDEF�<

pP%PIJ%OSPJMQJ_PONS%Ǹ%[YNUOQ%pUJSXJ%KST%̂J_NST%̂PMJJPu%PIJ%_XVXYKPOUJ%LMNvJ_PQu%
OS_YXTOSR%�{%sJKMQ%Ǹ%MJRONSKY%RMN]PIu%KMJ%JxLJ_PJT%PN%_KXQJ%PIJ%y\̂ %PN%TMNL%̀MNV%PIJ%
JxOQPOSR%y\̂ %[%PN%y\̂ %�%NS%PIJ%VOSNM%QPMJJP%KLLMNK_I%TXMOSR%PIJ%LdVd%LJKW%INXMd%%
qJIO_YJQ%NS%[YNUOQ%pUJSXJ%KMJ%SNP%MJ�XOMJT%PN%QPNL%KST%JxLJMOJS_J%YOPPYJ%PN%SN%TJYKsd%

56768976:;<5=9>?@=<ABCDEF�<

HIJMJ%OQ%SN%̀JKQOZYJ%VOPORKPONSd%%

%

men9j7<ABCDEF�<

pP%PIJ%OSPJMQJ_PONS%Ǹ%qJPJMKSQ%rKs%KST%HIOMT%̂PMJJPu%PIJ%_XVXYKPOUJ%LMNvJ_PQu%OS_YXTOSR%
�{%sJKMQ%Ǹ%MJRONSKY%RMN]PIu%KMJ%JxLJ_PJT%PN%_KXQJ%PIJ%y\̂ %PN%TMNL%̀MNV%PIJ%JxOQPOSR%
y\̂ %[%TXMOSR%PIJ%KdVd%LJKW%INXM%KST%y\̂ %�%TXMOSR%PIJ%LdVd%LJKW%INXM%PN%y\̂ %t%TXMOSR%
PIJ%KdVd%LJKW%INXM%KST%y\̂ %�%TXMOSR%PIJ%LdVd%LJKW%INXMd%%%

56768976:;<5=9>?@=<ABCDEF�<

HIJ%OSPJMQJ_PONS%QINXYT%ZJ%VNTÒOJT%Zs%PIJ%sJKM%�{~�%PN%K%QOSRYJ�YKSJ%VNTJMS%MNXSTKZNXP%
TJQORSJT%OS%K__NMTKS_J%]OPI%PsLO_KY%OSTXQPMs%QPKSTKMTQu%]IO_I%_XMMJSPYs%KMJ%LMOVKMOYs%
ZKQJT%NS%PIJ%H��%�[��w%�JLNMP%}|��%%�NXSTKZNXPQ�%%pS%�S̀NMVKPONSKY%�XOTJu%̂J_NST%
�TOPONSu%�{�{d%

[NSQPMX_PONS%Ǹ%K%MNXSTKZNXP%KP%PIJ%OSPJMQJ_PONS%Ǹ%qJPJMKSQ%rKs%KST%HIOMT%̂PMJJP%]NXYT%
_MJKPJ%K%VOSOVO�JT%_MNQQ]KYW%YJSRPI%K_MNQQ%HIOMT%̂PMJJP%KST%]NXYT%ZJ%ZJSJ̀O_OKY%PN%PIJ%
cMs%[MJJW%HMKOYd%%HIJ%MNXSTKZNXP%]NXYT%OS_YXTJ%SKMMN]%MNKT]KsQ%KST%K%LJTJQPMOKS%
MJ̀XRJ%OS%PIJ%QLYOPPJM%OQYKST%PIKP%KYYN]Q%LJTJQPMOKSQ%KST%ZO_s_YJQ%PN%_MNQQ%KRKOSQP%NSYs%NSJ%
TOMJ_PONS%Ǹ%UJIO_XYKM%PMKUJY%KP%K%POVJd%

175

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#��$�

%
%

& & '()(*+,-./0.((*0./,1*234&

56789:;<=>?@AB;

CD%DEF%GHDFIJFKDGLH%LM%NOLPGJ%CPFHQF%RHS%TGMDE%UDIFFDV%DEF%KQWQORDGPF%XILYFKDJV%GHKOQSGHZ%
[\%]FRIJ%LM%IFZGLHRO%ZIL̂DEV%RIF%F_XFKDFS%DL%KRQJF%DEF%̀aU%DL%SILX%MILW%DEF%F_GJDGHZ%
àU%N%DL%̀aU%b%SQIGHZ%DEF%XcWc%XFRd%ELQIc%%%

ef:fg8:fhi;ej8klmj;<=>?@AB;

nEFIF%GJ%HL%MFRJGoOF%WGDGZRDGLHc%%

%

56789:;<=>?@Ap;

CD%DEF%GHDFIJFKDGLH%LM%qFDFIRHJ%rR]%RHS%TGMDE%UDIFFDV%DEF%KQWQORDGPF%XILYFKDJV%GHKOQSGHZ%
[\%]FRIJ%LM%IFZGLHRO%ZIL̂DEV%RIF%F_XFKDFS%DL%F_RKFIoRDF%DEF%F_GJDGHZ%̀aU%T%SQIGHZ%DEF%
RcWc%XFRd%ELQI%RHS%̂GOO%KRQJF%DEF%F_GJDGHZ%̀aU%N%DL%SILX%DL%̀aU%b%SQIGHZ%DEF%XcWc%XFRd%
ELQIc%%%

ef:fg8:fhi;ej8klmj;<=>?@Ap;

nEFIF%GJ%HL%MFRJGoOF%WGDGZRDGLHc%%

176

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#��"�

$
$

% % &'(')*+,-./-'')/-.+0)123%

4565789:;<=>97;85

?@AB$CDEFFAG$AHIEGC$BCJKL$@EB$MNNO$IDNIEDNK$CP$BCJKL$C@N$IPCNOCAEQ$CDEFFAG$AHIEGCB$DNQECNK$CP$
C@N$IDPIPBNK$REOKHEDS$TPHHPOB$IDPUNGC$AO$TQPVABW$TEQAFPDOAEW$@NDNAOEFCND$DNFNDDNK$CP$EB$C@N$
XYDPUNGCZ[$$?@N$CDEFFAG$AHIEGC$BCJKL$\AQQ$MN$JCAQA]NK$AO$C@N$IDNIEDECAPO$PF$EO$NOVADPOHNOCEQ$
AHIEGC$DNIPDC$̂_̀ab$FPD$C@N$YDPUNGCZ$$?@N$EOEQLBNB$\NDN$INDFPDHNK$AO$GPOFPDHEOGN$\AC@$C@N$
cdefghigcjhkdlgmnoiidpgqrsopegteuvfgwudvxjdyxl$̂TACL$zJAKNQAONBb$EIIDPVNK${J|JBC$}~W$}���Z$

��������������

?@N$CDEFFAG$AHIEGC$BCJKL$\EB$IDNIEDNK$CP$AOVNBCA|ECN$IPCNOCAEQ$CDEFFAG$AHIEGCB$DNBJQCAO|$FDPH$
C@N$YDPUNGC$AO$MPC@$C@N$ONED�CNDH$EOK$QPO|�CNDH$GJHJQECAVN$̂LNED$}���b$GPOKACAPOBZ$$?@N$
EOEQLBAB$FPGJBNB$PO$C@N$EOCAGAIECNK$NFFNGC$PF$VN@AGQN$CDEFFAG$PO$BCJKL$EDNE$AOCNDBNGCAPOBZ$$
{KKACAPOEQ$KABGJBBAPOB$DNQECNK$CP$CDEOBAC$FEGAQACANBW$MAGLGQN$FEGAQACANBW$EOK$INKNBCDAEO$FEGAQACANB$
EDN$AOGQJKNKZ$$$

��������������������������

?@N$YDPUNGC$BACN$QPGECAPO$AB$IDNBNOCNK$AO$C@N$ECCEG@NK$�A|JDN$���W$�AGAOACL$�EIW$EOK$C@N$
GPOGNICJEQ$YDPUNGC$BACN$IQEO$AB$IDNBNOCNK$AO$C@N$ECCEG@NK$�A|JDN$��}W$�ACN$YQEOZ$$$

?@N$YDPUNGC$BACN$GPVNDB$EIIDP�AHECNQL$BNVNO$EGDNB$EOK$AB$QPGECNK$PO$C@N$OPDC@$BAKN$PF$?@ADK$
�CDNNC$NEBC$PF$TQPVAB${VNOJNW$OPDC@$PF$C@N$OPDC@$NOK$PF$�NCNDEOB$�EL$̂FPDHNDQL$�J|@NB$
{VNOJNb$AO$TQPVABW$TEQAFPDOAEZ$$$

?@N$YDPUNGC$AB$E$HA�NK�JBN$KNVNQPIHNOC$GPOBABCAO|$PF$GPHHJOACL$EOK$IJMQAG$JBNBZ$$
�INGAFAGEQQLW$AC$\PJQK$NOCEAQ$C@N$KNVNQPIHNOC$PF$EIIDP�AHECNQL$��W���$B JEDN$FNNC$PF$
GPHHJOACL$EOK$PFFAGN$JBNB$C@EC$\PJQK$MN$KNVNQPINK$AO$HJQCAIQN$I@EBNB$\AC@$FJQQ$MJAQK�PJC$
EOCAGAIECNK$AO$}���Z$$

?@N$YDPUNGC$\PJQK$AOGQJKN$E$\AKN$VEDANCL$PF$EHNOACANB$FPD$DNBAKNOCB$EOK$VABACPDBW$AOGQJKAO|$
C@N$FPQQP\AO|Z$$

¡¢�NOAPD${GCAVACL$TNOCND$£${O$EIIDP�AHECNQL$��W����B JEDN�FPPC$BNOAPD$EGCAVACL$GNOCND$
AB$IDPIPBNK$AO$C@N$OPDC@NEBCNDO$IPDCAPO$PF$C@N$BACN$CP$EGGPHHPKECN$MEO JNCW$PFFAGNW$
GQEBBDPPHW$EOK$|LH$BIEGNZ$$

¡¢?DEOBAC$TNOCND$£${O$EIIDP�AHECNQL$¤W����B JEDN�FPPC$CDEOBAC$MJAQKAO|$AB$IDPIPBNK$CP$
EGGPHHPKECN$PFFAGN$BIEGNZ$

¡¢RAMDEDL$£${O$EIIDP�AHECNQL$��W����B JEDN�FPPC$QAMDEDL$AB$IDPIPBNK$AO$C@N$
BPJC@\NBCNDO$IPDCAPO$PF$C@N$BACNZ$

?@N$IDAHEDL$YDPUNGC$EGGNBB$IPAOC$\AQQ$MN$E$ON\$KDAVN\EL$GPOONGCAO|$CP$?@ADK$�CDNNC$EC$
�NCNDEOB$�ELZ$$�NGPOKEDL$EGGNBB$\AQQ$MN$IDPVAKNK$VAE$EO$N�ABCAO|$OPDC@�BPJC@$EQQNL$EQPO|$C@N$
NEBCNDO$NK|N$PF$C@N$YDPUNGC$BACN$C@EC$GJDDNOCQL$GPOONGCB$CP$?@ADK$�CDNNC$EC$C@N$BPJC@$NOK$EOK$CP$
C@N$¥BHJO$TADGQN$GJQ$KN$BEG$EC$C@N$OPDC@$NOKZ$

TPOBCDJGCAPO$@PJDB$PF$EQQ$I@EBNB$\PJQK$GPOFPDH$CP$TACL$OPABN$PDKAOEOGNBW$\@AG@$EIIQL$CP$
GPOBCDJGCAPO$EGCAVACANB$PGGJDDAO|$MNC\NNO$C@N$@PJDB$PF$�¦��$EZHZ$EOK$�¦��$IZHZW$�POKEL$
C@DPJ|@$�DAKELW$EOK$MNC\NNO$�¦��$EZHZ$EOK$~¦��$IZHZ$PO$\NNSNOKBZ$$

177

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#��$�

%
%

& & '()(*+,-./0.((*0./,1*234&

567898:;<=>8?@AB8BC=8DEFA8GA@EH=8

IJK%LMNOP%QRMKSLKTMQURL%VKSK%OKMKSWQRKO%XYLKO%UR%MJK%YRMQTQZYMKO%[U\NWK%YRO%OQLMSQXNMQUR%U]%
ŜU_KTM%MSY]]QT%QR%TURLN\MYMQUR%VQMJ%LMY]]%U]%MJK%̀QMP%U]%̀\U[QLa%%bMY]]%U]%MJK%̀Y\Q]USRQY%
cKZYSMWKRM%U]%ISYRLZUSMYMQUR%d̀Y\MSYRLe%VKSK%Y\LU%TURMYTMKO%YROf%ZKS%Y%\KMMKS%OYMKO%
gU[KWXKS%hif%jiklf%̀Y\MSYRL%OQO%RUM%SKmNKLM%YRY\PLQL%U]%bMYMK%]YTQ\QMQKLa%%IJQL%SKZUSM%QRT\NOKL%
YRY\PLQL%U]%MJK%]U\\UVQRn%QRMKSLKTMQURLo%

kapqKMKSYRL%rYP%s%IJQSO%bMSKKM%
japqKMKSYRL%rYP%s%tQ]MJ%bMSKKM%
hap̀ \U[QL%u[KRNK%s%bQKSSY%u[KRNK%
vap̀ \U[QL%u[KRNK%s%bKTURO%bMSKKM%
lap̀ \U[QL%u[KRNK%s%IJQSO%bMSKKM%
wap̀ \U[QL%u[KRNK%s%tUNSMJ%bMSKKM%
xap̀ \U[QL%u[KRNK%s%tQ]MJ%bMSKKM%

IJK%\UTYMQURL%U]%MJK%LMNOP%QRMKSLKTMQURL%YSK%ZSKLKRMKO%QR%tQnNSK%kyhf%bMNOP%zRMKSLKTMQURLa%

56{898:;<=>8:|ACB@EH}8

IJK%LMNOP%MQWK%ZKSQUOL%QRT\NOK%MJK%VKK~OYP%YaWa%YRO%ZaWa%ZKY~%JUNSL%OKMKSWQRKO%XKMVKKR%
xoii%YRO%�oii%YaWa%YRO%XKMVKKR%voii%YRO%woii%ZaWa%%IJK%ZKY~%JUNSL%VKSK%YRY\P�KO%]US%MJK%
]U\\UVQRn%TUROQMQURLo%

�YLK\QRK%̀UROQMQURL%

�p��QLMQRn%̀UROQMQURL�%
�p�URnyIKSW%d�KYS%jih�e%gUŷSU_KTM%̀UROQMQURL�%

ŜU_KTM%̀UROQMQURL%

�p��QLMQRnŷ\NLŷSU_KTM%̀UROQMQURL�%
�pgKYSyIKSW%rQMJŷSU_KTM%̀UROQMQURL%dQRT\NOKL%YZZSU[KO%YRO%ZKROQRn%ZSU_KTMLe�%
�p�URnyIKSW%d�KYS%jih�e%rQMJŷSU_KTM%̀UROQMQURLa%

178

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#��$�

%
%

& & '()(*+,-./0.((*0./,1*234&

567898:;<=8>?8@AABCD;E=;>F<8

GHI%JKLLKMNOP%NQ%R%LNQS%KJ%RTTUIVNRSNKOQ%SHRS%WRX%TI%YQIZ%SHI%SI[S%KJ%SHNQ%UI\KUS]%

_̂̀ %a%̂KUSHTKYOZ%LIJS% b̀c%a%̀IVIL%KJ%QIUVNdI%
_̂e%a%̂KUSHTKYOZ%SHUKYPH% W\H%a%WNLIQ%\IU%HKYU%%
_̂e%a%̂KUSHTKYOZ%UNPHS% fgf%a%fRLNJKUONR%gIHNdLI%fKZI%%
c_̀%a%cKYSHTKYOZ%LIJS%% Ge_%a%GUROQ\KUSRSNKO%eIQIRUdH%_KRUZ%
c_G%a%cKYSHTKYOZ%SHUKYPH% hfi%a%hNPHMRX%fR\RdNSX%iROYRL%
c_e%a%cKYSHTKYOZ%UNPHS%% jhk%a%jIRl%hKYU%kRdSKU%
m_̀ %a%mRQSTKYOZ%LIJS%% mne%a%mOVNUKOWIOSRL%nW\RdS%eI\KUS%%
m_G%a%mRQSTKYOZ%SHUKYPH%% QId%a%QIdKOZQ%
m_e%a%mRQSTKYOZ%UNPHS%
o_̀%a%oIQSTKYOZ%LIJS%
o_G%a%oIQSTKYOZ%SHUKYPH%%
o_e%a%oIQSTKYOZ%UNPHS%
giG%a%gIHNdLI%WNLIQ%SURVILIZ%
_Gj%a%pqrr%fLKVNQ%_NdXdLI%GUROQ\KUSRSNKO%jLRO%
Gsh%a%GUN\%sIOIURSNKO%hROZTKKl%
nGm%a%nOQSNSYSI%KJ%GUROQ\KUSRSNKO%mOPNOIIUQ%
fbs%a%kUIQOK%fKYOdNL%KJ%sKVIUOWIOSQ%
fitGfu%a%fRLNJKUONR%iROYRL%KO%tONJKUW%GURJJNd%fKOSUKL%uIVNdIQ%
f̂hej%a%̂RSNKORL%fKK\IURSNVI%hNPHMRX%eIQIRUdH%jUKPURW%

179

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#��$�

%
%

& & '()(*+,-./0.((*0./,1*234&

567689:;<=6>8?@8A8<;@<B6<C8=BC8;6

DEFGHGIJKJLGMNGOJPKQRJG

STU%SVWXYZ[V\W\][X%̂UYUWV_T%̀[WVa%bcdefghijgkglcmhingopgqr%stutr%vwxystutz%aU{]XUY%
|}~}|�����}�~��}������������������������~}����������������������}��������}��}����}����
�UWY�VUY%\TW\%VUZVUYUX\%��W�]\�%[{%YUV�]_Ur%�UWY�VUa%[X%WX%���%Y_W�Ur%�]\T%� ¡%�%
VUZVUYUX\]X¢%\TU%£}�����}�����¤����¥�������������¦}����~}|}�§���}���}���~}���¥�� ¡%�%\TU%
�̈���©ª%

��\[�[«]�U%�[aU%� ¡%_TWVW_\UV]Y\]_Y%{[V%«[\T%�XY]¢XW�]¬Ua%WXa%Y]¢XW�]¬Ua%]X\UVYU_\][XY%WVU%
ZVUYUX\Ua%]X%SW«�UY%su%WXa%ss%%%

®̄°LJGDEFG
IJKJLGMNGOJPKQRJG±²̄P̄R³JPQ́³QŔGNMPGµ¶́Q·¶̄LQ̧J¹Gº¶³JṔJR³QM¶́G

IJKJLGMNGOJPKQRJG »KJP̄·JG¼J²QRLJG½JL̄¾G¿́JRM¶¹́ÀG

�% t�ut%
%̀ Áut�uÂ%
x% ÁuÂ�sÂ%
Ã% ÁsÂ�ÄÂ%
Å% ÁÄÂ�Ât%
�% ÁÂt%

Û{UVUX_UÆ%bcdefghijgkglcmhingopgqÇiSVWXYZ[V\W\][X%̂UYUWV_T%̀[WVar%stut%
%

®̄°LJGDEDG
IJKJLGMNGOJPKQRJG±²̄P̄R³JPQ́³QŔGNMPGOQ·¶̄LQ̧J¹Gº¶³JṔJR³QM¶́G

IJKJLGMNG
OJPKQRJG

½J́RPQÈ³QM¶G
»KJP̄·JG¼J²QRLJG½JL̄¾G

¿́JRM¶¹́ÀG

�%
É[���U�\[�_WZW_]\�%VW\][%]Y%�[�%%ÊV[¢VUYY][X%]Y%
UË_UZ\][XW���%{W�[VW«�U%[V%\TU%_�_�U%�UX¢\T%]Y%�UV�%YT[V\%

Ìut%

%̀
É[���U�\[�_WZW_]\�%VW\][%]Y%�[�%%ÊV[¢VUYY][X%]Y%T]¢T��%
{W�[VW«�U%[V%\TU%_�_�U%�UX¢\T%]Y%�UV�%YT[V\%

Áut�st%

x%
É[���U�\[�_WZW_]\�%VW\][%]Y%X[%¢VUW\UV%\TWX%ut%%ÊV[¢VUYY][X%
]Y%{W�[VW«�U%[V%_�_�U%�UX¢\T%]Y%�[aUVW\U%

Ást�ÄÂ%

Ã%
É[���U�\[�_WZW_]\�%VW\][%]Y%T]¢T%«�\%X[%¢VUW\UV%\TWX%ut%%
ÊV[¢VUYY][X%]Y%]XU{{U_\]�U%[V%_�_�U%�UX¢\T%]Y%�[X¢%%yWX�%
�UT]_�UY%Y\[Z%WXa%]Xa]�]a�W�%_�_�U%{W]��VUY%WVU%X[\]_UW«�U%

ÁÄÂ�ÂÂ%

Å%
É[���U�\[�_WZW_]\�%VW\][%]Y%T]¢T%«�\%X[%¢VUW\UV%\TWX%ut%%
ÊV[¢VUYY][X%]Y%�X{W�[VW«�U%WXa%_�_�U%�UX¢\T%]Y%�[X¢%%
ÍXa]�]a�W�%_�_�U%{W]��VUY%WVU%{VU��UX\%

ÁÂÂ�Ît%

�%
É[���U�\[�_WZW_]\�%VW\][%]Y%¢VUW\UV%\TWX%ut%%ÊV[¢VUYY][X%]Y%
�UV�%Z[[V%WXa%_�_�U%�UX¢\T%]Y%�[X¢%%y[Y\%_�_�UY%{W]�%\[%_�UWV%
\TU%��U�U%

ÁÎt%

Û{UVUX_UÆ%bcdefghijgkglcmhingopgqÇiSVWXYZ[V\W\][X%̂UYUWV_T%̀[WVar%stut%
%

180

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#��! �

$
$

% % &'(')*+,-./-'')/-.+0)123%

456789$:;<$5=$>?@$A65B7C$D@E@FG6$46GE$C>G>@C$>?@$=5665H7EI$JKL$C>GEMGFMCN$

O;PO8?7@B@$JKL$Q$B@?786@$>FG==78$5R@FG>75EC$MSF7EI$>?@$G;T;$GEM$R;T;$R@GU$?5SFC$

V;PO665H$@W8@R>75EC$5E$G$8GC@XY9X8GC@$YGC7C$H?@F@$65H@F$6@B@6C$5=$C@FB78@$H5S6M$F@CS6>$7E$
5>?@F$RSY678$Y@E@=7>CZ$CS8?$GCN$

7;P4F@C@FB7EI$GIF78S6>SF@$5F$5R@E$CRG8@$6GEM$

77;P4F@C@FB7EI$>?@$FSFG6[?7C>5F78$8?GFG8>@F$5=$G$E@7I?Y5F?55M$

777;P4F@C@FB7EI$5F$8F@G>7EI$G$R@M@C>F7GEX=F7@EM69$@EB7F5ET@E>$7E$K6M$\5HE$5F$T7W@MXSC@$
B766GI@$M7C>F78>C$

7B;POB57M7EI$GMB@FC@$7TRG8>C$>5$R@M@C>F7GECZ$89867C>CZ$GEM$TGCC$>FGEC7>$F7M@FC$

B;P]?@F@$F7I?>X5=XHG9$85EC>FG7E>C$H5S6M$TGU@$8GRG87>9$@WRGEC75E$7E=@GC7Y6@$

\?@$A7>9$DS7M@67E@C$7EM78G>@$>?G>$GE$7TRG8>$7C$85EC7M@F@M$C7IE7=78GE>$7=$>?@$GMM7>75E$5=$>?@$
>FG==78$I@E@FG>@M$Y9$G$RF5R5C@M$RF5̂@8>$F@CS6>C$7E$GE9$5E@$5=$>?@$=5665H7EIN$

_P\F7II@FC$GE$7E>@FC@8>75E$5R@FG>7EI$G>$G88@R>GY6@$JKL$>5$5R@FG>@$G>$SEG88@R>GY6@$6@B@6C$
5=$C@FB78@̀$

_PaE8F@GC@C$>?@$GB@FGI@$M@6G9$=5F$G$C>SM9$7E>@FC@8>75E$>?G>$7C$G6F@GM9$5R@FG>7EI$G>$
SEG88@R>GY6@$JKL;$

bcbdedfghijkilhmngdopipmgqdrjmhijmsd

\?@$A7>9$DS7M@67E@C$F@tS7F@$G$tS@S7EI$GEG69C7C$5=$>?@$C>SM9$7E>@FC@8>75EC$GEM$
F@85TT@EMG>75EC$=5F$tS@S@C$>?G>$GF@$RF5̂@8>@M$>5$@W8@@M$>?@$GBG76GY6@$C>5FGI@$8GRG87>9;$$
u5H@B@FZ$7>$C?5S6M$Y@$E5>@M$>?G>$tS@S7EI$7C$E5>$7E86SM@M$7E$>?@$C7IE7=78GE8@$8F7>@F7G$
F@85IE7v@M$Y9$>?@$A7>9$GEM$7C$F@B7@H@M$>5$85E=7FT$>?@$JKL$F@CS6>C;$$$

w5F$RSFR5C@C$5=$>?@C@$GEG69C@CZ$G$tS@S7EI$M@=787@E89$7C$7M@E>7=7@M$7E$>?@$E5X4F5̂@8>$85EM7>75E$
7=$>?@$8G68S6G>@M$xy>?XR@F8@E>76@$tS@S@$6@EI>?$@W8@@MC$>?@$C>5FGI@$6@EI>?;$$O$R5>@E>7G6$tS@S7EI$
7CCS@$7C$M@>@FT7E@M$7=$>?@$4F5̂@8>$8GSC@C$>?@$8G68S6G>@M$xy>?XR@F8@E>76@$tS@S@$6@EI>?$>5$@W8@@M$
>?@$@W7C>7EI$5F$R6GEE@M$C>5FGI@$8GRG87>9$G>$G$C7IEG67v@M$7E>@FC@8>75E;$$aE$C>5FGI@$6GE@C$>?G>$GF@$
G6F@GM9$M@=787@E>$H7>?5S>$>?@$4F5̂@8>Z$G$R5>@E>7G6$tS@S7EI$7CCS@$7C$M@>@FT7E@M$7=$>?@$4F5̂@8>$
7E8F@GC@C$>?@$8G68S6G>@M$xy>?XR@F8@E>76@$tS@S@$6@EI>?$Y9$G>$6@GC>$:y$=@@>$z>?@$GB@FGI@$C>5FGI@$
6@EI>?$=5F$5E@$B@?786@{;$$$

]?@F@$6@=>X>SFE$6GE@C$85EE@8>$>5$>H5XHG9$6@=>X>SFE$6GE@CZ$G6>?5SI?$>?@$8G68S6G>@M$tS@S@$TG9$
@W8@@M$>?@$6@EI>?$5=$>?@$RG7E>@M$6@=>X>SFE$R58U@>Z$>?@$RF@C@E8@$5=$>?@$>H5XHG9$6@=>X>SFE$6GE@$
RF5B7M@C$GMM7>75EG6$C>5FGI@$GEM$G665HC$>?@$tS@S@$>5$GB57M$CR7667EI$7E>5$>?F5SI?$6GE@C;$$
\?@F@=5F@Z$tS@S@C$@W8@@M7EI$>?@$RG7E>@M$C>5FGI@$6@EI>?$7E$>?@C@$C7>SG>75EC$GF@$E5>$?7I?67I?>@M$
GC$@W7C>7EI$M@=787@E87@C$Y@8GSC@$>?@9$M5$E5>$85E>F7YS>@$>5$5R@FG>75EG6$RF5Y6@TC;$

]?@F@$F7I?>X>SFE$tS@S@C$@W8@@M$>?@$6@EI>?$5=$>?@$F7I?>X>SFE$6GE@Z$5R@FG>75EG6$RF5Y6@TC$M5$E5>$
>9R78G669$588SF$C7E8@$>?@$F7I?>X>SFE$6GE@$GEM$>?@$GM̂G8@E>$>?F5SI?$6GE@C$5R@FG>@$5E$>?@$CGT@$
>FG==78$C7IEG6$R?GC@;$$aE$C5T@$8GC@CZ$B@F9$65EI$F7I?>X>SFE$tS@S@C$8GE$@W>@EM$7E>5$>?F5SI?$6GE@C$
GEM$G==@8>$6GE@$S>767vG>75E;$$\?@$E@@M$=5F$T7>7IG>75E$5=$F7I?>X>SFE$tS@S@C$C?5S6M$Y@$YGC@M$5E$
@EI7E@@F7EI$̂SMIT@E>$5E$G$8GC@XY9X8GC@$YGC7C;$

181

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#��!!�

$
$

% % &'(')*+,-./-'')/-.+0)123%

4567879:;<=>?@7A>BCBDE@7;<F7GEFE=?:>;<7H;B>D>?>E=7

I$JKLMKNKOPMQ$KRSPOQ$KJ$TUQUVRKMUT$KN$P$SVWSWJUT$SVWXUOQ$YWZ[T$TKJVZSQ$WV$KRSUTU$U\KJQKML$WV$
S[PMMUT$QVPMJKQ]$̂KO_O[U]$WV$SUTUJQVKPM$NPOK[KQKUJ̀$

182

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#��!��

$
$

% % &'(')*+,-./-'')/-.+0)123%

4565789::;<59=9>?@;@5AB7CDED>DF?5

GHIJ$JKLMINO$PKJLQIRKJ$MHK$SKMHNPJ$TOP$LQIMKQIT$UJKP$MN$KVTWUTMK$XYZ$TOP$MQT[[IL$JI\OTW$
]TQQTOMĴ$

_̀abcbdefghigjfklebmenopikibqgfrlsloltpb

GHK$WKVKWJ$N[$JKQVILK$TOP$uvMHwxKQLKOMIWK$yUKUKJ$TM$MHK$JMUPz$IOMKQJKLMINOJ$]KQK$PKMKQSIOKP$
UJIO\$MHK$LNSxUMKQ$xQN\QTS$ZzOLHQN$u{$]HILH$IJ$RTJKP$NO$MHK$|}~����$xQNLKPUQKJ$[NQ$
LTWLUWTMIO\$WKVKWJ$N[$JKQVILK̂$$$

�NQ$JI\OTWI�KP$IOMKQJKLMINOJ$TOP$TWWw]TzwJMNxwLNOMQNWWKP$IOMKQJKLMINOJ{$MHK$NVKQTWW$IOMKQJKLMINO$
XYZ$TOP$MHK$TVKQT\K$PKWTz$xKQ$VKHILWK$TQK$xQKJKOMKP̂$$�NQ$NOKw]Tz$TOP$M]Nw]Tz$JMNxw
LNOMQNWWKP$IOMKQJKLMINOJ{$TO$NVKQTWW$IOMKQJKLMINO$XYZ$IJ$ONM$PK[IOKP$IO$MHK$|}~����̂$$
GHKQK[NQK{$[NQ$NOKw]Tz$TOP$M]Nw]Tz$JMNxwLNOMQNWWKP$IOMKQJKLMINOJ$MHK$XYZ$TOP$TVKQT\K$PKWTz$
xKQ$VKHILWK$[NQ$MHK$SNVKSKOM$]IMH$MHK$\QKTMKJM$PKWTz$IJ$QKxNQMKP̂$$$

�WMHNU\H$xKT�wHNUQ$MQT[[IL$VNWUSKJ$TQK$MzxILTWWz$UMIWI�KP$IO$MHK$NxKQTMINOTW$TOTWzJIJ$N[$
IOMKQJKLMINOJ{$MHK$|}~����$TLMUTWWz$UMIWI�KJ$MHK$xKT�$�vwSIOUMK$xKQINP$TJ$MHK$RTJIJ$[NQ$
NxKQTMINOTW$TOTWzJKJ$Rz$IOLNQxNQTMIO\$MHK$xKT�$HNUQ$[TLMNQ$��|��$IOMN$MHK$TOTWzJKĴ$$GHK$�|�$
IJ$MHK$QKWTMINOJHIx$RKM]KKO$xKT�wHNUQ$VNWUSKJ$TOP$xKT�$�vwSIOUMK$VNWUSKJ$LTWLUWTMKP$Rz$
PIVIPIO\$MHK$xKT�wHNUQ$VNWUSK$Rz$[NUQ$MISKJ$MHK$xKT�$�vwSIOUMK$VNWUSK̂$$�|�J$[NQ$MHK$
K�IJMIO\wLNOPIMINOJ{$K�IJMIO\wxWUJw�QN�KLM$LNOPIMINOJ{$TOP$OKTQwMKQS$LNOPIMINOJ$TOTWzJKJ$]KQK$
PKMKQSIOKP$RTJKP$NO$MHK$K�IJMIO\$MQT[[IL$VNWUSKĴ$$�M$IJ$MzxILTW$MQT[[IL$KO\IOKKQIO\$xQTLMILK$MN$
UMIWI�K$T$�|�$N[$�̂u�$IO$UQRTO$TQKTJ$IO$MHK$TRJKOLK$N[$[IKWP$PTMT̂$$|N]KVKQ{$JIOLK$MHK$�QN�KLM$
JIMK$IJ$OKTQ$T$JLHNNW$TOP$T$QKWTMIVKWz$]KWWwPKVKWNxKP$TQKT$OKTQ$PN]OMN]O{$IM$IJ$TJJUSKP$MHTM$
MHK$xKT�$HNUQ$[TLMNQJ$]IWW$ONM$LHTO\K$PQTSTMILTWWz$IO$MHK$[UMUQK̂$$GHKQK[NQK{$xKT�$HNUQ$[TLMNQJ$
JISIWTQ$MN$MHK$K�IJMIO\$LNOPIMINOJ$]KQK$UJKP$[NQ$MHK$zKTQ$���u$TOTWzJKĴ$

_̀�bcb�hn��kjb�ktenob�nhhnefib

GHK$}TWI[NQOIT$�KxTQMSKOM$N[$GQTOJxNQMTMINO$����������������������������� �����¡����¢����
£¤¥�¡¤¦�����§¢�¤¤¢¦���̈�©�ª«¬�¦®�̄°±²�³̈�¢���$�}~ Ǵ}��$xQKJKOMJ$VTQINUJ$]TQQTOM$
TOTWzJKJ$MN$TJJIJM$IO$KVTWUTMIO\$MHK$OKKP$[NQ$MQT[[IL$JI\OTWJ$TM$TO$IOMKQJKLMINÔ$$GQT[[IL$JI\OTW$
]TQQTOMJ$TQK$T$JKQIKJ$N[$LQIMKQIT$MHTM$xQNVIPK$\UIPKWIOKJ$[NQ$PKMKQSIOIO\$]HKMHKQ$T$MQT[[IL$
JI\OTW$IJ$TxxQNxQITMK$TM$T$\IVKO$IOMKQJKLMINÔ$$�[$NOK$NQ$SNQK$N[$MHK$JI\OTW$]TQQTOMJ$TQK$SKM{$
JI\OTWI�TMINO$N[$MHK$IOMKQJKLMINO$STz$RK$TxxQNxQITMK̂$$|N]KVKQ{$T$JI\OTW$WI�KWz$JHNUWP$ONM$RK$
IOJMTWWKP$I[$ONOK$NQ$[K]$N[$MHK$]TQQTOMJ$TQK$SKM$JIOLK$MHK$IOJMTWWTMINO$N[$JI\OTWJ$STz$IOLQKTJK$
PKWTzJ$NO$MHK$xQKVINUJWz$UOLNOMQNWWKP$ST�NQ$JMQKKM$TOP$STz$LNOMQIRUMK$MN$TO$IOLQKTJK$IO$
TLLIPKOMĴ$

GHK$IOJMTWWTMINO$N[$T$MQT[[IL$JI\OTW$LTO$JKQVK$TJ$SIMI\TMINO$]HKO$T$JI\OI[ILTOM$ISxTLM$IJ$
IPKOMI[IKP$TM$TO$UOJI\OTWI�KP$IOMKQJKLMINÔ$$ZIOLK$MHK$TOTWzJKJ$xQKJKOMKP$HKQKIO$TQK$RTJKP$NO$
xKT�$HNUQ$MQT[[IL$VNWUSKJ{$µTQQTOM$�{$�KT�$|NUQ$TJ$xQKJKOMKP$IO$MHK$}~ Ǵ}�$IJ$UMIWI�KP̂$$
�NQ$xUQxNJKJ$N[$MHIJ$JMUPz{$MQT[[IL$JI\OTWJ$TQK$LNOJIPKQKP$MN$RK$T$[KTJIRWK$SIMI\TMINO$I[$MHK$
xKT�wHNUQ$MQT[[IL$JI\OTW$]TQQTOM$IJ$SKM̂$

183

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#��!��

$
$

% % &'(')*+,-./-'')/-.+0)123%

45467689:;68<=>6?@AA@>9B6

CDE$FGHCFI$JKELEMNL$NDE$OPQQPRSMT$USLVWLLSPM$KEQXNSYE$NP$NDE$WLE$PO$ZC[\$LSTML]$

8̂_9<:>6̀a5bc68def68<=>6g;;h<_@9<:>B6

ijklmnopqr

st$uvrknvpwxpovkynxrz{pwprmr|j}}rxvy~rkxrnyvrnpopxxmw�rmvrm}}rvk�px�roynxklpwmvkynrx{yj}lr|kwxvr�pr�k�pnrvyr
jxkn�r}pxxrwpxvwkovk�pr�pmxjwpxrxjo{rmxr�����rxk�nxr�xppr�povkynxr�����rmnlr�������r

s�$�{prjxpry|r����rxk�nxrynrv{pr�knyw�xvwppvrm~~wymo{pxrx{yj}lr�proynxklpwplrk|rpn�knppwkn�r
�jl��pnvrknlkomvpxrv{mvrmrxvy~rkxrm}zm�xrwp�jkwplr�pomjxpry|rynprywr�ywpry|rv{pr|y}}yzkn�roynlkvkynxqr

u�r�{pr�p{koj}mwrvwm||kor�y}j�pxrynrv{prv{wyj�{rxvwppvrywr{k�{zm�rp�opplr�����r�p{ko}pxr~pwrlm��r

��rurwpxvwkovplr�kpzrp�kxvxrv{mvrwp�jkwpxrwymlrjxpwxrvyrxvy~rknrywlpwrvyrmlp�jmvp}�ry�xpw�pr
oyn|}kovkn�rvwm||korynrv{prv{wyj�{rxvwppvrywr{k�{zm��rmnl�ywr

��r�wmx{rwpoywlxrknlkomvprv{mvrv{wpprywr�ywprowmx{pxrv{mvrmwprxjxop~vk�}prvyroywwpovkynr��rv{pr
knxvm}}mvkynry|rmr����rxk�nr{m�pr�ppnrwp~ywvplrzkv{knrmr����ynv{r~pwkyl�rywrv{mvr|k�prywr�ywpr
xjo{rowmx{pxr{m�pr�ppnrwp~ywvplrzkv{knrmr���pmwr~pwkyl�r�jo{rowmx{pxrkno}jlprwk�{v�mn�}pr
oy}}kxkynxrkn�y}�kn�rwymlrjxpwxrynrv{pr�knyw�xvwppvrm~~wymo{r|mk}kn�rvyr�kp}lrv{prwk�{v�y|�zm�rvyr
vwm||korynrv{prv{wyj�{rxvwppvrywr{k�{zm��r

ZWJJPKN]$

s $CDE$WLE$PO$ZC[\$LSTML$XN$TKXUE$VKPLLSMTL$SL$UELVKS¡EU$SM$ZEVNSPML$¢£¤s¥$XMU$¢£¤s¦¤$

8̂_9<:>6̀a5b§6̈©h9<ª?@«689:;6g;;h<_@9<:>B6

ZWJJPKN]$

st$GWQNS¬RX$LNPJ$VPMNKPQ$VXM$¡E$WLEOWQ$XL$X$LXOEN$®EXLWKE$XN$SMNEKLEVNSPML$SO$VEKNXSM$NKXOOSV$VPMUSNSPML$
ĒSLN¤$$ZXOEN$VPMVEKML$XLLPVSXNEU$RSND$®WQNS¬RX$LNPJL$SMVQWUE$JEUELNKSXML°$¡SVVQSLNL°$XMU$XQQ$KPXU$
WLEKL$ĒJEVNSMT$PNDEK$KPXU$WLEKL$NP$LNPJ¤$GWQNS¬RX$LNPJ$VPMNKPQ$SL$WLEU$RDEKE$NDE$YPQW®E$PO$NKXOOSV$
PM$NDE$SMNEKLEVNSMT$KPXUL$SL$XJJKP̄S®XNEQ$E±WXQ¤$

s�$CDE$KELNKSVNSPML$PM$NDE$WLE$PO$ZC[\$LSTML$UELVKS¡EU$SM$ZEVNSPM$�£¤s¥$XQLP$XJJQ$NP$®WQNS¬RX$LNPJ$
XJJQSVXNSPML¤$

ijklmnopqr

s $�{prlpokxkynrvyrknxvm}}r�j}vk�zm�rxvy~roynvwy}rx{yj}lr�pr�mxplrynrmnrpn�knppwkn�rxvjl��r

s¥$�{pr|y}}yzkn�rowkvpwkmrx{yj}lr�proynxklpwplrknrv{prpn�knppwkn�rxvjl�r|ywrmr�j}vk�zm�r����rxk�nr
knxvm}}mvkynqr

u�r²{pwprvwm||koroynvwy}rxk�nm}xrmwpr�jxvk|kpl�rv{pr�j}vk�zm�rxvy~rkxrmnrknvpwk�r�pmxjwprv{mvromnr�pr
knxvm}}plr�jko³}�rvyroynvwy}rvwm||korz{k}prmwwmn�p�pnvxrmwpr�pkn�r�mlpr|ywrv{prknxvm}}mvkynry|rv{pr
vwm||koroynvwy}rxk�nm}�r

��ŕk�prywr�ywprwp~ywvplrowmx{pxrknrmr����ynv{r~pwkylrv{mvrmwprxjxop~vk�}prvyroywwpovkynr��rmr
�j}vk�zm�rxvy~rknxvm}}mvkyn�r�jo{rowmx{pxrkno}jlprwk�{v�vjwnrmnlr}p|v�vjwnroy}}kxkynxrmxrzp}}rmxr
wk�{v�mn�}proy}}kxkynx�r

184

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#��!$�

%
%

& & '()(*+,-./0.((*0./,1*234&

56789:9;<;7=>?<;@AB7

C7DE@7=@E9F<?GH7=>?<;@7@:I@H9:J7IE@79:I@HA@FI9>:7KH>;7IE@7;GL>H7AIH@@I7GMMH>GFE@A7NI>IG?7>K7
O>IE7GMMH>GFE@AP7G=@HGJ@A7GI7?@GAI7QRR7=@E9F?@A7M@H7E><H7K>H7G:S7T7E><HA7>K7G:7G=@HGJ@7UGSV7
G:U7

W67DE@7F>;O9:@U7=@E9F<?GHX7M@U@AIH9G:X7G:U7O9FSF?@7=>?<;@7@:I@H9:J7IE@79:I@HA@FI9>:7KH>;7IE@7
;9:>H7AIH@@I7GMMH>GFE@A7NI>IG?7>K7O>IE7GMMH>GFE@AP7G=@HGJ@A7GI7?@GAI7WRR7<:9IA7M@H7E><H7K>H7
IE@7AG;@7T7E><HAX7Y9IE7G:7G=@HGJ@7U@?GS7I>7;9:>HZAIH@@I7=@E9F<?GH7IHGKK9F7>K7GI7?@GAI7QR7
A@F>:UA7M@H7=@E9F?@7U<H9:J7IE@7E9JE@AI7E><HV7O<I7

Q67[K7IE@7T\IEZM@HF@:I9?@7GMMH>GFE7AM@@U7>K7IE@7;GL>HZAIH@@I7IHGKK9F7@]F@@UA7̂R7;MEX7IE@7
;9:9;<;7=@E9F<?GH7=>?<;@7YGHHG:IA7GH@7_R7M@HF@:I7>K7IE@7=G?<@A7MH>=9U@U79:7[I@;A7C7G:U7W67

6̀7aE@H@7:>7A9:J?@7FH9I@H9>:79A7AGI9AK9@UX7O<I7YE@H@75H9I@H9G7bX756CX7G:U756W7GH@7G??7AGI9AK9@U7I>7TR7
M@HF@:I7>K7IE@7;9:9;<;7=G?<@A675H9I@H9>:756Q79A7@]F?<U@U7KH>;7IE9A7F>:U9I9>:67

cdefghi%

jk%celmn%onfemnfp%elpe%qpr%sm%oghtfumnmu%fh%ph%mhvfhmmnfhv%tewur%fhoxwumi%

yz%{lm%hmmu%eg%oghengx%xm|e}ewnh%ogh|xfoet~%

�z%%lm%hmmu%eg%oghengx%�mlfoxm�dmumtenfph%ogh|xfoet%hmpn%xgopefght%elpe%vmhmnpem%lfvl%dmumtenfph%
�gxwqmt~%

�z%�gopefght%�lmnm%p%ngpu%wtmn�%p|emn%tegddfhv�%ophhge%tmm%ogh|xfoefhv%enp||fo%phu%ft%hge%psxm%eg%
hmvgefpem%elm%fhemntmoefgh%whxmtt%ogh|xfoefhv%ongtt%enp||fo%ft%pxtg%nm�wfnmu%eg%tegd~%phu%

�z%yh%fhemntmoefgh%g|%e�g%nmtfumhefpx%hmfvlsgnlggu%ogxxmoegn%�elngwvl�%tenmmet%g|%tfqfxpn%umtfvh%phu%
gdmnpefhv%olpnpoemnftefot%�lmnm%qwxef}�pr%tegd%oghengx%�gwxu%fqdng�m%enp||fo%gdmnpefghpx%
olpnpoemnftefot%g|%elm%fhemntmoefghz%

185

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#��!$�

%
%

& & '()(*+,-./0.((*0./,1*234&

567689:;<=>6>9?8@6

ABCDEDFGHIJKLDMGNODPJQJGRLNHQD

STUT%VWXYZ[\[%Z]%Û\%_]̀UZUaU\%Xb%cWT]̀VXWUTUZX]%d]eZ]\\Ẁ%f_cdg%hijklmnonipqjrolspotpuvl
wqxlyzjqjro{%TW\%U|VZ}T~~|%à\[%UX%\̀UZ�TU\%Û\%]a��\W%Xb%UWZV̀%T]UZ}ZVTU\[%UX%�\%e\]\WTU\[%�|%
VWXVX̀\[%VWX�\}Ù�%%�X�\Y\W{%_cd%[X\̀%]XU%}X]UTZ]%T%̀a�̀UT]UZT~%T�Xa]U%Xb%Z]bXW�TUZX]%bXW%
VWX�\}Ù%̀Z�Z~TW%UX%Û\%�T][�TW�%�X��X]̀%VWX�\}U�%%_]%ÛZ̀%}T̀\{%�WX�\}U�̀V\}ZbZ}%
}̂TWT}U\WZ̀UZ}̀%T][%~X}T~%Z]bXW�TUZX]%TW\%à\ba~%bXW%\̀UZ�TUZ]e%Û\%VWXVX̀\[%�WX�\}U%UWZV%
e\]\WTUZX]�%%%

_]bXW�TUZX]%X]%}aWW\]U%̀\]ZXW%}\]U\W%T}UZYZUZ\̀%T][%UWT]̀ZU%XV\WTUZX]̀%�\W\%VWXYZ[\[%�|%�ZU|%
ÙTbb�%%ĉ\%UWZV̀%e\]\WTU\[%�|%Û\̀\%}aWW\]U%T}UZYZUZ\̀%�\W\%\̀UZ�TU\[%[aWZ]e%[Z̀}à Z̀X]̀%�ZÛ%
�ZU|%̀UTbb%T][%TW\%aUZ~Z�\[%T̀%Û\%]\TW�U\W�%\̀UZ�TU\%Xb%UWZV%e\]\WTUZX]%bXW%Û\%VWXVX̀\[%̀\]ZXW%
}\]U\W%T][%UWT]̀ZU%}\]U\W�%%%

��̀\WYTUZX]̀%�\W\%�T[\%TU%Û\%\�Z̀UZ]e%�~XYZ̀%~Z�WTW|%T][%T%~X}T~%UWZV%e\]\WTUZX]%}Xa]U%�T̀%
V\WbXW�\[%TU%Û\%\�Z̀UZ]e%~Z�WTW|%]\TW%Û\%Z]U\Ẁ\}UZX]%Xb%�̂T�V~TZ]%T][%�\WWZ]%�Y\]a\̀%Z]%
�W\̀]X{%�T~ZbXW]ZT�%%ĉ\%~Z�WTW|%]\TW%�̂T�V~TZ]%T][%�\WWZ]%�Y\]a\̀%�T̀%}̂X̀\]%�\}Tà\%Û\%
Z̀]e~\�à\%VTW�Z]e%~XU%T][%�aZ~[Z]e%~X}TUZX]%bT}Z~ZUTU\%UWTbbZ}%}Xa]Ù{%Û\%~Z�WTW|%Z̀%̀Z�Z~TW%Z]%
Z̀�\%UX%Û\%VWXVX̀\[%~Z�WTW|{%T][%ZU%Z̀%\�V\}U\[%UX%VWXYZ[\%T%W\T̀X]T�~\%~X}T~%Y\WZbZ}TUZX]%Xb%
Û\%_cd%\̀UZ�TU\̀�%%ĉ\%W\̀a~Ù%Xb%Û\%~X}T~%UWZV%e\]\WTUZX]%}Xa]Ù%TW\%VW\̀\]U\[%Z]%
�VV\][Z�%�%T][%̀aee\̀U%ÛTU%_cd%VW\̀\]Ù%T%W\T̀X]T�~\%\̀UZ�TU\%Xb%~Z�WTW|%UWZV̀�%

cT�~\̀%���%T][%���%VW\̀\]U%Û\%UWZV%e\]\WTUZX]%\̀UZ�TU\̀%bXW%Û\%�WX�\}U�%

MR��JDABCD
FGHIJKLD�J�NK�JDMGNODPJQJGRLNHQDED�JRG�MJG�D

�HKRLNHQD M�OJDH�DMGNOD
�B�BDFJR�D�H GD¡¢KK G£D
�JL¤JJQD¥¦§§DRQ̈D©¦§§DRB�BªD

FB�BDFJR�D�H GD¡¢KK G£D
�JL¤JJQDA¦§§DRQ̈D«¦§§DOB�BªD ¬RN��D

_]% �aU% cXUT~% _]% �aU% cXUT~%

cWT]̀ZU%�\]U\W%
UTe\~Z]\%�Z�\[%®XaU\% %̄ %̄ �°% %̄ %̄ % �±̄%
®Xa][aV%SWZY\W%²W\T�̀% ±% ±% ±% �% �% �% ��%

\]ZXW%�\]U\W%

d�V~X|\\% °% ±% °% ±% °% °% ��%
�~XYZ̀%®Xa][aV% ³% ³% °% ³% ³% °% �̄%
Ź̀ZUXW%́\̂Z}~\̀% �µ% µ% �̄% �̄% �̄% ³°% ��±%
_]̀UWa}UXẀ% �% ±% �% �% �% �% �°%

�Z�WTW|% d�V~X|\\̀%T][%́Z̀ZUXẀ% �³% ¶% ³�% �±�% ���% ��¶% �{°̄ %̄
M¢M��·D ¥̧D ¹̧D º§D C»¥D Ç»D ¹¥̧D ¹¼¹AºD

®\b\W\]}\½%%hijklmnonipqjrolspotpuvlwqxlyzjqjrovl¾o¿qjqtqnlrÀlhipo¿kriqpqjrolyoÁjonni¿lÂÃÄÂlbXW%�Z�WTW|%
f�T][%Å̀\%µ¶±{%T���%WTU\½%��±�%UWZV̀%V\W%�{±±±%̀ÆaTW\%b\\U{%Ç�È%\]U\WZ]eÉ%V���%WTU\½%Ç�³±%UWZV̀%V\W%�{±±±%̀ÆaTW\%
b\\U{%�̄È%\]U\WZ]eÉ%[TZ~|%WTU\½%µ°���%UWZV̀%V\W%�{±±±%̀ÆaTW\%b\\Ug%%%
STZ~|%YX~a�\̀%TW\%}X��Z]\[%\]U\WZ]e%T][%\�ZUZ]e�%
%

_U%̀̂Xa~[%�\%]XU\[%ÛTU%Û\%̀\]ZXW%}\]U\W%T][%~Z�WTW|%~Z̀U\[%Z]%cT�~\%���%}aWW\]U~|%XV\WTU\%]\TW%
Û\%̀ZU\{%�̂Z~\%®Xa][aV%[WZY\Ẁ%U|VZ}T~~|%UT�\%�W\T�̀%]\TW%Û\%̀\]ZXW%}\]U\W{%T][%Û\̀\%UWZV̀%
TW\%U|VZ}T~~|%T~W\T[|%X}}aWWZ]e%TU%Û\%̀Ua[|%Z]U\Ẁ\}UZX]̀�%%_U%Z̀%\�V\}U\[%ÛTU%Û\%\�Z̀UZ]e%
~Z�WTW|%�Z~~%�\%aUZ~Z�\[%bXW%�ZU|%̀UTbb%XbbZ}\̀%ÛTU%}aWW\]U~|%TW\%~X}TU\[%Z]%�X[a~TW%�aZ~[Z]è%
ÛTU%�Z~~%�\%W\�XY\[�%%_U%Z̀%T~̀X%\�V\}U\[%ÛTU%Û\%\�Z̀UZ]e%̀\]ZXW%}\]U\W%�Z~~%�\%Z]}XWVXWTU\[%
Z]UX%Û\%\�Z̀UZ]e%~T�%̀}̂XX~%bXW%T%~T�%~Z�WTW|%ÛTU%Z̀%\�V\}U\[%UX%e\]\WTU\%T%]\e~ZeZ�~\%]a��\W%
Xb%]\�%UWZV̀�%

186

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#��!"�

$
$

% % &'(')*+,-./-'')/-.+0)123%

456789:;<9
=>?@8AB9C8DEA7894>EF9G8H8>5BE?H9I9JKBK>89

L?A5BE?H9 4MF89?N94>EF9
O;P;9=85Q9R?K>9STAAK>U9
68BV88H9WXYY95HZ9[XYY95;\;]9

=;P;9=85Q9R?K>9STAAK>U9
68BV88H9:XYY95HZ9̂XYY9F;\;]9 _5E7M9

à$ bcd$ efdgh$ à$ bcd$ efdgh$

eigajkd$lmadmi$
ndgomhkam$pkqmr$sfcdm$ tu$ tu$ vw$ tu$ tu$ x$ ytu$
sfcarcz${ik|mi$}img~j$ x$ x$ x$ y$ y$ �$ y�$

nmakfi$lmadmi$

��zhf�mm$ tw$ x$ tw$ x$ tw$ tw$ y�$
lhf|kj$sfcarcz$ u$ u$ tw$ u$ u$ tw$ �u$
�kjkdfi$�m�k�hmj$ vx$ tx$ vu$ vu$ vu$ �w$ y�x$
àjdic�dfij$ y$ x$ y$ y$ y$ �$ vw$

�k�igi�$ ��zhf�mmj$gar$�kjkdfij$ wv$ �$ vw$ txy$ tty$ wt�$ t�u��$
4T4OL�9 [�9 :�9 �<�9 �WY9 �[<9 ���9 <��Y�9

sm�mima�m�$$���������������������� �¡�¢�£¤����� �¥�¦��������§�����¦����������£�̈�����¦�©ª«©��fi$�k�igi�$
{gkh�$|fhc�mj$gim$�f��kamr$madmikao$gar$mqkdkao¬$
$

eg�hm$y¬w$zimjmadj$�cdcim$dikz$omamigdkfa$mjdk�gdmj$�fi$d�m$�gjm$ka$�k��$digajkd$�madmi$dikzj$
gar$jmakfi$�madmi$dikzj$gim$mqzm�dmr$df$rfc�hm$ka$wx$�mgij�$zmi$rkj�cjjkfaj$kd�$lkd�$jdg���$gj$
d�m$zfzchgdkfa$f�$lhf|kj$ka�imgjmj$gar$jmakfi$�madmi$jmi|k�mj$gim$mqzgarmr¬$$e�m$hk�igi�$dikzj$
gim$afd$rfc�hmr$ka$eg�hm$y¬w$�m�gcjm$d�m$̀e�$dikz$omamigdkfa$igdmj$gim$�fajdgad$�gjmr$fa$d�m$
jk®m$f�$d�m$�g�khkd�¬$$

ḡjj°��$dikzj$gar$kadmiaghh�°�gzdcimr$dikzj$gim$mqzm�dmr$df$�m$amohkok�hm$gar$mim$afd$
�fajkrmimr$ka$d�m$gagh�jmj¬$

:;<9I9=>?@8AB94>EF9_EUB>E6KBE?H95HZ9OUUE±H\8HB9

e�m$imokfagh$rkjdik�cdkfa$f�$̄if²m�d$dikzj$gj$mjdk�gdmr$�gjmr$fa$mqkjdkao$dig��k�$|fhc�mj�$
mqkjdkao$digajzfidgdkfa$�g�khkdkmj�$�f�zhm�madgi�$hgar$cjmj�$lkd�$�fcargikmj�$gar$maokammikao$
²cro�mad¬$$$

e�m$zmi�madgom$rkjdik�cdkfa$f�$̄if²m�d$dig��k�$kj$zimjmadmr$ka$d�m$gddg��mr$pkocim$y°t�$̄if²m�d$
eikz${kjdik�cdkfa$̄mi�madgomj¬$$$

e�m$zmg~°�fci$̄if²m�d$dig��k�$|fhc�mj$zimjmadmr$ka$eg�hmj$y¬t$gar$y¬w$mim$gjjkoamr$df$d�m$
jdcr�$kadmijm�dkfaj$ka$g��firga�m$kd�$d�m$dikz$rkjdik�cdkfa$zmi�madgomj$rmj�ik�mr$g�f|m¬$$e�m$
zmg~°�fci$̄if²m�d$dig��k�$|fhc�mj$gim$zimjmadmr$ka$pkocim$y°w�$³mgi°emi�$́¬µ¬$gar$̄¬µ¬$
m̄g~$¶fci$̄if²m�d$eig��k�$�fhc�mj�$gar$pkocim$y°v�$pcdcim$́¬µ¬$gar$̄¬µ¬$̄mg~$¶fci$
īf²m�d$eig��k�$�fhc�mj¬$

:;�9I9C8DEA789PE78U94>5·878Z9SCP4]9

e�m$pimjaf$lfca�kh$f�$̧f|mia�madj$¹lb̧ º$�gkadgkaj$g$dig|mh$�frmh$d�gd$kj$d�zk�ghh�$cjmr$df$
�fim�gjd$dig��k�$|fhc�mj¬$$̄if²m�d$ka�fi�gdkfa$gj$zif|krmr$df$lb̧ $df$zmi�fi�$̄if²m�d°
jzm�k�k�$jmhm�d$®fam$gagh�jmj$�fi$d�m$zcizfjmj$f�$mjdk�gdkao$d�m$g|migom$ac��mi$f�$|m�k�hm$
�khmj$dig|mhmr$zmi$̄if²m�d$dikz¬$$e�m$�frmhkao$im|mghmr$d�gd$d�m$g|migom$hmaod�$f�$dikzj$
omamigdmr$��$d�m$̄if²m�d$khh$�m$u¬v$�khmj¬$$pfi$�f�zgikjfa$zcizfjmj�$d�m$g|migom$fi~°�gjmr$
dikz$hmaod�$ka$d�m$pimjaf$lfcad�$imokfa$kj$gzzifqk�gdmh�$tt$df$tw$�khmj¬$

à$omamigh�$ghd�fco�$rk��k�chd$df$»cgadk���$kd$kj$gadk�kzgdmr$d�gd$d�m$̄if²m�d$khh$�fadik�cdm$df$g$
imrc�dkfa$ka$d�m$f|mighh$ac��mi$f�$|m�k�hm$�khmj$dig|mhmr$ka$d�m$lkd�$f�$lhf|kj$��$
g��f��frgdkao$gcdf�f�khm�$digajkd�$zmrmjdikga�$gar$�k���hm$�frmj$f�$dig|mh$¹kd�$�fa|makmad$

187

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#��!$�

%
%

& & '()(*+,-./0.((*0./,1*234&

56789:;6%<;5=;;8%>?@;9A%8;76%6;BC?87D%@;95C875C?89%9EFG%79%5G;%DC<676HI%9;8C?6%F;85;6I%FCJCF%
F;85;6I%78@%@?=85?=8%KD?JC9L%%

188

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#��!$�

%
%

& & '()(*+,-./0.((*0./,1*234&

567689:;<:=>6?@=A:<:@=;6

BCDEFEGHIJKILMENOPQRPSETUKROVWE

XYZ%[\]̂Z_̀%a]_b̀c]d%bde%̀YZ%f̀geh%cd̀Z\fZ_̀c]df%b\Z%caagf̀\b̀Ze%cd%icjg\Z%klmn%ògeh%
pd̀Z\fZ_̀c]dfq%%XYZ%[\]̂Z_̀%f̀geh%b\Zb%cd_ageZf%fZrZd%cd̀Z\fZ_̀c]dfq%%XYZ%Zscf̀cdj%abdZ%
_]dtcjg\b̀c]df%bde%cd̀Z\fZ_̀c]d%_]d̀\]a%b̀%̀YZ%f̀geh%cd̀Z\fZ_̀c]df%b\Z%caagf̀\b̀Ze%cd%icjg\Z%ulkn%
vscf̀cdj%wbdZ%x]dtcjg\b̀c]df%bde%pd̀Z\fZ_̀c]d%x]d̀\]aq%%yZf_\cz̀c]df%]t%̀YZ%{b̂]\%\]be|bhf%
dZb\%̀YZ%[\]̂Z_̀%fc̀Z%b\Z%z\ZfZd̀Ze%}Za]|q%%

~�O�IJE��UL�U%cf%b%d]\̀Ylf]g̀Y%\]be|bh%Zs̀Zdecdj%̀Y\]gjY%̀YZ%Zd̀c\Z%aZdj̀Y%]t%̀YZ%xc̀h%]t%
xa]rcf%bde%cd̀]%̀YZ%xc̀h%]t%i\Zfd]%̀]%̀YZ%f]g̀Yq%%XYZ%xa]rcf%�ZdZ\ba%[abd%eZfcjdb̀Zf%xa]rcf%
�rZdgZ%bf%bd%b\̀Z\cba%f̀\ZZ̀q%%xa]rcf%�rZdgZ%_]dfcf̀f%]t%̀|]%abdZf%cd%Zb_Y%ec\Z_̀c]d%b̀%̀YZ%
f̀geh%a]_b̀c]dfq%%XYZ%z]f̀Ze%fzZZe%ac{c̀%]d%xa]rcf%�rZdgZ%cf%mu%{caZ%zZ\%Y]g\%�{zY�%f]g̀Y%]t%
ocZ\\b%�rZdgZ%bde%��%{zY%d]\̀Y%]t%ocZ\\b%�rZdgZq%

�UKUVPLJE�PS%�t]\{Z\ah%�gjYZf%�rZdgZ�%cf%b%d]\̀Ylf]g̀Y%a]_ba%f̀\ZZ̀%|c̀Y%]dZ%abdZ%cd%Zb_Y%
ec\Z_̀c]d%}Z̀|ZZd%XYc\e%ò\ZZ̀%bde%ict̀Y%ò\ZZ̀q%%XYZ%fzZZe%ac{c̀%]d%�Z̀Z\bdf%�bh%cf%d]̀%
z]f̀Zeq%%�__]\ecdj%̀]%xbact]\dcb%�ZYc_aZ%x]eZ%�x�x�%oZ_̀c]d%��mu�n%̀YZ%z\c{b%tb_cZ%fzZZe%
]d%�Z̀Z\bdf%�bh%cf%�u%{zYq%

�IUVVPE��UL�U%cf%bd%Zbf̀l|Zf̀%\]be|bh%|c̀Y%]dZ%abdZ%cd%Zb_Y%ec\Z_̀c]d%Zs̀Zdecdj%̀]%
ogddhfceZ%�rZdgZ%̀]%̀YZ%Zbf̀%bde%cd̀]%̀YZ%xc̀h%]t%i\Zfd]%̀]%̀YZ%|Zf̀q%%XYZ%xa]rcf%�ZdZ\ba%
[abd%eZfcjdb̀Zf%ocZ\\b%�rZdgZ%bf%b%_]aaZ_̀]\%f̀\ZZ̀%|Zf̀%]t%xa]rcf%�rZdgZ%bde%b%a]_ba%f̀\ZZ̀%
Zbf̀%]t%xa]rcf%�rZdgZq%%XYZ%z]f̀Ze%fzZZe%ac{c̀%]d%ocZ\\b%�rZdgZ%cf%��%{zY%|Zf̀%]t%xa]rcf%
�rZdgZ%bde%�u%{zY%Zbf̀%]t%xa]rcf%�rZdgZq%

�U�OLQE�KVUUK%cf%bd%Zbf̀l|Zf̀%a]_ba%\]be%|c̀Y%]dZ%abdZ%cd%Zb_Y%ec\Z_̀c]d%Zs̀Zdecdj%}Z̀|ZZd%
xa]rcf%�rZdgZ%b̀%̀YZ%Zbf̀%Zde%bde%yZ�c̀̀%�rZdgZ%b̀%̀YZ%|Zf̀%Zdeq%%XYZ%fzZZe%ac{c̀%]d%
oZ_]de%ò\ZZ̀%cf%d]̀%z]f̀Zeq%%�__]\ecdj%̀]%x�x%oZ_̀c]d%��mu�n%̀YZ%z\c{b%tb_cZ%fzZZe%]d%
oZ_]de%ò\ZZ̀%cf%�u%{zYq%

��IVQE�KVUUK%cf%bd%Zbf̀l|Zf̀%\]be|bh%|c̀Y%]dZ%abdZ%cd%Zb_Y%ec\Z_̀c]d%Zs̀Zdecdj%̀]%ogddhfceZ%
�rZdgZ%̀]%̀YZ%Zbf̀%�bde%_]d̀cdgcdj%bf%X]aaY]gfZ%�]be%̀]%̀YZ%d]\̀YZbf̀�%bde%̀]%�cddZ|b|b%
�rZdgZ%̀]%̀YZ%|Zf̀q%%XYZ%xa]rcf%�ZdZ\ba%[abd%eZfcjdb̀Zf%XYc\e%ò\ZZ̀%bf%b%_]aaZ_̀]\%f̀\ZZ̀%
}Z̀|ZZd%xa]rcf%�rZdgZ%bde%ogddhfceZ%�rZdgZq%%p̀%cf%eZfcjdb̀Ze%bf%b%a]_ba%f̀\ZZ̀%|Zf̀%]t%
xa]rcf%�rZdgZq%%XYZ%z]f̀Ze%fzZZe%ac{c̀%]d%XYc\e%ò\ZZ̀%|Zf̀%]t%xa]rcf%�rZdgZ%cf%�u%{zYq%%pd%
ỲZ%Zbf̀}]gde%ec\Z_̀c]d%b%fzZZe%ac{c̀%]t%��%{zY%cf%z]f̀Ze%Zbf̀%]t%xa]rcf%�rZdgZq%%�]|ZrZ\n%
ỲZ%fzZZe%ac{c̀%cd%̀YZ%|Zf̀}]gde%ec\Z_̀c]d%cf%d]̀%z]f̀Ze%]d%XYc\e%ò\ZZ̀%Zbf̀%]t%xa]rcf%
�rZdgZq%%XYZ%dZb\Zf̀%fzZZe%ac{c̀%fcjd%cd%̀YZ%|Zf̀}]gde%ec\Z_̀c]d%Zbf̀%]t%xa]rcf%�rZdgZ%
Zscf̀f%]d%X]aaY]gfZ%�]be%�|Yc_Y%cf%ZffZd̀cbaah%̀YZ%Zs̀Zdfc]d%]t%XYc\e%ò\ZZ̀%Zbf̀%]t%
ogddhfceZ%�rZdgZ�%bzz\]sc{b̀Zah%���%tZZ̀%Zbf̀%]t%ogddhfceZ%�rZdgZ%|c̀Y%b%z]f̀Ze%ac{c̀%]t%
mu%{zYq%

�O�VK�E�KVUUK%cf%bd%Zbf̀l|Zf̀%a]_ba%\]be%|c̀Y%]dZ%abdZ%cd%Zb_Y%ec\Z_̀c]d%Zs̀Zdecdj%}Z̀|ZZd%
xa]rcf%�rZdgZ%b̀%̀YZ%Zbf̀%Zde%bde%�cddZ|b|b%�rZdgZ%b̀%̀YZ%|Zf̀%Zdeq%%XYZ%fzZZe%ac{c̀%]d%
i]g\̀Y%ò\ZZ̀%cf%d]̀%z]f̀Zeq%%�__]\ecdj%̀]%x�x%oZ_̀c]d%��mu�n%̀YZ%z\c{b%tb_cZ%fzZZe%]d%
i]g\̀Y%ò\ZZ̀%cf%�u%{zYq%

189

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#��!$�

%
%

& & '()(*+,-./0.((*0./,1*234&

56789:;8<==8%>?%@A%B@?CDEB?C%FG@HE@I%E>CJ%GAB%K@AB%>A%B@LJ%H>FBLC>GA%LGAABLC>AM%CG%NOKK@FH%
PQBAOB%AB@F%R>AABE@E@%PQBAOB%CG%CJB%EB?C%@AH%LGAABLC>AM%CG%NOKK@FH%PQBAOB%AB@F%
SOAAI?>HB%PQBAOBT%%UJB%VKGQ>?%WBABF@K%XK@A%HB?>MA@CB?%Y>ZCJ%SCFBBC%@?%@A%@FCBF>@K%?CFBBC%
[BCEBBA%VKGQ>?%PQBAOB%@AH%SOAAI?>HB%PQBAOBT%%UJB%\G?CBH%?\BBH%K>]>C%GA%Y>ZCJ%SCFBBC%>?%̂_%
]\JT%

àb:c:de6f86gh:i<jgf68:;=<k6l=:

VKGQ>?%UF@A?>C%SC@MBK>AB%\FGQ>HB?%[O?%?BFQ>LB%CG%CJB%VKGQ>?%@FB@T%%VKGQ>?%UF@A?>C%SC@MBK>AB%
mGOCB%no%>ALKOHB?%@%?CG\%GA%S>BFF@%PQBAOB%EB?C%GZ%pBq>CC%PQBAOB%@AH%GA%Y>ZCJ%SCFBBC%B@?C%GZ%
VKGQ>?%PQBAOBT%

VKGQ>?%UF@A?>C%mGOAH%r\%GZZBF?%?BFQ>LB%CJFGOMJGOC%CJB%]BCFG\GK>C@A%@FB@s%\FGQ>H>AM%F>HB?%ZGF%
H>?@[KBH%FB?>HBAC?%GZ%VKGQ>?%EJG%ABBH%CG%CF@QBK%>A%VKGQ>?s%YFB?AG%@AH%AB@F[I%@FB@?T%%m>HBF?%
]O?C%LG]\KBCB%@AH%?O[]>C%@A%P]BF>L@A?%E>CJ%p>?@[>K>C>B?%PLC%ZGF]%@AH%[B%@\\FGQBH%ZGF%
BK>M>[>K>CI%[BZGFB%O?>AM%mGOAH%r\%ZGF%CJB%Z>F?C%C>]BT%

UF@A?>C%[O?B?%FOA%GA%@%?LJBHOKB%ZGF%n̂%CG%nt%JGOF?%\BF%H@IT%

UJB%LOFFBAC%VKGQ>?%UF@A?>C%ZKBBC%>?%LG]\F>?BH%GZ%CJB%ZGKKGE>AM%QBJ>LKB?s%E>CJ%CJB%CI\B%GZ%ZOBK%
O?BH%@K?G%K>?CBHu%

vwnx%WK@Q@K%̂yDZGGCDKGAM%LOC@E@I%?CIKB%zGAB%O?B?%M@?GK>ABs%CJB%FB]@>AHBF%O?B%H>B?BK{%
vwUEG%WK@Q@K%|̂DZGGCDKGAM%LOC@E@I%?CIKB%zM@?GK>AB{%
vw}AB%~K%pGF@HG%̂̂ DZGGCDKGAM%LOC@E@I%?CIKB%zH>B?BK{%
vwS>�%PmN}V%KGEDZKGGF%̂xDZGGCDKGAM%LOC@E@I%?CIKB%zH>B?BK{%
vwUJFBB%WG?JBA%|̂DZGGCDKGAM%LOC@E@I%?CIKB%zH>B?BK{%
vwUEG%VJ@]\>GA%pBZBAHBF?%|tDZGGCDKGAM%zH>B?BK{%

VKGQ>?%UF@A?>C%?C@ZZ%B�\BLC?%CG%B�\@AH%CG%ZOKKD?>�B%[O?B?%zto%ZBBC%>A%KBAMCJ{%>A%CJB%ZOCOFB�%
CJBFBZGFBs%CJB%XFG�BLC%E>KK%[B%HB?>MABH%CG%@LLG]]GH@CB%K@FMB%[O?B?T%%UJBFB%>?%AG%C>]BK>AB%ZGF%
B�\@A?>GA%CG%K@FMBF%[O?B?s%EJ>LJ%E>KK%[B%[@?BH%GA%HB]@AH�%JGEBQBFs%[O?B?%K@FMBF%CJ@A%|_%
ZBBC%>A%KBAMCJ%@FB%AGC%B�\BLCBH%CG%[B%OC>K>�BH%E>CJ>A%CJB%AB�C%no%IB@F?T%

UJBFB%@FB%AG%LOFFBAC%\K@A?%CG%LGAQBFC%CG%BKBLCF>L%GF%A@COF@K%M@?%[O?B?T%%%

VKGQ>?%UF@A?>C%>?%\K@AA>AM%CG%>ALKOHB%ZOAH?%ZGF%@%LGA?OKC@AC%>A%CJB%̂onyD̂on�%Z>?L@K%[OHMBC%CG%
\BFZGF]%@%?COHI%CG%BQ@KO@CB%CJB%FGOCB?s%?LJBHOKB?s%@AH%LGGFH>A@C>GA%E>CJ%YFB?AGT%%UJB%?COHI%
E>KK%@??>?C%>A%HB?>MA>AM%ABE%FGOCB?%CJ@C%OC>K>�B%CJB%\FG\G?BH%UF@A?>C%VBACBF%ZGF%CF@A?ZBF?T%

190

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#��� �

$
$

% % &'(')*+,-./-'')/-.+0)123%

4567879:;<=;>?7@;ABACD7EFA;C;=;D<7

GHI$JKLL$MNOPQR$SQTUTNI$GVWXRYOVZWZQOX$[NWX$\SG[]$TNWRRQ̂QIR$_Q̀IaWUR$WR$̂ONNOaRb$

cdMNWRR$e$f$SQ̀I$[WZHb$$ĝ ĥRZVIIZ$_Q̀I$YWZHR$WVI$̂WTQNQZQIR$̂OV$iRI$IjTNiRQPINU$_U$_QTUTNIR$
WXk$YIkIRZVQWXRl$aQZH$mQXQmWN$TVORRĥNOa$_U$mOZOV$PIHQTNIRn$GHIU$WVI$ÔZIX$NOTWZIk$QX$
W$RIYWVWZI$VQoHZ$Ô$aWUn$$

cdMNWRR$ee$f$SQ̀I$pWXIb$$SQ̀I$NWXIR$WVI$WVIWR$aQZHQX$YWPIk$RZVIIZR$ZHWZ$WVI$QkIXZQ̂QIk$
aQZH$RZVQYQXol$RZIXTQNRl$WXk$RQoXR$̂OV$YVÎIVIXZQWN$\RImQhIjTNiRQPI]$_QTUTNI$iRIn$$

cdMNWRR$eee$f$SQ̀I$qOiZIb$$OXhRZVIIZ$VOiZIR$QXZIXkIk$ZO$YVOPQkI$TOXZQXiQZU$ZO$ZHI$_Q̀IaWU$
RURZImn$SQ̀I$VOiZIR$WVI$kIRQoXWZIk$_U$RQoXR$OV$YIVmWXIXZ$mWV̀QXoR$WXk$WVI$RHWVIk$_U$
mOZOVQRZRn$$

GHI$MNOPQR$gNk$GOaX$GVWQNl$W$MNWRR$e$_Q̀I$YWZHl$ViXR$oIXIVWNNU$YWVWNNIN$ZO$WXk$IWRZ$Ô$MNOPQR$
rPIXiI$QX$ZHI$RZikU$WVIWl$WXk$QR$WksWTIXZ$ZO$ZHI$aIRZIVX$_OiXkWVU$Ô$ZHI$[VOsITZ$RQZIn$$GHI$
YWZH$ViXR$WNOXo$ZHI$aIRZ$RQkI$Ô$tIZIVWXR$uWU$WXk$TOXZQXiIR$YWVWNNIN$aQZH$MNOPQR$rPIXiI$
ROiZH$Ô$vQ̂ZH$wZVIIZn$

GHI$VOWkaWUR$WXk$QXZIVRITZQOXR$QX$ZHI$RZikU$WVIW$WVI$ZUYQTWNNU$XOZ$aQkI$IXOioH$ZO$
WTTOmmOkWZI$MNWRR$ee$_Q̀I$NWXIRl$aQZH$ZHI$IjTIYZQOX$ZHWZ$MNWRR$ee$_Q̀I$NWXIR$IjQRZ$OX$wQIVVW$
rPIXiI$aIRZ$Ô$MNOPQR$rPIXiIn$

GHI$SG[$YVOYORIR$̂iZiVI$MNWRR$eee$_Q̀I$VOiZIR$OX$GHQVk$wZVIIZ$_IZaIIX$tIZIVWXR$uWU$WXk$
wiXXURQkI$rPIXiIl$OX$vQ̂ZH$wZVIIZ$_IZaIIX$ZHI$aIRZIVX$WXk$IWRZIVX$TOXXITZQOXR$ZO$SiNNWVk$
rPIXiIl$WXk$OX$wQIVVW$rPIXiI$_IZaIIX$MNOPQR$rPIXiI$WXk$wiXXURQkI$rPIXiIn$

45x7879:;<=;>?7yDzD<={;F>7EFA;C;=;D<7

wQkIaWǸR$WXk$YIkIRZVQWX$̂WTQNQZQIRl$RiTH$WR$TVORRaWǸR$WXk$YIkIRZVQWX$RQoXWNRl$WVI$aINN$
IRZW_NQRHIk$ZHVOioHOiZ$ZHI$RZikU$WVIWn$$$

4547879:;<=;>?7|{F}};A7~�C��D<7

�jQRZQXo$YIẀhHOiV$ZVŴ̂QT$PONimIR$aIVI$kIZIVmQXIk$_U$YIV̂OVmQXo$mWXiWN$ZiVXQXo$
mOPImIXZ$TOiXZR$WZ$IWTH$Ô$ZHI$RZikU$QXZIVRITZQOXRn$$GHI$ZVŴ̂QT$TOiXZR$aIVI$YIV̂OVmIk$OX$
aIÌkWUR$_IZaIIX$�bKK$WXk$�bKK$Wnmn$WXk$_IZaIIX$�bKK$WXk$�bKK$Ynmn$$GHI$TOiXZR$aIVI$
YIV̂OVmIk$aHQNI$RTHOON$aWR$QX$RIRRQOX$WXk$aIVI$XOZ$YIV̂OVmIk$OX$HONQkWURn$$GHI$ZVŴ̂QT$
TOiXZR$QXTNikIk$W$kIZIVmQXWZQOX$Ô$ZHI$Xim_IV$Ô$HIWPU$PIHQTNIR$\PIHQTNIR$aQZH$ZHVII$OV$mOVI$
WjNIR]$OX$IWTH$ZiVXQXo$mOPImIXZn$$GHI$ZVŴ̂QT$TOiXZ$kWZW$RHIIZR$WVI$WZZWTHIk$QX$rYYIXkQj$S$
WXk$QXTNikI$ZHI$kWZI$ZHI$TOiXZR$aIVI$YIV̂OVmIkn$$eX$WkkQZQOXl$[IZIVR$�XoQXIIVQXo$�VOiY$RZŴ̂$
O_RIVPIk$ZHI$RZikU$QXZIVRITZQOXR$kiVQXo$YIẀ$YIVQOkRn$$

GHI$QXZIVRITZQOX$ZiVXQXo$mOPImIXZ$TOiXZR$VIPIWN$ZHWZ$HIWPU$PIHQTNIR$\ZHVII$OV$mOVI$WjNIR]$
TOmYVQRI$NIRR$ZHWX$OXI$YIVTIXZ$Ô$ZHI$ZOZWN$PONimI$Ô$ZVŴ̂QT$WZ$IPIVU$RZikU$QXZIVRITZQOX$
kiVQXo$_OZH$ZHI$Wnmn$WXk$Ynmn$YIẀ$HOiVRn$

�jQRZQXo$YIẀhHOiV$ZiVXQXo$mOPImIXZ$PONimIR$WZ$ZHI$RZikU$QXZIVRITZQOXR$WVI$YVIRIXZIk$QX$
vQoiVI$�hJl$�jQRZQXo$rn�n$WXk$[n�n$[IẀ$�OiV$GVŴ̂QT$tONimIRn$

MOiXZR$Ô$YIkIRZVQWXR$WXk$_QTUTNIR$OX$ZHI$MNOPQR$gNk$GOaX$GVWQN$XIWV$wITOXk$wZVIIZ$VIPIWNIk$
WX$WPIVWoI$Ô$WYYVOjQmWZINU$L��$YIkIRZVQWXR$WXk$��$_QTUTNIR$YIV$kWU$QX$rioiRZ$JKL�n$$

191

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#���!�

$
$

% % &'(')*+,-./-'')/-.+0)123%

456789$:;<$:=>7?@A$B<;7?5A@6$><@C$;D56E$FG<:H<<8$IJKK$@8L$MJKK$@NON$@8L$G<:H<<8$PJKK$@8L$
QJKK$>NONRS$:;<$><@C$85OG<6$DT$><L<E:67@8E$@B<6@9<L$UI$><6$;D56$@8L$:;<$><@C$85OG<6$DT$
G7?=?A<E$@B<6@9<L$5>$:D$@>>6DV7O@:<A=$<79;:$><6$;D56N$

WXYZ[Z\]̂_̀̂abcdeaf̂̀ êa_Zgàhi_hj̀̂eaZklmZnaopq_̂_Z

r;<$6<E5A:E$DT$:;<$<V7E:789s?D8L7:7D8E$78:<6E<?:7D8$tuv$@8@A=E<E$@6<$E5OO@67w<L$78$r@GA<$xNUN$$
t<B<AE$DT$E<6B7?<$@8L$L<A@=E$G<ADH$:;<$:@69<:$tuv$4$@6<$7L<8:7T7<L$78$GDAL$:=><N$$r;<$
78:<6E<?:7D8$@8@A=E7E$E;<<:E$@6<$>6<E<8:<L$78$y>><8L7V$zN$

{o|phZWX}Z
~ho�Z�e�iZgàhi_hj̀̂eaZnaopq_̂_Zm���oiqZ[Z\]̂_̀̂abZdeaf̂̀ êa_Z

gàhi_hj̀̂eaZ deàiepZ
nX�XZ~ho�Z�e�iZZ ~X�XZ~ho�Z�e�iZ
4<A@=$
FE<?R$

tuv$
4<A@=$
FE<?R$

tuv$

zADB7E�v7<66@$ v798@AE$ UINP$ �$ UQN�$ �$

zADB7E$�$v<?D8L$ u8<sH@=$E:D>�$ UxNU$ z��$ U�NP$ z��$

zADB7E$�$r;76L$ v798@AE$ UMN�$ �$ �xN�$ z$

�<:<6@8E$�$r;76L$ u8<sH@=$E:D>�$ UxNP$ z$ U�NP$ �$

zADB7E$�$�D56:;$ v798@AE$ U�NK$ �$ UPN�$ �$

zADB7E$�$�7T:;$ v798@AE$ ��N�$ z$ �UN�$ z$

�<:<6@8E$�$�7T:;$ u8<sH@=$E:D>�$ W�X�Z �Z UMN�$ z$

�$y$L67B<H@=$<V7E:E$@E$:;<$TD56:;$A<9$DT$:;<$78:<6E<?:7D8$@8L$<EE<8:7@AA=$?6<@:<E$@$
:HDsH@=$E:D>$?D8:6DA$?D8L7:7D8$

��$r;<$6<>D6:<L$tuv$7E$TD6$:;<$<@E:GD58L$@>>6D@?;N$$r;<$H<E:GD58L$@>>6D@?;$7E$@$
>67B@:<$L67B<H@=$@8L$<V><67<8?<E$@$8<9A797GA<$85OG<6$DT$><@C$;D56$:67>EN$

$

r;<$TDAADH789$E:5L=$78:<6E<?:7D8$7E$?566<8:A=$D><6@:789$G<ADH$:;<$:@69<:$tuvJ$

���<:<6@8E$�@=$�$�7T:;$v:6<<:$Ftuv$�$D8$:;<$ED5:;GD58L$@>>6D@?;$@8L$tuv$�$D8$:;<$
8D6:;GD58L$@>>6D@?;$L56789$:;<$@NON$><@C$;D56S$A7C<A=$@$T58?:7D8$DT$E?;DDA$:6@TT7?RN$

r;<$D:;<6$E:5L=$78:<6E<?:7D8E$@6<$?566<8:A=$D><6@:789$@:$@??<>:@GA<$A<B<AE$DT$E<6B7?<N$

WX�Z[Z\]̂_̀̂abcdeaf̂̀ êa_Z��h�̂abZnaopq_̂_Z

r;<$6<E5A:E$DT$:;<$<V7E:789s?D8L7:7D8E$�5<5789$@8@A=E<E$@6<$E5OO@67w<L$78$r@GA<$xN�N$$r;<$
�5<5<$@8@A=E7E$E;<<:E$@6<$>6<E<8:<L$78$y>><8L7V$zN$$$

r;<$?@A?5A@:<L$Mx:;s><6?<8:7A<$�5<5<E$LD$8D:$<V?<<L$:;<$<V7E:789$E:D6@9<$?@>@?7:=$@:$:;<$E:5L=$
78:<6E<?:7D8ES$H7:;$:;<$<V?<>:7D8$:;@:$:;<$?@A?5A@:<L$�5<5<$7E$AD89<6$:;@8$:;<$A<T:s:568$A@8<$D8$
:;<$<@E:GD58L$@>>6D@?;$:D$:;<$78:<6E<?:7D8$DT$zADB7E$yB<85<$@8L$�7T:;$v:6<<:N$

192

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#�����

$
$

% % &'(')*+,-./-'')/-.+0)123%

456789:;<9
=>8>?@A9B@57CD?D9E>FF5GC9H9IJ?DK?@A9LM@N?K?M@D9

O@K8GD8PK?M@9
EKMG5A895@N9=>8>89Q8@AKR9ST88KU9

IVQ9 IV49 IVW9 XVQ9 XV49 XVW9 YVQ9 YV49 YVW9 EVQ9 EV49 EVW9

Z[\]̂_$̀$
âbccd$

ae\cdfb$ gghi$ ii$ ggh$ jk$ ii$ lh$ glk$ ii$ mh$ gmh$ ii$ mk$

nopo$ gjk$ qm$ r$ gs$ sl$ k$ jq$ gth$ k$ rh$ gtq$ tg$

uopo$ gtl$ qk$ ls$ ll$ ml$ k$ mq$ lgg$ k$ mq$ grk$ th$

Z[\]̂_$̀$
abv\wx$

ae\cdfb$ a$ tlh$ a$ a$ y$ a$ a$ rkk$ a$ a$ qkk$ a$
nopo$ a$ h$ a$ a$ k$ a$ a$ t$ a$ a$ k$ a$
uopo$ a$ q$ a$ a$ t$ a$ a$ t$ a$ a$ k$ a$

Z[\]̂_$̀$
z{̂cx$

ae\cdfb$ hk$ tlk$ a$ sh$ ii$ hh$ a$ rkk$ a$ a$ ii$ a$

nopo$ lg$ jq$ a$ rm$ gtk$ rg$ a$ ghr$ a$ a$ gqm$ a$

uopo$ rk$ gkt$ a$ tt$ gkl$ rj$ a$ lrm$ a$ a$ lgq$ a$

|bebcdw_$̀$
z{̂cx$

ae\cdfb$ }$ ~a$ ~a$ tlhi$ ~a$ }$ qkk$ }$ a$ }$ }$ }$

nopo$ }$ ~a$ ~a$ h$ ~a$ }$ rh$ }$ a$ }$ }$ }$

uopo$ }$ ~a$ ~a$ t$ ~a$ }$ gt$ }$ a$ }$ }$ }$

Z[\]̂_$̀$
�\�ce{$

ae\cdfb$ a$ tlk$ a$ a$ gtk$y$ a$ a$ rkk$ a$ a$ rkk$ a$
nopo$ a$ tk$ a$ a$ tr$ a$ a$ glj$ a$ a$ glj$ a$
uopo$ a$ rq$ a$ a$ ls$ a$ a$ ghh$ a$ a$ grj$ a$

Z[\]̂_$̀$
�̂�e{$

ae\cdfb$ qk$ tlk$ a$ ghki$ thk$ a$ a$ ii$ a$ a$ rgk$ a$
nopo$ rg$ gsh$ a$ glm$ lhg$ a$ a$ gqr$ a$ a$ ghr$ a$
uopo$ �<9 lmr$ a$ qs$ lkm$ a$ a$ lsj$ a$ a$ lrr$ a$

|bebcdw_$̀$
�̂�e{$

ae\cdfb$ rhi$ ~a$ ~a$ gkk$ ~a$ ~a$ a$ y$ a$ a$ qkk$ a$

nopo$ h$ ~a$ ~a$ t$ ~a$ ~a$ a$ gkt$ a$ a$ rq$ lq$

uopo$ t$ ~a$ ~a$ t$ ~a$ ~a$ a$ t$ a$ a$ gt$ q$

i$ �b�e}e�cw$[dwb$v\wwbve_$e\$d$e�\}�d�$[b�e}e�cw$[dwb�$dxx̂ê\wd[$_e\cdfb$d]d̂[d�[b$b��d[$e\$[bwfe{$\�$dx�dvbwe$
e{c\�f{$[dwbo$

ii$�cbdebc$e{dw$g�kkk$�bbe$e\$wb�e$_̂fwd[̂�bx$\c$d[[}�d�$_e\�$v\wec\[[bx$̂webc_bvê\wo$$
}$ ~\e$b�̂_êwf$de$e{b$ê�b$e{de$ecd��̂v$v\�we_$�bcb$�bc�\c�bx$
y$�$yĉ]b�d�$
a$�$a{dcbx$�̂e{$e{c\�f{$[dwbo$
~a$�$~\e$cb��̂cbx$e\$_e\�o$

193

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#�����

$
$

% % &'(')*+,-./-'')/-.+0)123%

4565789:;<8:=597>5?@7A;<8:=5B9C8?D785<:9EEDF5G:@H8F<D@7C5

IJKLMLNOPOQRSTUVLWXYZV[S\L

]̂_$̀àbcd_d$efg$ĥ_$a_̀gih_gj$̀ak$bfalih_gj$mfaknhnfad$mfadnk_g$ĥ_$_ee_mhd$fe$hg̀eenm$
_op_mh_k$hf$q_$l_a_g̀h_k$qc$p_aknal$̀ak$̀ppgfr_k$pgfs_mhd$na$ĥ_$dhtkc$̀g_̀u$$v̀d_k$fa$
naefgj̀hnfa$pgfrnk_k$qc$wnhc$fe$wbfrnd$dh̀eex$ĥ_$pgfs_mhd$bndh_k$q_bfy$̀g_$_nĥ_g$̀ppgfr_k$fg$
p_aknal$̀ppgfr̀b$̀ak$̀g_$̀ddtj_k$hf$q_$mfadhgtmh_k$na$ĥ_$a_̀gih_gj$mfaknhnfau$$$

z{|fbk_a$]gǹalb_$i$dftĥy_dh$fe$ĥ_$nah_gd_mhnfa$fe$}_gakfa$̀ak$wbfrnd$~r_at_dx$
nambtk_d$ĥ_$�̀bbd$�r_ah$w_ah_g$

z{~ddndh_k$ẁg_$�̀mnbnhc$i$��$tanhd$fa$ĥ_$dftĥ$dnk_$fe$�n_gg̀$~r_at_$_̀dh$fe$�h̀h_$
�fth_$���$

z{ẁbnefgaǹ$}_̀bĥ$�mn_am_d$�anr_gdnhc$i_̀dh$dnk_$fe$wbfrnd$~r_at_$afgĥ$fe$�n_gg̀$
~r_at_x$�x���id�t̀g_ieffh$feenm_�p̂ g̀j̀mc$�tak_g$mfadhgtmhnfa�$̀ak$��x���id�t̀g_i
effh$j_knm̀b$mb̀ddgffjd$�mfjpb_h_k�$

]̂_$hg̀eenm$rfbtj_d$_op_mh_k$hf$q_$l_a_g̀h_k$̀h$_̀m̂$fe$ĥ_$dhtkc$nah_gd_mhnfad$qc$ĥ_$
p_aknal$pgfs_mhd$k_dmgnq_k$̀qfr_$̀g_$pg_d_ah_k$na$�nltg_$�i�x$�_aknal$�gfs_mhd$~u�u$̀ak$
�u�u$�_̀�$}ftg$]g̀eenm$�fbtj_du$

IJ�LML�R\VQT�VL�R�VLNY��T�OXRSTY�\LR��L��SVX\V[STY�LNY�SXYQL

]̂_$q̀d_bna_$b̀a_$mfaenltg̀hnfad$efg$ĥ_$a_̀gih_gj$̀ak$bfalih_gj$mfaknhnfad$̀g_$̀ddtj_k$hf$
q_$ĥ_$d̀j_$̀d$ĥ_$_ondhnal$mfaknhnfad$pg_d_ah_k$na$�nltg_$�i�u$$$

IJ�LML�R\VQT�VL�VRX��VXPL�XR��T[L YQOPV\L

]̂_$q̀d_bna_$y__�k̀c$̀uju$̀ak$puju$p_̀�$̂ftg$hg̀eenm$rfbtj_d$efg$ĥ_$a_̀gih_gj$mfaknhnfad$
y_g_$_dhnj̀h_k$qc$̀kknal$ĥ_$_dhnj̀h_k$hg̀eenm$rfbtj_d$efg$ĥ_$p_aknal$pgfs_mhd$pg_d_ah_k$na$
�nltg_$�i�$hf$ĥ_$_ondhnal$hg̀eenm$rfbtj_d$pg_d_ah_k$na$�nltg_$�i¡u$$]̂_$g_dtbhnal$hg̀eenm$
rfbtj_d$̀g_$pg_d_ah_k$na$�nltg_$�i¡x$¢_̀gi]_gj$¢fi�gfs_mh$~u�u$̀ak$�u�u$�_̀�$}ftg$
]g̀eenm$�fbtj_du$

IJ£LML�XR��T[L¤Y�VQT��LR��L�R\VQT�VL�¥�¦L�XR��T[L YQOPV\L

w§|$j̀nah̀nad$̀$hg̀r_b$jfk_b$ĥ̀h$nd$hcpnm̀bbc$td_k$hf$efg_m̀dh$hg̀eenm$rfbtj_du$$]̂_$q̀d_bna_$
hg̀eenm$rfbtj_d$efg$ĥ_$c_̀g$¡�̈�$afi�gfs_mh$mfaknhnfad$y_g_$k_h_gjna_k$tdnal$ĥ_$w§|$
hg̀r_b$jfk_b$̀ak$ĥ_$w§|$©amg_j_ah$�_ĥfkx$ŷnm̂$nd$k_dmgnq_k$na$̀$kfmtj_ah$̀r̀nb̀qb_$
egfj$ĥ_$w§|$_ahnhb_k$ª«¬®̄°±²®®³́µ¶°·¬̧ ¸́²²®®°¹®º¬̧ ®̧µ®°»³¬º®¼½¾¿ÀÁÂ½ÀÃ¿ÄÅÆÀ
Ç½ÈÁÁÄÉÀÊ½ÂË¾ÉÌÄÂÅ¿ÀÁ½ÂÍÀÌÎ¾ÀÏ½¾¿ÅÂÀÐÑÒÀÇ½ÈÓ¾ÔÀÕÂÖ¾Ô×Àk̀h_k$Ø_m_jq_g$¡��¡u$$]̂_$
©amg_j_ah$�_ĥfk$efg_m̀dhd$ethtg_$hg̀eenm$rfbtj_d$qc$̀kknal$ĥ_$lgfyĥ$namg_j_ah$pgfs_mh_k$
qc$ĥ_$jfk_b$q_hy__a$ĥ_$mtgg_ah$c_̀g$̀ak$ĥ_$̂fgnÙfa$c_̀g$hf$ĥ_$_ondhnal$hg̀eenm$rfbtj_du$$$

�thtg_$htganalijfr_j_ah$efg_m̀dhd$y_g_$q̀d_k$fa$ĥ_$j_ĥfkd$pg_d_ah_k$na$ŵ p̀h_g$�$fe$ĥ_$
]g̀adpfgh̀hnfa$�_d_̀gm̂$vf̀gk$�]�v�$¢̀hnfàb$wffp_g̀hnr_$}nl̂ỳc$�_d_̀gm̂$�gflg̀j$
�¢w}���$�_pfgh$¡��$_ahnhb_k$ªÚ́¶ÛÜÝÞ°ß³Ýàà́º°áÝ²Ý°à¬³°â³ãÝµ́ä¾ÖÀå½¾ÈÀÊ½ÂË¾ÉÌÀÊÔÈÅÅÄÅÆÀ
ÈÅÖÀæ¾¿ÄÆÅç×$$]̂_$q̀d_bna_$¡�̈�$afi�gfs_mh$hg̀eenm$rfbtj_d$̀g_$pg_d_ah_k$na$�nltg_$�ïx$¡�̈�$
¢fi�gfs_mh$~u�u$̀ak$�u�u$�_̀�$}ftg$]g̀eenm$�fbtj_du$

194

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#���$�

%
%

& & '()(*+,-./0.((*0./,1*234&

567689:;6<=>?6@ABC;AD9EF6EA@GHFHA@I6:@:J8I9I6

KLMNONPQRSNTUVWNXYZ[SY\Q]̂N_̀ Q̂SaQ]̂bỲNcdeNf̀ RghabaN

ijk%lkmnopm%qr%pjk%sktl%uvwx%yqz{lq|k}p%~ypklmk}p~qy%���%tytosmkm%tlk%mn��tl~�k�%~y%
it�ok%����%%�k�kom%qr%mkl�~}k%ty�%�kotsm%�koq�%pjk%ptl�kp%���%�%tlk%~�kyp~r~k�%~y%�qo�%ps�k�%%
ijk%~ypklmk}p~qy%tytosm~m%mjkkpm%tlk%�lkmkypk�%~y%���ky�~�%��%

�R�gQNKLMN
[QR�N�Y�SN_̀ Q̂SaQ]̂bỲNf̀ RghabaNe���RShNONTUVWNXYZ[SY\Q]̂N�Ỳ�b̂bỲaN

_̀ Q̂SaQ]̂bỲN �Ỳ ŜYgN
fL�LN[QR�N�Y�SNN [L�LN[QR�N�Y�SN
�kots%
�mk}�%

���%
�kots%
�mk}�%

���%

�oq�~m��~kllt% �~�ytom% u���% �% uv��% �%

�oq�~m%�%�k}qy�% �ykz�ts%mpq��% u��wN ���N wu�uN ���N

�oq�~m%�%ij~l�% �~�ytom% ux�x% �%  v��% �%

¡kpkltym%�%ij~l�% �ykz�ts%mpq��% uu��% �% �w��% ¢%

�oq�~m%�%£qnlpj% �~�ytom% � ��% ¢% �¤�w% ¢%

�oq�~m%�%£~rpj% �~�ytom%  ¤�x% �%  ¤��% �%

¡kpkltym%�%£~rpj% �ykz�ts%mpq��% T¥ML¦N §N u¤��% �%

�%�%�l~�k�ts%k�~mpm%tm%pjk%rqnlpj%ok�%qr%pjk%~ypklmk}p~qy%ty�%kmmkyp~toos%}lktpkm%t%
p�qz�ts%mpq�%}qyplqo%}qy�~p~qy%

��%ijk%lk�qlpk�%���%~m%rql%pjk%ktmp�qny�%t��lqt}j�%%���%̈%q}}nlm%qy%pjk%�kmp�qny�%
t��lqt}j%��j~}j%~m%t%�l~�tpk%�l~�k�ts�%rql%�qpj%�kt©%jqnlmª%�np%k��kl~ky}km%t%
yk�o~�~�ok%yn��kl%qr%�kt©%jqnl%pl~�m�%

%

ijk%rqooq�~y�%mpn�s%~ypklmk}p~qy%~m%k��k}pk�%pq%q�kltpk%�koq�%pjk%ptl�kp%ok�ko%qr%mkl�~}k«%

¬¡kpkltym%®ts%�%£~rpj%�plkkp%����%£%�nl~y�%pjk%t���%�kt©%jqnl%qy%pjk%yqlpj�qny�%ty�%
mqnpj�qny�%t��lqt}jkm��%

ijk%qpjkl%mpn�s%~ypklmk}p~qym%tlk%k��k}pk�%pq%q�kltpk%tp%t}}k�pt�ok%ok�kom%qr%mkl�~}k�%

KLTNONPQRSNTUVWNXYZ[SY\Q]̂N�Ỳ�b̂bỲaN̄�Q�b̀°Nf̀ RghabaN

ijk%lkmnopm%qr%pjk%sktl%uvwx%yqz{lq|k}p%±nkn~y�%tytosmkm%tlk%mn��tl~�k�%~y%it�ok%��u�%%
�to}notpk�%x�pjz�kl}kyp~ok%±nknkm%k�}kk�~y�%pjk%t�t~ot�ok%mpqlt�k%}t�t}~ps%tlk%~�kyp~r~k�%~y%
�qo�%ps�k�%%ijk%±nknk%tytosm~m%mjkkpm%tlk%�lkmkypk�%~y%���ky�~�%��%%%

195

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#���$�

%
%

& & '()(*+,-./0.((*0./,1*234&

56789:;<=:
>?9?@AB:CA68DE@E:F?GG6HD:I:=JKL:MNOPHNQ9RS:TNAU@S@NAE:

VAS9HE9RS@NA:
FSNH6B9:6AU:>?9?9:W9ABSX:YZ99S[:

\]W: \]5: \]̂ : _]W: _]5: _]̂ : M]W: M]5: M]̂ : F]W: F]5: F]̂ :

àbcde%f%
gdhiij%

gkbijlh% mmno% oo% mmn% pq% oo% rn% mrq% oo% sn% msn% oo% sq%

tuvu% rrw% wx% rw% rr% mmr% m% yzJ: mwx% q% nr% rmm% nm%

{uvu% mnr% mqp% |n% rx% pw% q% y}L: rxm% q% xp% mxq% |x%

àbcde%f%
gh~b��%

gkbijlh% g% �rn% g% g% �% g% g% |qq% g% g% xqq% g%

tuvu% g% m�% g% g% �% g% g% �% g% g% q% g%

{uvu% g% mx% g% g% �% g% g% �% g% g% q% g%

àbcde%f%
��di�%

gkbijlh% nq% �rq% g% wn% oo% nn% g% |qq% g% g% oo% g%

tuvu% |q% w�% g% nn% ms|% ns% g% rrs% g% g% �sm% g%

{uvu% nn% m|�% g% nq% mr|% nn% g% �pm% g% g% �wn% g%

�hkhij�e%f%
��di�%

gkbijlh% �% �g% �g% �rno% �g% �g% xqq% �% g% �% �% �%
tuvu% �% �g% �g% x% �g% �g% xx% �% g% �% �% �%
{uvu% �% �g% �g% �% �g% �g% mx% �% g% �% �% �%

àbcde%f%
�b�ik�%

gkbijlh% g% �rq% g% g% m�q%�% g% g% |qq% g% g% |qq% g%
tuvu% g% �s% g% g% �w% g% g% mps% g% g% rmq% g%
{uvu% g% sm% g% g% �n% g% g% rq�% g% g% rrx% g%

àbcde%f%
�d�k�%

gkbijlh% xq% �rq% g% mnqo% �nq% g% g% oo% g% g% |mq% g%
tuvu% nw% rsp% g% mnp% �mn% g% g% r�s% g% g% rnx% g%
{uvu% L�: KKK: g% w�% rp|% g% g% |qx% g% g% |mq% g%

�hkhij�e%f%
�d�k�%

gkbijlh% |no% �g% �g% mqq% �g% �g% g% �% g% g% xqq% g%

tuvu% x% �g% �g% n% �g% �g% g% �q�% g% g% m|n% |x%

{uvu% �% �g% �g% �% �g% �g% g% �% g% g% r�% mq%

o% �h�k�k�i�%aj�h%~b��h~ke%kb%j%k�b��j�%ah�k�k�i�%aj�h�%j��dkdb�ja%ekbijlh%jcjdaj�ah%h��ja%kb%ah�lk�%b�%j��j~h�k%
k�ib�l�%aj�hu%

oo%�ihjkhi%k�j�%m�qqq%�hhk%kb%�h�k%edl�jad�h�%bi%jaa��j�%ekb�%~b�kibaah�%d�khieh~kdb�u%%
�%�%�idch�j�%
g%�%g�jih�%�dk�%k�ib�l�%aj�hu%
�g%�%�bk%ih��dih�%kb%ekb�u%
%

��h%~ja~�ajkh�%wnk���hi~h�kdah%��h�he%h�~hh�%k�h%ekbijlh%~j�j~dk�%jk%k�h%�baab�d�l%ab~jkdb�e%
d�%k�h%rq�w%�b�{ib�h~k%~b��dkdb�e�%

�� àbcde%tch��h%f%gdhiij%tch��h�%%k�h%~ja~�ajkh�%�bik��b���%ah�k�k�i�%��h�h%h�~hh�e%
k�h%ekbijlh%~j�j~dk�%��%sq%�hhk%��id�l%k�h%ju�u%�hj�%�b�i%j��%�w%�hhk%��id�l%k�h%�u�u%
�hj�%�b�i�%

�� àbcde%tch��h%f%�d�k�%gkihhk�%%k�h%~ja~�ajkh�%hjek�b���%ah�k�k�i�%��h�h%h�~hh�e%k�h%
ekbijlh%~j�j~dk�%��%m|%�hhk%��id�l%k�h%�u�u%�hj�%�b�i%j��%k�h%~ja~�ajkh�%hjek�b���%
��h�h%h�kh��e%�h�b��%{baaje��%tch��hu%

196

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#���"�

$
$

% % &'(')*+,-./-'')/-.+0)123%

4565789:;9<=>?@A:>?BCD7E;5EC<F9;9C<:5G<G@H:7:5

IJKLMLNOPQRPSTUVWXQUVYZ[\]RL̂_S\L̀ZSaPTXY_RPZSQL_SbLcSR\YQ\]RPZSL̀ZSRYZWL

def$fghijhklmnopimqrstfuj$uskvhjhski$owkf$uskxhlprwjhski$wkv$hkjfrifujhsk$uskjrso$wrf$jef$iwyf$
wi$jef$fghijhkl$uskvhjhski$nrfifkjfv$hk$zhlprf${m|}$

IJ~LMLNOPQRPSTUVWXQUVYZ[\]RL�Y_aaP]L�ZWX�\QL

def$fghijhklmnopimqrstfuj$uskvhjhski$nfw�mespr$jrwxxhu$�sopyfi$wrf$vfjfryhkfv$��$wvvhkl$jef$
fghijhkl$jrwxxhu$�sopyfi$wkv$jef$qrstfuj$jrwxxhu$�sopyfi}$$def$fghijhklmnopimqrstfuj$uskvhjhski$
nfw�mespr$jrwxxhu$�sopyfi$wrf$nrfifkjfv$hk$zhlprf$�m|�$�ghijhklmqopimqrstfuj$�}�}$wkv$q}�}$
qfw�$�spr$drwxxhu$�sopyfi}$

IJ�LMLNOPQRPSTUVWXQUVYZ[\]RLcSR\YQ\]RPZSL̂��L�S_W�QPQL

def$rfipoji$sx$jef$fghijhklmnopimqrstfuj$uskvhjhski$hkjfrifujhsk$���$wkwo�ifi$wrf$ipyywrh�fv$
hk$dw�of$�}|}$$qrstfuj$hynwuji$wrf$hvfkjhxhfv$hk$�sov$j�nf}$$def$hkjfrifujhsk$wkwo�ihi$ieffji$wrf$
nrfifkjfv$hk$�nnfkvhg$�}$$$

�_�W\LIJKL
V\_�L�ZXYLcSR\YQ\]RPZSL�S_W�QPQL�X��_Y�LMLNOPQRPSTUVWXQUVYZ[\]RL̀ZSbPRPZSQL

cSR\YQ\]RPZSL Z̀SRYZWL
�J�JLV\_�L�ZXYLL VJ�JLV\_�L�ZXYL
�fow�$
�ifu�$

���$
�fow�$
�ifu�$

���$

�os�hi��hfrrw$ �hlkwoi$ |�} $ ¡$ |�}¢$ ¡$

�os�hi$�$�fuskv$ �kfm£w�$ijsn¤$ |{}¢$ �¤¤$ |¥}¦$ �¤¤$

�os�hi$�$dehrv$ �hlkwoi$ |¥}¥$ ¡$ §�}|$ �$

�fjfrwki$�$dehrv$ �kfm£w�$ijsn¤$ §|}§$ �$ §|}¢$ �$

�os�hi$�$zsprje$ �hlkwoi$ |§}§$ ¡$ |{}¦$ ¡$

�os�hi$�$zhxje$ �hlkwoi$ §¥}̈$ �$ ¢¦}§$ �$

�fjfrwki$�$zhxje$ �kfm£w�$ijsn¤$ ©ªJ�L «L §§}�$ �$

¤$�$vrh�f£w�$fghiji$wi$jef$xsprje$ofl$sx$jef$hkjfrifujhsk$wkv$fiifkjhwoo�$urfwjfi$w$
j£sm£w�$ijsn$uskjrso$uskvhjhsk$

¤¤$def$rfnsrjfv$���$hi$xsr$jef$fwij�spkv$wnnrswue}$$def$£fij�spkv$wnnrswue$hi$w$
nrh�wjf$vrh�f£w�$wkv$fgnfrhfkufi$w$kflohlh�of$kpy�fr$sx$nfw�$espr$jrhni}$

$

def$qrstfuj$uwpifi$skf$ihlkhxhuwkj$hynwuj$�wifv$sk$hkjfrifujhsk$���$urhjfrhw$wj$jef$
hkjfrifujhsk$sx$�fjfrwki$¬w�$wkv$zhxje$�jrffj$vprhkl$jef$w}y}$nfw�$espr}$$def$qrstfuj$£hoo$
fgwufr�wjf$jef$fghijhkl$���$z$��$hkurfwihkl$w�frwlf$vfow�i$xrsy${̈}�$ifuskvi$nfr$�fehuof$js$
{ }¢$ifuskvi$nfr$�fehuof$vprhkl$jef$w}y}$nfw�$espr}$$qfw�mespr$jrwxxhu$ihlkwo$£wrrwkji$wrf$ksj$
yfj$jefrfxsrf�$jef$hkijwoowjhsk$sx$jrwxxhu$ihlkwoi$hi$ksj$uskihvfrfv$w$xfwih�of$yhjhlwjhsk}$$def$
nfw�mespr$£wrrwkji$wkwo�ihi$ieffji$wrf$hkuopvfv$hk$�nnfkvhg$�}$$$

qsiih�of$yhjhlwjhski$wj$jef$hkjfrifujhsk$sx$�fjfrwki$¬w�$wkv$zhxje$�jrffj$hkuopvf$hkijwoowjhsk$
sx$woom£w�$ijsn$uskjrso$sr$w$rspkvw�spj}$$�s£f�fr�$woom£w�$ijsn$uskjrso$hi$ksj$£wrrwkjfv$xsr$
jef$rf®phrfv$fhlej$espri$nfr$vw�$wi$vfiurh�fv$hk$jef$�� d̄���$wi$f�hvfkufv$��$jef$xwuj$jewj$
jef$yhkhypy$�sopyfi$xsr$ypojhm£w�$ijsn$uskjrso$wrf$ksj$yfj$vprhkl$jef$n}y}$nfw�$espr}$$�$
ihklofmowkf$rspkvw�spj$hi$fgnfujfv$js$rfipoj$hk$®pfpfi$fgjfkvhkl$hkjs$jef$hkjfrifujhsk$sx$
�os�hi$��fkpf$wkv$zhxje$�jrffj�$nwrjhupowro�$wi$w$rfipoj$sx$�fehuofi$vrsnnhkl$sxx$wkv$nhu�hkl$
pn$ijpvfkji$wvtwufkj$js$jef$hkjfrifujhsk}$$°j$hi$usyysk$xsr$jef$nwr�hkl$osj$ispje$sx$jef$

197

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#���$�

%
%

& & '()(*+,-./0.((*0./,1*234&

56789:8;75<6%7<%=8;<>8%;<6?8:78@A%B57C%D%E89F%C5?C%G5H8G5C<<@%7CD7%7C8%;<6?8:75<6%B<IG@%=D;H%
IJ%567<%D%9<I6@D=<I7%D6@%;DI:8%=G<;HD?8%<K%DGG%K<I9%DJJ9<D;C8:L%%M<IJG8@%B57C%D%C5?C%E<GI>8%
<K%J8@8:795D6%79DKK5;A%;<>JG878%=98DH@<B6%<K%D%9<I6@D=<I7%@I956?%J8DH%J895<@:%5:%G5H8GF%D7%
7C5:%56789:8;75<6A%D6@%57%5:%5>J<97D67%7<%DE<5@%;98D756?%D%NI8I8%56%7C8%8D:7=<I6@%GD68%7CD7%
56789K898:%B57C%7C8%<J89D75<6%<K%7C8%56789:8;75<6%<K%MG<E5:%OE86I8%D6@%P5K7C%Q79887L%%RC898K<98A%
7C898%5:%6<%K8D:5=G8%>575?D75<6L%

STUVWVXYZ[\Z]̂_̀ab[_̀cdefg\Vhd]iZ\Zd][VjbfbZ]̂Vk]lam[Z[V

RC8%98:IG7:%<K%7C8%8n5:756?oJGI:op9<q8;7%;<6@575<6:%NI8I56?%D6DGF:8:%D98%:I>>D95r8@%56%
RD=G8%sLtL%%MDG;IGD78@%uv7CoJ89;8675G8%NI8I8:%8n;88@56?%7C8%DED5GD=G8%:7<9D?8%;DJD;57F%D98%
5@8675K58@%56%=<G@%7FJ8L%%RC8%NI8I8%D6DGF:5:%:C887:%D98%J98:8678@%56%OJJ86@5n%wL%%%

RC8%98:IG7:%<K%7C8%8n5:756?oJGI:op9<q8;7%;<6@575<6:%D6DGF:8:%D98%E89F%:5>5GD9%7<%7C8%8n5:756?%
;<6@575<6:L%%RC8%;DG;IGD78@%uv7CoJ89;8675G8%NI8I8:%@<%6<7%8n;88@%7C8%8n5:756?%:7<9D?8%;DJD;57F%
D7%7C8%:7I@F%56789:8;75<6:A%B57C%7C8%8n;8J75<6%7CD7%7C8%;DG;IGD78@%NI8I8%5:%G<6?89%7CD6%7C8%G8K7o
7I96%GD68%<6%7C8%8D:7=<I6@%DJJ9<D;C%7<%7C8%56789:8;75<6%<K%MG<E5:%OE86I8%D6@%P5K7C%Q79887L%%
RC8%p9<q8;7%;DI:8:%7C8%;DG;IGD78@%uv7CoJ89;8675G8%NI8I8%7<%56;98D:8%=F%85?C7%K887%D7%7C5:%
G<;D75<6A%BC5;C%5:%6<7%;<6:5@898@%D%:I=:7D675DG%@5KK8986;8%K9<>%7C8%8n5:756?%;<6@575<6:L%%

xlyafVSTzV
jbfbZ]̂Vk]lam[Z[V{b||lcmVWVXYZ[\Z]̂_̀ab[_̀cdefg\Vhd]iZ\Zd][V

}]\fc[fg\Zd]V
{\dcl̂fVl]iVjbfbfV~f]̂\�V��ff\�V

X�~V X�xV X��V ��~V ��xV ���V ��~V ��xV ���V {�~V {�xV {��V

MG<E5:%�%
Q5899D%

Q7<9D?8% ��v�% ��% ��v% ��% ��% tv% �t�% ��% �v% ��v% ��% ��%

OL�L% ���% s�% s% t�% ut% �% s�% ���% �% �v% ���% ��%

pL�L% ���% st% ��% t�% ��% �% s�% ttt% �% �u% ���% ��%

MG<E5:%�%
Q8;<6@%

Q7<9D?8% Q% �tv% Q% Q% w% Q% Q% ���% Q% Q% s��% Q%

OL�L% Q% v% Q% Q% �% Q% Q% �% Q% Q% �% Q%

pL�L% Q% s% Q% Q% �% Q% Q% �% Q% Q% �% Q%

MG<E5:%�%
RC59@%

Q7<9D?8% v�% �t�% Q% uv% ��% vv% Q% ���% Q% Q% ��% Q%

OL�L% tt% �u% Q% vv% ���% �t% Q% �vu% Q% Q% �uv% Q%

pL�L% ��% ���% Q% su% ���% v�% Q% t�t% Q% Q% t�s% Q%

�8789D6:%�%
RC59@%

Q7<9D?8% �s�% �Q% �Q% �tv�% �Q% �Q% Q% s��% Q% Q% w% Q%
OL�L% �% �Q% �Q% v% �Q% �Q% Q% ��% Q% Q% v% Q%
pL�L% v% �Q% �Q% �% �Q% �Q% Q% �s% Q% Q% ��% Q%

MG<E5:%�%
P<I97C%

Q7<9D?8% Q% �t�% Q% Q% ���%w% Q% Q% ���% Q% Q% ���% Q%
OL�L% Q% �t% Q% Q% ��% Q% Q% ��t% Q% Q% ���% Q%
pL�L% Q% v�% Q% Q% ��% Q% Q% ���% Q% Q% ���% Q%

MG<E5:%�%
P5K7C%

Q7<9D?8% s�% �t�% Q% �v��% �v�% Q% Q% ��% Q% Q% ���% Q%
OL�L% �v% �u�% Q% �t�% tvv% Q% Q% �su% Q% Q% �v�% Q%
pL�L% ��V t��% Q% ���% t��% Q% Q% ��s% Q% Q% tss% Q%

�8789D6:%�%
P5K7C%

Q7<9D?8% �v�% �Q% �Q% ���% �Q% �Q% Q% w% Q% Q% s��% Q%

OL�L% s% �Q% �Q% �% �Q% �Q% Q% ��s% Q% Q% vv% ��%

pL�L% �% �Q% �Q% �% �Q% �Q% Q% �% Q% Q% t�% ��%

�% �8K7o7I96%GD68%;<668;7:%7<%D%7B<oBDF%G8K7o7I96%GD68A%D@@575<6DG%:7<9D?8%DED5GD=G8%8NIDG%7<%G86?7C%<K%D@qD;867%
7C9<I?C%GD68L%

��%�98D789%7CD6%�A���%K887%7<%68n7%:5?6DG5r8@%<9%DGGoBDF%:7<J%;<679<GG8@%56789:8;75<6L%%
w%�%w95E8BDF%
Q%�%QCD98@%B57C%7C9<I?C%GD68L%
�Q%�%�<7%98NI598@%7<%:7<JL%
%

198

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#���$�

%
%

& & '()(*+,-./0.((*0./,1*234&

567898:;<=>?@A8B?CDCEFA8<=G8HFGF>@;?<=8I<C?E?@?F>8

JKLMNOPM%LMQ%RSNTQUL%VW%QXYQULQZ%LN%Q[M\[UQ%LMQ%LS\[WVL%QXYQSVQ[UQ%V[%]KN̂VW%\[Z%YSN̂VZQ%
UN[[QULV̂VL_%̀QLaQQ[%̀VU_UKQb%YQZQWLSV\[b%̂QMVUKQb%\[Z%LS\[WVL%cNZQW%Nd%LS\̂QKb%LMQ%RSNTQUL%
c\_%YNLQ[LV\KK_%ZVWSOYL%YQZQWLSV\[%\[Z%̀VU_UKQ%d\UVKVLVQW%̀_%PQ[QS\LV[P%[Qa%LSVYW%\USNWW%LMQ%
eS_%]SQQf%gS\VKh%%%

gMQ%]KN̂VW%iKZ%gNa[%gS\VK%USNWWQW%gMVSZ%jLSQQL%VccQZV\LQK_%aQWL%Nd%LMQ%YSNYNWQZ%RSNTQUL%
ZSV̂Qa\_h%%jV[UQ%LMQ%RSNTQUL%aNOKZ%KVfQK_%PQ[QS\LQ%[Qa%YQZQWLSV\[%\[Z%̀VU_UKQ%LSVYW%\USNWW%
gMVSZ%jLSQQLb%LMQ%QXVWLV[P%WVP[\PQ%\[Z%c\SfV[PW%WMNOKZ%̀Q%SQ̂VQaQZ%dNS%UN[dNSc\[UQ%aVLM%LMQ%
cNWL%SQUQ[L%̂QSWVN[%Nd%LMQ%]klg]e%\[Z%Q[M\[UQZ%Vd%[NL%V[%UN[dNSc\[UQh%

56m898no?>@?=pqHEr>qH;stFC@8us=G?@?s=>8q8vwx<C@>8<=G8y?@?p<@?s=8yF<>r;F>8

gMQ%QXVWLV[PzYKOWzRSNTQUL%UN[ZVLVN[W%\[\K_WQW%\SQ%̀\WQZ%N[%UN[ZVLVN[W%QXYQULQZ%LN%NUUOS%Vd%LMQ%
RSNTQUL%aQSQ%LN%̀Q%UN[WLSOULQZ%VccQZV\LQK_%aVLMNOL%LMQ%ZQ̂QKNYcQ[L%Nd%\[_%Nd%LMQ%YQ[ZV[P%
YSNTQULWh%%gMQ%WVP[VdVU\[L%LS\ddVU%VcY\UL%VZQ[LVdVQZ%V[%LMQ%{XVWLV[PzRKOWzRSNTQUL%UN[ZVLVN[W%
\[\K_WQW%VW%WL\LQZ%̀QKNab%dNKKNaQZ%̀_%LMQ%SQUNccQ[ZQZ%cVLVP\LVN[%NS%\ULVN[h%

vwx<C@8:|}~�q�8

JL%LMQ%V[LQSWQULVN[%Nd%�QLQS\[W%�\_%\[Z%�VdLM%jLSQQLb%LMQ%RSNTQUL%aVKK%QX\UQS̀\LQ%LMQ%
QXVWLV[P%�ij%�%ZOSV[P%LMQ%\hch%YQ\f%MNOS%̀_%V[USQ\WV[P%\̂QS\PQ%ZQK\_W%dSNc%��h�%
WQUN[ZW%YQS%̂QMVUKQ%LN%��h�%WQUN[ZW%YQS%̂QMVUKQh%

y?@?p<@?s=8yF<>r;F8:|}~�q�8

gMQSQ%VW%[N%dQ\WV̀KQ%cVLVP\LVN[h%%

%

vwx<C@8:|}~�q�8

gMQ%RSNTQUL%aVKK%PQ[QS\LQ%[Qa%̂QMVUKQ%LSVYW%\USNWW%LMQ%]KN̂VW%iKZ%gNa[%gS\VK%\L%gMVSZ%
jLSQQLb%\[Z%aVKK%KVfQK_%PQ[QS\LQ%[Qa%YQZQWLSV\[%\[Z%̀VU_UKQ%LSVYW%N[%LMQ%LS\VKh%

y?@?p<@?s=8yF<>r;F8:|}~�q�8

gMQ%\YYSNYSV\LQ%WVP[\PQ%\[Z%Y\̂QcQ[L%c\SfV[PW%WMNOKZ%̀Q%V[WL\KKQZ%\L%LMQ%]KN̂VW%iKZ%
gNa[%gS\VK%\L%gMVSZ%jLSQQL%V[%\UUNSZ\[UQ%aVLM%LMQ%cNWL%SQUQ[L%̂QSWVN[%Nd%LMQ%]klg]eh%%%

199

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#���$�

%
%

& & '()(*+,-./0.((*0./,1*234&

567689:;<=9;>6?@=A<B;CD9E=6EC8F@=@C8G6:8:HIG9G6

JKLMNMOPQRSTPRUMVWXYSZR[\P]XM̂Q_PM̀[_aWbcRQXW[_dMQ_eMf_XPRdP]XW[_M̀[_XR[gM

hij%kjlmnojmp%qroinsmtujvo%vtkwrortkx%ylkj%vtkzr{|mlortkx%lkw%rkojmxjvortk%vtkomty%lmj%oij%
xlpj%lx%oij%j}rxork{%vtkwrortkx%~mjxjkojw%rk%�r{|mj%�n��%

JK�MNMOPQRSTPRUMVWXYSZR[\P]XMTRQaaW]M�[gcUPdM

hij%kjlmnojmp%qroinsmtujvo%vtkwrortkx%~jl�nit|m%omlzzrv%�ty|pjx%lmj%wjojmprkjw%��%lwwrk{%
oij%kjlmnojmp%�lxjyrkj%omlzzrv%�ty|pjx%lkw%oij%smtujvo%omlzzrv%�ty|pjx�%%hij%kjlmnojmp%qroin
smtujvo%vtkwrortkx%~jl�nit|m%omlzzrv%�ty|pjx%lmj%~mjxjkojw%rk%�r{|mj%�n��%�jlmnhjmp%�roin
smtujvo%����%lkw%s���%sjl�%�t|m%hmlzzrv%�ty|pjx�%

JK�MNMOPQRSTPRUMVWXYSZR[\P]XMf_XPRdP]XW[_M̂��M�_Qg�dWdM

hij%mjx|yox%tz%oij%kjlmnojmp%qroinsmtujvo%vtkwrortkx%rkojmxjvortk%���%lkly�xjx%lmj%
x|pplmr�jw%rk%hl�yj%����%%�|p|ylor�j%rp~lvox%�smtujvo%~y|x%toijm%l~~mt�jw%lkw%~jkwrk{%
~mtujvox�%lmj%rwjkorzrjw%rk%�tyw%o�~j�%%hij%rkojmxjvortk%lkly�xrx%xijjox%lmj%~mjxjkojw%rk%
�~~jkwr}%��%

TQ�gPMJKLM
ZPQ�M [cRMf_XPRdP]XW[_M�_Qg�dWdM�cUUQR�MNMOPQRSTPRUMVWXYSZR[\P]XM̀[_eWXW[_dM

f_XPRdP]XW[_M [̀_XR[gM
�K¡KMZPQ�M [cRMM ZK¡KMZPQ�M [cRM
�jyl�%
�xjv�%

���%
�jyl�%
�xjv�%

���%

�yt�rx¢�rjmml% �r{klyx% �£�£% ¤% �£�£% ¤%

�yt�rx%¢%�jvtkw% �kjnql�%xot~¥% ����% �¥¥% ¦��§M �¥¥M

�yt�rx%¢%hirmw% �r{klyx% ¦§��% �% §̈�©% �%

�jojmlkx%¢%hirmw% �kjnql�%xot~¥% ¦��¦% �% ¦��ª% �%

�yt�rx%¢%�t|moi% �r{klyx% �¦�¦% ¤% �ª�§% ¤%

�yt�rx%¢%�rzoi% �r{klyx% ¦��ª% �% ª̈�£% �%

�jojmlkx%¢%�rzoi% �kjnql�%xot~¥% «¬K�M M ¦̈��% �%

¥%�%wmr�jql�%j}rxox%lx%oij%zt|moi%yj{%tz%oij%rkojmxjvortk%lkw%jxxjkorlyy�%vmjlojx%l%
oqtnql�%xot~%vtkomty%vtkwrortk%

¥¥%hij%mj~tmojw%���%rx%ztm%oij%jlxo�t|kw%l~~mtlvi�%%hij%qjxo�t|kw%l~~mtlvi%rx%l%
~mr�loj%wmr�jql�%lkw%j}~jmrjkvjx%l%kj{yr{r�yj%k|p�jm%tz%~jl�%it|m%omr~x�%

%

hij%smtujvo%vtkomr�|ojx%ot%v|p|ylor�j%xr{krzrvlko%rp~lvox%�lxjw%tk%rkojmxjvortk%���%vmrojmrl%
lo%oij%rkojmxjvortk%tz%�jojmlkx%�l�%lkw%�rzoi%�omjjo�%%hij%v|p|ylor�j%~mtujvox%~y|x%oij%smtujvo%
qryy%j}lvjm�loj%oij%j}rxork{%���%�%��%rkvmjlxrk{%l�jml{j%wjyl�x%zmtp%�§�£%xjvtkwx%~jm%
�jirvyj%ot%�ª�̈%xjvtkwx%~jm%�jirvyj%w|mrk{%oij%l�p�%~jl�%it|m�%%hirx%rp~lvo%rx%rwjkorvly%ot%
®p~lvo%hmlkxn�%rk%oij%j}rxork{n~y|xnsmtujvo%xvjklmrt�%%sjl�nit|m%omlzzrv%xr{kly%qlmmlkox%lmj%
kto%pjo�%%hij%~jl�nit|m%qlmmlkox%lkly�xrx%xijjox%lmj%rkvy|wjw%rk%�~~jkwr}%̄�%

stxxr�yj%pror{lortkx%lo%oij%rkojmxjvortk%tz%�jojmlkx%�l�%lkw%�rzoi%�omjjo%rkvy|wj%rkxolyylortk%
tz%lyynql�%xot~%vtkomty%tm%l%mt|kwl�t|o�%%�tqj�jm�%lyynql�%xot~%vtkomty%rx%kto%qlmmlkojw%ztm%
oij%mj°|rmjw%jr{io%it|mx%~jm%wl�%lx%wjxvmr�jw%rk%oij%��±h���%lx%j�rwjkvjw%��%oij%zlvo%oilo%
oij%prkrp|p%�ty|pjx%ztm%p|yornql�%xot~%vtkomty%lmj%kto%pjo%w|mrk{%oij%~�p�%~jl�%it|m�%%�%
xrk{yjnylkj%mt|kwl�t|o%rx%j}~jvojw%ot%mjx|yo%rk%°|j|jx%j}ojkwrk{%rkot%oij%rkojmxjvortk%tz%
�yt�rx%��jk|j%lkw%�rzoi%�omjjo�%~lmorv|ylmy�%lx%l%mjx|yo%tz%�jirvyjx%wmt~~rk{%tzz%lkw%~rv�rk{%

200

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#��� �

$
$

% % &'(')*+,-./-'')/-.+0)123%

45$67489:76$;8<;=9:7$7>$7?9$@:79A69=7@>:B$$C7$@6$=>DD>:$E>A$7?9$5;AF@:G$H>7$6>47?$>E$7?9$
@:79A69=7@>:$7>$I9=>D9$=>:G96798J$K@7?$;$L9AM$?@G?$H@F9H@?>>8$7?;7$7?9$=>:G967@>:$K>4H8$I;=F$
45$@:7>$;$A>4:8;I>47$;:8$=;469$IH>=F;G9$>E$;HH$E>4A$;55A>;=?96B$$N>45H98$K@7?$;$?@G?$L>H4D9$
>E$598967A@;:$7A;EE@=J$=>D5H979$IA9;F8>K:$>E$;$A>4:8;I>47$84A@:G$59;F$59A@>86$@6$H@F9HM$;7$
7?@6$@:79A69=7@>:J$;:8$@7$@6$@D5>A7;:7$7>$;L>@8$=A9;7@:G$;$O4949$@:$7?9$9;67I>4:8$H;:9$7?;7$
@:79AE9A96$K@7?$7?9$>59A;7@>:$>E$7?9$@:79A69=7@>:$>E$NH>L@6$PL9:49$;:8$Q@E7?$R7A997B$$S?9A9E>A9J$
7?9A9$@6$:>$E9;6@IH9$D@7@G;7@>:B$

TUVWXWYZ[\]̂Z\_Ẁabc]d\efZgbWheijabaeikWlmZmainWoi[pqkakW

S?9$A964H76$>E$7?9$:9;Ar79AD$K@7?rsA><9=7$=>:8@7@>:6$O494@:G$;:;HM696$;A9$64DD;A@t98$@:$
S;IH9$uBvB$$N;H=4H;798$uw7?r59A=9:7@H9$O49496$9x=998@:G$7?9$;L;@H;IH9$67>A;G9$=;5;=@7M$;A9$
@89:7@E@98$@:$I>H8$7M59B$$S?9$O4949$;:;HM6@6$6?9976$;A9$5A969:798$@:$P559:8@x$yB$$$

[̂zpZWTU{W
lmZmainWoi[pqkakW|m__[\qWXWYZ[\]̂Z\_Ẁabc]d\efZgbWheijabaeikW

}ibZ\kZgbaeiW
|be\[nZW[ijWlmZmZW~ZinbcW��ZZb�W

��~W ��̂ W ���W `�~W `�̂ W `��W Y�~W Y�̂ W Y��W |�~W |�̂ W |��W

NH>L@6$�$
R@9AA;$

R7>A;G9$ ��w�$ ��$ ��w$ ��$ ��$ vw$ �v�$ ��$ �w$ ��w$ ��$ ��$

PB�B$ ���$ ��$ �$ v�$ uv$ �$ ��$ ��v$ �$ �w$ ���$ ��$

sB�B$ ��w$ �w$ ��$ v�$ �w$ �$ �w$ v��$ �$ ��$ �w�$ ��$

NH>L@6$�$
R9=>:8$

R7>A;G9$ R$ �vw$ R$ R$ y$ R$ R$ ���$ R$ R$ ���$ R$

PB�B$ R$ w$ R$ R$ �$ R$ R$ �$ R$ R$ �$ R$

sB�B$ R$ ��$ R$ R$ �$ R$ R$ �$ R$ R$ �$ R$

NH>L@6$�$
S?@A8$

R7>A;G9$ w�$ �v�$ R$ uw$ ��$ ww$ R$ ���$ R$ R$ ��$ R$

PB�B$ vv$ �u$ R$ ww$ ���$ �v$ R$ ��w$ R$ R$ �u�$ R$

sB�B$ ��$ ���$ R$ �u$ ���$ w�$ R$ v��$ R$ R$ vw�$ R$

�979A;:6$�$
S?@A8$

R7>A;G9$ ���$ �R$ �R$ �vw�$ �R$ �R$ R$ ���$ R$ R$ y$ R$
PB�B$ �$ �R$ �R$ w$ �R$ �R$ R$ ��$ R$ R$ w$ R$
sB�B$ w$ �R$ �R$ �$ �R$ �R$ R$ ��$ R$ R$ ��$ R$

NH>L@6$�$
Q>4A7?$

R7>A;G9$ R$ �v�$ R$ R$ ���$y$ R$ R$ ���$ R$ R$ ���$ R$
PB�B$ R$ �v$ R$ R$ ��$ R$ R$ ���$ R$ R$ ���$ R$
sB�B$ R$ ww$ R$ R$ ��$ R$ R$ ��u$ R$ R$ ��w$ R$

NH>L@6$�$
Q@E7?$

R7>A;G9$ ��$ �v�$ R$ �w��$ �w�$ R$ R$ ��$ R$ R$ ���$ R$
PB�B$ ��$ �u�$ R$ �v�$ vw�$ R$ R$ �u�$ R$ R$ �w�$ R$
sB�B$ ���W v��$ R$ ���$ v��$ R$ R$ ���$ R$ R$ ���$ R$

�979A;:6$�$
Q@E7?$

R7>A;G9$ �w�$ �R$ �R$ ���$ �R$ �R$ R$ y$ R$ R$ ���$ R$

PB�B$ �$ �R$ �R$ �$ �R$ �R$ R$ ���$ R$ R$ ww$ ��$

sB�B$ �$ �R$ �R$ �$ �R$ �R$ R$ �$ R$ R$ v�$ ��$

�$ �9E7r74A:$H;:9$=>::9=76$7>$;$7K>rK;M$H9E7r74A:$H;:9J$;88@7@>:;H$67>A;G9$;L;@H;IH9$9O4;H$7>$H9:G7?$>E$;8<;=9:7$
7?A>4G?$H;:9B$

��$�A9;79A$7?;:$�J���$E997$7>$:9x7$6@G:;H@t98$>A$;HHrK;M$67>5$=>:7A>HH98$@:79A69=7@>:B$$
y$�$yA@L9K;M$
R$�$R?;A98$K@7?$7?A>4G?$H;:9B$
�R$�$�>7$A9O4@A98$7>$67>5B$
$

S?9$A964H76$>E$7?9$:9;Ar79AD$K@7?rsA><9=7$=>:8@7@>:6$;:;HM696$;A9$L9AM$6@D@H;A$7>$7?9$9x@67@:G$
=>:8@7@>:6B$$S?9$=;H=4H;798$uw7?r59A=9:7@H9$O49496$8>$:>7$9x=998$7?9$9x@67@:G$67>A;G9$=;5;=@7M$
;7$7?9$6748M$@:79A69=7@>:6J$K@7?$7?9$9x=957@>:$7?;7$7?9$=;H=4H;798$O4949$@6$H>:G9A$7?;:$7?9$H9E7r
74A:$H;:9$>:$7?9$9;67I>4:8$;55A>;=?$7>$7?9$@:79A69=7@>:$>E$NH>L@6$PL9:49$;:8$Q@E7?$R7A997B$$
S?9$=4D4H;7@L9$5A><9=76$5H46$7?9$sA><9=7$=;469$7?9$=;H=4H;798$uw7?r59A=9:7@H9$O4949$7>$
@:=A9;69$IM$��$E997$;7$7?@6$H>=;7@>:J$K?@=?$@6$:>7$=>:6@89A98$;$64I67;:7@;H$8@EE9A9:=9$EA>D$7?9$
9x@67@:G$=>:8@7@>:6B$$

201

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#���!�

$
$

% % &'(')*+,-./-'')/-.+0)123%

4567879:;<=>:<?7@ABC=D<EF:GB7HEIJABAEIK7=7L?M;GBK7;IJ7NABAO;BAEI7N:;KP<:K7

QRS$TSUVWXSVY$Z[XRW\V]̂S_X$_]T̀[X[]Ta$UTUbcaSa$UVS$dUaS̀$]T$_]T̀[X[]Ta$SefS_XS̀$X]$]__gV$
UhXSV$_]TaXVg_X[]T$]h$XRS$fST̀[Ti$fV]̂S_Xa$UT̀$XRS$fV]f]aS̀$\V]̂S_Xj$$kgYgbUX[lS$XVUhh[_$
[YfU_Xa$[̀STX[h[S̀$[T$XRS$mSUVWQSVY$n[XRW\V]̂S_X$_]T̀[X[]Ta$UTUbcaSa$UVS$aXUXS̀$dSb]Zo$
h]bb]ZS̀$dc$XRS$VS_]YYST̀S̀$Y[X[iUX[]T$]V$U_X[]Tj$

L?M;GB7>pq9r=s7

tX$XRS$[TXSVaS_X[]T$]h$uSXSVUTa$nUc$UT̀$v[hXR$wXVSSXo$XRS$_gYgbUX[lS$fV]̂S_Xa$fbga$XRS$
\V]̂S_X$Z[bb$SeU_SVdUXS$XRS$Se[aX[Ti$xyw$v$dc$[T_VSUa[Ti$UlSVUiS$̀SbUca$hV]Y$z{j|$
aS_]T̀a$fSV$lSR[_bS$X]$z}j~$aS_]T̀a$fSV$lSR[_bS$̀gV[Ti$XRS$UjYj$fSU�$R]gVj$$QR[a$[YfU_X$[a$
[̀STX[_Ub$X]$�YfU_X$QVUTaW�$[T$XRS$Se[aX[TiWfbgaW\V]̂S_X$a_STUV[]j$$$

NABAO;BAEI7N:;KP<:7>pq9r=s7

QRSVS$[a$T]$hSUa[dbS$Y[X[iUX[]Tj$$

202

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#�����

$
$

% % &'(')*+,-./-'')/-.+0)123%

4567689:;6<5=>6?@ABCD;EF9GA6GEHI@A@EHJ6:H:K8J9J6

LMNLOPOQRSTOUMVWOXYZ[\]T̂_R̀ZOaSbROĉbdYefTSZŶbgOSbhOibZRTgR̀ZŶbOĉbZT̂jO

klm$nmop$qrst$uvwlxypz{m|w$|z}~vwvz}�$�o}m$|z}�v��powvz}�$o}~$v}wmp�m|wvz}$|z}wpz�$opm$
o����m~$wz$�m$wlm$�o�m$o�$wlm$m�v�wv}�$|z}~vwvz}�$�pm�m}wm~$v}$�v��pm$�x��$

LMNUOPOQRSTOUMVWOXYZ[\]T̂_R̀ZO�TSddỲO�̂jf�RgO

klm$nmop$qrst$uvwlxypz{m|w$|z}~vwvz}�$�mo�xlz�p$wpo��v|$�z���m�$opm$~mwmp�v}m~$�n$o~~v}�$
wlm$qrst$�o�m�v}m$wpo��v|$�z���m�$o}~$wlm$ypz{m|w$wpo��v|$�z���m��$$klm$nmop$qrst$uvwlx
ypz{m|w$|z}~vwvz}�$�mo�xlz�p$wpo��v|$�z���m�$opm$�pm�m}wm~$v}$�v��pm$�rx��$�mop$qrst$�vwlx
ypz{m|w$����$o}~$y���$ymo�$�z�p$kpo��v|$�z���m��$

LMNVOPOQRSTOUMVWOXYZ[\]T̂_R̀ZOibZRTgR̀ZŶbOa��O�bSj�gYgO

klm$pm���w�$z�$wlm$nmop$qrst$uvwlxypz{m|w$|z}~vwvz}�$v}wmp�m|wvz}$���$o}o�n�m�$opm$
����opv�m~$v}$ko��m$�r���$$ ����owv�m$v��o|w�$opm$v~m}wv�vm~$v}$�z�~$wn�m�$$klm$v}wmp�m|wvz}$
o}o�n�v�$�lmmw�$opm$�pm�m}wm~$v}$���m}~v�$¡�$$$

�S¢jROLMNLO
]RS£O¤̂ fTOibZRTgR̀ZŶbO�bSj�gYgO�f��ST�OPOUMVWOXYZ[\]T̂_R̀ZOĉbhYZŶbgO

ibZRTgR̀ZŶbO ĉbZT̂jO
�N¥NO]RS£O¤̂ fTOO ]N¥NO]RS£O¤̂ fTO
¡m�on$
¦�m|§$

���$
¡m�on$
¦�m|§$

���$

 �z�v�̈�vmppo$ �v�}o��$ q©��$  $ qq��$  $

 �z�v�$̈$�m|z}~$ �}mxuon$�wz�ª$ q«�rO ¡ªªO V¬NWO ®®O

 �z�v�$̈$klvp~$ �v�}o��$ sq�t$  $ �q�q$ ¡$

�mwmpo}�$̈$klvp~$ �}mxuon$�wz�ª$ V̄NUO °O V±N̄$ $

 �z�v�$̈$�z�pwl$ �v�}o��$ �²�©$ ³$ �t�t$ ³$

 �z�v�$̈$�v�wl$ �v�}o��$ �q�²$ ¡$ ¬́NMO O

�mwmpo}�$̈$�v�wl$ �}mxuon$�wz�ª$ VḾŃO °O V̄ŃO O

ª$�$~pv�muon$m�v�w�$o�$wlm$�z�pwl$�m�$z�$wlm$v}wmp�m|wvz}$o}~$m��m}wvo��n$|pmowm�$o$
wuzxuon$�wz�$|z}wpz�$|z}~vwvz}$

ªª$klm$pm�zpwm~$���$v�$�zp$wlm$mo�w�z�}~$o��pzo|l�$$���$µ$z||�p�$z}$wlm$um�w�z�}~$
o��pzo|l$¦ulv|l$v�$o$�pv�owm$~pv�muon§$�zp$�zwl$�mo�$lz�p��$��w$m��mpvm}|m�$o$
}m��v�v��m$}���mp$z�$�mo�$lz�p$wpv���$

$

klm$|����owv�m$�pz{m|w��$v}|��~v}�$qr$nmop�$z�$pm�vz}o�$�pzuwl�$opm$m��m|wm~$wz$|o��m$
�v�}v�v|o}w$v��o|w�$�o�m~$z}$v}wmp�m|wvz}$���$|pvwmpvo$ow$wlm$�z��zuv}�$v}wmp�m|wvz}�¶$

·̧  �z�v�$��m}�m$̈$�m|z}~$�wpmmw¹$
·̧ �mwmpo}�$�on$̈$klvp~$�wpmmw¹$
·̧  �z�v�$��m}�m$̈$�v�wl$�wpmmw¹$
·̧ �mwmpo}�$�on$̈$�v�wl$�wpmmw�$

�w$wlm$v}wmp�m|wvz}$z�$ �z�v�$��m}�m$o}~$�m|z}~$�wpmmw�$wlm$���$z}$wlm$mo�w�z�}~$o��pzo|l$
~pz��$�pz�$wlm$m�v�wv}�$���$ $~�pv}�$wlm$o���$o}~$����$�mo�$lz�p�$wz$���$¡$¦o||m�wo��m§$
~�pv}�$wlm$o���$�mo�$lz�p$o}~$���$µ$~�pv}�$wlm$����$�mo�$lz�p�$$�mlv|�m�$z}$ �z�v�$��m}�m$
opm$}zw$pmº�vpm~$wz$�wz�$o}~$m��mpvm}|m$�vww�m$wz$}z$~m�on�$$ymo�xlz�p$wpo��v|$�v�}o�$uoppo}w�$
opm$}zw$�mw�$$klm$�mo�xlz�p$uoppo}w�$o}o�n�v�$�lmmw�$opm$v}|��~m~$v}$���m}~v�$µ�$

203

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#�����

$
$

% % &'(')*+,-./-'')/-.+0)123%

4566789:$;7<7=><75?6$><$<@:$7?<:A6:B<75?$5C$D95E76$FE:?G:$>?H$I:B5?H$I<A::<$7?B9GH:$
7?6<>99><75?$5C$>99JK>L$6<5M$B5?<A59$5A$>$A5G?H>85G<N$$F99JK>L$6<5M$B5?<A59$K5G9H$5M:A><:$
8:95K$<@:$<>A=:<$OPI$HGA7?=$M:>Q$@5GA6$>?H$76$?5<$K>AA>?<:H$C5A$<@:$A:RG7A:H$:7=@<$@5GA6$M:A$
H>L$>6$H:6BA78:H$7?$<@:$DSTUDVW$>6$:E7H:?B:H$8L$<@:$C>B<$<@><$<@:$;7?7;G;$E59G;:6$C5A$
;G9<7JK>L$6<5M$B5?<A59$>A:$?5<$;:<$HGA7?=$<@:$>N;N$>?H$MN;N$M:>Q$@5GA6N$$F$67?=9:J9>?:$
A5G?H>85G<$;>L$?5<$8:$=:5;:<A7B>99L$C:>6789:$>6$>$A:6G9<$5C$<@:$A:RG7A:H$9>?:$HA5M$5?$<@:$
?5A<@85G?H$>MMA5>B@W$>?H$K5G9H$97Q:9L$A:6G9<$7?$RG:G:6$7?$<@:$?5A<@85G?H$9>?:$<@><$K5G9H$
:X<:?H$?:>A$<@:$7?<:A6:B<75?$5C$D95E76$FE:?G:$>?H$U@7AH$I<A::<$HGA7?=$M:>Q$M:A75H6$K@:?$
M9><55?6$5C$?5A<@85G?H$E:@7B9:6$>A:$A:9:>6:H$CA5;$<@:$<A>CC7B$67=?>9$><$D95E76$FE:?G:$>?H$
U@7AH$I<A::<N$$D5?6<AGB<75?$5C$>$<K5J9>?:$A5G?H>85G<$K5G9H$8:$A:6<A7B<:H$8L$M@L67B>9$
B5?6<A>7?<6$Y:X76<7?=$8G79H7?=6W$8G79H7?=$6:<8>BQ$A:RG7A:;:?<6Z$>?H$A7=@<J5CJK>L$B5?6<A>7?<6N$$
4597BL$[N\$5C$<@:$D7<L$5C$D95E76$]:?:A>9$49>?$>995K6$:XB:M<75?6$<5$<@:$;7?7;G;$OPI$V$
A:RG7A:;:?<$5?$>$B>6:J8LJB>6:$8>676$K@:A:$A7=@<J5CJK>L$B5?6<A>7?<6$K5G9H$;>Q:$B>M>B7<L$
:XM>?675?$7?C:>6789:N$$U@:A:C5A:W$<@:A:$76$?5$C:>6789:$;7<7=><75?N$$$

F9<@5G=@$<@:A:$76$?5$C:>6789:$M@L67B>9$;7<7=><75?$><$<@:$7?<:A6:B<75?$5C$D95E76$FE:?G:$>?H$
I:B5?H$I<A::<W$<@:$A5>H$?:<K5AQ$7?$<@:$E7B7?7<L$5C$<@:$7?<:A6:B<75?$>995K6$C5A$>9<:A?><:$<GA?7?=$
;5E:;:?<6$>?H$A5G<:6N$$̂5A$:X>;M9:W$7C$>$HA7E:A$:XM:A7:?B:6$H7CC7BG9<L$<GA?7?=$9:C<$<5$
?5A<@85G?H$D95E76$FE:?G:$CA5;$<@:$:>6<85G?H$>MMA5>B@W$<@:$>9<:A?><7E:$76$<5$G<797_:$4599>6QL$
FE:?G:$5A$5<@:A$6<A::<6$<5$<@:$H:67A:H$H:6<7?><75?$<5$<@:$?5A<@N$$U@:A:C5A:W$HA7E:A6$>A:$97Q:9L$<5$
>E57H$H:9>L6$8L$G67?=$>9<:A?><:$A5G<:6$5A$E>AL7?=$<@:7A$6B@:HG9:$697=@<9LN$

F<$<@:$7?<:A6:B<75?$5C$̀:<:A>?6$a>L$>?H$U@7AH$I<A::<W$<@:$OPI$HA5M6$CA5;$<@:$:X76<7?=$
OPI$D$HGA7?=$<@:$>N;N$M:>Q$@5GA$>?H$OPI$b$HGA7?=$<@:$MN;N$M:>Q$@5GA$<5$OPI$̂$HGA7?=$<@:$
>N;N$M:>Q$@5GA$>?H$OPI$c$HGA7?=$<@:$MN;N$M:>Q$@5GAN$$4:>QJ@5GA$<A>CC7B$67=?>9$K>AA>?<6$>A:$
?5<$;:<N$$U@:$M:>QJ@5GA$K>AA>?<6$>?>9L676$6@::<6$>A:$7?B9GH:H$7?$FMM:?H7X$cN$

4566789:$;7<7=><75?6$><$<@:$7?<:A6:B<75?$5C$̀:<:A>?6$a>L$>?H$U@7AH$I<A::<$7?B9GH:$7?6<>99><75?$
5C$>99JK>L$6<5M$B5?<A59$5A$>$A5G?H>85G<N$$F99JK>L$6<5M$B5?<A59$76$?5<$K>AA>?<:H$C5A$<@:$
A:RG7A:H$:7=@<$@5GA6$M:A$H>L$>6$H:6BA78:H$7?$<@:$DSTUDVW$>6$:E7H:?B:H$8L$<@:$C>B<$<@><$<@:$
;7?7;G;$E59G;:6$C5A$;G9<7JK>L$6<5M$B5?<A59$>A:$?5<$;:<$HGA7?=$<@:$>N;N$M:>Q$@5GAN$$F$
67?=9:J9>?:$A5G?H>85G<$76$M5<:?<7>99L$C:>6789:$CA5;$>$=:5;:<A7B$6<>?HM57?<$>?H$76$:XM:B<:H$<5$
5M:A><:$><$>BB:M<>89:$9:E:96$5C$6:AE7B:$HGA7?=$<@:$M:>Q$@5GA6N$$S7<7=><:H$7?<:A6:B<75?$>?>9L6:6$
C5A$>$A5G?H>85G<$>A:$MA:6:?<:H$7?$FMM:?H7X$̂N$$$

F<$<@:$7?<:A6:B<75?$5C$D95E76$FE:?G:$d$̂7C<@$I<A::<W$<@:$OPI$HA5M6$CA5;$<@:$:X76<7?=$OPI$D$<5$
OPI$c$HGA7?=$<@:$MN;N$M:>Q$@5GAN$$U@:$7?<:A6:B<75?$@>6$8::?$B5?6<AGB<:H$<5$7<6$;>X7;G;$
B5?C7=GA><75?$>?H$<@:A:$>A:$8G79H7?=6$>He>B:?<$<5$<@:$A5>HK>L$K7<@$?5$5MM5A<G?7<L$<5$K7H:?$
<@:$7?<:A6:B<75?N$$4597BL$[N\$5C$<@:$D7<L$5C$D95E76$]:?:A>9$49>?$>995K6$:XB:M<75?6$<5$<@:$
;7?7;G;$OPI$V$A:RG7A:;:?<$5?$>$B>6:J8LJB>6:$8>676$K@:A:$A7=@<J5CJK>L$B5?6<A>7?<6$K5G9H$
;>Q:$B>M>B7<L$:XM>?675?$7?C:>6789:N$$U@:A:C5A:W$<@:A:$76$?5$C:>6789:$;7<7=><75?N$

F<$<@:$7?<:A6:B<75?$5C$̀:<:A>?6$a>L$>?H$̂7C<@$I<A::<W$<@:$:X76<7?=$OPI$̂$HGA7?=$<@:$>N;N$M:>Q$
@5GA$76$:X>B:A8><:H$>?H$<@:$:X76<7?=$OPI$D$HA5M6$<5$OPI$c$HGA7?=$<@:$MN;N$M:>Q$@5GAN$$
4:>QJ@5GA$<A>CC7B$67=?>9$K>AA>?<6$>A:$?5<$;:<N$$U@:$M:>QJ@5GA$K>AA>?<6$>?>9L676$6@::<6$>A:$
7?B9GH:H$7?$FMM:?H7X$cN$

4566789:$;7<7=><75?6$><$<@:$7?<:A6:B<75?$5C$̀:<:A>?6$a>L$>?H$̂7C<@$I<A::<$7?B9GH:$7?6<>99><75?$
5C$>99JK>L$6<5M$B5?<A59$5A$>$A5G?H>85G<N$$f5K:E:AW$>99JK>L$6<5M$B5?<A59$K5G9H$5M:A><:$8:95K$

204

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#���$�

%
%

& & '()(*+,-./0.((*0./,1*234&

567%589:75%;<=%>?9@A:%B78C%6D?9E%8A>%@E%AD5%F8998A57>%GD9%567%97H?@97>%7@:65%6D?9E%B79%>8I%8E%
>7EJ9@K7>%@A%567%LMNOLPQ%8E%7R@>7AJ7>%KI%567%G8J5%5685%567%S@A@S?S%RDT?S7E%GD9%S?T5@U
F8I%E5DB%JDA59DT%897%AD5%S75%>?9@A:%567%BVSV%B78C%6D?9V%%W%E@A:T7UT8A7%9D?A>8KD?5%@E%
7XB7J57>%5D%97E?T5%@A%H?7?7E%7X57A>@A:%@A5D%567%@A579E7J5@DA%DG%LTDR@E%WR7A?7%8A>%Y@G56%
=59775Q%B895@J?T89TI%8E%8%97E?T5%DG%R76@JT7E%>9DBB@A:%DGG%8A>%B@JC@A:%?B%E5?>7A5E%8>Z8J7A5%5D%567%
@A579E7J5@DAV%%[5%@E%JDSSDA%GD9%567%B89C@A:%TD5%ED?56%DG%567%@A579E7J5@DA%5D%K7JDS7%JDA:7E57>Q%
F@56%8%R79I%6@:6%T@C7T@6DD>%5685%567%JDA:7E5@DA%FD?T>%K8JC%?B%@A5D%8%9D?A>8KD?5%8A>%J8?E7%
KTDJC8:7%DG%8TT%GD?9%8BB9D8J67EV%%LD?BT7>%F@56%8%6@:6%RDT?S7%DG%B7>7E59@8A%598GG@JQ%JDSBT757%
K978C>DFA%DG%8%9D?A>8KD?5%>?9@A:%B78C%B79@D>E%@E%T@C7TI%85%56@E%@A579E7J5@DAQ%8A>%@5%@E%
@SBD958A5%5D%8RD@>%J9785@A:%8%H?7?7%@A%567%78E5KD?A>%T8A7%5685%@A579G797E%F@56%567%DB7985@DA%DG%
567%@A579E7J5@DA%DG%LTDR@E%WR7A?7%8A>%Y@G56%=59775V%%O6797GD97Q%56797%@E%AD%G78E@KT7%S@5@:85@DAV%

\]̂_̀àbcdèf]gh̀ijklmneopcqk̀rostjkjosùvwcwjsx̀ysdz{ujù

O67%97E?T5E%DG%567%I789%|}~�%F@56U�9DZ7J5%H?7?@A:%8A8TIE7E%897%E?SS89@�7>%@A%O8KT7%�}V|V%%
L8TJ?T857>%��56UB79J7A5@T7%H?7?7E%7XJ77>@A:%567%8R8@T8KT7%E5D98:7%J8B8J@5I%897%@>7A5@G@7>%@A%
KDT>%5IB7V%%O67%H?7?7%8A8TIE@E%E6775E%897%B97E7A57>%@A%WBB7A>@X%PV%%%

�d�zc̀\]̂f̀
vwcwjsx̀ysdz{ujù�w��de{̀àf]gh̀ijklmneopcqk̀rostjkjosù

�skceucqkjos̀
�koedxc̀dst̀vwcwc̀�csxkl̀��cck�̀

���̀ ���̀ ���̀ i��̀ i��̀ i��̀ ���̀ ���̀ ���̀ ���̀ ���̀ ���̀

LTDR@E%�%
=@7998%

=5D98:7% ����% ��% ���% �}% ��% |�% �|}% ��% ��% ���% ��% �}%

WVMV% ||�% ��% |�% |�% ��|% �% \��̀ |}�% }% �|% |��% �~%

�VMV% ��|% �}�% ��% ~|% ��% }% \hg̀ |��% }% ��% ���% ��%

LTDR@E%�%
=7JDA>%

=5D98:7% =% ~|�% =% =% P% =% =% �}}% =% =% �}}% =%

WVMV% =% ��% =% =% ~% =% =% ~% =% =% }% =%

�VMV% =% |}% =% =% ~% =% =% ~% =% =% }% =%

LTDR@E%�%
O6@9>%

=5D98:7% �}% ~|}% =% ��% ��% ��% =% �}}% =% =% ��% =%

WVMV% ��% ��% =% ��% ���% �\̀ =% |~�% =% =% ~�~% =%

�VMV% �f̀ ���% =% \g_% ���% �_̀ =% _]�̀ =% =% �~~% =%

�75798AE%�%
O6@9>%

=5D98:7% ��}% �=% �=% ~|��% �=% �=% =% �}}% =% =% P% =%
WVMV% }% �=% �=% �% �=% �=% =% |}�% =% =% �}% =%
�VMV% �% �=% �=% ~% �=% �=% =% ��% =% =% ��% =%

LTDR@E%�%
YD?956%

=5D98:7% =% ~|}% =% =% �~}%P% =% =% �}}% =% =% �}}% =%
WVMV% =% ~�% =% =% ~�% =% =% ���% =% =% |��% =%
�VMV% =% ��% =% =% ~�% =% =% |��% =% =% |��% =%

LTDR@E%�%
Y@G56%

=5D98:7% �}% ~|}% =% ��}�% ~�}% =% =% ��% =% =% ��}% =%
WVMV% ��% |�|% =% ���% ~|�% =% =% |��% =% =% |�~% =%
�VMV% \\�̀ g_\̀ =% ���% ~}|% =% =% �~�% =% =% _�]̀ =%

�75798AE%�%
Y@G56%

=5D98:7% ���% �=% �=% �}}% �=% �=% =% P% =% =% �}}% =%

WVMV% �}% �=% �=% �% �=% �=% =% ~|�% =% =% ���% �~%

�VMV% �% �=% �=% ~% �=% �=% =% ~% =% =% ��% �~%

�% ;7G5U5?9A%T8A7%JDAA7J5E%5D%8%5FDUF8I%T7G5U5?9A%T8A7Q%8>>@5@DA8T%E5D98:7%8R8@T8KT7%7H?8T%5D%T7A:56%DG%8>Z8J7A5%
569D?:6%T8A7V%

��%�978579%568A%�Q}}}%G775%5D%A7X5%E@:A8T@�7>%D9%8TTUF8I%E5DB%JDA59DTT7>%@A579E7J5@DAV%%
P%�%P9@R7F8I%
=%�%=6897>%F@56%569D?:6%T8A7V%
�=%�%�D5%97H?@97>%5D%E5DBV%
%

205

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#���$�

%
%

& & '()(*+,-./0.((*0./,1*234&

567%89:8;:9<7=%>?<6@A7B87C<D:7%E;7;7F%7G877=%<67%F<HB9I7%89A98D<J%9<%<67%KH::HLDCI%:H89<DHCF%
DC%<67%MNO>%LD<6@PBHQ78<%8HC=D<DHCFR%

STU:HVDF%WV7C;7%X%YD7BB9%WV7C;7R%%<67%89:8;:9<7=%CHB<6ZH;C=%:7K<@<;BC%E;7;7%7G877=F%
<67%F<HB9I7%89A98D<J%ZJ%[[%K77<%=;BDCI%<67%9\]\%A79̂%6H;B%9C=%_O%K77<%=;BDCI%<67%A\]\%
A79̂%6H;B̀%

STU:HVDF%WV7C;7%X%56DB=%Y<B77<R%%<67%89:8;:9<7=%79F<ZH;C=%:7K<@<;BC%E;7;7%7G877=F%<67%
F<HB9I7%89A98D<J%ZJ%aM%K77<%=;BDCI%<67%A\]\%A79̂%6H;B̀%<67%L7F<ZH;C=%:7K<@<;BC%E;7;7%
7G877=F%<67%F<HB9I7%89A98D<J%ZJ%O>%K77<%=;BDCI%<67%A\]\%A79̂%6H;B̀%<67%L7F<ZH;C=%
BDI6<@<;BC%E;7;7%7G877=F%<67%F<HB9I7%89A98D<J%ZJ%FDG%<H%CDC7%K77<%=;BDCI%<67%9\]\%9C=%
A\]\%A79̂%6H;BF̀%9C=%<67%CHB<6ZH;C=%E;7;7%7G<7C=F%<H%bH;B<6%Y<B77<̀%

STU:HVDF%WV7C;7%X%bDK<6%Y<B77<R%%<67%89:8;:9<7=%79F<ZH;C=%:7K<@<;BC%E;7;7%7G877=F%<67%
F<HB9I7%89A98D<J%ZJ%O?%K77<%=;BDCI%<67%A\]\̀%<67%79F<ZH;C=%<6BH;I6%E;7;7%7G<7C=F%
Z7JHC=%PH::9F̂J%WV7C;7c%9C=%<67%FH;<6ZH;C=%E;7;7%7G<7C=F%Z7JHC=%bH;B<6%Y<B77<\%

defghihjklmhneophqrstuvmwxkyshzw{|rsrw{}huh~��lys}hl{|h�rsr�lsrw{h�kl}�mk}h

U;];:9<DV7%<B9KKD8%D]A98<F%D=7C<DKD7=%DC%<67%J79B%MNO>%LD<6@PBHQ78<%8HC=D<DHCF%9C9:JF7F%9B7%
F<9<7=%Z7:HLc%KH::HL7=%ZJ%<67%B78H]]7C=7=%]D<DI9<DHC%HB%98<DHC\%%%

~��lysh�����u�h

W<%<67%DC<7BF78<DHC%HK%U:HVDF%WV7C;7%9C=%Y78HC=%Y<B77<c%<67%8;];:9<DV7%ABHQ78<Fc%
DC8:;=DCI%MN%J79BF%HK%B7IDHC9:%IBHL<6c%9B7%7GA78<7=%<H%89;F7%<67%��Y%<H%=BHA%KBH]%<67%
7GDF<DCI%��Y%U%%<H%��Y%�%HC%<67%]DCHB%F<B77<%9AABH986%=;BDCI%<67%A\]\%A79̂%6H;B\%%
�76D8:7F%HC%U:HVDF%WV7C;7%9B7%CH<%B7E;DB7=%<H%F<HA%9C=%7GA7BD7C87%:D<<:7%<H%CH%=7:9J\%

�rsr�lsrw{h�kl}�mkh�����u�h

567B7%DF%CH%K79FDZ:7%]D<DI9<DHCc%9:<6H;I6%9:<7BC9<DV7%BH;<7F%7GDF<%KHB%=BDV7BF%<H%;<D:D�7\%%

%

~��lysh�����ugh

W<%<67%DC<7BF78<DHC%HK%�7<7B9CF%�9J%9C=%56DB=%Y<B77<c%<67%8;];:9<DV7%ABHQ78<Fc%DC8:;=DCI%
MN%J79BF%HK%B7IDHC9:%IBHL<6c%9B7%7GA78<7=%<H%89;F7%<67%��Y%<H%=BHA%KBH]%<67%7GDF<DCI%
��Y%U%=;BDCI%<67%9\]\%A79̂%6H;B%9C=%��Y%�%=;BDCI%<67%A\]\%A79̂%6H;B%<H%��Y%b%=;BDCI%
<67%9\]\%A79̂%6H;B%9C=%��Y%�%=;BDCI%<67%A\]\%A79̂%6H;B\%%%

�rsr�lsrw{h�kl}�mkh�����ugh

567%DC<7BF78<DHC%F6H;:=%Z7%]H=DKD7=%ZJ%<67%J79B%MNO>%<H%9%FDCI:7@:9C7%]H=7BC%BH;C=9ZH;<%
=7FDIC7=%DC%988HB=9C87%LD<6%<JAD89:%DC=;F<BJ%F<9C=9B=Fc%L6D86%8;BB7C<:J%9B7%ABD]9BD:J%
Z9F7=%HC%<67%5��%�U��P%�7AHB<%[_MR%%�H;C=9ZH;<FR%%WC%�CKHB]9<DHC9:%�;D=7c%Y78HC=%
�=D<DHCc%MNaN\%

UHCF<B;8<DHC%HK%9%BH;C=9ZH;<%9<%<67%DC<7BF78<DHC%HK%�7<7B9CF%�9J%9C=%56DB=%Y<B77<%LH;:=%
8B79<7%9%]DCD]D�7=%8BHFFL9:̂%:7CI<6%98BHFF%56DB=%Y<B77<%9C=%LH;:=%Z7%Z7C7KD8D9:%<H%<67%
�BJ%UB77̂%5B9D:\%%567%BH;C=9ZH;<%LH;:=%DC8:;=7%C9BBHL%BH9=L9JF%9C=%9%A7=7F<BD9C%
B7K;I7%DC%<67%FA:D<<7B%DF:9C=%<69<%9::HLF%A7=7F<BD9CF%9C=%ZD8J8:7F%<H%8BHFF%9I9DCF<%HC:J%HC7%
=DB78<DHC%HK%V76D8;:9B%<B9V7:%9<%9%<D]7\%

206

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#���"�

$
$

% % &'(')*+,-./-'')/-.+0)123%

4$56789:;67<$=:>$;?$@8AB79?9$C@<D$A68E<57A<@68$6F$<D?$G56H?A<$65$=:>$;?$9?F?55?9$78<@B$
<D?$E@I8@F@A:8<$@=J:A<$@E$6;E?5K?9L$$MF$9?F?55?9N$<D?$G56H?A<$C@BB$;?$5?O7@5?9$<6$J56K@9?$
:EE75:8A?$<D:<$<D?$=@<@I:<@68$C@BB$?K?8<7:BB>$;?$A68E<57A<?9L$$P7AD$:EE75:8A?$=:>$;?$@8$
QRSTUVWXTVUTYZZ[\]TQRST̂V_QTVUTQRSTWV̀\ZYaV̀QTQVTQRSTb[Qcd_TZSeSfVgXS\QTUSSTgWV]WYXh$

ijklmnopqrstuvo

4<$<D?$@8<?5E?A<@68$6F$wB6K@E$4K?87?$:89$x@F<D$P<5??<N$<D?$A7=7B:<@K?$J56H?A<EN$@8AB79@8I$
yz$>?:5E$6F$5?I@68:B$I56C<DN$:5?$?{J?A<?9$<6$A:7E?$<D?$|}P$<6$956J$F56=$<D?$?{@E<@8I$
|}P$w$<6$|}P$~$975@8I$<D?$JL=L$J?:�$D675L$$$

��n��ln���o��l����opqrstuvo

�D?5?$@E$86$F?:E@;B?$=@<@I:<@68L$$

$

ijklmnopqrstu�o

4<$<D?$@8<?5E?A<@68$6F$�?<?5:8E$�:>$:89$x@F<D$P<5??<N$<D?$A7=7B:<@K?$J56H?A<EN$@8AB79@8I$
yz$>?:5E$6F$5?I@68:B$I56C<DN$:5?$?{J?A<?9$<6$?{:A?5;:<?$<D?$?{@E<@8I$|}P$x$975@8I$<D?$
:L=L$J?:�$D675$:89$C@BB$A:7E?$<D?$?{@E<@8I$|}P$w$<6$956J$<6$|}P$~$975@8I$<D?$JL=L$J?:�$
D675L$$$

��n��ln���o��l����opqrstu�o

�D?5?$@E$86$F?:E@;B?$=@<@I:<@68L$$

$

207

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#���$�

%
%

& & '()(*+,-./0.((*0./,1*234&

5567689:;6<==;88>6=9?=@A<:9BC>6<CD6E<?F9CG6

HHIHJKJLMNOJPQQORRJSTUJVMWQXYSNMZTJ

[\]%̂_]̀abĉdae%adaefgcg%̂h%b\]%i]b]̀adg%jafk[\c̀l%mb̀]]b%cdb]̀g]nbĉd%_̀̂ ocl]g%adaefgcg%̂h%
b\]%gcb]%ann]gg%l̀co]pafq%%m]n̂dlàf%ann]gg%pcee%r]%_̀̂ ocl]l%oca%ad%]scgbcdt%d̂ b̀\uĝvb\%aee]f%
aêdt%b\]%]agb]̀d%]lt]%̂h%b\]%ẁ x̂]nb%gcb]%b\ab%nv̀̀]dbef%n̂dd]nbg%b̂%[\c̀l%mb̀]]b%ab%b\]%ĝvb\%
]dl%adl%b̂%b\]%ygzvd%{c̀ne]%nve%l]%gan%ab%b\]%d̂ b̀\%]dlq%%|b%cg%d̂b%adbcnc_ab]l%b\ab%b\]̀]%pcee%
r]%a%\ct\%l]zadl%ĥ̀%ẁ x̂]nb%b̀c_g%b̂%vbcec}]%ygzvd%~o]dv]%b̂%ann]gg%b\]%gcb]%h̀̂z%[\c̀l%
mb̀]]b%r]navg]%b\]%aee]f%_̀̂ ocl]g%a%ẑ ]̀%lc̀]nb%g]n̂dlàf%ann]gg%h̀̂z%[\c̀l%mb̀]]bq%%
�v̀b\]̀ẑ ]̀�%b\]̀]%cg%d̂b%]s_]nb]l%b̂%r]%a%\ct\%l]zadl%ĥ̀%ẁ x̂]nb%b̀c_g%b̀ao]ecdt%d̂ b̀\%̂h%b\]%
gcb]%b̂%vbcec}]%b\]%̀̂vb]%r]bp]]d%b\]%ygzvd%{c̀ne]%nve%l]%gan%adl%mc]̀̀a%~o]dv]�%_àbcnveàef%
r]navg]%b\]%̀̂vb]%cg%nc̀nvcb̂vg%adl%b\]%g_]]l%\vz_g%̂d%mc]̀̀a%~o]dv]%b]dl%b̂%lcgn̂v̀at]%cbg%
vg]q%%%

~%t]d]̀ae%̀]oc]p%̂h%b\]%n̂dn]_bvae%gcb]%_ead%pag%_]̀ĥ̀z]lq%%|b%cg%̀]n̂zz]dl]l%b\ab%b\]%gcb]%
_ead%r]%ẑ lchc]l%b̂%]dgv̀]%b\ab%��uĥ̂ b%rvg]g%à]%ann̂zẑ lab]l%cd%b\]%l]gctd�%adl%b\ab%b\]%
g]n̂dlàf%ann]gg%_̂cdbg%pcee%al]�vab]ef%ann̂zẑ lab]%o]\cne]g�%_àbcnveàef%cd%b\]%]o]db%b\ab%
b\]%zacd%l̀co]paf%cg%rên�]lq%%|b%cg%̀]n̂zz]dl]l%b\ab%b\]%l̀co]%a__̀̂ an\%ab%b\]%aee]f%r]%
cz_̀̂ o]l%b̂%ann̂zẑ lab]%b\]%̀]�vc̀]l%l]gctd%o]\cne]%ch%êalcdt%}̂d]g%à]%n̂dgb̀vnb]l%aêdt%
b\]%aee]f%adl%̀]�vc̀]%rvg]g%̂̀%l]eco]̀f%b̀vn�g%b̂%vg]%b\]%aee]f%ĥ̀%ann]ggq%

HHI�JKJ�SW�MT�J

[\]%ẁ x̂]nb%gcb]%cg%]s_]nb]l%b̂%\ao]%ẑ ]̀%b\ad%���%_à�cdt%gbaeegq%%�̂ %̀ao]̀at]%n̂dlcbĉdg%b\cg%
dvzr]̀%̂h%gbaeeg%cg%]s_]nb]l%b̂%r]%al]�vab]q%%yb\]̀%_vrecn%_à�cdt%cg%aoaceare]%ĥ̀%g_]ncae%
]o]dbg�%_̀czàcef%b\]%]scgbcdt%_à�cdt%êbg%ĝvb\]agb%adl%ĝvb\p]gb%̂h%b\]%cdb]̀g]nbĉd%̂h%
i]b]̀adg%jaf%adl%[\c̀l%mb̀]]bq%%�������������������������������������������g%̀]�vc̀]z]dbg%ĥ̀%
����� ¡��������� �¢����������¢�������������������� ¡��£��������¤���¥���������� ���¡ ����� �¦%

208

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#���$�

%
%

& & '()(*+,-./0.((*0./,1*234&

567879:;<=>;9?76@ABCDE7;E>FF<G7HCID=9:7

JKLMN%OPQRSTUVW%XVKYYLZ%[TMU\]̂%ZK_%̀]%Û]YUM%L_%_TL̂]%K_KMN̂]̂%TV%̂L\aMN%YTV%L_YTV\KXLT_KM%
aUVaT̂]̂b%%cK̀M]%dPbd%aV]̂]_X̂%K_%]̂XL\KX]%TY%XS]%eKLMN%[TMU\]̂%ÒTXS%eLV]ZXLT_̂%ZT\̀ L_]eW%
T_%VTKe%̂]f\]_X̂%KegKZ]_X%XT%XS]%̂XUeN%L_X]V̂]ZXLT_̂b%%cS]̂]%]̂XL\KX]̂%KV]%̀K̂]e%T_%K_%
K̂̂U\aXLT_%XSKX%XS]%ab\b%a]Kh%STUV%XVKYYLZ%[TMU\]̂%KV]%KaaVTiL\KX]MN%dj%a]VZ]_X%TY%XS]%eKLMN%
[TMU\]̂b%%cS]̂]%[KMU]̂%KV]%_TX%UXLMLk]e%L_%XS]%XVKYYLZ%K_KMN̂]̂b%

lmnopqrstrq
uvwxymwpzqs{|}~��ql�m��x�q�~o�ypvq

�~mzq �p�yp�wq u�xvwx��q
u�xvwx��q
�o�vq
��~�p�wq

�pm�|
lp�yq�~q
��~�p�wq

�pm�|
lp�yq
�xw�q
��~�p�wq

s���q�~q
��~�p�wq

s���q
�xw�q
��~�p�wq

�MT[L̂%
�[]_U]%%

�TVXS%TY%�L]VVK%% dQ���j% d���Qj% d����j% d���jj% d��QjP% d��j��%

�L]VVK%XT%�]ZT_e% dP��Qj% d����j% d����j% dQ��jj% d���d�% d���d�%

�]ZT_e%XT%cSLVe% dP���j% d����j% d����j% dQ��jj% d����P% d���Pj%

cSLVe%XT%�TUVXS% dd�j�j% dd��jj% dd���j% dP��Qj% dQ�Pj�% d��dP�%

�TUVXS%XT%�LYXS% dd�j�j% dd��Qj% dd���j% dP�Q�j% dQ�j��% dQ����%

�TUXS%TY%�LYXS% dd�j�j% dd���j% dd���j% dP�Pdj% d����d% dQ�d�d%

�L]VVK%
�[]_U]%

�]̂X%TY%�MT[L̂% ����j% ����j% ����j% ��jdj% ��d��% ��Q�d%
�K̂X%TY%�MT[L̂% P��Pj% P���j% P���j% P���j% ��d�j% ��PQQ%

�]ZT_e%
�XV]]X%

�]̂X%TY%�MT[L̂% ��j% �Qj% ��j% �Qj% ���% ���%

cSLVe%
�XV]]X%

�]̂X%TY%�MT[L̂% P���j% P���j% P���j% P���j% ���QQ% ���Qj%

�MT[L̂%XT%�]X]VK_̂% Q���j% ��QPj% Q��Pj% ��Q�j% �����% ���d�%

�K̂X%TY%�]X]VK_̂% Q�P�j% Q��Pj% Q���j% Q���j% ����d% �����%

�TUVXS%
�XV]]X%

�]̂X%TY%�MT[L̂% d��dj% d���j% d���j% d�Qdj% d��Q�% d��Q�%

�K̂X%TY%�MT[L̂% ��j% ��j% ��j% ��j% �dd% �dd%

�LYXS%
�XV]]X%

�]̂X%TY%�MT[L̂% ����j% ��j�j% ����j% ��dPj% �����% ����d%

�MT[L̂%XT%�]X]VK_̂% ����j% ����j% ����j% ����j% ��P��% �����%

�K̂X%TY%�]X]VK_̂% ��Q�j% ����j% ����j% ����j% ��dQ�% �����%

�]X]VK_̂%
�KN%

cSLVe%XT%�TUVXS% d�d�j% d���j% d�d�j% d���j% d�Q��% P�d�P%
�TUVXS%XT%�LYXS% d���j% d��Qj% d���j% d��Qj% d����% P�P��%

%

cS]%L_X]V̂]ZXLT_%XUV_L_f%\T[]\]_X%ZTU_X̂%V][]KM%XSKX%S]K[N%[]SLZM]̂%OXSV]]%TV%\TV]%KiM]̂W%
ZT\aVL̂]%M]̂̂%XSK_%T_]%a]VZ]_X%TY%XS]%XTXKM%[TMU\]%TY%XVKYYLZ%KX%][]VN%̂XUeN%L_X]V̂]ZXLT_%
eUVL_f%̀TXS%XS]%Kb\b%K_e%ab\b%a]Kh%STUV̂b%%cT%̀]%ZT_̂]V[KXL[]�%XS]%L_X]V̂]ZXLT_%Ta]VKXLT_KM%
K_KMN̂]̂%aV]̂]_X]e%L_%XS]%V]aTVX%K̂̂U\]e%X T%a]VZ]_X%S]K[N%[]SLZM]̂b%%¡T ][]V�%LX%L̂%
]̂XL\KX]e�%T_%K%PQRSTUV%̀K̂L̂�%XSKX%S]K[N%[]SLZM]̂%ZT\aVL̂]%_T%\TV]%XSK_%T_]%a]VZ]_X%TY%XS]%
]̂XL\KX]e%[TMU\]̂%aV]̂]_X]e%L_%cK̀M]%dPbdb%

209

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#���$�

%
%

& & '()(*+,-./0.((*0./,1*234&

567879:;9<=>?:;>7@;A7>=BB@CD7:E7?BF@9G>7@;A7B?G?H@G?:;>7

IJKLMKNM%JNKOOPQ%RLSPLRRNPLS%TNPLQPTURV%KLM%WRJXYMV%ZRNR%RWTUY[RM%JY%RVJK\UPVX%JXR%R]PVJPLS%
QYLMPJPYLV̂%JY%RVJPWKJR%JXR%L_W\RN%YO%JNPTV%R]TRQJRM%JY%\R%SRLRNKJRM%\[%JXR%̀NYaRQĴ%KLM%JY%
KLKU[bR%JXR%JNKOOPQ%QYLMPJPYLV%R]TRQJRM%JY%YQQ_N%PL%JXR%O_J_NRc%%%

dXR%JNKOOPQ%PWTKQJ%VJ_M[%OY_LM%JXKJ%JXR%PLJRNVRQJPYL%YO%eRJRNKLV%fK[%KLM%gPOJX%IJNRRJ%PV%
Q_NNRLJU[%YTRNKJPLS%\RUYZ%JXR%JKNSRJ%hiI%M_NPLS%JXR%KcWc%TRKj%XY_N̂%TNPWKNPU[%KV%K%NRV_UJ%YO%
VQXYYU%JNKOOPQc%%dXR%YJXRN%VJ_M[%PLJRNVRQJPYLV%Q_NNRLJU[%YTRNKJR%KJ%hiI%k%YN%\RJJRN%KLM%KNR%
R]TRQJRM%JY%QYLJPL_R%JY%YTRNKJR%KJ%hiI%l%YN%\RJJRN%JXNY_SX%JXR%[RKN%mnop%ZPJXY_J%JXR%̀NYaRQJc%

dXR%̀NYaRQJ%PV%R]TRQJRM%JY%QK_VR%YN%QYLJNP\_JR%JY%VPSLPOPQKLJ%JNKOOPQ%PWTKQJV%KJ%JXR%OYUUYZPLS%
PLJRNVRQJPYLVq%

rskUYtPV%utRL_R%v%IRQYLM%IJNRRJ%w[RKN%mnop%Q_W_UKJPtR%PWTKQJxy%
rseRJRNKLV%fK[%v%dXPNM%IJNRRJ%w[RKN%mnop%Q_W_UKJPtR%PWTKQJxy%
rskUYtPV%utRL_R%v%gPOJX%IJNRRJ%w[RKN%mnop%Q_W_UKJPtR%PWTKQJxy%
rseRJRNKLV%fK[%v%gPOJX%IJNRRJ%ẁNYaRQJ%PWTKQĴ%LRKNzJRNW%Q_W_UKJPtR%PWTKQĴ%KLM%[RKN%
mnop%Q_W_UKJPtR%PWTKQJxc%

{L%SRLRNKÛ%JXR%VJ_M[%PLJRNVRQJPYLV%XKtR%\RRL%QYLVJN_QJRM%JY%JXR%_UJPWKJR%QYLOPS_NKJPYLc%%{L%
KMMPJPYL̂%JNKOOPQ%VPSLKU%ZKNNKLJV%KNR%LYJ%R]TRQJRM%JY%\R%VKJPVOPRM%KJ%JXR%VPSLPOPQKLJU[zPWTKQJRM%
VJ_M[%UYQKJPYLVc%%|RKV_NRV%PLJRLMRM%JY%VYUtR%hiI%MROPQPRLQPRV%KJ%QRNJKPL%UYQKJPYLV%wV_QX%KV%
KUUzZK[%VJYT%QYLJNYU%YN%NY_LMK\Y_JV%KJ%QRNJKPL%UYQKJPYLVx%KNR%LYJ%NRQYWWRLMRM%PO%JNKOOPQ%
tYU_WRV%MY%LYJ%WRRJ%ZKNNKLJV%YN%PO%JXRNR%PV%K%XPSX%TYJRLJPKU%OYN%JXR%NRV_UJPLS%}_R_RV%JY%R]JRLM%
PLJY%KMaKQRLJ%VPSLKUPbRM%PLJRNVRQJPYLVc%%dXRNROYNR̂%ZPJX%JXR%R]QRTJPYL%YO%JXR%PLJRNVRQJPYL%YO%
eRJRNKLV%fK[%KLM%dXPNM%IJNRRĴ%LY%ORKVP\UR%WPJPSKJPYLV%XKtR%\RRL%PMRLJPOPRM%OYN%JXR%
VPSLPOPQKLJ%PWTKQJV%\KVRM%YL%hiIc%%dXRVR%PWTKQJV%ZY_UM%NRWKPL%VPSLPOPQKLJ%KLM%_LKtYPMK\URc%

uJ%JXR%PLJRNVRQJPYL%YO%eRJRNKLV%fK[%KLM%dXPNM%IJNRRĴ%K%NY_LMK\Y_J%VXY_UM%\R%QYLVPMRNRM%JY%
WPJPSKJR%JXR%[RKN%mnop%VPSLPOPQKLJ%PWTKQJVc%%u%NY_LMK\Y_J%WK[%\R%PLQU_MRM%ZPJX%QYLVJN_QJPYL%
YO%JXR%̀NYaRQJ%YN%WK[%\R%MRORNNRM%_LJPU%JXR%VPSLPOPQKLJ%PWTKQJ%PV%Y\VRNtRMc%%{O%MRORNNRM̂%JXR%
ǸYaRQJ%ZPUU%\R%NR}_PNRM%JY%TNYtPMR%KVV_NKLQR%JXKJ%JXR%WPJPSKJPYL%ZPUU%RtRLJ_KUU[%\R%
QYLVJN_QJRMc%%I_QX%KVV_NKLQR%WK[%\R%PL%JXR%OYNW%YO%KMMPLS%JXR%QYVJ%YO%JXR%NY_LMK\Y_J%JY%JXR%
~������������������������������%

dXR%̀NYaRQJ%ZPUU%SRLRNKJR%LRZ%tRXPQUR%JNPTV%KQNYVV%JXR%kUYtPV%iUM%dYZL%dNKPU%KJ%dXPNM%IJNRRĴ%
KLM%ZPUU%UPjRU[%SRLRNKJR%LRZ%TRMRVJNPKL%KLM%\PQ[QUR%JNPTV%YL%JXR%JNKPUc%%dXR%KTTNYTNPKJR%
VPSLKSR%KLM%TKtRWRLJ%WKNjPLSV%VXY_UM%\R%PLVJKUURM%PL%KQQYNMKLQR%ZPJX%JXR%WYVJ%NRQRLJ%
tRNVPYL%YO%JXR%k|�dklc%%kYLVJN_QJPYL%YO%K%NY_LMK\Y_J%KJ%JXR%PLJRNVRQJPYL%YO%eRJRNKLV%fK[%
KLM%dXPNM%IJNRRJ%ZY_UM%QNRKJR%K%WPLPWPbRM%QNYVVZKUj%URLSJX%KQNYVV%dXPNM%IJNRRJc%%dXR%
NY_LMK\Y_J%ZY_UM%PLQU_MR%LKNNYZ%NYKMZK[V%KLM%K%TRMRVJNPKL%NRO_SR%PL%JXR%VTUPJJRN%PVUKLM%JXKJ%
KUUYZV%TRMRVJNPKLV%KLM%\PQ[QURV%JY%QNYVV%KSKPLVJ%YLU[%YLR%MPNRQJPYL%YO%tRXPQ_UKN%JNKtRU%KJ%K%
JPWRc%

dXR%KtRNKSR%URLSJX%YO%JNPTV%SRLRNKJRM%\[%JXR%̀NYaRQJ%ZPUU%\R%�co%WPURVc%%gYN%QYWTKNPVYL%
T_NTYVRV̂%JXR%KtRNKSR%ZYNjz\KVRM%JNPT%URLSJX%PL%JXR%gNRVLY%kY_LJ[%NRSPYL%PV%KTTNY]PWKJRU[%
��%JY%�m%WPURVc%%dXR%̀NYaRQJ%PV%R]TRQJRM%JY%QYLJNP\_JR%JY%K%NRM_QJPYL%PL%JXR%YtRNKUU%L_W\RN%YO%
tRXPQUR%WPURV%JNKtRURM%PL%JXR%kPJ[%YO%kUYtPV%\[%KQQYWWYMKJPLS%K_JYWY\PUR̂%JNKLVPĴ%

210

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



����������	��
��
��������	���������������������������������
� �������������� !"�
������������������� � ��#��$ �

%
%

& & '()(*+,-./0.((*0./,1*234&

567689:;<=>%<=7%?;@A@B6%CD768%DE%9:<F6B%GH;9I%@D=F6=;6=9%9:<=8E6:%?69H66=%CD768J%=6<:%
:6K;D=<B%7689;=<9;D=8%8L@I%<8%9I6%B;?:<:A>%86=;D:%@6=96:>%@;F;@%@6=96:>%<=7%7DH=9DH=%MBDF;8N%%

%

211

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



  

952 Pollasky Avenue  ♦  Clovis, California 93612  ♦  (559) 299-1544  ♦  www.peters-engineering.com 

TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM 

To: Mr. Mike Harrison, City Engineer 

 City of Clovis 

 1033 Fifth Street 

 Clovis, California 93612 

From: John Rowland, PE, TE 

Subject: Review of Traffic Impact Study 

 Proposed DeBenedetto Development Project 

 Clovis, California 

Date: September 25, 2019 

 

Peters Engineering Group has performed a review of a report entitled Traffic Impact Study 

for Proposed DeBenedetto Development Project dated August 6, 2019 (TIS). This 

memorandum presents our comments on the TIS. 

Background 

The intersection of Clovis Avenue and Second Street consists of a north-south public street 

(Clovis Avenue) and an east-west public street (Second Street) that exists only west of Clovis 

Avenue.  There is a private driveway on the east side of the intersection serving an existing 

hotel.  There was formerly a railroad track east of the hotel site that is currently the Clovis 

Old Town Trail.  Access between Clovis Avenue and property east of the trail has not existed 

in the past. 

The City of Clovis approved an Environmental Impact Report for the Landmark Commons 

project that will have primary access to and from Third Street.  Preliminary Landmark 

Commons plans depicted a driveway connecting to Second Street, but traffic analyses 

showed significant traffic impacts.  For various reasons not limited to traffic impacts, the 

Second Street connection was removed from the Landmark Commons plans and not 

considered as a viable option with the EIR. 

We understand that the DeBenedetto Project proposes a connection to Second Street with 

future development of the DeBenedetto site, and that the Clovis City Council expressed a 

willingness to consider the connection if a traffic study showed that the connection was 

viable and would not result in significant impacts.  The TIS presents an analysis of the 

DeBenedetto project with the assumption that Second Street access is in place.   

ATTACHMENT 3

212

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Review of Traffic Impact Study  September 25, 2019 
Proposed DeBenedetto Development Project, Clovis, California Page 2 
 

 

Traffic Signal Warrants 

The TIS contains several references to peak-hour volumes on the westbound approach to the 

intersection of Clovis Avenue and Second Street that barely miss meeting the peak-hour 

traffic signal warrants threshold of 100 peak-hour trips.  The report also indicates that the 

volumes exceed the threshold at the intersection in the year 2039 analyses and that traffic 

signals are warranted based on the 2039 volumes.  However, Paragraph 08 of Section 4C.01 

of the California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (CMUTCD) states:  “The study 

should consider the effects of the right-turn vehicles from the minor-street approaches.  

Engineering judgment should be used to determine what, if any, portion of the right-turn 

traffic is subtracted from the minor-street traffic count when evaluating the count against the 

signal warrants...”  In some cases, a dedicated right-turn lane would be needed to discount 

the right turns from the warrants analysis. 

It would be our judgment that vehicles turning right from the westbound approach to proceed 

northbound on Clovis Avenue would not contribute to the need for a traffic signal and should 

be excluded from the warrants analysis.  In this case, the peak-hour traffic signal warrant is 

not likely to be satisfied.  Further, although the scope of the TIS did not include four-hour 

and eight-hour traffic signal warrants analyses of the existing conditions, it is our opinion 

that it is very unlikely that other warrants would be satisfied.   

The TIS contains the statement: “…the City might consider a signal for the intersection in 

order to provide the necessary degree of platooning and provide vehicle progressive 

operation along the corridor.  The rational is provided in MUTCD Warrant 6, Coordinated 

Signal System.”  However, Paragraph 03 of Section 4C.07 (Warrant 6, Coordinated Signal 

System) of the CMUTCD states:  “The Coordinated Signal System signal warrant should not 

be applied where the resultant spacing of traffic control signals would be less than 1,000 

feet.”  The distance between Second Street and Third Street and is less than 500 feet.  

Therefore, Warrant 6 is not applicable and the concept of platooning should not factor into 

the discussion of traffic signals at Second Street. 

Trip Generation 

ITE Land Use Code 221, Multifamily Housing (Mid-Rise) was used in the analyses.  Land 

Use Code 221 is applicable to multifamily projects with buildings that contain four units and 

are at least three stores high.  The TIS does not mention the height of the buildings.  If the 

buildings are one or two stories in height then Land Use Code 220 would apply. 

Clovis Old Town Trail Crossing 

There are few, if any, driveways that cross the Clovis Old Town Trail.  The TIS suggests 

Rectangular Rapid Flash Beacons (RRFB) as a potential improvement to enhance safety 

where the Second Street driveway is proposed to cross the trail.  The potential effectiveness 

of RRFB may be questionable because the distance between Clovis Avenue and the trail is 

short.  (The CMUTCD requires a minimum distance of 100 feet from an adjacent 

intersection, the existing distance is approximately 130 feet.)  This provides a minimal 

distance for motorists to recognize the beacons.  At a driveway-type crossing it is our 

anticipation that users of the trail may not feel the need to push the button (especially 

bicyclists).  If the driveway is allowed, we would recommend a street-type crossing similar to 

213

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Review of Traffic Impact Study  September 25, 2019 
Proposed DeBenedetto Development Project, Clovis, California Page 3 
 

 

Jefferson Avenue that provides the trail users with a strong sense that they are about to enter 

a vehicular pathway. 

Landmark Commons Traffic Impact Study 

The TIS references a traffic impact study for the Landmark Commons project dated 

September 9, 2016.  However, the September 9, 2016 report was superseded; the most recent 

version of the Landmark Commons traffic impact study is dated November 23, 2016.  Only 

the version that was utilized in the Landmark Commons EIR should be referenced. 

Queue Analyses 

The TIS text presents queue analyses for left-turn lanes only.  Considering the close spacing 

of traffic signals on Clovis Avenue, it is recommended that through queues be considered as 

well. 

Overall Corridor Signal Operations 

The TIS contains the statement:  “Our review of traffic operations of study intersections 

along Clovis Avenue is that most of the signals are split phasing.  The only existing signal 

with protected phasing on Clovis Avenue is at Sierra Avenue.  The intersections at 3rd Street, 

4th Street and 5th Street operate with split phasing.  The City should consider removing split 

phasing and the corridor could improve significantly.”   

There are no analyses or conceptual geometry included in the TIS to support the suggestion 

that removing the split phasing is feasible.  It is noted that parallel parking is desirable in the 

vicinity of downtown and that two through lanes are expected to be required to contain 

queues within the short distance between intersections.  The installation of protected left 

turns would require dedicated left-turn lanes on Clovis Avenue that may require eliminating 

a through lane or parking.  In addition, the effects on pedestrians would need to be analyzed 

to determine whether protected left-turn phasing would reduce or increase pedestrian delays. 

Mitigation of Significant Impacts at the Intersection of Clovis Avenue and Second 

Street 

Since traffic signals are unlikely to be warranted, other mitigation measures should be 

considered in the TIS.  Such mitigation measures may include closing the Second Street 

access completely or preventing left turns from the westbound approach.  Access 

opportunities are available at Osmun Avenue or at the intersection of Veterans Parkway and 

Third Street. 

General Discussion of Traffic Signals at the Intersection of Clovis Avenue and Second 

Street 

The available traffic-volume projections suggest that, if the Second Street access is provided 

for the DeBenedetto Project, traffic signals are unlikely to be warranted and are not likely to 

be considered a feasible mitigation measure for the projected levels of service (LOS) below 

the City of Clovis target LOS of D. 

It is generally accepted by residents, employees, and visitors in Clovis that the three 

signalized intersections in downtown Clovis can be a source of delay and that alternate routes 

are sometimes desirable.  However, Clovis Avenue is one of few continuous north-south 

214

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



Review of Traffic Impact Study  September 25, 2019 
Proposed DeBenedetto Development Project, Clovis, California Page 4 
 

 

thoroughfares in Clovis and the intersections are on routes to downtown, schools, 

commercial centers, and the State Route 168 freeway.  The right-of-way constraints on 

Clovis Avenue make it difficult to improve progression as the intersections require split 

phasing to contain queues, minimize blocking of lanes, accommodate parking, etc.  It is 

anticipated that a fourth signalized intersection on Clovis Avenue at Second Street would be 

met with strong public opposition that may not be realized until after the signals are installed. 

The queueing analyses presented in the TIS indicate that queues on Clovis Avenue are very 

likely to extend from one signalized intersection back to the adjacent signalized intersection, 

with a high potential for congestion and blocking of intersections.  It is anticipated that a 

fourth signalized intersection at Second Street would have the potential to exacerbate 

congestion at Third Street.   

Summary 

As we understand it, the purpose of the TIS was to provide a traffic analysis that would 

determine whether the Second Street access is viable for the Landmark Commons Project 

and future development of the DeBenedetto site.  The analysis has generally shown that, if 

access to Second Street is allowed, there will be levels of service below the City target LOS 

of D, and that the levels of service will either need to be mitigated by traffic signals or left 

unmitigated if warrants are not met.  In general, a fourth signalized intersection in the 

downtown area adjacent to Third Street is expected to result in queuing issues along Clovis 

Avenue.  The connection would also result in a private driveway crossing the Old Town 

Trail.   

With regards to the necessity of Second Street access, no analyses were performed for the 

case in which the Second Street access does not exist; therefore, the necessity of the 

connection has not been proven with the traffic analyses presented.  Our conclusion from a 

traffic perspective is that the proposed Second Street access poses potential problems, 

potentially significant impacts, and potential hazards, the necessity of which has not been 

proven by an alternate analysis. 

215

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



�������������	�

� 
���������	�	�
���	����������������

�

���� ����������� ��!���"" #$
%&'()(*+,'-.)/'(+0((*(),12.(3-1,2,'-.)42+'5','*()2./)(6(,*7()'.),&*)31-8*+,)9'+'.',6:)2335'+2;5*)352.()

2./)1*<052,'-.(:)2./)3-,*.,'25)'732+,()-4),&*)31-3-(*/)31-8*+,)-.),12.(3-1,2,'-.)2./),1244'+=)%&*)

(*+,'-.)521<*56)'();2(*/)-.)>',6)-4)>5-9'()352..'.<)/-+07*.,()2./)-.),&*)%1244'+)?732+,)@,0/6)

31*321*/);6)A*,*1()B.<'.**1'.<)C1-03)D(**)E33*./'F)>G=))

����H� IJ �� �K$L��M � ���$

NOKPQ����R$SO�� �K$

TOMO��Q$��M$S���O$

U-)4*/*125),12.(3-1,2,'-.)1*<052,'-.()3*1,2'.),-),&*)31-3-(*/)31-8*+,=)%&*)>25'4-1.'2)V*321,7*.,)-4)

%12.(3-1,2,'-.)D>25,12.(G)'()1*(3-.(';5*)4-1)-3*12,'.<)2./)72'.,2'.'.<),&*)(,2,*)&'<&W26)(6(,*7=)

@,2,*)X-0,*)D@XG)YZ[)'(),&*)(,2,*)&'<&W26)+5-(*(,),-),&*)31-8*+,)21*2=)@X)YZ[)'()5-+2,*/)W*(,)2./)

.-1,&)-4),&*)31-8*+,)21*2:)2./),&*).*21*(,)2++*(()3-'.,()21*)2331-F'72,*56)\=])7'5*)2W26)-.)̂*1./-.)

E9*.0*)2./)Y=Y)7'5*()2W26)-.)_*(,)̀05521/)E9*.0*=)̀*+20(*)-4),&*)31-8*+,)21*2a()/'(,2.+*)41-7)@X)

YZ[)2./);*+20(*)-4),&*)7'.'725)27-0.,:)'4)2.6:)-4)2//','-.25),1244'+),&*)31-8*+,)'()5'b*56),-)<*.*12,*)

-.)@X)YZ[:).-)(,2,*)&'<&W26)1*<052,'-.()21*)2335'+2;5*),-),&*)31-3-(*/)31-8*+,=)

c�#�Q$

NOK ���Q$����������� ��$dQ��$��M$SP��� ��eQO$L�ffP� � O�$S����OKR$

%&*)g1*(.-)>-0.+'5)-4)C-9*1.7*.,()Dg1*(.-)>hCG)&2()2/-3,*/),&*)ijklmnopqrstumvwtsxyrwztzqrsm

{utsmts|m}~xztqst�uom�r��~sqzqoxm}zwtzop�)D�\Y�)X%AG)4-1),&*)g1*(.-)1*<'-.:)W&'+&)'.+50/*()>5-9'(=)

%&1**)-9*121+&'.<),&*7*()31-9'/*),&*);2('()4-1),&*)�\Y�)X%Aa()A-5'+6)B5*7*.,�)A1*(*192,'-.)-4)

*F'(,'.<)42+'5','*()2./)(*19'+*(�)(-0./)4'.2.+'25)5*9*12<'.<)-4)*F'(,'.<)40./'.<�)2./)+-..*+,'.<)

,12.(3-1,2,'-.).**/()W',&)52./)0(*)2./)2'1)�025',6)'732+,(=)%&*)�\Y�)X%A)'/*.,'4'*()<-25(:)-;8*+,'9*()

2./)3-5'+'*(),&2,)21*);2(*/)-.),&*(*),&*7*(=)@*9*125)<-25()21*)1*5*92.,),-),&*)31-3-(*/)31-8*+,=)

�� E.)*44'+'*.,:)(24*:)'.,*<12,*/:)705,'7-/25),12.(3-1,2,'-.)(6(,*7=)

�� ?731-9*/)7-;'5',6)2./)2++*((';'5',6)4-1)255)1*<21/5*(()-4)12+*:)'.+-7*:).2,'-.25)-1'<'.:)2<*:)-1)

/'(2;'5',6=))

�� E++*3,2;5*)5*9*5)-4)(*19'+*)D�h@G)4-1),&*)&'<&W26(:)(,1**,()2./)1-2/().*,W-1b=)

�� E.)'.,*<12,*/)705,'7-/25),12.(3-1,2,'-.)(6(,*7)W&'+&)42+'5','*(),&*)7-9*7*.,)-4)3*-35*=))

�� �2F'7'�*);'+6+5'.<)2./)W25b'.<),&1-0<&),&*'1)1*+-<.','-.)2./)'.,*<12,'-.)2()925'/)2./)&*25,&6)

,12.(3-1,2,'-.)7-/*()'.),12.(3-1,2,'-.)352..'.<)2+,'9','*(=))

%&*)g1*(.-)>hC)2/-3,*/),&*)�woxsrm�r~sz�m�rspoxzqrsm�tstpo�oszm{wr�oxx)D>�AG)'.)�\\]),-)(2,'(46)

4*/*125)1*�0'1*7*.,(),&2,)23356),-)01;2.)21*2()2./)1*<'-.()'.).-.2,,2'.7*.,)-4)2'1)�025',6)

(,2./21/(=)g1*(.-)>hC)&2()'.,*<12,*/),&*)>�A)'.,-),&*)�\Y�)X%A=)%&*)>�A)/*('<.2,*()>5-9'()

E9*.0*:)%&'1/)@,1**,:)̂*1./-.)E9*.0*:)̀05521/)E9*.0*)2./)%-55&-0(*)X-2/)2()27-.<),&*)1*<'-.2556)

('<.'4'+2.,)1-2/(),-)W&'+&)>�A)(,12,*<'*()23356=)%&-(*)(,12,*<'*()4255)'.,-)('F)+2,*<-1'*()Dg1*(.-)

>-0.+'5)-4)C-9*1.7*.,()�\\]G=))

�

�������������	��������������������
������������������
������������

������
��������� �


�¡����¢ ����
� ATTACHMENT 4

216

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



�������������	�

� 
���������	�	�
���	����������������

�

�� ���������������� ��!"�"���#!"!���

�� ���$!%�&!"��&�"���#!"!���

�� '��!%%�#!������������������� ��!"�

�� (��&�)�!�

�� *)+%�,���������

�� -�, ,%!���&��!&!�������

*)��)�����������!�%!#��%�����.��/!�0�!����123�/���!4!"��!&����!%5�5��"�����!��!6)��!"!����5���

�&�����#���,��#!������"���#!"!������#��"7��

89:;<=>?@A@BC9>D9CA>

�/!�1��,)%������E%!"!����5��/!�FGHIJKLMNONPQGLRGQO�,��������#��%����&���%�,�!����"!&����S��

,�"��!/!���$!���&�T!%%U"�������!&�")%��"�&�%�,��,)%������� ��!"��/������$�&!��5����/!���5!���&�

!55�,�!���"�$!"!����5��!��%!���&�#��&�7V��/!�5�%%�T��#�1��,)%������E%!"!���#��%����&���%�,�!����!�

�!%!$��������/!�������!&����W!,�7�

3��%�XY�Z�,���!4�U�!�����$!���&�S,�"�%!�!����!!��V�����������������!�T��[��/�����������\!��!55!,��$!�
,���!,��$�� ���&��,,�""�&��!����,�"��!/!���$!����#!��5�"�+�%�� ��!!&�7�

3��%�]Y�Z����&T� ��!�T��[��/������T!%%��%���!&.�5)�&!&.���&�"�������!&7�

*�%�, �]7XY�̂_̀_abcdbe_f̀gh_i��/!�5�%%�T��#�����/!�1�� j��%!$!%��5��!�$�,!�k(2lm�����&��&�Y�

Z7�Z,/�!$!�(2l�n�$!/�,%!����55�,���!��������&)���#��/!��7"7���&��7"7��!�[�/�)��7�

-7�Z%%�T�!4,!������������,��!U+ U,��!�+�����T/!�!�%�T!��%!$!%���5��!�$�,!�T�)%&��!�)%�������/!��
�)+%�,�+!�!5���.��),/���Y�

�7�*�!�!�$��#��#��,)%�)��%������!�����,!�%��&�

��7�*�!�!�$��#��/!��)��%o/������,�,/���,�!���5����!�#/+��/��&�

���7�*�!�!�$��#����,�!����#����!&!������U5��!�&% �!�$����"!������2%&���T�����"�4!&U)�!�
&�����,���

�$7�Z$��&��#��&$!��!��"��,�������!&!�������.�, ,%����.���&�"��������������&!���

$7�p/!�!���#/�U�5UT� �,�����������T�)%&�"�[!�,���,�� �!4����������5!���+%!��

3��%�qY�Z�")%��"�&�%�����������������!�T��[��/��������5!���&�,�"5����+%!�����/!�,���!4���5��&W�,!���
�!�#/+��/��&�7��

*�%�, �q7qY�rasbtcuvbwvsbxgy_sbze_b̀gaaw{_bh_v|_fei����������������&!,����������%�,�%����!!������
2%&���T����&�"�4!&U)�!�$�%%�#!�,!��!����/�%%���������\!��!&!�������.��/!��+�, ,%����.��/!��"����
�������.��/!��"��������7��

*�%�, �q7}Y�~hh_eebxwvw{_x_v|ib����"�\!��,,!������������&�,)�+�,)����%��#����!���%����&����/�+���
�/!"�T��/���]���5!!���5�������!��!,�����T/!�!������+%!7�E%�"����!���&o���,����%�&��!�&��$!T� ��
T/!���!T�&!$!%��"!����,,)������T/!�����55�,���!������������5!� �T�������7��

*�%�, �q7�Y��wf��cvh_i�E�,�)��#!�S���[U��,!V�&!��#���T/!�!�,��$!��!��.�,!����%�\!&��)+%�,����[��#�
��!�����!��,,�"����!&�+ ���5!.�$���+%!.���&�T!%%U"��[!&��,,!��������&!T�%[����&�+)���!��!�7�

3��%��Y�Z�+�, ,%!���&���������� ��!"��/����!�$!�������5)�,�����%��%�!�����$!����,�"")���#�+ �,��7��

*�%�, ��7XY��g�_bwvsb|fwveg|b�wh��cv_i��/!�+�, ,%!���&���������� ��!"��/�)%&�,���!,��l/�T�Z$!�)!.�
2%&���T�.��/!��!&�,�%�1!��!�o����*��[.���&��/!��/�!!���+���1!��!��7��

�

�������������	��������������������
������������������
������������

������
�����������


������������
�

217

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



�������������	�

� 
���������	�	�
���	����������������

�

�������������� ! "#$%&'(%)*&'$�)+�,��-.�/012�3�14�1-0/5�1�062/��25�1���/126-012�7�����2�0��255�0/.�
51�-062��/1��1-0/5�1�824���259�7:5�51�;59�0/.�0�1�8�1���2/12-5��

���������<��=*&'$�)%$)>?$+�@A;-�82�0/.�A0�/10�/�50B29���20/9���AB�-107�29�32��C��19�0/.�-�.2-CB-�2/.���
1-0/5�1�51�;5�1401�0-2�32���A0-D2.�0/.�8�5�7�2�1��A�1�-�515���

���������E��=*&'$�)%?*�>*�)!% >**�(>*$+��-��-�1�F2��/8251A2/15�B�-9�0/.�1-0/5�1�52-8��25�0/.�B0����1�25�
0��/6�142�1-0/5�1�;-��-�1����--�.�-5���

G42�HIJKLMNOPQPRSINTISQ�.25�6/0125�,��8�5�U82/:2�05�0/�0-12-�0��51-2219�V�2--0�U82/:2�05�0�����2�1�-�

51-221�3251��B�,��8�5�U82/:2�0/.�0����0��51-221�2051��B�,��8�5�U82/:29�G4�-.�V1-221�05�0�����2�1�-�51-221�

721322/�,��8�5�U82/:2�0/.�V://�5�.2�U82/:2�0/.�05�0����0��51-221�3251��B�,��8�5�U82/:29�W�B14�

V1-221�05�0/�0-12-�0��51-221�721322/�,��8�5�U82/:2�0/.�V://�5�.2�U82/:2��@/�0..�1��/9�142�X2/2-0��

;�0/��0��5�B�-�,�055�@@�7�����2��0/25��/�G4�-.�V1-221�2051��B�,��8�5�U82/:29�2Y�2;1�342-2�142�Z�.�G�3/�

G-0���;-�8�.25�B�-�7�����2�1-082���G42�X2/2-0����0/�.25�6/0125�W�B14�V1-221�2051��B�,��8�5�U82/:2�05�0�

7�����2�-�:12���

[\]̂_̀ab[acdefbgh\iejeibkà]b

G42�,�1��:;.012.�142�HPQlRSINHIJKLMNmnPoLpLoNTISQ��/�qrsE�1���A;�2A2/1�142�X2/2-0����0/�0/.�t1��

;-�8�.2�5;2��B���6:�.0/�2��/��0/.�:52�0/.�142�.25�6/��B�;:7����0/.�;-�8012��A;-�82A2/15�3�14�/�142�

;�0/�0-20�1��5:7510/1�012��15��A;�-10/�2�05�142�u4:7v��B�142�,��8�5���AA:/�1��w�G42�B����3�/6�

1-0/5;�-101��/C-2�012.�6�0�5�0/.�0�1��/��12A5��/�142�5;2��B���;�0/�0-2�-2�280/1�1��142�;-�;�52.�

;-�x2�1��

X�0���U�14-�8�/6����0��2��/�A��2/-��42.�3�14�5:��255B:��7:5�/25525��

U�1��/�@12A���-�A�12�Z�.�G�3/�05�0�7�����2�0/.�;2.251-�0/�2/8�-�/A2/1�1401��5�205����0��255�7�2�
B-�A�A21-�;���10/�0-20�1-0��5���

X�0���U�;2.251-�0/�0/.�7�����2�B-�2/.���.�3/1�3/�1401���//2�15�1��-26��/0��055215�0/.�0���
1-0/5;�-101��/�A�.25���

U�1��/�@12A��V1:.���;;�-1:/�1�25�B�-�t-�0.�.�215w�0���3�/6�B�-�6-2012-�;2.251-�0/�0/.�7�����2�
:5062��

U�1��/�@12A��y/��:-062�0/.��.2/1�B��0-205�B�-�7�����2�;0-D�/6�0/.�7������51�B0����1�25�14-�:64�:1�
142�Z�.�G�3/�0-20���

G42�HPQlRSINHIJKLMNmnPoLpLoNTISQ��.2/1�B�25�,��8�5�U82/:2�0/.�W�B14�V1-221�05�tA0x�-�51-2215w�1401�52-82�

142�.�3/1�3/�0-20�0/.�1401�4082�142�;�12/1�0��1���0--��1-0BB���14-�:64�.�3/1�3/�2BB���2/1���0/.�1��

6:�.2�8�5�1�-5�1��5;2��B������01��/5���

G42�HPQlRSINHIJKLMNmnPoLpLoNTISQ�2/��:-0625�142�:52��B�;:7����0/.�0�1�82�1-0/5;�-101��/�52-8��25�0/.�

B0����1�25��G42�5;2��B���;�0/�/�125�1401�142�z0/.A0-D�;-�x2�1�t54�:�.�-2.:�2�142�/22.�B�-�;0-D�/6�7��

;-�8�.�/6�;:7����1-0/5�1�0��255�1��0�;��/1�3�14�/�205��30�D�/6�.�51-��1�1��:525��/�142��{@U�0-20w�|,�1��

�B�,��8�5�qrsE0��s�sr}���

@/�142�,�AA:/�1��~25�6/�~282��;A2/1�V10/.0-.5��B�142�,2/1-0��,��8�5�V;2��B�����0/9�G4�-.�V1-221�

2051��B�,��8�5�U82/:2��5�.25�6/012.�05�0�t,�AA:/�1��{�����2���:12w�0/.�,��8�5�U82/:2��/�142�8���/�1��

�B�142�;-�x2�1��5�.25�6/012.�05�tV1�-2B-�/1�,�AA2-��0��w��/.2-�142�5;2��B���;�0/9���AA:/�1��7�����2�

-�:125�t;-�8�.2�B�-�A�.2-012��282�5��B�7�14�0:1�A�7��2�0/.�7�����2�1-0BB���w�G42�;�0/��0��5�B�-�0�sC

B��1�7:BB2-�51-�;�1��52;0-012�7�����25�0/.�0:1�A�7��25��/�14252�-�:125�|,�1���B�,��8�5�qrsE0��,40;12-�

q}���

�

�������������	��������������������
������������������
������������

������
�����������


������������
�

218

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



�������������	�

� 
���������	�	�
���	����������������

�

�������������������� ��!�����"��#$%&��% �'(!$%�!!�)*���+�*�%��,����-"'),.��/�01 ���2%3�����

4�%���1�41�+$!�5���$/$��"1�%�$ �%�$/$�!�67889����#$%&�!����!�$%��(�1$���% ���$+����1��!��% ��%�����

!������2$��$%�����"'),3�����!���$/$���1�%��1!��$ �%�$/$�!�����%�� �/����%��  $�$�%�1�668����#$%&�!��11!�

��!� ��%���:!��% �� ���**���$�1����#$%&����$�;��/�<3=�!��11!�����67>>>�!?(����/�����/�&��!!�1��!��1��

������% �������1��/�<9@7>>>�!?(����/�����/�&��!!�1��!��1�������2$��$%�����"'),3�"��#$%&�1��!��������

41�+$!�A� ���B��(% !7�41��#�)%���*� $����5����17�41�+$!�C�����%!�D�*��$�1�E$!��$��7��% �����41�+$!�

4$+$��4�%���������(�!$ ���/�����"'),��(�������1�!���%�(&��������+$ ���+��/1�2����#$%&��%�2��#�% !�

�% ��/������(�!�-4$�F��/�41�+$!�9>6G�H�63I.��

JKLMNOPQRSNMTPUVWXOYLVSWSNLXPZKWXP

����[\]̂_̀abcd_̂eafghìj]gdhd_]iak\hi�:$!�����*�����%!$+�� ��(*�%���(�1$%$%&�����/(�(����/�2�1#$%&�

�% ��$�F�1$%&�$%�41�+$!3;�, ���� �$%�9>6G7�����,��$+�����%!������$�%�"1�%�(� ���!�*�%F��1�*�%�!��/�

����9>66�[\]̂_̀al_cmc\eafghìj]gdhd_]ianh̀degak\hi3�����,��$+�����%!������$�%�"1�%�!��#!����$%����!��

����!������/���!$ �%�!�2���2�1#��% ��$�F�1�����2��#7�!����17�!����$%&7��% ����������$+$�$�!7������ (���

����%(*�����/��(��*��$1����11$!$�%!�2$����� �!��$�%!��% ��$�F�1$!�!7��% �����1�!��&��!�$%������$�F�1��

�% ��� �!��$�%�%��2��#!�-4$�F��/�41�+$!�9>6G�H�6o9.�3��

����,��$+�����%!������$�%�"1�%�(!�!�����4�1���%!�p_qrshmatè_qianhiuh\�������������$v���$#�2�F!3�

wx 41�!!�)�o�'$#��"���H�'$#������!�������+� �!���� y(!������!�$%��% � ��������**� �����11�

�� �!��$�%!��% ��$�F�1$!�!7�$%�1( $%&���$1 ��%7�/�*$1$�!7��% �1�!!y��%/$ �%���$ ��!3��

wx 41�!!�))�o�'$#��z�%�H�'$#��1�%�!7��1!��#%�2%��!�41�!!�))��$#�2�F!7����� �/$%� �����$�%!��/�����

��� 2�F���������� �!$&%��� ��F�!��$�$%&7�!$&%�&�7��% ���+�*�%��*��#$%&!�/����������/���%�$�1����

�{�1(!$+��(!���/��$�F�1$!�!3��

wx 41�!!�)))�o�'$#��A�(��H�'$#����(��!7��1!��#%�2%��!�41�!!�)))��$#�2�F!7������%y!��������(��!�

$%��% � �������+$ ����%�$%($�F���������$#�2�F�!F!��*3�'$#����(��!����� �!$&%��� ��F�!$&%!����

��+�*�%��*��#$%&!��% �����!���� ��F�*����$!�!3�

wx 41�!!�)C�o�5������� �'$#�2�F!H�|�����!��$#��1�%�!������� �/$%� �����$�%��/�������� 2�F7�

!������� ��$#�2�F!7��1!��#%�2%��!�41�!!�)C��$#�2�F!�����F�1������#!7������%��{�1(!$+��/��$1$�F�/���

�$�F�1$!�!���F!$��11F�!������� �/��*�*�����+��$�1�����//$���% � $!�$%���/��*�����!$ �2�1#3��

����41�+$!�01 ���2%����$17���41�!!�)��$#������7��(%!�&�%���11F�����11�1���7��% ���!���/7�41�+$!�,+�%(��$%�

������������+$�$%$�F3�����41�+$!�01 ���2%����$1��(%!�� ����%���������2�!���%���(% ��F��/�������������

!$��3�����[\]̂_̀abcd_̂eafghìj]gdhd_]iak\hi7�1$#������l_cmc\eafghìj]gdhd_]ianh̀degak\hi7������!�!�

41�!!�)))��$#����(��!��%���$� �5���������2��%�C�����%!�|�F��% �5(%%F!$ ��,+�%(�7��%�}$/���5������

���2��%�����2�!���%��% ���!���%���%%���$�%!����'(11�� �,+�%(�7��%�5$�����,+�%(�����2��%�41�+$!�

,+�%(���% �5(%%F!$ ��,+�%(�7��% ��%�5(%%F!$ ��,+�%(��/��*�~��% �%�,+�%(�����B���F!�(�&�

,+�%(��-4$�F��/�41�+$!�9>6G�H�}$&(���I.3��

JKLMNOPUVW��NRP��YWRSP�S���P��N�TKNXTOP

����4$�F�� ���� �$%�����[_dma]�a[\]̂_̀afgh��_ca��jhcda�du�ma�u_�e\_iè�-4$�F�B($ �1$%�!.�$%�9>6<3�����

4$�F�B($ �1$%�!���?($��������$%��%�1F!�!��/������!� ��������!��% � �/$%��$*�����!$&%$/$��%���-!�������

frgèr]\�̀a]�a�_qi_�_chice�!���$�%.3��

�

�������������	��������������������
������������������
������������

������
�����������


������ �����
�

219

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



�������������	�

� 
���������	�	�
���	����������������

�

�������������� �����!�

"#$%&'()$*+%,'$,%#,-%*(.+,/.$0%*(11$'*/,2%34/20/.5-%/.%+#$%&,-+6%722%34/20/.5-%8$'$%0$1(2/-#$0%,.0%

+#$%-/+$%8,-%5',0$0%/.%9:;<6%"#$%&'()$*+%,'$,%/-%2(*,+$0%/.%=20%"(8.%>2(?/-6%"#$%>2(?/-%=20%"(8.%

"',/2%,.0%*(11$'*/,2%4-$-%,'$%8$-+%(@%+#$%&'()$*+%,'$,A%'$-/0$.+/,2A%/.04-+'/,2A%,.0%(@@/*$%4-$-%2/$%+(%

+#$%.('+#A%'$-/0$.+/,2%4-$-%+(%+#$%$,-+A%,.0%&432/*A%*(11$'*/,2A%,.0%(@@/*$%4-$-%+(%+#$%-(4+#6%%

B��CD�E�F��D��G�

H(,08,I-%/.%+#$%&'()$*+%?/*/./+I%*(.-/-+%(@%+8(J%+(%@(4'J2,.$%-+'$$+-%+#,+%,'$%-$+%&'/1,'/2I%(.%,%5'/06%

K.%,00/+/(.%+(%-$'?/.5%=20%"(8.%,.0%,0),*$.+%.$/5#3('#((0-A%+#$%'(,08,I-%*,''I%+#'(45#%+',@@/*6%

L/54'$%;JM%0$&/*+-%+#$%&'()$*+%2(*,+/(.%,.0%+#$%-$?$.%-+40I%/.+$'-$*+/(.-6%L/54'$%<J;%0$&/*+-%+#$%

$N/-+/.5%2,.$%*(.@/54',+/(.-%,.0%/.+$'-$*+/(.%*(.+'(2-%,+%+#$%-+40I%/.+$'-$*+/(.-6%%

"#$'$%,'$%-$?$.%&'/1,'I%'(,08,I-%/.%+#$%&'()$*+%?/*/./+I6%%

OPQRSTUVRWXYW%/-%,%.('+#J-(4+#%'(,08,I%$N+$.0/.5%+#'(45#%+#$%$.+/'$%2$.5+#%(@%>2(?/-%,.0%-(4+#%

/.+(%L'$-.(6%"#$%Z[\]̂_̀abcbde[̀f[ec%0$-/5.,+$-%>2(?/-%7?$.4$%,-%,.%,'+$'/,2%-+'$$+6%>2(?/-%7?$.4$%

*(.-/-+-%(@%+8(%2,.$-%/.%$,*#%0/'$*+/(.%,+%+#$%-+40I%2(*,+/(.6%"#$%&(-+$0%-&$$0%2/1/+%(.%>2(?/-%7?$.4$%

/-%M<%1/2$%&$'%#(4'%g1&#h%-(4+#%(@%i/$'',%7?$.4$%,.0%j:%1&#%.('+#%(@%i/$'',%7?$.4$6%

kWlWmnXTUonmpqnr%g@('1$'2I%s45#$-%7?$.4$h%/-%,%.('+#J-(4+#%2(*,2%-+'$$+%8/+#%(.$%2,.$%/.%$,*#%

0/'$*+/(.%3$+8$$.%"#/'0%i+'$$+%,.0%L/@+#%i+'$$+6%"#$%-&$$0%2/1/+%(.%t$+$',.-%u,I%/-%.(+%&(-+$06%

7**('0/.5%+(%>,2/@('./,%t$#/*2$%>(0$%g>t>h%i$*+/(.%99M<9A%+#$%&'/1,%@,*/$%-&$$0%(.%t$+$',.-%u,I%/-%

9<%1&#6%

vSWmmnUVRWXYW%/-%,.%$,-+J8$-+%'(,08,I%8/+#%(.$%2,.$%/.%$,*#%0/'$*+/(.%$N+$.0/.5%$,-+%+(%i4..I-/0$%

7?$.4$%,.0%8$-+%/.+(%L'$-.(6%"#$%Z[\]̂_̀abcbde[̀f[ec%0$-/5.,+$-%i/$'',%7?$.4$%,-%,%*(22$*+('%-+'$$+%

8$-+%(@%>2(?/-%7?$.4$%,.0%,%2(*,2%-+'$$+%$,-+%(@%>2(?/-%7?$.4$6%"#$%&(-+$0%-&$$0%2/1/+%(.%i/$'',%

7?$.4$%/-%j:%1&#%8$-+%(@%>2(?/-%7?$.4$%,.0%9<%1&#%$,-+%(@%>2(?/-%7?$.4$6%

vWwQXxUvlmWWl%/-%,.%$,-+J8$-+%2(*,2%'(,0%8/+#%(.$%2,.$%/.%$,*#%0/'$*+/(.%$N+$.0/.5%3$+8$$.%>2(?/-%

7?$.4$%,+%+#$%$,-+%$.0%,.0%y$u/++%7?$.4$%,+%+#$%8$-+%$.06%"#$%-&$$0%2/1/+%(.%i$*(.0%i+'$$+%/-%.(+%

&(-+$0A%34+%+#$%&'/1,%@,*/$%-&$$0%(.%i$*(.0%i+'$$+%/-%9<%1&#%4.0$'%+#$%>t>6%

z{SmxUvlmWWl%/-%,.%$,-+J8$-+%'(,08,I%8/+#%(.$%2,.$%/.%$,*#%0/'$*+/(.%$N+$.0/.5%+(%i4..I-/0$%

7?$.4$%+(%+#$%$,-+%g,.0%*(.+/.4/.5%,-%"(22#(4-$%H(,0%+(%+#$%.('+#$,-+h%,.0%+(%|/..$8,8,%7?$.4$%

+(%+#$%8$-+6%"#$%Z[\]̂_̀abcbde[̀f[ec%0$-/5.,+$-%"#/'0%i+'$$+%,-%,%*(22$*+('%-+'$$+%3$+8$$.%>2(?/-%

7?$.4$%,.0%i4..I-/0$%7?$.4$6%K+%/-%0$-/5.,+$0%,-%,%2(*,2%-+'$$+%8$-+%(@%>2(?/-%7?$.4$6%"#$%&(-+$0%

-&$$0%2/1/+%(.%"#/'0%i+'$$+%8$-+%(@%>2(?/-%7?$.4$%/-%9<%1&#6%K.%+#$%$,-+3(4.0%0/'$*+/(.%,%-&$$0%2/1/+%

(@%j:%1&#%/-%&(-+$0%$,-+%(@%>2(?/-%7?$.4$6%s(8$?$'A%+#$%-&$$0%2/1/+%/.%+#$%8$-+3(4.0%0/'$*+/(.%/-%

.(+%&(-+$0%(.%"#/'0%i+'$$+%$,-+%(@%>2(?/-%7?$.4$6%"#$%.$,'$-+%-&$$0%2/1/+%-/5.%/.%+#$%8$-+3(4.0%

0/'$*+/(.%$,-+%(@%>2(?/-%7?$.4$%$N/-+-%(.%"(22#(4-$%H(,0%g8#/*#%/-%$--$.+/,22I%+#$%$N+$.-/(.%(@%"#/'0%

i+'$$+%$,-+%(@%i4..I-/0$%7?$.4$h%,&&'(N/1,+$2I%}::%@$$+%$,-+%(@%i4..I-/0$%7?$.4$%8/+#%,%&(-+$0%

2/1/+%(@%M<%1&#6%

~QYml{UvlmWWl%/-%,.%$,-+J8$-+%2(*,2%'(,0%8/+#%(.$%2,.$%/.%$,*#%0/'$*+/(.%$N+$.0/.5%3$+8$$.%>2(?/-%

7?$.4$%,+%+#$%$,-+%$.0%,.0%|/..$8,8,%7?$.4$%,+%+#$%8$-+%$.06%"#$%-&$$0%2/1/+%(.%L(4'+#%i+'$$+%/-%

.(+%&(-+$0A%34+%+#$%&'/1,%@,*/$%-&$$0%(.%L(4'+#%i+'$$+%/-%9<%1&#%4.0$'%+#$%>t>6%

�

�������������	��������������������
������������������
������������

������
�����������


������������
�

220

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



�������������	�

� 
���������	�	�
���	����������������

�

���������������� !�" �#$%"�#�&' (% )�%�#*�'!"�+ !"��!�" ,*�(�&",#�'!�,'!!",#�!-�#'�./++ &(�01"!/"�

!" &�2�!!"% % �01"!/"�#'�#*"�%"�#� !(�,'!!",#�!-�#'�./++ &(�01"!/"�!" &�3/!!)��("�01"!/"4�5*"�

6789:;<=>?>@A7<B7A?�("��-! #"��C�D#*�3#&""#� �� !� &#"&� +��#&""#�E"#%""!�F+'1���01"!/"� !(�

3/!!)��("�01"!/"4�5*"�G'�#"(��G""(�+�H�#�'!�C�D#*�3#&""#����IJ�HG*4�

KLMNOPQRSTLUPVTR

F+'1���5& !��#�3# -"+�!"�G&'1�("��E/���"&1�,"�#'�#*"�F+'1��� &" 4�./�"��&/!�'!� ��,*"(/+"�D'&�WI�#'�WX�

*'/&��G"&�( )4�F+'1���5& !��#�3# -"+�!"�Y'/#"�WZ��#'G��'!�3�"&& �01"!/"�%"�#�'D�["\�##�01"!/"� !(�

'!�C�D#*�3#&""#�" �#�'D�F+'1���01"!/"4�

F+'1���5& !��#�Y'/!(�]G�'DD"&���"&1�,"�#*&'/-*'/#�#*"�H"#&'G'+�# !� &" ̂�G&'1�(�!-�&�("��D'&�

(�� E+"(�&"��("!#��'D�F+'1���%*'�!""(�#'�#& 1"+��!�F+'1��̂�C&"�!'̂� !(�!" &E)� &" �4�Y�("&��H/�#�

,'HG+"#"� !(��/EH�#� !�0H"&�, !��%�#*�[�� E�+�#�"��0,#�D'&H� !(�E"� GG&'1"(�D'&�"+�-�E�+�#)�E"D'&"�

/��!-�Y'/!(�]G�D'&�#*"�D�&�#�#�H"4�

5*"�,/&&"!#�F+'1���5& !��#�D+""#�,'!���#��'D�#*"�D'++'%�!-�1"*�,+"�̂�%�#*�#*"�#)G"�'D�D/"+�/�"(� +�'�

+��#"(4�

_̀ Wa�b+ 1 +�Ic$D''#$+'!-�,/# % )��#)+"�d'!"�/�"��- �'+�!"̂�#*"�&"H �!("&�/�"�(�"�"+e4�

_̀ 5%'�b+ 1 +�fI$D''#$+'!-�,/# % )��#)+"�d- �'+�!"e4�

_̀ g!"�h+�['& ('�II$D''#$+'!-�,/# % )��#)+"�d(�"�"+e4�

_̀ 3�i�0Y.gF�+'%$D+''&�Ia$D''#$+'!-�,/# % )��#)+"�d(�"�"+e4�

_̀ 5*&""�b'�*"!�fI$D''#$+'!-�,/# % )��#)+"�d(�"�"+e4�

_̀ 5%'�F* HG�'!�["D"!("&��fX$D''#$+'!-�d(�"�"+e4�

F+'1���5& !��#�"iG",#��#'�"iG !(�#'�D/++$��j"�E/�"��dXZ�D""#��!�+"!-#*e��!�#*"�D/#/&"k�#*"&"D'&"̂�#*"�

l&'m",#�%'/+(�E"�("��-!"(�#'� ,,'HH'( #"�+ &-"�E/�"�4�5*"�#�H"+�!"�D'&�"iG !��'!�#'�+ &-"&�E/�"��

%�++�E"�E �"(�'!�("H !(k�*'%"1"&̂�F+'1���5& !��#�('"��!'#�"iG",#�#'�/�"�E/�"��+ &-"&�#* !�fJ�D""#��!�

+"!-#*�%�#*�!�#*"�!"i#�WZ�)" &�4�

F+'1���5& !��#����G+ !!�!-�#'��!,+/("�D/!(���!��#��IZWc$IZWn�E/(-"#�D'&� �,'!�/+# !#�#'�G"&D'&H� �

�#/()�#'�"1 +/ #"�#*"�&'/#"�̂��,*"(/+"�̂� !(�,''&(�! #�'!�%�#*�C&"�!'4�5*"��#/()�%�++� ����#�F+'1���

5& !��#�%�#*�("��-!�!-�!"%�&'/#"��#* #�/#�+�j"�#*"�G&'G'�"(�5& !��#�F"!#"&�D'&�#& !�D"&�4�

oPVpVqTRrMVPqPQPTOR

5*"�F+'1���g+(�5'%!�5& �+̂� �F+ ���s�H/+#�G+"$/�"�E�t"�G #*̂�&/!��-"!"& ++)�G & ++"+�#'̂� !(�" �#�'D̂�

F+'1���01"!/"��!�#*"�G&'m",#�1�,�!�#)̂� !(���� (m ,"!#�#'�#*"�%"�#"&!�E'/!( &)�'D�#*"�G&'m",#���#"4�5*"�

G #*�&/!�� +'!-�#*"�%"�#���("�'D�u"#"& !��\ )� !(�,'!#�!/"��G & ++"+�%�#*�F+'1���01"!/"��'/#*�'D�

C�D#*�3#&""#4�

F+ ���ss�E�t"�+ !"��"i��#�'!�3�"&& �01"!/"�%"�#�'D�F+'1���01"!/"k�'#*"&%��"̂�#*"�&' (% )�� !(�

�!#"&�",#�'!���!�#*"�G&'m",#�1�,�!�#)� &"�#)G�, ++)�!'#�%�("�"!'/-*�#'� ,,'HH'( #"�F+ ���ss�E�t"�

+ !"�4�5*"�6789:;<vwx:9><y@A?;z8@xAx:8?<B7A?<G&'G'�"��F+ ���sss�'!$�#&""#�E�t"�&'/#"��'!�5*�&(�3#&""#�

E"#%""!�u"#"& !��\ )� !(�3/!!)��("�01"!/"̂�'!�C�D#*�3#&""#�E"#%""!�#*"�%"�#"&!� !(�" �#"&!�

,'!!",#�'!��#'�./++ &(�01"!/"̂�'!�3�"&& �01"!/"�E"#%""!�F+'1���01"!/"� !(�3/!!)��("�01"!/"̂� !(�

'!�3/!!)��("�01"!/"�D&'H�{"&!('!�01"!/"�#'�b"##)�E/&-�01"!/"�dF�#)�'D�F+'1���IZWaE|�C�-/&"�}e4�

�

~������������	��������������������
������������������
������������

������
�����������


������������
�

221

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



�������������	�

� 
���������	�	�
���	����������������

�

��������������� ������

!"#$%&'()*&+#*,$#$)-."&+*/&0"'"-"$)1*)203*&)*0.4))%&'()*&+#*,$#$)-."&+*)"5+&')1*&.$*%$''*$)-&6'")3$#*

-3.425342-*-3$*,.47$0-*8"0"+"-9:*;$#$)-."&+)*&')4*2)$*-3$*<'48")*='#*>4%+*>.&"':**

?��@@��A�����������A�����B��C� ��DE FG���

;$-$.)*H+5"+$$."+5*I.42,*#$-$.J"+$#*$K")-"+5*,$&(L342.*-.&//"0*84'2J$)*69*,$./4.J"+5*J&+2&'*

-2.+"+5*J48$J$+-*042+-)*&-*$&03*4/*-3$*)$8$+*)-2#9*"+-$.)$0-"4+):*>3$*-.&//"0*042+-)*%$.$*

,$./4.J$#*4+*%$$(#&9)*/.4J*MNOO*-4*PNOO*&:J:*Q-3$*&:J:*,$&(*342.R*&+#*/.4J*SNOO*-4*TNOO*,:J:*Q-3$*

,:J:*,$&(*342.R:*>3$*042+-)*%$.$*,$./4.J$#*%3"'$*)0344'*%&)*"+*)$))"4+*&+#*+4-*4+*34'"#&9):**

U+*5$+$.&'1*-.&//"0*042+-)*%$.$*5.$&-$)-*&'4+5*<'48")*V8$+2$1*%"-3*&:J:*,$&(L342.*042+-)*.&+5"+5*

/.4J*MTW*&-*<'48")*V8$+2$*&+#*X42.-3*!-.$$-*-4*Y1WPS*&-*<'48")*V8$+2$*&+#*X"/-3*!-.$$-1*&+#*,:J:*

,$&(L342.*042+-)*.&+5"+5*/.4J*Y1YZZ*&-*<'48")*V8$+2$*&+#*X42.-3*!-.$$-*-4*Y1ZOS*&-*<'48")*&+#*

!"$..&*V8$+2$):*>3$*)J&''$)-*,$&(*342.*042+-)*%$.$*&-*-3$*'40&-"4+*4/*-3$*,.4,4)$#*,.47$0-*$+-.&+0$*

&-*[$-$.&+)*\&9*&+#*>3".#*!-.$$-1*T]P*"+*-3$*&:J:*,$&(*342.*&+#*SPT*"+*-3$*,:J:*,$&(*342.:*HK")-"+5*

,$&(L342.*-2.+"+5*J48$J$+-*84'2J$)*&-*-3$*)-2#9*"+-$.)$0-"4+)*&.$*,.$)$+-$#*"+*X"52.$*̂L]*4/*

V,,$+#"K*<:*V,,$+#"K*<*&')4*04+-&"+)*-3$*-.&//"0*042+-*#&-&*)3$$-)*&+#*4-3$.*-.&//"0*042+-*#$-&"'):**

>3$*-.&//"0*042+-)*"#$+-"/"$#*-3$*+2J6$.*4/*3$&89*8$3"0'$)*Q8$3"0'$)*%"-3*-3.$$*4.*J4.$*&K'$)R*4+*

$&03*-2.+"+5*J48$J$+-:*>3$*"+-$.)$0-"4+*-2.+"+5*J48$J$+-*042+-)*.$8$&'$#*-3&-*3$&89*8$3"0'$)*

Q-3.$$*4.*J4.$*&K'$)R*04J,4)$#*'$))*-3&+*Y*,$.0$+-*4/*-3$*-4-&'*84'2J$*4/*-.&//"0*&-*$8$.9*)-2#9*

"+-$.)$0-"4+*#2."+5*64-3*-3$*&:J:*&+#*,:J:*,$&(*342.):*

<42+-)*4/*,$#$)-."&+)*&+#*6"090'$)*4+*-3$*<'48")*='#*>4%+*>.&"'*+$&.*!$04+#*!-.$$-*.$8$&'$#*&+*

&8$.&5$*4/*&,,.4K"J&-$'9*YTS*,$#$)-."&+)*&+#*MP*6"090'$)*,$.*#&9*"+*V252)-*]OYT:*_2."+5*-3$*

-9,"0&'*8$3"02'&.*,$&(*342.)*QMNOO*-4*PNOO*&:J:*&+#*SNOO*-4*TNOO*,:J:R1*-3$*,$&(*+2J6$.*4/*

,$#$)-."&+)*&8$.&5$#*YM*,$.*342.*&+#*-3$*,$&(*+2J6$.*4/*6"090'$)*&8$.&5$#*&,,.4K"J&-$'9*Z*,$.*

342.:*

�̀��������E��a�b� �E@�c��b����

d=!*")*&*e2&+-"-&-"8$*#$)0.",-"4+*4/*4,$.&-"4+)*04+#"-"4+)*-3&-*&.$*.&+($#*/.4J*d=!*V1*4.*/.$$L/'4%*

04+#"-"4+)*%"-3*'"--'$*4.*+4*#$'&91*-4*d=!*X1*%3"03*"+#"0&-$)*7&JJ$#*04+#"-"4+)*%"-3*$K0$))"8$*#$'&9:*

V,,$+#"K*<*,.48"#$)*&*#$-&"'$#*#")02))"4+*4/*d=!*#$/"+"-"4+)*&+#*J$-34#)*/4.*#$-$.J"+"+5*d=!:*>3$*

<"-9f)*-&.5$-*d=!*")*_:**

V''*)-2#9*"+-$.)$0-"4+)*$K0$,-*/4.*[$-$.&+)*\&9*&+#*X"/-3*!-.$$-*4,$.&-$*&-*&+*&00$,-&6'$*d=!:*>3$*

"+-$.)$0-"4+*4/*[$-$.&+)*\&9*&+#*X"/-3*!-.$$-*3&)*&+*d=!*X*4+*-3$*)42-3642+#*&,,.4&03*&+#*d=!*H*

4+*-3$*+4.-3642+#*&,,.4&03*#2."+5*-3$*&:J:*,$&(*342.1*'"($'9*&*/2+0-"4+*4/*)0344'*-.&//"0:*

�

g�h��i�������	��������j��j��k���l�
m����n�������j����
�����oj�����

pqrst�
������uvwx�


�y�vvrzxqwr�
�

222

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



�������������	�

� 
���������	�	�
���	����������������

�

�������������� !"#!$%�&�'���()�*�+'!,���#�*#-./�0$#�+"�,#!($"�

123456
7389:;6<=2:;>:?2@A=6

B;CDD@?6
EA=2;AF6 G:CH6IA3;6

JK:;CL:6
M:FC56
N>:?A=4>O6 PQ16

RS TUVWXYSZW[\][Ŝ\_S̀X[aâSZW[\][S X̀b\̂US
ĉdcS RecfS gS

hcdcS RicjS gS

kS TUVWXYSZW[\][Ŝ\_S̀[lV\_S̀ma[[mS
n\[op̂ qS
YmVĥS

ĉdcS RrcRS TsS

hcdcS RjcfS TsS

tSS TUVWXYSZW[\][Ŝ\_SuvXa_S̀ma[[mS X̀b\̂US
ĉdcS RwctS gS

hcdcS krcjS TS

fSS x[m[â\YSy q̂Ŝ\_SuvXa_S̀ma[[mS
n\[op̂ qS
YmVĥS

ĉdcS RrcfS TS

hcdcS RkcfS gS

rSS TUVWXYSZW[\][Ŝ\_SzV]amvS̀ma[[mS X̀b\̂US
ĉdcS Rkc{S gS

hcdcS RfcjS gS

iSS TUVWXYSZW[\][Ŝ\_SzX|mvS̀ma[[mS X̀b\̂US
ĉdcS kjckS TS

hcdcS tRctS TS

eS x[m[â\YSy q̂Ŝ\_SzX|mvS̀ma[[mS
n\[op̂ qS
YmVĥS

ĉdcS r{ceS zS

hcdcS RwcjS TS

V̀]al[}SZhh[\_X~STcS

ŜZS_aXW[p̂ qS[~XYmYŜYSmv[S|V]amvSU[bSV|Smv[SX\m[aY[lmXV\Ŝ\_S[YY[\mX̂UUqSla[̂m[YŜSmpVop̂ qSYmVhSlV\maVUSlV\_XmXV\cSS
sSuv[Sa[hVam[_S�ǹSXYS|VaSmv[S[̂YmsV]\_ŜhhaV̂lvcSuv[Sp[YmsV]\_ŜhhaV̂lvSXYŜShaXŴm[S_aXW[p̂qŜ\_S[~h[aX[\l[YŜS
\[bUXbXsU[S\]ds[aSV|Sh[̂�SvV]aSmaXhYcSS

�ǹS�SU[W[USV|SY[aWXl[cS

S

������ �$'!+($��$#���0���,#"�

uvXYSY[lmXV\S_XYl]YY[YSmv[ShaV�[lm�YShVm[\mX̂USXdĥlmYSV\Smâ\YhVam̂mXV\Ŝ\_Smâ||XlcSuv[SY[lmXV\YS

_[YlaXs[YSmv[Sd[mvV_YS]Y[_SmVS_[m[adX\[SXdĥlmYŜ\_Smva[YvVU_YS|VaS_[m[adX\X\bSXdĥlmS

YXb\X|Xl̂\l[cS�XmXb̂mXV\Sd[̂Y]a[YŜa[Ŝmm̂lv[_SmVShVm[\mX̂UUqSYXb\X|Xl̂\mSXdĥlmYcSS

��#�(."�)(+��$��/"!"�

uvXYSmâ\YhVam̂mXV\Ŝ\_Smâ||XlŜ\̂UqYXYSXYSŝY[_SV\STXmqSV|STUVWXYShÛ\\X\bS_Vl]d[\mYŜ\_SV\Smv[S

uâ||XlS�dĥlmS̀m]_qSha[ĥa[_SsqS�[m[aYS�\bX\[[aX\bS�aV]hS�Zhh[\_X~ST�cSuvXYŜ\̂UqYXYS_V[YS\VmS

lV\YX_[aShVm[\mX̂USlv̂\b[YSX\SW[vXlU[SdXU[YSmâW[U[_S�x�u�Ss[l̂]Y[Smv[SYm̂m[Sv̂YS\VmSq[mŜ_Vhm[_S

T��ZSb]X_[UX\[YS|VaŜ\̂Uq�X\bSlv̂\b[YSX\Sx�ucS

�+(��,#��$.��+!����$�+�#!($��

uv[Suâ||XlS�dĥlmS̀m]_qS]Y[YSmv[S�\YmXm]m[SV|Suâ\YhVam̂mXV\S�\bX\[[aYS��u��S����������� �¡��

¢��£�¤�mVSl̂Ul]Ûm[Smv[ŜdV]\mSV|Smâ||XlSmv̂mSmv[ShaVhVY[_ShaV�[lmSpV]U_Sb[\[âm[S_]aX\bSVh[âmXV\cS

uv[Suâ||XlS�dĥlmS̀m]_qŜUYV�X_[\mX|X[YSmv[SaV̂_p̂ qS\[mpVa�¥SsXlqlU[Ŝ\_Sh[_[YmaX̂\S|̂lXUXmX[Y¥S

mâ\YXmSY[aWXl[¥S[~XYmX\bSX\m[aY[lmXV\SÛ\[SlV\|Xb]âmXV\YŜ\_Smâ||XlSWVU]d[Y¥Ŝ\_S[~XYmX\bS

X\m[aY[lmXV\S�ǹS_XYl]YY[_SX\Smv[S¦�§��¡�̈ �� �¤�©�  ��ª�Y[lmXV\cSuv[Suâ||XlS�dĥlmS̀m]_qS|]amv[aS

X_[\mX|X[YSmv[SYX�[¥Smqh[¥Ŝ\_SUVl̂mXV\SV|ŜhhaVW[_Ŝ\_Sh[\_X\bS_[W[UVhd[\mShaV�[lmYcSS

�

«�¬���������	��������®��®��̄���°�
±����²�������®����
�����³®�����

µ́¶·̧�
������¹º»̧�


�¼�ºº¶½̧µ»¶�
�

223

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



�������������	�

� 
���������	�	�
���	����������������

�

����������������� �! "#$��%�&$'�(��)%#� �)%(�� �(�*�%��% ��(�� �)%(+�

,+-.&)*�(�/*�%"���%#�!������/*�%"��

0+-.&)*�(�/*�%"���%#�!��)%#�! ��� �

1+-.&)*�(�/*�%"���%#�����#�! ��� �

2+-3� ���%(�4�$��%#�����#�! ��� �

5+-.&)*�(�/*�%"���%#�6)"� ��! ��� �

7+-.&)*�(�/*�%"���%#�6�� ��! ��� �

8+-3� ���%(�4�$��%#�6�� ��! ��� �

���������)%#� �)%(�� � ���( "#$��% ��(�� �)%(�9�����%�&$'�#��)�� ���9��:#�$��+�+��%#��+�+����:�

�)"�(+������+�+����:��)"���(���)��8;<<� )�=;<<��+�+>��%#� ����+�+����:��)"���(���)��2;<<� )�7;<<��+�+�

� ��(�#"��%?� ��(������)#(� �� � ��������(��)( ��)%?�( �#�)%��%��*���?��#�$+�

@ABCDEFGHIJCDKLMBNI

����������������� �! "#$��*�&"� �#���*��(��%���)(+�

O- �P�(�&�%��.)%#� �)%(;�

Q- RS�( �%?�.)%#� �)%(�

Q- T)%?U�����VW����0<1=X�Y)UZ�)[�� �.)%#� �)%(�

O- Z�)[�� �.)%#� �)%(;�

Q- RS�( �%?UZ&"(UZ�)[�� �.)%#� �)%(�

Q- Y���U�����4� �UZ�)[�� �.)%#� �)%(�V�%�&"#�(�����)*�#��%#���%#�%?���)[�� (X�

Q- T)%?U�����VW����0<1=X�4� �UZ�)[�� �.)%#� �)%(�

\B]BKIĜI@BE]FABI@_DCNDENHI

����������������� �! "#$��(�̀�(�#�)%� ������%(�)� � �)%�a�(������P)��#b(�cdedfghijklmfnlolphqmf

rlstlu��� �)#)&)?$+�����ghijklmfnlolphqmfrlstlu��*�&"� �(��% ��(�� �)%�)���� �)%(�)%� ���̀�(�(�

)���*���?��#�&�$� �����)���&&�*����&�(�� � ����% ��(�� �)%+������)���&� �)%�̀� 9��%��*���?��#�&�$��%#�

Tv!��(�(�)9%��%���̀&��1+5U0+��

wDxKBIyz{|}zI\B]BKIĜI@BE]FABI~�DEDA_BEFH_FAHÎGEI�CHF�CDKFMBNI�C_BEHBA_FGCHI

����������������� ���������������������������������

/� <�,<�

P� ,<�,5�

.� ,5�05�

�� 05�15�

R� 15�5<�

6� �5<�

!)"���;����%(�)� � �)%�a�(������P)��#�0<,<�+��

�

�

�������������	������������������ �
¡����¢������������
�����£������

¤¥¦§̈�
������©ª«¬�


��ªª¦̈¬¥«¦�
�

224

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



�������������	�

� 
���������	�	�
���	����������������

�

������������������� !�"�#�$%��&'�#�%(�#$)($%)�! #�"$*+��$,�-�.+(�#)�%($ +)�

/01023453
60718903 :0;978<=84>3

?107@A03B0C89203
:02@D38>36094>E3

FG HIJKLMNOINPQRQPSOTGUQOSIGSVGJIWXGYUIZUMVVSI[GSVGM\PMROSI[QJJTG
]Q̂IUQ_JMGIUGÒMGPTPJMGJM[ZÒGSVĜMUTGV̀IUOXG

abcG

dG HIJKLMNOINPQRQPSOTGUQOSIGSVGJIWXGYUIZUMVVSI[GSVG̀SZ̀JTG]Q̂IUQ_JMG
IUGÒMGPTPJMGJM[ZÒGSVĜMUTGV̀IUOXG

bcefcG

gG HIJKLMNOINPQRQPSOTGUQOSIGSVG[IGZUMQOMUGÒQ[GbXcXGYUIZUMVVSI[GSVG
]Q̂IUQ_JMGIUGPTPJMGJM[ZÒGSVGLIhMUQOMXG

fceijG

kG HIJKLMNOINPQRQPSOTGUQOSIGSVG̀SZ̀G_KOG[IGZUMQOMUGÒQ[GbXcXG
YUIZUMVVSI[GSVGS[M]]MPOŜMGIUGPTPJMGJM[ZÒGSVGJI[ZXGlQ[TĜM̀SPJMVG
VOIRGQ[hGS[hŜShKQJGPTPJMG]QSJKUMVGQUMG[IOSPMQ_JMXG

ijejjG

mG HIJKLMNOINPQRQPSOTGUQOSIGSVG̀SZ̀G_KOG[IGZUMQOMUGÒQ[GbXcXG
YUIZUMVVSI[GSVGK[]Q̂IUQ_JMGQ[hGPTPJMGJM[ZÒGSVGJI[ZXGn[hŜShKQJG
PTPJMG]QSJKUMVGQUMG]UMoKM[OXG

jjepcG

qG HIJKLMNOINPQRQPSOTGUQOSIGSVGZUMQOMUGÒQ[GbXcXGYUIZUMVVSI[GSVĜMUTG
RIIUGQ[hGPTPJMGJM[ZÒGSVGJI[ZXGlIVOGPTPJMVG]QSJGOIGPJMQUGÒMGoKMKMXG

rpcG

sIKUPMtGuUQ[VRIUOQOSI[GvMVMQUP̀GdIQUhGfcbcQXGG

G

�'#�)' �-)� !�"$*+$!$%�+%��

n[GQPPIUhQ[PMGWSÒGFRRM[hS\GwGI]GÒMGsOQOMGgmxFGwKShMJS[MVyGÒMGRUIRIVMhGRUIzMPOGWIKJhG_MG

PI[VShMUMhGOIG̀Q̂MGQGVSZ[S]SPQ[OGM]]MPOGS]GSOGWIKJhGUMVKJOGS[GQ[TGI]GÒMGPI[hSOSI[VGJSVOMhG_MJIWXG

{| gI[]JSPOGWSÒGQ[GQRRJSPQ_JMGRJQ[yGIUhS[Q[PMyGIUGRIJSPTGMVOQ_JSV̀S[ZGLMQVKUMVGI]GM]]MPOŜM[MVVG]IUG

ÒMGRMU]IULQ[PMGI]GÒMGPSUPKJQOSI[GVTVOMLyGOQ}S[ZGS[OIGQPPIK[OGQJJGLIhMVGI]GOUQ[VRIUOQOSI[yG

S[PJKhS[ZGLQVVGOUQ[VSOGQ[hG[I[NLIOIUS~MhGOUQ̂MJGQ[hGUMJM̂Q[OGPILRI[M[OVGI]GÒMGPSUPKJQOSI[G

VTVOMLyGS[PJKhS[ZyG_KOG[IOGJSLSOMhGOIyGS[OMUVMPOSI[VyGVOUMMOVyG̀SZ̀WQTVGQ[hG]UMMWQTVyGRMhMVOUSQ[G

Q[hG_SPTPJMGRQÒVyGQ[hGLQVVGOUQ[VSOXG

{| gI[]JSPOGWSÒGQ[GQRRJSPQ_JMGPI[ZMVOSI[GLQ[QZMLM[OGRUIZUQLyGS[PJKhS[ZyG_KOG[IOGJSLSOMhGOIyGJM̂MJN

I]NVMÛSPMGVOQ[hQUhVGQ[hGOUQ̂MJGhMLQ[hGLMQVKUMVGIUGIÒMUGVOQ[hQUhVGMVOQ_JSV̀MhG_TGÒMGPIK[OTG

PI[ZMVOSI[GLQ[QZMLM[OGQZM[PTG]IUGhMVSZ[QOMhGUIQhVGIUG̀SZ̀WQTVXG

{| vMVKJOGS[GQGP̀Q[ZMGS[GQSUGOUQ]]SPGRQOOMU[VyGS[PJKhS[ZGMSÒMUGQ[GS[PUMQVMGS[GOUQ]]SPGJM̂MJVGIUGQGP̀Q[ZMG

S[GJIPQOSI[GÒQOGUMVKJOVGS[GVK_VOQ[OSQJGVQ]MOTGUSV}VXG

{| sK_VOQ[OSQJJTGS[PUMQVMG̀Q~QUhVG_MPQKVMGI]GQGhMVSZ[G]MQOKUMG�MXZXyGV̀QURGPKÛMVGIUGhQ[ZMUIKVG

S[OMUVMPOSI[V�GIUGS[PILRQOS_JMGKVMVG�MXZXyG]QULGMoKSRLM[O�XG

{| vMVKJOGS[GS[QhMoKQOMGMLMUZM[PTGQPPMVVXG

{| gI[]JSPOGWSÒGQhIROMhGRIJSPSMVyGRJQ[VyGIUGRUIZUQLVGUMZQUhS[ZGRK_JSPGOUQ[VSOyG_SPTPJMGIUGRMhMVOUSQ[G

]QPSJSOSMVyGIUGIÒMUWSVMGhMPUMQVMGÒMGRMU]IULQ[PMGIUGVQ]MOTGI]GVKP̀G]QPSJSOSMVXG

n[GQhhSOSI[yGÒMGgSOTGwKShMJS[MVGS[hSPQOMGÒQOGQ[GSLRQPOGSVGPI[VShMUMhGVSZ[S]SPQ[OGS]GÒMGQhhSOSI[GI]GÒMG

OUQ]]SPGZM[MUQOMhG_TGQGRUIRIVMhGRUIzMPOGUMVKJOVGS[GQ[TGI[MGI]GÒMG]IJJIWS[ZtG

{| uUSZZMUVGQ[GS[OMUVMPOSI[GIRMUQOS[ZGQOGQPPMROQ_JMG��sGOIGIRMUQOMGQOGK[QPPMROQ_JMGJM̂MJVGI]GVMÛSPMXG

�

�������������	��������������������
������������������
������������

�������
�����������


������������
�

225

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



�������������	�

� 
���������	�	�
���	����������������

�

�� ��������������� ���!��"�#�$�%&������'"$�(��������(&�������(���#���"$�&)����(�!����'�����)��*#��

+,-.�

/012345627869:4:;24:<769=25>?=56

@ABCDEFGHIJKLFMNOPQRDEFSRETFCOFCBBQRDCUQVFBQCOWFNXYROCODVWFNXFBNQRDZFV[ECUQR[TRO\FAVC[]XV[FNPF

VPPVDER̂VOV[[FPNXFETVFBVXPNXACODVFNPFETVFDRXD]QCERNOF[Z[EVAF_QV[[FETCOF[R\ORPRDCOEFRABCDÈF

a��"(��'���"�(������bcdefghijklmchhnod�����(&�p�����q(�$���������*#(���"����+,-�r�����"��"�%&�� ��(�#��

&)����(&���"'�(�!������.s.���"�).s.�)��t��&'��.�u����%%�����&%�-(���v#���w���"�-(���v#���x����� ��$�

�(s(#����&�&�����&�����*���'����#��&'!�������y&�)#����&%%����#������( ��#�$&'���&%�����%��(#(�(��p����$�

!��������������s���s&'���&%����%%(����"��%%����������s���������.��

a�����(s����&%������'s*���&%� ��(�#����()�����������)�&z����y&'#"�!��������(����������{���s�(��*���"�

&����()�����'#�(�!�%�&s��'���������(&������������( (�(�����"������(��&)����(&��p�&*��� ��(&����������

�|(��(�!�q#& (��#(*���$���"���#&��#���()�!������(&���&'����������}&&"y��"�v��t�~�!(&��#�+(*���$�(��

�����&.�u������%%(���&'����%�&s�����}&&"y��"�v��t�~�!(&��#�+(*���$�)�& ("�"� ��(%(���(&��������u��

�jn�l�cocjghniol�goegfl���(s�����%&������#(*���$�#��"�'��������))#(��*#���&�����)�&)&��"�)�&z���.�

u�*#����.�{��)�& ("������(s�����&%�)�&z���� ��(�#����()�!������(&��(��������������s.����(s�����&%��##�

��()���|��)����&���!�������"�*$�����#(*���$������|)����"��&�"&'*#��(��x��$�����*���'���&%�(���������

(��)&)'#��(&�p������(����� (���p���"����(&������������ (������&y� ���#(*���$���()�!������(&��y&'#"�

��s�(���&�������*���"�&�������(���&%�����#(*���$�*'(#"(�!������a))��"(|�q�.��

�2��=6������6�=2?��=?06�?<�=346�=�:3�=6�?:16�=7=?24:<766

�NDCERNOF GZBVFNPFGXRBF

I���F�VC�F�N]XF

_ L¡¡FENF¢L¡¡FC�A�̀F

����F�VC�F�N]XF

_£L¡¡FENF¤L¡¡FB�A�̀F ¥CRQZF

@OF ¦]EF GNECQF @OF ¦]EF GNECQF

u����(��
q������

-��!�#(����(|�"�
~&'���

§� §� ẅ� §� §� � x�§�

~&'�"')�r�( ���
©���t��

�� �� �� x� x� �� x��

-��(&��
q������

�s)#&$��� �̈ �� �̈ �� �̈ �̈ x��

q#& (��~&'�"')� �� �� �̈ �� �� �̈ �§�

ª(�(�&��ª��(�#��� w«� «� w§� w§� w§� �̈� x���

�����'��&��� x� �� x� x� x� �� ẅ�

+(*���$�
�s)#&$������"�
ª(�(�&���

x�� ¬� �x� w��� ww�� xw¬� wp̈§§�

u,ua+-� «� x«� §�� w�� w«�� x«� xpx�§�

-&'���®�a))��"(|�qp�u��%%(���s)����-�'"$.�

�

©���'��������|(��(�!����(&�����������"�#(*���$��'�����#$�&)���������������)�&z�����(��p���"�~&'�"')�

"�( �����$)(��##$���t��*���t��������������(&��������p�s��$���()��("���(%(�"�(��u�*#���.«{��y&'#"��&��

*����y���()�������'"$������(��������(&��.�,��������)�&z����(���&s)#���p�����q(�$�(����"���&���#&�����

���%%�%�&s�s&"'#���*'(#"(�!��(��&������|(��(�!�#(*���$�*'(#"(�!.�����""(�(&�p������|(��(�!�#�y����&&#�

y&'#"�'����������(&���������*'(#"(�!�%&����#�y�#(*���$.�u���������!���(������'���&%��|(��(�!�*'(#"(�!�p�

�

̄�°��±�������	��������²��²��³���́�
µ����¶�������²����
�����·²�����

¹̧º»¼¼�
������½¾¼¿�


�À�¾¾ºÁ¿¹¼º�
�

226

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



�������������	�

� 
���������	�	�
���	����������������

�

�������������������� ����������!�"����#���$������%�����"����&������������&'�&�('���)*(���� �����

����!+�

,�"��������%�!���&-�')!-���#���-���"�����!�!�������$�'������� �&)������!�����������#����.������/�

��)'"���*����)�����&�"$���"����#���-&�������"����  �����)'"�(���""�"�����%�!���&����  ���.�')*�!+�

0�('��1+2-2��"���� ��!�������!)'���&��  ���!����345����!�)"/�����������!������!����������������*�

���"�����+��

6789:;<=>?>=;@:A:9;BC;D:EAFG:;7H;DHIJK;LE:7;MNH:EO:GHFBNO;INJ:E;PQFOHFNR;7NJ;PQFOHFNR;S9IO;SEBT:GH;
UBNJFHFBNO;V;W:7E;6:EX;

YZ[\]̂
_[̀ abĉdeZbcfbgZhiê

jckllhĝ
mieZcin̂

obkp̂
qi[ĉ

rshfZhet̂
rshfZhet̂on[f̂ociubgẐ
vhZwi[Ẑxi[e\kai[Ẑ

yzbcktb̂
{bnk]k̂ |}Ŷ

yzbcktb̂
{bnk]k̂ |}Ŷ

yzbcktb̂
{bnk]̂
degcbkfbk̂

~�
�'�.�!��.��)����"�5������
�.��)��

5�&��'�
�+*+� ~�+�� �� ~�+�� �� �+��

�+*+� ~�+�� �� ~�+1� �� �+2�

���
�'�.�!��.��)����"�
5����"�5������

4��-��/�
!���(�

�+*+� ~2+~� ��� ~2+1� �� �+��

�+*+� ~�+�� ��� ~�+�� �� ~+��

1�
�'�.�!��.��)����"�0���"�
5������

5�&��'�
�+*+� ~�+1� �� ~�+�� �� �+��

�+*+� �2+�� �� ��+~� �� �+1�

��
�������!���/���"�0���"�
5������

4��-��/�
!���(�

�+*+� ~2+�� �� �~+�� �� 2+��

�+*+� ~�+�� �� �~+1� �� �+��

2�
�'�.�!��.��)����"���)����
5������

5�&��'�
�+*+� ~�+�� �� ~�+�� �� �+��

�+*+� ~�+�� �� ~2+�� �� �+��

��
�'�.�!��.��)������� ���
5������

5�&��'�
�+*+� ��+�� �� ��+�� �� �+��

�+*+� 1~+1� �� 1�+�� �� �+��

��
�������!���/���"��� ���
5������

4��-��/�
!���(�

�+*+� 2�+�� �� 2�+1� �� 2+��

�+*+� ~�+�� �� ��+�� �� �+��
���.���&��"�'�/���"��.���&��"�'�/�������!��*��!)��"����!����"!+��
(���"��.���/��%�!�!��!����� �)����'�&�� ����������!���������"��!!�����''/�������!������-��/�!����������'����"�����+��
��0����������"�345��!� ���������!�(�)�"���������+�0�����!�(�)�"�����������!������.����"��.���/���"��%��������!���
��&'�&�('���)*(���� ��������)������!+�

345���'�.�'�� �!��.���+�

5�)����������"�%��$�0��  ����*�����5�)"/+�

�

�������������	��������������������
������������������
������������

�������
��������� �


�¡����¢ ����
�

227

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



�������������	�

� 
���������	�	�
���	����������������

�

��������������� ���!"�#�$ %&���'�#'()*�+$���,-'�$.�&'%!-.�/-)�$�0!�1$!2�&'3�1$!2�&'�4%'5!('�6!(-)��!('3��-)�1$!2�&'�7%'5�6!(-)��!('�
8!-)%'%!-.�9�:��$�;<�=�

>?@ABC
D@EFGHC IJ?GHKGL?MNJC

OHPQQMLC
RNJ?HNSC

TGPUC
VN@HC

WXYZCDN[THN\GL?C
WXYZCTHN\GL?C]M?̂N@?C

_N@JAPFN@?C
THN\GL?C]M?̂C_N@JAPFN@?CMJC

WXYZC

àGHPbGC
cGSPBPC de>C

àGHPbGC
cGSPBPC de>C

àGHPbGC
cGSPBC
IJLHGPKGPC

àGHPbGC
cGSPBPC de>C

àGHPbGC
cGSPBC
IJLHGPKGPC

fg
hijklmgnkopqogrpsg
tlouurgnkopqog

tlvprig
rwxwg yzw{g hg y|w{g hg fw}g y|w{g hg fw}g

~wxwg y}w{g hg yywfg hg fw�g yywfg hg fw�g

ygg
hijklmgnkopqogrpsg
to�jpsgt�uoo�g

�po��r�g
m�j~�g

rwxwg y�w�g ��g yzw}g �g }wzg yzw}g �g }wzg

~wxwg �ywyg ��g �{w�g �g �wzg �{w�g �g �wzg

�g
hijklmgnkopqogrpsg
��lusgt�uoo�g

tlvprig
rwxwg y�w�g hg �yw�g hg �w}g �yw�g hg �w}g

~wxwg �}wzg �g {ywyg �g ffw{g {ywyg �g ffw{g

�g
�o�ourpmg�r�grpsg
��lusgt�uoo�g

�po��r�g
m�j~�g

rwxwg yyw�g hg ��wyg �g �}w�g ��wyg �g �}w�g

~wxwg f�w�g �g �|w�g �g y{w}g �|w�g �g y{g

{g
hijklmgnkopqogrpsg
�jqu��gt�uoo�g

tlvprig
rwxwg f�w{g �g f�w|g �g }w�g f�w|g �g }w�g

~wxwg f|w�g �g f�w�g �g fw�g f�w�g �g fw�g

�g
hijklmgnkopqogr�g
�l���gt�uoo�g

tlvprig
rwxwg �|w�g �g {yw�g �g �w{g {yw�g �g �w{g

~wxwg �|wzg �g {zw}g �g |w�g {zw}g �g |w�g

zg
�o�ourpmg�r�grpsg
�l���gt�uoo�g

�po��r�g
m�j~�g

rwxwg y�fw{g �g �}zwzg �g ��wyg �w}g ng �y�yw{g

~wxwg y|w�g �g ��wzg �g |wfg zwzg ng �y}w�g
rgnkourvogsoir�grpsgrkourvogsoir�glp�uormogxormquosglpgmo�jpsmwgg
�gngsulko�r�go�lm�mgrmg��og�jqu��giovgj�g��oglp�oumo��ljpgrpsgommop�lrii�g�uor�omgrg��j��r�gm�j~g�jp�ujig�jpsl�ljpwgg
hg��oguo~ju�osg��tglmg�jug��ogorm��jqpsgr~~ujr��wg��og�om��jqpsgr~~ujr��glmgrg~ulkr�ogsulko�r�grpsgo�~oulop�omgrgpovilvl�iogpqx�ougj�g~or�g�jqug�ul~mwg

��tg�giokoigj�gmoukl�owg

tjqu�o�gn~~opsl�gh�g�ur��l�g�x~r��gt�qs�wg

g

�

�������������	��������������������
 ����¡������������
�����¢������

£¤¥¦§£�
������̈©§ª�


�«�©©¥¬ª¤§¥�
�

228

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



�������������	�

� 
���������	�	�
���	����������������

�

���������������������� !"�����������������#����$�����%&'()&*+,)-*.-/0120.03423(5��6��7��8����9�$:��

���$:���������;��#�������<7����=���$������9�$:���>����=�����6���>�����;� !"��#�?����@��������A�B�����

?�#�6�"������=B����������;��C���;����:�B��#��<�DEFG���������7���C�6��:�����DHFI���������7���C�6��:��

�$���;��6���F<F�7��J�6�$�F��

K��6����#���<���<�L��;��6���<7�������@��������A�B�����?�#�6�"����������:�<����F�M���;��:�����6��

��������������������#����=:��=���$���7��JN6�$�����##�����;��:�9����������������<���O����M77����>�P��#�

�6��Q��##���R<7����"�$�BSF�M���::N9�B����7�������:��������9���������#����6����T$�����U�6�$���7�����B�

���7������=�������6��V�:������W4+0.*'204-X42Y4+-*2-Z20.*'[-%'4..03-W*2\'*+-](̂03()-.*'-/\'((\)-42,-

_01&̀4a)5�����C��������=B��6��#�����6����6��<���<$<�C�:$<���#���<$:��N9�B����7�������:���������

<����$���;��6��7F<F�7��J�6�$�F�M����;:�N:������$���=�$�����7�������::B�#����=:��#��<���;��<������

�����7�����=$����$:��7�������::B����$:�����T$�$����>������;�������6����������������#�V:�C���MC��$��

����?�#�6�"�����5�7�����$:��:B��$���;���<���96���C�6��:������7��##����7��J�$7�V:��J�R����<�������

"�6��:���$��������8����������6��������������F�M:����B5���������<<���#����6��7��J��;�:�����$�6��#��6��

����������������=���<�����;�����b��6������;�������9�$:��:�J�:B�=��J�$7����������$���=�$������=:��J�

�::�#�$���77����6��F�V�$7:���9��6���6�;6�C�:$<���#�7�������������##���=�#���������#������6��:5�

��$���=�$��#$����������$:����<7:���:B�#��:��$���;�7��J�7������F��

c������6��:��;N���<�9��6N7��8�����������������������5��6�� !"�9�$:�����7�=�:�9��6��d�������������

V:�C���MC��$������"������"�����5�@��������A�B�����Q6����"�����5�V:�C���MC��$������?�#�6�"�����5�����

@��������A�B�����?�#�6�"�������$���;��6��7F<F�7��J�6�$�5�����=�:�9��6��d�������������@��������A�B�

����Q6����"�������$���;��6���F<F�7��J�6�$�F�V����������9�$:��9�������$���;��6���F<F�7��J�6�$�����

@��������A�B�����?�#�6�"�����5�9��6��C���;����:�B���>������;�D�<��$����O����Q�=:��IFDNH��=�C������

M77����>�V5�Q��##���R<7����"�$�B5�Q�=:��eENeSF�d��7�����6���������������##��5��6���������������������::�

9�$:������6�C��7��J�6�$�����##���:�C�:���6���9��������6�������::�������#���;��:�5��������������������

7�������:��<7��C�<���������6��@��������A�B�����?�#�6�"�������������������9�$:����<���F�M���::N9�B�

���7�������:��������$���=�$��9�$:��=��������$��������@��������A�B�����Q6����"�����F�M::N9�B����7�

������:�9�$:������=��9���������#����6��<���<$<�U�6�$���7�����BF�M����;:�N:������$���=�$�����

7�������::B�#����=:��#��<���;��<�����������7�������������>7����������7����������������7��=:�� !"�

�$���;��6��7��J�6�$��F��

M:�6�$;6��6��7��8����9�$:���>����=�����6���>�����;� !"��#�?����@��������A�B�����?�#�6�"�������$���;�

�6���F<F�7��J�6�$������������=$�������$<$:���C���##���������::���$�B��������������5��6��V��B�7��<������

:�9��� !"�96�����6������������T$������;6�N�#N9�B����7��C�����<7��C�<����F�Q6�������6����������

V:�C���MC��$������?�#�6�"�������������V:�C���MC��$������Q6����"�����5�96�����6��:���������#�=$�:���;��

������T$�����=$�:���;����=��J���<7���������������F�

R����������5��6��V��B�7��<������:�9��� !"���������������6���9�$:�����$:�������6���7$=:���=���#���F�M��

����$��������V6�7����f5�"�������fFI5�g'*h(3\-î('̂0(̀5��6�� ���<��J�V�<<����V�C���V������j���6�

7��8����9�$:��7��C�����$<���$��7$=:���=���#���5��7���#���::B��������������C��B�������������:������6���

9�$:���##������C�����������<��B����DEE�7��7:��7�����B5�����$��B���;����:�=����6�:�=���B��6���9�$:��

��7:�������<�::���#���:��B5�������������������6���9�$:�����C�������6$=�#���=$��������5�������7$=:���7:�L�F�

?$��6��<���5�V���$:������P:�<����k�:��B�IFI�7�������L���7����������5�=��B�:����5�����<������������

�6�����#�<���������#��������7����������������������!:��Q�9��V:�C��F�!����#��6��7��8���l���=8����C������

����7��<�L��7$=:����������5�7���������5�����=��B�:�������������6������5������6�����C������6���9�$:��=��

7��C������6���F��

V���������;��6��V��Bl��7�:����������9��6��<7:�<����������#��6����$���=�$�5��6���<7��������6��

����$:�������B���<�9�$:��=��:�����6�����;��#�����F�

�

m�n��o�������	��������p��p��q���r�
s����t�������p����
�����up�����

vwxyz{�
������|}z~�


���}}x�~wzx�
�

229

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



�������������	�

� 
���������	�	�
���	����������������

�

������������ �!"#$%&���'&�(��#����%&��)%*��"#+*,�&"#���#�+*�*#���-"+-���.%*,,��(�#�

,&+#&$&��#��&�����/�

012345675849:6;4<6=936>=9=23?6=4>@8<=4A67@5B=3?6C;B262D2EF92<69C2E32@B236G15E639;92612H8=12E24936

G516;<5F9=4A6;6>54A239=546E;4;A2E2496F15A1;EI6J5K2B21?6;362DF@;=42<69C26LMNOPQRSTUVWMRRXYN6

32>9=54?69C26Z[\]6̂_̀6=4>@8<236;67à 69C;9601234567bc6F12F;12<6F8138;496956G2<21;@6@;KI6_C262GG2>936

5G6d=926̀@;46\6;4<6d=926̀@;46Z6;1269C263;E26e2>;83269C269K56F@;436A2421;9269C263;E26;E584965G691;GG=>6

;4<6;GG2>969C263;E263912293I6

_C26F15f2>96K58@<6C2@F6=EF@2E249632B21;@67à 6391;92A=23I6dF2>=G=>;@@:?69C26F15f2>96K58@<6=EF15B26

91;43=96F;3324A216;E24=9=236;96;691;43=9639;9=54?6KC=>C6=36;67à 6391;92A:I60819C21E512?69C26F15f2>96

E229369C267à 6<2G=4=9=54365G6E=D2<g8326<2B2@5FE249?6=4G=@@6;4<612<2B2@5FE249?6;4<691;43=9g51=2492<6

<2B2@5FE249?6;@@65G6KC=>C6;126F;1965G67à 6391;92A=23I6_C26F15f2>96;@356K58@<6C2@F6E2296Z[\]6̂_̀6

A5;@36G516;6E8@9=E5<;@691;43F519;9=5463:392EI66

b426A5;@65G69C26Z[\]6̂_̀612A;1<36;46;>>2F9;e@26hbd6G5169C263912296;4<615;<6429K51i?6;4<6_C=1<6

d912296;4<67@5B=36jB24826=469C26F15f2>96B=>=4=9:6;126<2G=42<6;3612A=54;@@:63=A4=G=>;49615;<3684<2169C26

7à I6j36<=3>8332<684<216kEF;>96_̂jg\?69C26F15f2>96K58@<6>5491=e8926956;6<2>12;326=469C26hbd6;96

=492132>9=5436546_C=1<6d912296;4<67@5B=36jB2482I6J5K2B21?6>543=<21=4A6̀5@=>=236ZI\6;4<6lIl6=469C26

7=9:m367=1>8@;9=546n@2E249?6KC=>C6F21E=96;6@233216hbd6=46>=1>8E39;4>2369C;96;FF@:69569C=36F15f2>9?6;4<6

9C26=EF@2E249;9=5465G69C261584<;e5896;969C26;GG2>92<6=492132>9=5465G6o2921;436p;:6;4<6_C=1<6d912296

e:6Z[lq?69C26F15f2>96K58@<64596>54G@=>96K=9C6;6>54A239=546E;4;A2E2496F15A1;EI6_C212G512?69C26

=EF;>96546;6>54A239=546E;4;A2E2496F15A1;E6K58@<6e26@23369C;463=A4=G=>;49I66

�����������r �s"�*#�&�%��"���t,*����(�#+*�&#��&-��-�$$&������*-#,��(���-*,t%�,�&#�,t),��#�&�%�

,�$*�u�-&,v,�.#"�&�����/�

_C26F15f2>96K58@<6>543=3965G6542g3951:6e8=@<=4A3?6381G;>=4A6F;1i=4A6@593?6;4<6@;4<3>;F=4AI6_C26

42;12396;=1F519?6012345gw532E=926k49214;9=54;@6j=1F519?6=36@5>;92<6;FF15D=E;92@:6l6E=@2363589C65G69C26

F15f2>96;12;I6_C26F15f2>96K58@<645961238@96=4642K65e3918>9=5436956;=1691;GG=>?69C26F15f2>96K58@<6C;B26

4562GG2>96546;=1691;GG=>6F;992143I66

�����������x ��*,t%��&#���,t),��#�&�%�&#�-*�,*�&#�(�y�-z,�)*��t,*�"$���z*,&+#�$*��t-*�.*{+{|�

,(�-���t-}*,|�z�#+*-"t,�&#�*-,*��&"#,/�"-�&#�"����&)%*�t,*,�.*{+{|�$�-��*~t&��*#�/�.%*,,�

�(�#�,&+#&$&��#��&������'&�(��&�&+��&"#/�

_C26F15f2>96K58@<6@=i2@:6=4>12;326e=>:>@=396;4<6F2<2391=;4683265G67@5B=36b@<6_5K46_1;=@?6;46=4>12;326

9C;96K58@<6C2@F6E2296;6F15f2>965ef2>9=B265G65F9=E=�=4A6F2<2391=;46;4<6e=>:>@=396;>>233695691;43=96;4<6

A5;@365G69C26�MYRTQPV�PS�X�VW�M�X�X�V�PQY69C;96;126248E21;92<684<216LMNOPQRSTUVWMRRXYNV=46d2>9=546

lI]I\?6��X�RXYNV�SY�XRXSY�I6J5K2B21?69C26F15f2>96;@356K58@<6>5491=e8926956;46=4>12;326=46E59516B2C=>@26

91;GG=>6546_C=1<6;4<60=G9C6d912293?6e59C65G6KC=>C69C26E8@9=F@2g83267@5B=36b@<6_5K46_1;=@6>1533236

K=9C5896>54915@365469C263912293I6_C262GG2>9365G6d=926̀@;46\6;4<6d=926̀@;46Z6K58@<6e269C263;E2I66

7543918>9=5465G6;61584<;e5896;969C26=492132>9=5465G6o2921;436p;:6;4<6_C=1<6d912296e:6Z[lq6;36

12H8=12<684<216a=9=A;9=546a2;38126_̂jg\?6K58@<6E=4=E=�269C26>1533K;@i6@24A9C6;>15336_C=1<6

d91229I6_C261584<;e5896K58@<6C;B264;115K6@;4236;4<6;6F2<2391=;4612G8A26=469C263F@=99216=3@;4<69C;96

;@@5K36F2<2391=;436;4<6e=>:>@=3936956>15336;A;=439654@:65426<=12>9=5465G6B2C=>8@;1691;B2@6;96;69=E2?6

KC=>C6K58@<6e26;63;G29:6=EF15B2E249I6k46;<<=9=54?6a=9=A;9=546a2;38126_̂jgZ6K58@<612H8=126

=439;@@;9=5465G63=A4;A26;4<6F;B2E2496E;1i=4A365467@5B=36b@<6_5K46_1;=@6;4<6_C=1<6d912296956K;146

F2<2391=;43?6e=>:>@=393?6;4<6E59516B2C=>@265F21;95136956e26;@2196G5162;>C659C216;4<69563C;1263F;>2I66

�

�������������	��������������������
������������������
������������

�������
�����������


������������
�

230

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



�������������	�

� 
���������	�	�
���	����������������

�

�������������� ����!�"��� !���#$��""#�#�$�����$%�#�� �&��'��$���"� ��#�$ ��$"��(��# � ��$�����)��*# �

+�"���'$����#���$"�,�����*��#����"�#*�� ��$�-#%���.�����/���� ����$%�#�� ���!�"�&����"!��"�'#���

#$ ������#�$��%� #0$�0���$"���*�,�$��,��1#$0 2�� ���3!#��"�!$"���4#�#0��#�$�4�� !����5678/�

9#���#,���,�$���#�$��%�4#�#0��#�$�4�� !����567:2�����#,�����������"���� ��������;��" �'�!�"�&��

��  ����$� #0$#%#��$�/��

<=>=?@>=ABC<D@EFGDCHIJKLMCNGAO=PDC@QQGAQG=@>DCQDPDE>G=@BC@BPCR=STSUDCE=?B@?DC@BPC

Q@ODVDB>CV@GW=B?EC

X$������"�$���'#�������YZ[\]̂_̀\ZabZ̀cZ[ầ ad̀\]̂_eaf_Z]]\gaŶ h̀_̂[aijk\gjla]̂_amh_jjhlaZ̀na

o\pqrZsl2�����)#�(�'#���#$ ������������#���� #0$�0���$"���*�,�$��,��1#$0 ��������#$��� ���#�$ �

�%�)��*# �+�"���'$����#���$"���#�"�.�����2��$"�)��*# �+�"���'$����#���$"�-#%���.�����/�����

 #0$�0���$"���*�,�$��,��1#$0 � �����&��#$ �����"���#������������#�$��%��$(�����#�$��%�����

�������/��

tVQ@S>CHIJKuMCv@FEDC=B@PDwF@>DCDVDG?DBSTC@SSDEECxUDEEC>y@BCE=?B=z=S@B>{C

6����!0����������� �"���������'�!�"���$��#&!����""#�#�$���*��#��� ���� ����� �#$�������������*#�#$#�(2�

����"� #0$��%� ����� �'�!�"�$������$0��#$���'�(������'�!�"�#,��#���,��0�$�(��� ��$ �/�|,��0�$�(�

�� ��$ ��%��,�����)��*# �-#���}�����,�$���$"�)��*# �~��#���}�����,�$��'�!�"���,�#$����� �,��� �

!$"�����# �#$0���$"#�#�$ /�X$������*�$���%�����!$�('#"���,��0�$�(2����� ������#0�'�( �'�!�"� ��*��

� ���#,��(��*��!��#�$���!�� /�������� � ���#0�'�(�# �.5�:��2�'�#���# �$����(�:�,#���%��,�������������

 #����$"�'�#���'�!�"�&��!$�%%����"�&(������������/��

������������#� ��%��� �&��$�"� #0$�"��������,,�"��������  �&(��$"�,�*�,�$���%�&! � 2�'�#���

,��$ �%#�����#�1 ��$"��������,��0�$�(�*��#��� �'�!�"���*�� #,#��������  /���# �# ���!���%�&����.#���

~��$�:��$"�.#���~��$�8/�6$���# �#$0�����(����$0������� ���$��"0���%������������� #�����$$��� ������#�"�

.�������$����� �!����$"�+ ,!$�)#������$�����$����/���# �����(�'�!�"���,�#$�#$��������$"����*#"��

 ���$"��(�����  ���������������� #��/��

������!$"�&�!���������#$��� ���#�$��%�������$ �9�(��$"���#�"�.������'#���&��"� #0$�"����

����,,�"����&! �,�*�,�$� 2�'�#���'�!�"�������$ !����,��0�$�(�*��#��������  �����!0������

#$��� ���#�$/�X$��""#�#�$2���!$"�&�!� ���"!���*��#���� ���"2�'�#���,�1� ���!$"�&�!� � �%������$�

 #0$��#;�"�#$��� ���#�$ �%����,��0�$�(�*��#������������ ����$�0��#��������$ ������#�$�5� ������

����"�8�:�&��878��/������%���2�����#,�����'�!�"�&����  ����$� #0$#%#��$�/��

tVQ@S>CHIJK�MCvABzU=S>C�=>yC@PAQ>DPCQAU=S=DE�CQU@BE�CAGCQGA?G@VECGD?@GP=B?CQFRU=SC>G@BE=>�C

R=STSUD�CAGCQDPDE>G=@BCz@S=U=>=DE�CAGCA>yDG�=EDCPDSGD@EDC>yDCQDGzAGV@BSDCAGCE@zD>TCAzCEFSyC

z@S=U=>=DECxUDEEC>y@BCE=?B=z=S@B>C�=>yCV=>=?@>=AB{C

������������# �#$��$"�"����#,���*���!&�#�����$ #��%��#�#�#� 2��$"�����)#�(����� ������������ #����"����$��

�������,!��#���7! ��)��*# �+�"���'$����#��������#,#;����"� ��#�$��$"�&#�(��# ������  �������$ #�/�

��� ����������#$��$� �������$ # ��$��'#�������8�:��5�~�0��� 2�)4~� �����0#� 2��$"�Y[̂k\la�j̀j_Z[a

�[Z̀�0��� ��$"����#�#� ��!��#$�"�!$"����jpc[Zĥ_samjhh\̀p�#$�.���#�$��/�/:2���\lh\̀paŶ ǹ\h\̂̀ l/�����

�%%��� ��%�.#���~��$�:��$"�.#���~��$�8��������� �,��&���! �������'�����$ �0�$���������� �,���,�!$��

�%����%%#���$"��%%�������� �,�� ����� /��

6 �"# �!  �"�!$"���X,������567�2��������������� ���������$�#������#$���� ��&��������$!,&����%�

��"� ��#�$ ��$"�&#�(��# � �#$�������������*#�#$#�(2��$"�����$!,&����%�,�����*��#��� /�����#$���� � �

��!�"��� !���#$���$%�#�� �&��'��$���"� ��#�$ ��$"�&#�(��# � ��$�����)��*# �+�"���'$����#�2��$"�,�����

*��#��� ��$���#�"�.�������$"�-#%���.�����2�'�#���)��*# �+�"���'$����#�����  � �'#���!�����%%#��

�

�������������	��������������������
������������������
������������

����� �
������¡¢�£�


�¤�¢¢�¥£����
�

231

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



�������������	�

� 
���������	�	�
���	����������������

�

����������������������������� !"��!���#� ����$�% � &#� ���%�#�'����()*+�,�'�-���-'������� !"#���

���#��-�������������$� �������#�����*��#�*� &� $ �#�����.�����

/0102310456/7389:76;<=>?@6A:4B0C763DD:4D:03176D7C781:035635C6E0FGFH768025327635C6

D3B7I7516I3:J05286

K���% � &#� ���%�#�'����()*+�'�-���L!"#����()*M���

NOPONQ RSTSUSVWSXYZ[\S]Y

Û[V\S]YRSTSUSVWSXY

_ �̀��$�_��. ���ab+c#��defghijkdjlmnokpqernsnrktjif��u�#$���v�.�!w���x���

_ �̀��$�_��. ���ab+cw��djlmnokyrgnmekzhifoqlhgignlfktjif��{��"#��-�ẁ�|����#�-�{������}���w�����

|������_�'�� ���$�~�.���!������abb���dlf�eognlfk�ifi�e�efgkthlreoo��}���w����|�������_)���

|������_�'�� ���$�~�.���!������ab+M������k�e�nlfijkzhifoqlhgignlfktjifkif�kp�oginfi�jek

dl���fngneokpghige����)-�"��-��'���ac��|�������_)���

��#��"���#� ���(���#������#�-��ab+b#���n���i�kdiqirng�k�if�ij���

��#��"���#� ���(���#������#�-�ab+bw���l�f�i�l�go�kyfk�fslh�ignlfijk��n�e��v#� ��#��_��"��#� .��

� &�,#̀�(���#����{��&�#!�(�"����cxa��K����-��- � �����#�� �&�����u�_��

�

�������������	��������������������
������������������
����� ������

¡¢£¤¥¦�
������§̈¥©�


�ª�̈̈£«©¢¥£�
�

232

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



ATTACHMENT 5 233

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



234

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



235

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



236

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



237

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



238

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



239

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



240

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



241

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



242

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



243

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



244

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



245

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



246

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



247

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



248

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



249

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



250

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



251

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



252

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



253

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



254

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



255

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



256

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



257

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



258

AGENDA ITEM NO: 20.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Administration 

DATE: October 7, 2018 

SUBJECT: Consider - League of California Cities’ Annual Resolutions set for 
Consideration at the Annual Conference on October 16-18, 2019 
 
Staff:  Luke Serpa, City Manager 
Recommendation: Consider 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Packet of Resolutions 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Consider the League of California Cities’ Annual Resolutions set for approval at the Annual 
Conference on October 16-18, 2019, and provide policy direction for voting delegates. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Each year at the Annual Business Meeting of the League of California Cities, each city 
has a voting delegate to vote on various resolutions that will guide policy actions of the 
League Board of Directors.  The City Council should review the annual resolutions and 
provide policy direction to the City’s voting delegate. On September 3, 2019, Council 
assigned Councilmember Mouanoutoua as the voting delegate and Councilmember 
Whalen as the alternate. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Resolutions of policy action to come before the League of Cities’ Board of Directors are 
submitted each year to a vote by cities at the Annual Business Meeting of the League of 
California Cities to occur during the Annual Conference from October 16-18, 2019.  There 

259

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



are two resolutions this year for consideration for voting by the delegation.  The City will 
have one voting delegate at the Annual Business Meeting and any policy direction with 
respect to the resolution should be provided to the voting delegate in advance of the 
meeting. 
 
Resolution No. 1: A RESOLUTION OF THE LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES 
CALLING ON THE CALIFORNIA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION TO AMEND RULE 
20A TO ADD PROJECTS IN VERY HIGH FIRE HAZARD SEVERITY ZONES TO THE 
LIST OF ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA AND TO INCREASE FUNDING ALLOCATIONS FOR 
RULE 20A PROJECTS 
 
Summary - This Resolution, in response to intensifying fire seasons and hazards 
associated with exposed energized utility lines, proposes that the League of California 
Cities (League) call upon the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) to amend the 
Rule 20A program by expanding the criteria for undergrounding overhead utilities to 
include projects in Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones (VHFHSZ). This Resolution also 
proposes that the League call upon the CPUC to increase utilities’ funding allocations for 
Rule 20A projects. 
 
Background - Over the last several years, the increasing severity and frequency of 
California’s wildfires have prompted state and local governments to seek urgent 
prevention and mitigation actions. Record breaking wildfires in Northern and Southern 
California in both 2017 and 2018 have caused destruction and loss of life. This severe fire 
trend has local officials seeking solutions to combat what is now a year-round fire season 
exacerbated by years of drought, intense weather patterns, untamed vegetation and 
global warming. 
 
These conditions create a dangerous catalyst for wildfires caused by utilities as extreme 
wind and weather events make downed power lines more of a risk. In response to recent 
catastrophic wildfires, Governor Newsom established a Strike Force tasked with 
developing a “comprehensive roadmap” to address issues related to wildfires, climate 
change, and utilities. 
 
The Strike Force report acknowledges that measures to harden the electrical grid are 
critical to wildfire risk management. A key utility hardening strategy: undergrounding lines 
in extreme high-fire areas. 
 
Governor Newsom’s Wildfire Strike Force program report concludes, “It’s not a question 
of ‘if’ a wildfire will strike, but ‘when.’” 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
In 1982 in conjunction with the State and the League of California Cities, Rule 20 was 
established. This law required the California Public Utility Commission to require local 
utility companies to allocate a certain amount of money each year for underground utility 

260

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



line conversion projects. The law allows the Commission to authorize the utility companies 
to recover their cost from the ratepayers. 
 
Because ratepayers contribute the bulk of the costs of Rule 20A programs through utility 
rates, undergrounding projects currently must be in the public interest by meeting one or 
more of the following criteria:                 
 

1. Eliminate an unusually heavy concentration of overhead lines;  
2. Involve a street or road with a high volume of public traffic;  
3. Benefit a civic or public recreation area or area of unusual scenic interest;  
4. Be listed as an arterial street or major collector as defined in the Governor’s Office 

of Planning and Research (OPR) Guidelines.  
 
The determination of “general public interest” under these criteria is made by the local 
government, after holding public hearings, in consultation with the utilities.   
 
Currently the list of underground projects meeting the above criteria has an estimated cost 
of over $1 Billion dollars. The utility companies currently only contribute $120 Million 
annually for the program. By adding the fifth category (allowing for the undergrounding of 
overhead electrical lines in fire prone areas deemed high hazard), the estimated cost for 
projects would more than double the current amount to $2 Billion dollars. This is only a 
rough estimate since it is unclear what the actual costs would be and how many miles of 
overhead lines would need to be placed underground.  Since the rate payers from 
throughout the state pay into this fund, but only about a third are in wild fire prone areas, 
this could be viewed as passing on the costs to others who don’t have these risks. 
 
All Fire Agencies are in favor of reducing the wild fire risk and obviously undergrounding 
electrical lines in the wildland area which would significantly reduce these risks. Almost all 
of the electrical lines in the wildland area are currently above ground, so this is the reason 
why the costs would be so high. The question this change does not answer is what will 
the rate payer have to pay and would the lines in high hazard wild prone areas move to 
the top of the list. These are the concerns that appear to be unanswered in the proposed 
resolution.  Therefore, staff is recommending taking no position on this resolution. 
 
Resolution No. 2:  A RESOLUTION CALLING UPON THE FEDERAL AND STATE 
GOVERNMENTS TO ADDRESS THE DEVASTATING IMPACTS OF INTERNATIONAL 
TRANSBOUNDARY POLLUTION FLOWS INTO THE SOUTHERNMOST REGIONS OF 
CALIFORNIA AND THE PACIFIC OCEAN 
 
Summary - This Resolution states that the League of California Cities should call upon the 
State and Federal governments to restore and ensure proper funding for the U.S. – Mexico 
Border Water Infrastructure Program (BWIP) and work bi-nationally to address water 
quality issues resulting from transboundary flows from Mexico’s Tijuana River into the 
United States containing untreated sewage, polluted sediment, and trash. 
 

261

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



Background - The League of California Cities’ San Diego County Division is sponsoring 
this resolution to address their concerns over the contaminated flows from the Tijuana 
River into California that have resulted in the degradation of water quality and water 
recreational areas in Southern California. 
 
The Tijuana River flows north through highly urbanized areas in Mexico before it enters 
the Tijuana River Estuary and eventually the Pacific Ocean via waterways in San Diego 
County in California. Urban growth in Tijuana has contributed to a rise in rates of upstream 
flows from water treatment facilities in Mexico. These treatment facilities have raised the 
amount of untreated sewage and waste in the Tijuana River due to faulty infrastructure 
and improper maintenance. The federal government refers to the river as an “impaired 
water body” because of the presence of pollutants in excess, which pose significant health 
risks to residents and visitors in communities on both sides of the border. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
This resolution seems to be very narrow in focus and only affecting the southern border 
jurisdictions within the San Diego area.  It recommends funding and working with Mexico 
to stop the contaminant flow from the Tijuana River in Mexico into California border towns.   
There is no direct impact on the City of Clovis. Therefore, staff is recommending taking no 
position on this resolution. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council should provide policy direction to the City’s voting delegate to the Annual 
Business Meeting concerning policies of the League on behalf of all cities in the state.   
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
 
The City Manager will follow up with any action as directed by the City Council. 
 
Prepared by: John Holt, Assistant City Manager 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH 

262

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



Annual Conference 
Resolutions Packet 

2019 Annual Conference Resolutions 

Long Beach, California 

October 16 – 18, 2019 

Attachment 1 263

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



INFORMATION AND PROCEDURES 

RESOLUTIONS CONTAINED IN THIS PACKET: The League bylaws provide that 
resolutions shall be referred by the president to an appropriate policy committee for review and 
recommendation. Resolutions with committee recommendations shall then be considered by the 
General Resolutions Committee at the Annual Conference. 

This year, two resolutions have been introduced for consideration at the Annual Conference and 
referred to League policy committees.   

POLICY COMMITTEES: Two policy committees will meet at the Annual Conference to consider 
and take action on the resolutions referred to them. The committees are: Environmental Quality and 
Transportation, Communication & Public Works. The committees will meet from 9:00 – 11:00 a.m. 
on Wednesday, October 16, at the Hyatt Regency Long Beach.  The sponsors of the resolutions have 
been notified of the time and location of the meeting. 

GENERAL RESOLUTIONS COMMITTEE: This committee will meet at 1:00 p.m. on Thursday, 
October 17, at the Hyatt Regency Long Beach, to consider the reports of the policy committees 
regarding the resolutions. This committee includes one representative from each of the League’s 
regional divisions, functional departments and standing policy committees, as well as other 
individuals appointed by the League president.  Please check in at the registration desk for room 
location. 

ANNUAL LUNCHEON/BUSINESS MEETING/GENERAL ASSEMBLY: This meeting 
will be held at 12:30 p.m. on Friday, October 18, at the Long Beach Convention Center. 

PETITIONED RESOLUTIONS: For those issues that develop after the normal 60-day 
deadline, a resolution may be introduced at the Annual Conference with a petition signed by 
designated voting delegates of 10 percent of all member cities (48 valid signatures required) and 
presented to the Voting Delegates Desk at least 24 hours prior to the time set for convening the 
Annual Business Meeting of the General Assembly.  This year, that deadline is 12:30 p.m., 
Thursday, October 17.  Resolutions can be viewed on the League's Web site: 
www.cacities.org/resolutions. 

Any questions concerning the resolutions procedures may be directed to Carly Shelby 
cshelby@cacities.org 916-658-8279 or Nick Romo nromo@cacities.org 916-658-8232 at the 
League office. 

1
264

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



GUIDELINES FOR ANNUAL CONFERENCE RESOLUTIONS 

Policy development is a vital and ongoing process within the League. The principal means for 
deciding policy on the important issues facing cities is through the League’s seven standing policy 
committees and the board of directors. The process allows for timely consideration of issues in a 
changing environment and assures city officials the opportunity to both initiate and influence policy 
decisions. 

Annual conference resolutions constitute an additional way to develop League policy. Resolutions 
should adhere to the following criteria. 

Guidelines for Annual Conference Resolutions 

1. Only issues that have a direct bearing on municipal affairs should be considered or adopted
at the Annual Conference.

2. The issue is not of a purely local or regional concern.

3. The recommended policy should not simply restate existing League policy.

4. The resolution should be directed at achieving one of the following objectives:

(a) Focus public or media attention on an issue of major importance to cities.

(b) Establish a new direction for League policy by establishing general principles around
which more detailed policies may be developed by policy committees and the board of
directors.

(c) Consider important issues not adequately addressed by the policy committees and
board of directors.

(d) Amend the League bylaws (requires 2/3 vote at General Assembly).

2
265

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



LOCATION OF MEETINGS 

Policy Committee Meetings 
Wednesday, October 16, 9:00 – 11:00 a.m. 
Hyatt Regency Long Beach 
200 South Pine Avenue, Long Beach 

The following committees will be meeting: 
1. Environmental Quality 10:00 - 11:00 a.m.
2. Transportation, Communication & Public Works 9:00 - 10:00 a.m. 

General Resolutions Committee 
Thursday, October 17, 1:00 p.m. 
Hyatt Regency Long Beach 
200 South Pine Avenue, Long Beach 

Annual Business Meeting and General Assembly Luncheon 
Friday, October 18, 12:30 p.m.  
Long Beach Convention Center 
300 East Ocean Boulevard, Long Beach 

3
266

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



KEY TO ACTIONS TAKEN ON RESOLUTIONS 

Resolutions have been grouped by policy committees to which they have been assigned. 

Number  Key Word Index Reviewing Body Action 

1 2 3 
1 - Policy Committee Recommendation 
     to General Resolutions Committee 
2 – General 
 Resolutions Committee 
3 - General Assembly 

ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY POLICY COMMITTEE 
     1 2 3 

1 Amendment to Rule 20A 
2 International Transboundary Pollution Flows 

TRANSPORTATION, COMMUNICATION & PUBLIC WORKS POLICY COMMITTEE 
     1 2 3 

 1 Amendment to Rule 20A 

Information pertaining to the Annual Conference Resolutions will also be posted on each 
committee’s page on the League website: www.cacities.org.  The entire Resolutions Packet is 
posted at: www.cacities.org/resolutions. 

4
267

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



KEY TO ACTIONS TAKEN ON RESOLUTIONS (Continued) 
 

Resolutions have been grouped by policy committees to which they have been assigned. 
 
 
 
KEY TO REVIEWING BODIES KEY TO ACTIONS TAKEN 
 
1.  Policy Committee  

 
A  Approve 

 
2.  General Resolutions Committee 

 
D   Disapprove 

 
3.  General Assembly 

 
N   No Action 

 
 

 
R   Refer to appropriate policy committee for 

study 
ACTION FOOTNOTES 
 

 
a   Amend+ 
 

*  Subject matter covered in another resolution 
 

Aa   Approve as amended+ 

**  Existing League policy Aaa   Approve with additional amendment(s)+ 
 

***  Local authority presently exists 
 

Ra   Refer as amended to appropriate policy 
committee for study+ 

  
Raa   Additional amendments and refer+ 
 

  
Da   Amend (for clarity or brevity) and 

Disapprove+ 
 

 
 
 

Na   Amend (for clarity or brevity) and take No 
Action+ 

 
W         Withdrawn by Sponsor 

 
 
 
 
 
Procedural Note:   
The League of California Cities resolution process at the Annual Conference is guided by League Bylaws.  
A helpful explanation of this process can be found on the League’s website by clicking on this link:  
Guidelines for the Annual Conference Resolutions Process. 
 

 

5
268

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



League of California Cities Resolution Process 

REGULAR RESOLUTIONS 

Policy Committee Action General Resolutions 
Committee Action Calendar 

Approve Approve Consent Calendar1 
Approve Disapprove or Refer Regular Calendar2 
Disapprove or Refer Approve Regular Calendar 
Disapprove or Refer Disapprove or Refer Does not proceed to General 

Assembly 

PETITION RESOLUTIONS 

Policy Committee Action General Resolutions 
Committee Action Calendar 

Not Heard in Policy Committee Approve Consent Calendar 
Not Heard in Policy Committee Disapprove or Refer Regular Calendar 
Not Heard in Policy Committee Disqualified per Bylaws Art. 

VI 
Does not proceed to General 
Assembly 

Resolutions  
• Submitted 60 days prior to conference Bylaws Article VI, Sec. 4(a)
• Signatures of at least 5 supporting cities or city officials submitted with the proposed resolution

Bylaws Article VI, Sec. 2
• Assigned to policy committee(s) by League president Bylaws Article VI, Sec. 4(b)(i)
• Heard in policy committee(s) and report recommendation, if any, to GRC Bylaws Article VI, Sec.

4(b)(ii)
• Heard in GRC

 Approved by policy committee(s) and GRC, goes on to General Assembly on consent calendar
2006 General Assembly Resolution Sec. 2(C)

 If amended/approved by all policy committee(s) to which it has been referred and disapproved
by GRC, then goes on to General Assembly on the regular calendar. If not all policy
committees to which it has been referred recommend amendment or approval, and the GRC
disapproves or refers the resolution, the resolution does not move to the General Assembly
2006 General Assembly Resolution Sec. 2(A),(C); 1998 General Assembly Resolution, 1st

Resolved Clause
 If disapproved by all policy committees to which it has been referred and disapproved by the

GRC, resolution does not move to the General Assembly 2006 General Assembly Resolution
Sec. 2(C)

• Heard in General Assembly

1 The consent calendar should only be used for resolutions where there is unanimity between the policy committees and the 
GRC that a resolution should be approved by the General Assembly, and therefore, it can be concluded that there will be less 
desire to debate the resolution on the floor. 

2 The regular calendar is for resolutions for which there is a difference in recommendations between the policy committees 
and the GRC.  

6
269

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



Petitioned Resolutions 
• Submitted by voting delegate Bylaws Article VI, Sec. 5 (a)
• Must be signed by voting delegates representing 10% of the member cities Bylaws Article VI, Sec. 5

(c)
• Signatures confirmed by League staff
• Submitted to the League president for confirmation 24 hours before the beginning of the General

Assembly. Bylaws Article VI, Sec. 5 (d)
• Petition to be reviewed by Parliamentarian for required signatures of voting delegates and for form

and substance Bylaws Article VI, Sec. 5(e)
• Parliamentarian’s report is presented to chair of GRC
• Will be heard at GRC for action (GRC cannot amend but may recommend by a majority vote to the

GA technical or clarifying amendments) 2006 General Assembly Resolution sec. 6(A), (B)
• GRC may disqualify if:

 Non-germane to city issues
 Identical or substantially similar in substance to a resolution already under consideration

Bylaws Article VI, Sec. 5(e), (f)
• Heard in General Assembly

 General Assembly will consider the resolution following the other resolutions3 Bylaws Article
VI, Sec. 5(g)

 Substantive amendments that change the intent of the petitioned resolution may only be
adopted by the GA 2006 General Assembly Resolution sec. 6(C)

Voting Procedure in the General Assembly 

Consent Calendar:  Resolution approved by Policy Committee(s) and GRC. Petitioned resolution 
approved by GRC) 

 GRC Chair will be asked to give the report from the GRC and will ask for adoption of the
GRC’s recommendations

 Ask delegates if there is a desire to call out a resolution for discussion
 A voting delegate may make a motion to remove a resolution from the consent calendar for

discussion
 If a motion is made to pull a resolution, the General Assembly votes on whether to pull the

resolution from the consent calendar.
 If a majority of the General Assembly votes to pull the resolution, set “called out” reso(s)

aside. If the motion fails, the resolution remains on the consent calendar.
 If reso(s) not called out, or after ‘called out” reso is set aside, then ask for vote on remaining

resos left on consent
 Move on to debate on reso(s) called out
 After debate, a vote is taken
 Voting delegates vote on resolutions by raising their voting cards.4

3 Petitioned Resolutions on the Consent Calendar will be placed after all General Resolutions on the Consent Calendar. 
Petitioned Resolutions on the Regular Calendar will be placed after all General Resolutions on the Regular Calendar.  

4 Amendments to League bylaws require 2/3 vote 

7
270

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



Regular Calendar:  Regular resolutions approved by Policy Committee(s)5, and GRC recommends 
disapproval or referral; Regular resolutions disapproved or referred by Policy Committee(s)6 and GRC 
approves; Petitioned resolutions disapproved or referred by the GRC. 
 

 Open the floor to determine if a voting delegate wishes to debate a resolution on the regular 
calendar. 

 If no voting delegate requests a debate on the resolution, a vote to ratify the recommendation 
of the GRC on the resolution is taken. 

 Upon a motion by a voting delegate to debate a resolution, a debate shall be held if approved 
by a majority vote of the General Assembly. If a majority of the General Assembly to debate 
the resolution is not achieved, then a vote shall be taken on whether to ratify the GRC’s 
recommendation.  If a majority of the General Assembly approves of the motion to debate the 
resolution, debate will occur.  After debate on the resolution, a vote is taken based upon the 
substitute motion that was made, if any, or on the question of ratifying the GRC’s 
recommendation. 

 Voting delegates vote by raising their voting cards. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5 Applies in the instance where the GRC recommendation of disapproval or refer is counter to the recommendations of the 
policy committees. 
 
6 Applies in the instance where the GRC recommendation to approve is counter to the recommendations of the policy 
committees. 
 

8
271

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



1. RESOLUTION OF THE LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES CALLING ON
THE CALIFORNIA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION TO AMEND RULE 20A
TO ADD PROJECTS IN VERY HIGH FIRE HAZARD SEVERITY ZONES TO
THE LIST OF ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA AND TO INCREASE FUNDING
ALLOCATIONS FOR RULE 20A PROJECTS

Source: City of Rancho Palos Verdes 
Concurrence of five or more cities/city officials 
Cities: City of Hidden Hills, City of La Cañada Flintridge, City of Laguna Beach, City of 
Lakeport, City of Malibu, City of Moorpark, City of Nevada City, City of Palos Verdes Estates, 
City of Rolling Hills Estates, City of Rolling Hills, City of Ventura 
Referred to: Environmental Quality Policy Committee; Transportation, Communications, and 
Public Works Policy Committee 

WHEREAS, the California Public Utilities Commission regulates the undergrounding 
conversion of overhead utilities under Electric Tariff Rule 20 and; 

WHEREAS, conversion projects deemed to have a public benefit are eligible to be 
funded by ratepayers under Rule 20A; and 

WHEREAS, the criteria under Rule 20A largely restricts eligible projects to those along 
streets with high volumes of public traffic; and 

WHEREAS, the cost of undergrounding projects that do not meet Rule 20A criteria is 
left mostly or entirely to property owners under other parts of Rule 20; and 

WHEREAS, California is experiencing fire seasons of worsening severity; and 

WHEREAS, undergrounding overhead utilities that can spark brush fires is an important 
tool in preventing them and offers a public benefit; and 

WHEREAS, brush fires are not restricted to starting near streets with high volumes of 
public traffic; and 

WHEREAS, expanding Rule 20A criteria to include Very High Fire Hazard Severity 
Zones would facilitate undergrounding projects that would help prevent fires; and 

WHEREAS, expanding Rule 20A criteria as described above and increasing funding 
allocations for Rule 20A projects would lead to more undergrounding in Very High Fire Hazard 
Severity Zones; and now therefore let it be, 

RESOLVED that the League of California Cities calls on the California Public Utilities 
Commission to amend Rule 20A to include projects in Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones to 
the list of criteria for eligibility and to increase funding allocations for Rule 20A projects. 

9
272

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



Background Information on Resolution No. 1 

Source: City of Rancho Palos Verdes 

Background: 
Rancho Palos Verdes is the most populated California city to have 90 percent or more of 
residents living in a Cal Fire-designated Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone. Over the years, 
the Palos Verdes Peninsula has seen numerous brush fires that were determined to be caused by 
electrical utility equipment.  

Across the state, some of the most destructive and deadly wildfires were sparked by power 
equipment. But when it comes to undergrounding overhead utilities, fire safety is not taken into 
account when considering using ratepayer funds to pay for these projects under California’s 
Electric Tariff Rule 20 program. The program was largely intended to address visual blight when 
it was implemented in 1967. Under Rule 20A, utilities must allocate ratepayer funds to 
undergrounding conversion projects chosen by local governments that have a public benefit and 
meet one or more of the following criteria: 

• Eliminate an unusually heavy concentration of overhead lines;
• Involve a street or road with a high volume of public traffic;
• Benefit a civic or public recreation area or area of unusual scenic interest; and,
• Be listed as an arterial street or major collector as defined in the Governor’s Office of

Planning and Research (OPR) Guidelines.

As we know, brush fires are not restricted to erupting in these limited areas. California’s fire 
season has worsened in severity in recent years, claiming dozens of lives and destroying tens of 
thousands of structures in 2018 alone. 

Excluding fire safety from Rule 20A eligibility criteria puts the task of undergrounding power 
lines in Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones squarely on property owners who are proactive, 
willing and able to foot the bill. 

The proposed resolution calls on the California Public Utilities Commission to amend Rule 20A 
to include projects in Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones to the list of criteria for eligibility. 
To facilitate more undergrounding projects in these high-risk zones, the proposed resolution also 
calls on the CPUC to increase funding allocations for Rule 20A projects. 

If adopted, utilities will be incentivized to prioritize undergrounding projects that could 
potentially save millions of dollars and many lives. 

10
273

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



League of California Cities Staff Analysis on Resolution No. 1 

Staff:  Rony Berdugo, Legislative Representative, Derek Dolfie, Legislative 
Representative, Caroline Cirrincione, Legislative Policy Analyst 

Committees:  Environmental Quality; Transportation, Communications, and Public Works 

Summary: 
This Resolution, in response to intensifying fire seasons and hazards associated with exposed 
energized utility lines, proposes that the League of California Cities (League) call upon the 
California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) to amend the Rule 20A program by expanding 
the criteria for undergrounding overhead utilities to include projects in Very High Fire Hazard 
Severity Zones (VHFHSZ). This Resolution also proposes that the League call upon the CPUC 
to increase utilities’ funding allocations for Rule 20A projects.  

Background 

California Wildfires and Utilities  
Over the last several years, the increasing severity and frequency of California’s wildfires have 
prompted state and local governments to seek urgent prevention and mitigation actions. Record 
breaking wildfires in Northern and Southern California in both 2017 and 2018 have caused 
destruction and loss of life. This severe fire trend has local officials seeking solutions to combat 
what is now a year-round fire season exacerbated by years of drought, intense weather patterns, 
untamed vegetation and global warming.  

These conditions create a dangerous catalyst for wildfires caused by utilities as extreme wind and 
weather events make downed power lines more of a risk. In response to recent catastrophic 
wildfires, Governor Newsom established a Strike Force tasked with developing a 
“comprehensive roadmap” to address issues related to wildfires, climate change, and utilities. 
The Strike Force report acknowledges that measures to harden the electrical grid are critical to 
wildfire risk management. A key utility hardening strategy: undergrounding lines in extreme 
high-fire areas.  

Governor Newsom’s Wildfire Strike Force program report concludes, “It’s not a question of “if” 
wildfire will strike, but “when.” 

Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones 
This Resolution seeks to expand the undergrounding of overhead utility lines in VHFHSZ. 
California Government Code Section 51178 requires the Director of the California Department 
of Forestry and Fire Protection (CalFIRE) to identify areas in the state as VHFHSZ based on the 
potential fire hazard in those areas. VHFHSZ are determined based on fuel loading, slope, fire 
weather, and other relevant factors. These zones are in both local responsibility areas and state 
responsibility areas. Maps of the statewide and county by county VHFHSZ can be found here.1 

1 https://osfm.fire.ca.gov/divisions/wildfire-prevention-planning-engineering/wildland-hazards-building-codes/fire-hazard-

severity-zones-maps/ 

11
274

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



More than 25 million acres of California wildlands are classified under very high or extreme fire 
threat. Approximately 25 percent of the state’s population, 11 million people, live in those high-
risk areas.  Additionally, over 350,000 Californians live in cities that are nearly encompassed 
within Cal Fire’s maps of VHFHSZ. Similar to the proponents of this Resolution, City of Rancho 
Palos Verdes, over 75 communities have 90 percent or more of residents living in a VHFHSZ.   

CPUC Rule 20 Program  
The CPUC’s Rule 20 program lays out the guidelines and procedures for converting overhead 
electric and telecommunication facilities to underground electric facilities. Rule 20 funding and 
criteria is provided at four levels. Levels A, B, and C, reflect progressively diminishing ratepayer 
funding for undergrounding projects. Recently added Rule 20D is a relatively new program that 
is specific to San Diego Gas and Electric (SDG&E), which was created in response to the 
destructive 2007 wildfires. Each of these levels will be discussed below:  

Rule 20A  
The first California overhead conversion program, Rule 20A, was created in 1967 under then 
Governor Ronald Reagan. The program was created to provide a consistent and structured means 
of undergrounding utility lines throughout the state with costs covered broadly by utility 
ratepayers.  

Each year, Investor Owned Utilities (IOUs) propose their Rule 20A allocation amounts to the 
CPUC during annual general rate case proceedings. In this process, IOUs propose revised utility 
customer rates based on expected service costs, new energy procurement and projects for the 
following year, including Rule 20 allocations. The CPUC then reviews, amends, and approves 
IOU rates. Currently, the cumulative budgeted amount for Rule 20A for Pacific Gas and Electric 
(PG&E), Southern California Edison (SCE), and San Diego Gas and Electric (SDG&E) totals 
around $95.7 million.  

The funding set aside by IOUs for Rule 20A is allocated to local governments through a credit 
system, with each credit holding a value to be used solely for the costs of an undergrounding 
project. The credit system was created so that local governments and IOUs can complete 
undergrounding projects without municipal financing. Through Rule 20A, municipalities that 
have developed and received city council approval for an undergrounding plan receive annual 
credits from the IOU in their service area. At the last count by the CPUC, over 500 local 
governments (cities and counties) participate in the credit system.  

While these credits have no inherent monetary value, they can be traded in or banked for the 
conversion of overhead lines. Municipalities can choose to accumulate their credits until their 
credit balance is sufficient to cover these conversion projects, or choose to borrow future 
undergrounding allocations for a period of up to five years. Once the cumulative balance of 
credits is sufficient to cover the cost of a conversion project, the municipality and the utility can 
move forward with the undergrounding. All of the planning, design, and construction is 
performed by the participating utility. Upon the completion of an undergrounding project, the 
utility is compensated through the local government’s Rule 20A credits. 

12
275

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



At the outset of the program, the amount of allocated credits were determined by a formula 
which factored in the number of utility meters within a municipality in comparison to the 
utilities’ service territory. However, in recent years the formula has changed. Credit allocations 
for IOUs, except for PG&E, are now determined based on the allocation a city or county 
received in 1990 and is then adjusted for the following factors:  

• 50% of the change from the 1990 total budgeted amount is allocated for the ratio of the
number of overhead meters in any city or unincorporated area to the total system
overhead meters; and

• 50% of the change from the 1990 total budgeted amount is allocated for the ratio of the
number of meters (which includes older homes that have overhead services, and newer
homes with completely underground services) in any city or the unincorporated area to
the total system meters.

As noted, PG&E has a different funding formula for their Rule 20A credit allocations as they are 
not tied to the 1990 base allocation. Prior to 2011, PG&E was allocating approximately five to 
six percent of its revenue to the Rule 20A program. The CPUC decided in 2011 that PG&E’s 
Rule 20A allocations should be reduced by almost half in an effort to decrease the growing 
accumulation of credits amongst local governments. Since 2011, PG&E’s annual allocations for 
Rule 20A have been around $41.3 million annually, which is between two and three percent of 
their total revenue. 

Criteria for Rule 20A Projects  
For an undergrounding project to qualify for the Rule 20A program, there are several criteria that 
need to be met. The project must have a public benefit and:  

1. Eliminate an unusually heavy concentration of overhead lines
2. Involve a street or road with a high volume of public traffic
3. Benefit a civic or public recreation area or area of unusual scenic interest,
4. Be listed as an arterial street or major collector as defined in the Governor’s Office of

Planning and Research (OPR) Guidelines

Notably, fire safety is excluded from the list of criteria that favors aesthetic and other public 
safety projects.  

Rule 20A Credit System Imbalance Threatens Program Effectiveness 
Allocations are made by utilities each year for Rule 20A credits. These current budget 
allocations total $95.7 million a year. Currently, the cumulative balance of credits throughout the 
state totals over $1 billion dollars. The Rule 20A cumulative balances aggregated by region can 
be found here.2  

2 Program Review, California Overhead Conversion Program, Rule 20A for Years 2011-2015, “The Billion Dollar Risk,” California Public Utilities 
Commission. 
https://www.cpuc.ca.gov/uploadedFiles/CPUC_Public_Website/Content/About_Us/Organization/Divisions/Policy_and_Planning/PPD_Work_Pr
oducts_(2014_forward)(1)/PPD_Rule_20-A.pdf 

13
276

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



Note: The existing credit allocation formulas do not consider a municipality’s need or plans for 
overhead conversion projects, resulting in large credit balances in some jurisdictions.  

Cities and counties are, however, able to trade or sell unallocated Rule 20A credits if they will 
not be used to fund local undergrounding projects. There have been several cases where one 
agency has sold their unused credits, often for less than the full dollar value of the credits 
themselves to another agency. 

Rule 20B 
Rule 20B projects are those that do not fit the Rule 20A criteria, but do, however, involve both 
sides of the street for at least 600 feet. These projects are typically done in conjunction with 
larger developments and are mostly paid for by the developer or applicant. Additionally, the 
applicant is responsible for the installation.  

Rule 20C 
Rule 20C projects are usually small projects that involve property owners. The majority of the 
cost is usually borne by the applicants. Rule 20C applies when the project does not qualify for 
either Rule 20A or Rule 20B. 

Rule 20D--Wildfire Mitigation Undergrounding Program 
Rule 20D was approved by the CPUC in January of 2014 and only applies to SDG&E. The Rule 
20D program was established largely in response to the destructive wildfires that occurred in San 
Diego in 2007 as a wildfire mitigation undergrounding program. According to SDG&E, the 
objective of the Rule 20D undergrounding is exclusively for fire hardening as opposed to 
aesthetics. The program is limited in scope and is restricted to communities in SDG&E’s Fire 
Threat Zone (now referred to as the High Fire Threat District or HFTD). As of this time, the 
program has yet to yield any projects and no projects are currently planned. 

For an undergrounding project to qualify for the Rule 20D program, a minimum of three of the 
following criteria must be met. The project must be near, within, or impactful to: 

• Critical electric infrastructure
• Remaining useful life of electric infrastructure
• Exposure to vegetation or tree contact
• Density and proximity of fuel
• Critical surrounding non-electric assets (including structures and sensitive environmental

areas)
• Service to public agencies
• Accessibility for firefighters

Similar to Rule 20A, SDG&E must allocate funding each year through their general rate case 
proceedings to Rule 20D to be approved by the CPUC. This funding is separate from the 
allocations SDG&E makes for Rule 20A. However, the process of distributing this funding to 
localities is different. The amount of funding allocated to each city and county for Rule 20D is 
based on the ratio of the number of miles of overhead lines in SDG&E Fire Threat Zones in a 
city or county to the total miles of SDG&E overhead lines in the entire SDG&E fire zone. The 

14
277

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



Rule 20D program is administered by the utility consistent with the existing reporting, 
engineering, accounting, and management practices for Rule 20A.  

The Committee may want to consider whether Rule 20D should instead be expanded, adapted, or 
further utilized to support funding for overhead conversions within VHFHSZ throughout the 
state.  

Fiscal Impact: 
The costs to the State associated with this Resolution will be related to the staff and 
programmatic costs to the CPUC to take the necessary measures to consider and adopt changes 
to Rule 20A to include projects in VHFHSZ to the list of criteria for eligibility.  

This Resolution calls for an unspecified increase in funding for Rule 20A projects, inferring that 
portions of increased funds will go towards newly eligible high fire hazard zones. While the 
Resolution does not request a specific amount be allocated, it can be assumed that these 
increased costs will be supported by utility ratepayers. According to the CPUC, the annual 
allocations towards Rule 20A are $95.7 million. 

The CPUC currently reports a cumulative credit surplus valued at roughly $1 billion that in 
various regions, given the approval of expanded eligibility called for by this Resolution, could be 
used to supplement and reduce the level of new dollars needed to make a significant impact in 
VHFHSZ. The CPUC follows that overhead conversion projects range from $93,000 per mile for 
rural construction to $5 million per mile for urban construction.  

The Resolution states that “California is experiencing fire seasons of worsening severity” which 
is supported by not only the tremendous loss of property and life from recent wildfires, but also 
in the rising costs associated with clean up, recovery, and other economic losses with high 
estimates in the hundreds of billions of dollars.  

The Committee may wish to consider the costs associated with undergrounding utility lines in 
relation to the costs associated with past wildfires and wildfires to come.  

Comments: 
CPUC Currently Exploring Revisions to Rule 20 
In May 2017, the CPUC issued an Order Instituting Rulemaking to Consider Revisions to 
Electric Rule 20 and Related Matters. The CPUC will primarily focus on revisions to Rule 20A 
but may make conforming changes to other parts of Rule 20. The League is a party in these 
proceedings will provide comments. 

Beyond Rule 20A: Additional Options for Funding Undergrounding Projects 
There are various ways in which cities can generate funding for undergrounding projects that fall 
outside of the scope of Rule 20A. At the local level, cities can choose to forgo the Rule 20A 
process and opt to use their own General Fund money for undergrounding. Other options are also 
discussed below:   

15
278

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



Rule 20D Expansion 
The City of Berkley in a 2018 study titled “Conceptual Study for Undergrounding Utility Wires 
in Berkley,” found that the city could possibly qualify for Rule 20D funding if they actively 
pursued this opportunity in partnership with PG&E and the CPUC.  

One of the study’s recommendations is to advocate for release of 20D funds (now earmarked 
exclusively for SDG&E) to be used for more aggressive fire hardening techniques for above-
ground utility poles and equipment, for undergrounding power lines, and for more aggressive 
utility pole and vegetation management practices in the Very High Hazard Fire Zone within 
Berkeley’s city limits. 

As an alternative to changing the criteria for Rule 20A, the Committee may wish to consider 
whether there is the opportunity to advocate for the expansion of Rule 20D funding more 
broadly, expanding its reach to all IOU territories.  

Franchise Surcharge Fees 
Aside from Rule 20 allocations, cities can generate funding for undergrounding through 
franchise fee surcharges. For example, SDG&E currently operates under a 50-year City franchise 
that was granted in 1970. Under the franchises approved by the San Diego City Council in 
December 1970, SDG&E agreed to pay a franchise fee to the City equivalent to 3% of its gross 
receipts from the sales of both natural gas and electricity for 30 years. 

These fees were renegotiated in 2000 and in 2001 an agreement was between the City of San 
Diego, SDG&E, and the CPUC to extend the existing franchise fee to include revenues collected 
from surcharges. SDG&E requested an increase of 3.88% to its existing electric franchise fee 
surcharge. The bulk, 3.53% of this increase is to be used for underground conversion of overhead 
electric wires.  

Based on SDG&E's revenue projections, the increase would result in an additional surcharge 
revenue amount of approximately $36.5 million per year. SDG&E estimates that this would 
create a monthly increase of approximately $3.00 to a typical residential customer's electric bill. 
These surcharge revenues would pay for additional undergrounding projects including those that 
do not meet the Rule 20A criteria. The City of Santa Barbara has also adopted a similar franchise 
surcharge fee. 

Having this funding source allows the City of San Diego to underground significantly more 
miles of above ground utility lines than other municipalities. However, the surcharge is currently 
being challenged in court, as it is argued that the City had SDG&E impose a tax without a ballot 
measure.  

16
279

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



Utility Bankruptcy and Undergrounding Funding 
In considering this Resolution, it is important to understand that Rule 20A allocations have been 
more substantial in the past. As mentioned earlier, prior to 2011, PG&E was allocating 
approximately 5% to 6% of its revenue to the Rule 20A program. Therefore, it is not 
unreasonable to encourage an increase in Rule 20A allocations as history shows that utilities had 
the capacity to do so in the past. 

However, in a time where IOUs such as PG&E are facing bankruptcy as the result of utility 
caused wildfires, there is the possibility that expanding rule 20A funding will generate more 
costs for the ratepayers.  

Questions to Consider: 
1) Is Rule 20A or Rule 20D the more appropriate program to advocate for such an

expansion?
2) Are there any wildfire risks outside of VHFHSZ that could be mitigated by

undergrounding projects?

Existing League Policy:  

Public Safety:  
The League supports additional funding for local agencies to recoup the costs associated with 
fire safety in the community and timely mutual aid reimbursement for disaster response services 
in other jurisdictions. (pg. 43) 

The League supports the fire service mission of saving lives and protecting property through fire 
prevention, disaster preparedness, hazardous-materials mitigation, specialized rescue, etc., as 
well as cities’ authority and discretion to provide all emergency services to their communities. 
(pg. 43)  

Transportation, Communication, and Public Works:  
Existing telecommunications providers and new entrants shall adhere to local city policies on 
public utility undergrounding. (pg. 54) 

The League supports protecting the additional funding for local transportation and other critical 
unmet infrastructure needs. (pg. 51) 

The League supports innovative strategies including public private partnerships at the state and 
local levels to enhance public works funding. (pg. 52) 

Environmental Quality 
The League opposes any legislation that interferes with local utility rate setting authority and 
opposes any legislation that restricts the ability of a city to transfer revenue from a utility (or 
other enterprise activity) to the city’s general fund. (pg. 9) 

17
280

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



Cities should continue to have the authority to issue franchises and any program should be at 
least revenue neutral relative to revenue currently received from franchises. (pg. 9)  

The League is concerned about the impacts of escalating energy prices on low income residents 
and small businesses. The League supports energy pricing structures and other mechanisms to 
soften the impacts on this segment of our community. (pg. 10) 

2019 Strategic Goals 
Improve Disaster Preparedness, Recovery and Climate Resiliency. 
• Provide resources to cities and expand partnerships to better prepare for and recover from

wildfires, seismic events, erosion, mudslides and other disasters.
• Improve community preparedness and resiliency to respond to climate-related, natural and

man-made disasters.

Support: 
The following letters of concurrence were received: 
The City of Hidden Hills 
The City of La Cañada Flintridge 
The City of Laguna Beach 
The City of Lakeport  
The City of Malibu  
The City of Moorpark 
The City of Nevada City  
The City of Palos Verdes Estates  
The City of Rolling Hills Estates  
The City of Rolling Hills  
The City of Ventura 

18
281

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



LETTERS OF CONCURRENCE 
Resolution No. 1 

Amendment to Rule 20A 

19
282

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



20
283

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



21
284

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



22
285

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



23
286

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



24
287

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



City of Malibu 
Jefferson Wagner, Mayor 

23825 Stuart Ranch Road · Malibu, California · 90265-4861 
Phone (310) 456-2489 · Fax (310) 456-3356 · www.malibucity.org 

M:\City Council\Mayor Chron Files\2019\Rancho PV League Reso to Amend Rule 20A-Support_190815.docx Recycled Paper 

August 15, 2019 

Jan Arbuckle, President  
League of California Cities 
1400 K St., Ste. 400  
Sacramento, CA 95814 

RE: City of Rancho Palos Verdes Proposed Resolution to Amend California Public Utilities 
Commission Rule 20A – SUPPORT 

Dear Ms. Arbuckle: 

At its Regular meeting on August 12, 2019, the Malibu City Council unanimously voted to support the 
City of Rancho Palos Verdes’ effort to bring a resolution for consideration by the General Assembly at 
the League’s 2019 Annual Conference in Long Beach. 

Undergrounding power lines is an important tool in preventing destructive wildfires that have devastated 
communities across our state, but California’s Rule 20A program, which allows local governments to 
pay for these costly projects with ratepayer funds, does not factor in fire safety for eligibility. Unless 
projects meet the program’s limited eligibility criteria, they are left to be funded by property owners who 
are proactive, as well as willing and able to foot the bill. The City of Malibu agrees with Rancho Palos 
Verdes that Rule 20A offers an important opportunity for fire prevention and that the California Public 
Utilities Commission (CPUC) should expand this program so more communities can utilize it. 

The resolution calls on the CPUC to amend Rule 20A to include projects in Very High Fire Hazard 
Severity Zones to the list of criteria for eligibility. To facilitate more undergrounding projects in these 
high-risk zones, the resolution also calls on the CPUC to increase funding allocations for Rule 20A 
projects. As a recent series of news stories on wildfire preparedness in California pointed out, there are 
more than 75 communities across the state with populations over 1,000, including Rancho Palos Verdes 
and Malibu, where at least 90 percent of residents live in a Cal Fire-designated Very High Fire Hazard 
Severity Zone. 

It is well-known that electric utility equipment is a common fire source, and has sparked some of the 
most destructive blazes in our state’s history. Moving power lines underground is, therefore, a critical 
tool in preventing them. Currently, Rule 20A primarily addresses visual blight, but with fire seasons 
worsening, it is key that fire safety also be considered when local governments pursue Rule 20A projects, 
and that annual funding allocations for the program be expanded. 

It is worth noting that the State does have a program, Rule 20D, that factors in fire safety for funding 
undergrounding projects. However, this is limited to San Diego Gas & Electric Company projects in 
certain areas only. This needs to be expanded to include projects in all projects within designated Very 
High Fire Hazard Severity Zones. 

25
288

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



Rancho PV League Resolution 
Amend Rule 20A 
August 15, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

M:\City Council\Mayor Chron Files\2019\Rancho PV League Reso to Amend Rule 20A-Support_190815.docx
Recycled Paper 

The proposed resolution is also in line with one of the League’s 2019 Strategic Goals of improving 
disaster preparedness, recovery and climate resiliency. 

For these reasons, the City of Malibu strongly concurs that the resolution should go before the General 
Assembly. 

Sincerely, 

Jefferson Wagner 
Mayor 

Cc:  Honorable Members of the Malibu City Council 
Reva Feldman, City Manager 
Megan Barnes, City of Rancho Palos Verdes, mbarnes@rpvca.gov 

26
289

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



CITY OF MOORPARK 

JANICE S. PARVIN 
Mayor 

CHRIS ENEGREN 
Councilmember 

ROSEANN MIKOS, Ph.D. 
Councilmember 

DAVID POLLOCK 
Councilmember 

KEN SIMONS 
Councilmember 

799 Moorpark Avenue, Moorpark, California  93021     

Main City Phone Number (805) 517-6200   |   Fax (805) 532-2205   |   moorpark@moorparkca.gov 

July 24, 2019 SUBMITTED ELECTRONICALLY 

Jan Arbuckle, President 
League of California Cities 
1400 K St., Ste. 400 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

RE: SUPPORT FOR RANCHO PALOS VERDES RESOLUTION RE: POWER LINE 
UNDERGROUNDING 

Dear President Arbuckle: 

The City of Moorpark supports the City of Rancho Palos Verdes effort to bring a resolution for 
consideration by the General Assembly at the League’s 2019 Annual Conference in Long 
Beach. 

Undergrounding power lines is an important tool in preventing destructive wildfires that have 
devastated communities across our state. But California’s Rule 20A program, which allows 
local governments to pay for these costly projects with ratepayer funds, does not factor in fire 
safety for eligibility. Unless projects meet the program’s limited eligibility criteria, they are left 
to be funded by property owners who are proactive, willing and able to foot the bill. We 
believe Rule 20A offers an important opportunity for fire prevention and that the California 
Public Utilities Commission should expand this program so more communities can utilize it. 

The resolution calls on the CPUC to amend Rule 20A to include projects in Very High Fire 
Hazard Severity Zones to the list of criteria for eligibility. To facilitate more undergrounding 
projects in these high-risk zones, the resolution also calls on the CPUC to increase funding 
allocations for Rule 20A projects.  

All cities in Ventura County, including Moorpark, have wildfire prevention fresh in our 
memories following the highly destructive 2017-2018 Thomas Fire, which was caused by 
above-ground power lines.  The 2018 Woolsey Fire similarly affected Ventura County, and 
lawsuits have been filed alleging it was also caused by above-ground power lines.  Each of 
these fires caused billions of dollars in damages and highlight the importance of 
undergrounding power lines.  

27
290

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



League of California Cities 
Page 2 

The resolution is also in line with one of the League’s 2019 Strategic Goals of improving 
disaster preparedness, recovery and climate resiliency. 

For these reasons, we concur that the resolution should go before the General Assembly. 

Sincerely, 

Janice Parvin 
Mayor 

cc: City Council 
 City Manager 

28
291

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



29
292

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



30
293

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



31
294

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



32
295

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



33
296

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



2. A RESOLUTION CALLING UPON THE FEDERAL AND STATE GOVERNMENTS
TO ADDRESS THE DEVASTATING IMPACTS OF INTERNATIONAL
TRANSBOUNDARY POLLUTION FLOWS INTO THE SOUTHERNMOST
REGIONS OF CALIFORNIA AND THE PACIFIC OCEAN

Source:  San Diego County Division  
Concurrence of five or more cities/city officials  
Cities: Calexico; Coronado; Imperial Beach; San Diego 
Individual City Officials: City of Brawley: Mayor Pro Tem Norma Kastner-Jauregui; Council 
Members Sam Couchman, Luke Hamby, and George Nava. City of Escondido: Deputy Mayor 
Consuelo Martinez. City of La Mesa: Council Member Bill Baber. City of Santee: Mayor John 
Minto, City of Vista: Mayor Judy Ritter and Council Member Amanda Young Rigby
Referred to: Environmental Quality Policy Committee 

WHEREAS, international transboundary rivers that carry water across the border from 
Mexico into Southern California are a major source of sewage, trash, chemicals, heavy metals 
and toxins; and  

WHEREAS, transboundary flows threaten the health of residents in the United States 
and Mexico, harm important estuarine land and water of international significance, force closure 
of beaches, damage farmland, adversely impact the South San Diego County and Imperial 
County economy; compromise border security, and directly affect U.S. military readiness; and  

WHEREAS, a significant amount of untreated sewage, sediment, hazardous chemicals 
and trash have been entering southern California through both the Tijuana River Watershed (75 
percent of which is within Mexico) and New River flowing into southern California’s coastal 
waterways and residential and agricultural communities in Imperial County eventually draining 
into the Salton Sea since the 1930s; and 

WHEREAS, in February 2017, an estimated 143 million gallons of raw sewage flowed 
into the Tijuana River and ran downstream into the Pacific Ocean and similar cross border flows 
have caused beach closures at Border Field State Park that include 211 days in 2015; 162 days in 
2016; 168 days in 2017; 101 days in 2018; and 187 days to date for 2019 as well as closure of a 
number of other beaches along the Pacific coastline each of those years; and  

WHEREAS, approximately 132 million gallons of raw sewage has discharged into the 
New River flowing into California through communities in Imperial County, with 122 million 
gallons of it discharged in a 6-day period in early 2017; and  

WHEREAS, the presence of pollution on state and federal public lands is creating unsafe 
conditions for visitors; these lands are taxpayer supported and intended to be managed for 
recreation, resource conservation and the enjoyment by the public, and  

WHEREAS, the current insufficient and degrading infrastructure in the border zone 
poses a significant risk to the public health and safety of residents and the environment on both 

34
297

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



sides of the border, and places the economic stress on cities that are struggling to mitigate the 
negative impacts of pollution; and 

WHEREAS, the 1944 treaty between the United States and Mexico regarding Utilization 
of Waters of the Colorado and Tijuana Rivers and of the Rio Grande allocates flows on trans-
border rivers between Mexico and the United States, and provides that the nations, through their 
respective sections of the International Boundary Water Commission shall give control of 
sanitation in cross border flows the highest priority; and  

WHEREAS, in 1993, the United States and Mexico entered into the Agreement Between 
the Government of the United States of America and the Government of the United Mexican 
States Concerning the Establishment of a North American Development Bank which created the 
North American Development Bank (NADB) to certify and fund environmental infrastructure 
projects in border-area communities; and   

WHEREAS, public concerns in response to widespread threats to public health and 
safety, damage to fish and wildlife resources and degradation to California’s environment 
resulting from transboundary river flow pollution in the southernmost regions of the state 
requires urgent action by the Federal and State governments, and  

WHEREAS, Congress authorized funding under the U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency’s (EPA) Safe Drinking Water Act and established the State and Tribal Assistance Grants 
(STAG) program for the U.S.-Mexico Border Water Infrastructure Program (BWIP) in 1996 to 
provide grants for high-priority water, wastewater, and storm-water infrastructure projects within 
100 kilometers of the southern border; and  

WHEREAS, the EPA administers the STAG and BWIP programs, and coordinates with 
the North American Development Bank (NADB) to allocate BWIP grant funds to projects in the 
border zone; and  

WHEREAS, since its inception, the BWIP program has provided funding for projects in 
California, Arizona, New Mexico and Texas that would not have been constructed without the 
grant program; and 

WHEREAS, the BWIP program was initially funded at $100 million per year, but, over 
the last 20 years, has been continuously reduced to its current level of $10 million; and  

WHEREAS, in its FY 2020 Budget Request, the Administration proposed to eliminate 
the BWIP program; and 

WHEREAS, officials from EPA Region 9, covering California, have identified a 
multitude of BWIP-eligible projects along the southern border totaling over $300 million; and 

WHEREAS, without federal partnership through the BWIP program and state support to 
address pollution, cities that are impacted by transboundary sewage and toxic waste flows are 

35
298

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



left with limited resources to address a critical pollution and public health issue and limited legal 
remedies to address the problem; and  

WHEREAS, the National Association of Counties, (NACo) at their Annual Conference 
on July 15, 2019 and the U.S. Conference of Mayors at their Annual Conference on in July 1, 
2019 both enacted resolutions calling on the federal and state governments to work together to 
fund and address this environmental crisis; and  

WHEREAS, local governments and the public support the State’s primary objectives in 
complying with environmental laws including the Clean Water Act, Porter-Cologne Water 
Quality Control Act, and Endangered Species Act and are supported by substantial public 
investments at all levels of government to maintain a healthy and sustainable environment for 
future residents of California, and  

WHEREAS, League of California Cities policy has long supported efforts to ensure 
water quality and oppose contamination of water resources; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED at the League General Assembly, 
assembled at the League Annual Conference on October 18, 2019 in Long Beach, that the 
League calls upon the Federal and State governments to restore and ensure proper funding to the 
U.S- Mexico Border Water Infrastructure Program (BWIP) and recommit to working bi-
nationally to develop and implement long-term solutions to address serious water quality and
contamination issues, such as discharges of untreated sewage and polluted sediment and trash-
laden transboundary flows originating from Mexico, that result in significant health,
environmental, and safety concerns in communities along California’s southern border impacting
the state.

36
299

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



Background Information on Resolution No. 2 

Source:  San Diego County Division 

Background: 
Along California’s southern border with Mexico, the New River in Imperial County and the 
Tijuana River in San Diego County are a major sources of raw sewage, trash, chemicals, heavy 
metals, and toxins that pollute local communities. Sewage contaminated flows in the Tijuana 
River have resulted in significant impacts to beach recreation that includes the closure of Border 
Field State Beach for more than 800 days over the last 5-years. Similarly, contaminated flows in 
the New River presents comparable hazards, impacts farm land, and contributes to the ongoing 
crisis in the Salton Sea. These transboundary flows threaten the health of residents in California 
and Mexico, harms the ecosystem, force closures at beaches, damage farm land, makes people 
sick, and adversely affects the economy of border communities. The root cause of this cross 
border pollution is from insufficient or failing water and wastewater infrastructure in the border 
zone and inadequate federal action to address the problem through existing border programs.  

The severity of cross border pollution has continued to increase, due in part to the rapid growth 
of urban centers since the passage of the North American Free Trade Agreement (NAFTA). 
While economic growth has contributed to greater employment, the environmental infrastructure 
of the region has not kept pace, which is why Congress authorized the Border Water 
Infrastructure Program (BWIP) in 1996. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 
administers the BWIP and coordinates with the North American Development Bank (NADB) to 
provide financing and technical support for projects on both sides of the U.S./Mexico border. 
Unfortunately, the current BWIP funding at $10 million per year is only a fraction of the initial 
program budget that shares funding with the entire 2,000 mile Mexican border with California, 
Arizona, New Mexico and Texas. EPA officials from Region 9 have identified an immediate 
need for BWIP projects totaling over $300 million just for California. Without federal 
partnerships through the BWIP and state support to address cross border pollution, cities that are 
impacted by transboundary sewage and toxic waste flows are left with limited resources to 
address a critical pollution and public health issue.  

The International Boundary and Water Commission (IBWC) is another important federal 
stakeholder that, under the Treaty of 1944 with Mexico, must address border sanitation 
problems. While IBWC currently captures and treats some of the pollution generated in Mexico, 
it also redirects cross border flows without treatment directly into California.  

Improving environmental and public health conditions for communities along the border is 
essential for maintaining strong border economy with Mexico. The IBWC, EPA, and NADB are 
the important federal partners with existing bi-national programs that are able to immediately 
implement solutions on cross border pollution. California is in a unique position to take the lead 
and work with local and federal partners to implement real solutions that will addresses the long 
standing and escalating water quality crisis along the border.  

For those reasons, the cities of Imperial Beach and Coronado requested the San Diego County 
Division to propose a resolution at the 2019 League Annual Conference calling upon the federal 

37
300

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



and state governments to address the devastating impacts of international transboundary 
pollution flows into the waterways of the southernmost regions of California, San Diego and 
Imperial Counties and the Pacific Ocean.    

On August 12, 2019 at the regularly scheduled meeting of the San Diego County Division, the 
membership unanimously endorsed submittal of the resolution, with close to 75% membership 
present and voting.   

The Imperial County Division does not have a schedule meeting until after the deadline to 
submit proposed resolutions.  However, the City of Calexico, which is most directly impacted by 
initial pollution flow of the New River from Mexicali, sent a letter in concurrence of this 
resolution as well as numerous city official from cities within Imperial County and the Imperial 
County Board of Supervisors. The League Imperial County Division will place a vote to support 
this resolution on the agenda of their September 26, 2019 meeting.  

38
301

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



League of California Cities Staff Analysis on Resolution No. 2 

Staff:  Derek Dolfie, Legislative Representative 
Carly Shelby, Legislative and Policy Development Assistant 

Committees: Environmental Quality 

Summary: 
This Resolution states that the League of California Cities should call upon the State and Federal 
governments to restore and ensure proper funding for the U.S. – Mexico Border Water 
Infrastructure Program (BWIP) and work bi-nationally to address water quality issues resulting 
from transboundary flows from Mexico’s Tijuana River into the United States containing 
untreated sewage, polluted sediment, and trash. 

Background: 
The League of California Cities’ San Diego County Division is sponsoring this resolution to 
address their concerns over the contaminated flows from the Tijuana River into California that 
have resulted in the degradation of water quality and water recreational areas in Southern 
California.  

The Tijuana River flows north through highly urbanized areas in Mexico before it enters the 
Tijuana River Estuary and eventually the Pacific Ocean via waterways in San Diego County in 
California. Urban growth in Tijuana has contributed to a rise in rates of upstream flows from 
water treatment facilities in Mexico. These treatment facilities have raised the amount of 
untreated sewage and waste in the Tijuana River due to faulty infrastructure and improper 
maintenance. The federal government refers to the river as an “impaired water body” because of 
the presence of pollutants in excess, which pose significant health risks to residents and visitors 
in communities on both sides of the border.  

Federal Efforts to Address Pollution Crisis  
To remedy the Tijuana River’s low water quality, the United States and Mexico entered into a 
Treaty in 1944 entitled: Utilization of Waters of the Colorado River and Tijuana Rivers and of 
the Rio Grande – the International Boundary and Water Commission (IBWC). The IBWC was 
designed to consist of a United States section and a Mexico section. Both sections were tasked 
with negotiating and implementing resolutions to address water pollution in the area, which 
includes overseeing the development of water treatment and diversion infrastructure.  

After the formation of the IBWC, the U.S. and Mexico entered into a treaty in 1993 entitled: 
Agreement Concerning the Establishment of a Border Environment Cooperation Commission 
and a North American Development Bank. This agreement established the North American 
Development Bank (NADB), which certifies and funds infrastructure projects located within 100 
kilometers (62 miles) of the border line. The NADB supports federal programs like the Border 
Water Infrastructure Program (BWIP), which was initially funded at $100 million, annually.   

The degradation of existing water treatment infrastructure along the border coincides with the 
federal government’s defunding of the BWIP, which has steadily decreased from $100 million in 
1996 to $10 million today. The Federal FY 2020 Budget proposes eliminating BWIP funding 

39
302

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



altogether. EPA’s regions 6 and 9 (includes U.S. states that border Mexico) have identified a 
number of eligible projects that address public health and environmental conditions along the 
border totaling $340 million.  

The NADB has funded the development of water infrastructure in both the U.S. and Mexico. 
Water diversion and treatment infrastructure along the U.S – Mexico border includes, but is not 
limited to, the following facilities:  

• The South Bay International Wastewater Treatment Plant (SBIWTP). This facility was
constructed by the U.S. in 1990 and is located on the California side of the border and is
operated under the jurisdiction of the IBWC. The SBIWTP serves as a diversion and
treatment sewage plant to address the flow of untreated sewage from Mexico into the
United States.

• Pump Station CILA. CILA was constructed by Mexico in 1991 and is located along the
border in Mexico. This facility serves as the SBIWTP’s Mexican counterpart.

Both the SBIWTP and CILA facilities have had a multitude of overflows containing untreated 
sewage and toxic waste that spills into the Tijuana River. The cause of overflows can be 
attributed to flows exceeding the maximum capacity that the infrastructure can accommodate 
(this is exacerbated during wet and rainy seasons) and failure to properly operate and maintain 
the facilities. Much of the existing infrastructure has not had updates or repairs for decades, 
causing overflows to become more frequent and severe. The most notable overflow occurred in 
February 2017, wherein 143 million gallons of polluting waste discharged into the Tijuana River; 
affecting the Tijuana Estuary, the Pacific Ocean, and Southern California’s waterways.  

State Actions 
In response to the February 2017 overflow, the San Diego Water Board’s Executive Officer sent 
a letter to the U.S. and Mexican IBWC Commissioners which included recommendations on 
how to improve existing infrastructure and communications methods between both nations.  

In September of 2018, California Attorney General Xavier Becerra submitted a lawsuit against 
IBWC for Violating the Clean Water Act by allowing flows containing sewage and toxic waste 
to flow into California’s waterways, posing a public health and ecological crisis. The cities of 
Imperial Beach, San Diego, Chula Vista, the Port of San Diego, and the San Diego Regional 
Water Quality Board have also filed suit against the IBWC. The suit is awaiting its first 
settlement conference on October 19, 2019. If parties are unable to reach a settlement, the case 
will go to trial. 

Fiscal Impact: 
California’s economy is currently the sixth largest in the world, with tourism spending topping 
$140.6 billion in 2018. In the past five years, San Diego’s Border Field State Park has been 
closed for over 800 days because of pollution from the Tijuana River. A decline in the State’s 
beach quality and reputation could carry macroeconomic effects that could ripple outside of the 
San Diego County region and affect coastal communities throughout California.  

40
303

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



Existing League Policy 
The League of California Cities has extensive language on water in its Summary of Existing 
Policy and Guiding Principles. Fundamentally, the League recognizes that beneficial water 
quality is essential to the health and welfare of California and all of its citizens. Additionally, the 
League advocates for local, state and federal governments to work cooperatively to ensure that 
water quality is maintained.  
The following policy relates to the issue of water quality:  

• Surface and groundwater should be protected from contamination.
• Requirements for wastewater discharge into surface water and groundwater to safeguard

public health and protect beneficial uses should be supported.
• When addressing contamination in a water body, water boards should place priority

emphasis on clean-up strategies targeting sources of pollution, rather than in stream or
end-of-pipe treatment.

• Water development projects must be economically, environmentally and scientifically
sound.

• The viability of rivers and streams for instream uses such as fishery habitat, recreation
and aesthetics must be protected.

• Protection, maintenance, and restoration of fish and wildlife habitat and resources.

Click here to view the Summary of Existing Policy and Guiding Principles 2018. 

Comments: 
1. Water quality issues are prevalent across California and have been a constant priority of

the State’s legislature and residents. In 2014, California’s voters approved Proposition 1,
which authorized $7.5 billion in general obligation bonds to fund water quality
improvement projects. In 2019, the Legislature reached an agreement to allocate $130
million from the State’s Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund (GGRF) to address failing
water infrastructure and bad water qualities for over one million of California’s residents
in rural communities. Water quality is not an issue unique to the County of San Diego
and communities along the border.

2. Tijuana River cross-border pollution has caught national attention. Members of Congress
have proposed recent funding solutions to address the pollution crisis, including:
• In February of 2019, California Congressional Representatives Vargas, Peters, and

Davis helped secure $15 million for the EPA to use as part of its BWIP.
• H.R. 3895 (Vargas, Peters, 2019), The North American Development Bank Pollution

Solution Act.  This bill seeks to support pollution mitigation efforts along the border
by increasing the NADB’s capital by $1.5 billion.

• H.R. 4039 (Levin, 2019), The Border Water Infrastructure Improvement Act.
This bill proposes increasing funding to the BWIP from the existing $10 million to
$150 million as a continuous appropriation until 2025.

Additionally, the National Association of Counties (NACo) and the U.S. Conference of 
Mayors enacted resolutions in support of increased funding for U.S. – Mexico border 
water infrastructure to address the environmental crisis in 2019.  

41
304

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



3. The border pollution problem has sparked action from local, state, and federal actors.
Should this resolution be adopted, League membership should be aware that future action
will be adapted by what is explicitly stated in the resolution’s language.  In current form,
the resolution’s resolve clause cites the BWIP as the only program that should receive
reinstated and proper funding. League staff recommends the language be modified to
state:

“NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED at the League General Assembly, 
assembled at the League Annual Conference on October 18, 2019 in Long Beach, 
that the League calls upon the Federal and State governments to restore and 
ensure proper funding for environmental infrastructure on the U.S. – Mexico 
Border, including to the U.S- Mexico Border Water Infrastructure Program 
(BWIP), and recommit to working bi-nationally to develop and implement long-
term solutions to address serious water quality and contamination issues, such as 
discharges of untreated sewage and polluted sediment and trash-laden 
transboundary flows originating from Mexico, that result in significant health, 
environmental, and safety concerns in communities along California’s southern 
border impacting the state.” 

Modifying the language would ensure enough flexibility for the League to support 
funding mechanisms outside of the prescribed federally-operated BWIP.  

4. It remains unclear if there is an appetite in Washington to fund border-related
infrastructure projects that address environmental quality. Given the high probability of
another overflow containing waste and sewage from the existing infrastructure operated
by the IBWC, League membership should consider the outcome if no resolution is
reached to address the issue.

Support: 
The following letters of concurrence were received:  
Cities:  
The City of Calexico 
The City of Coronado  
The City of Imperial Beach  
The City of San Diego  
In their individual capacity:  
Amanda Young Rigby, City of Vista Council Member 
Bill Baber, City of La Mesa Council Member 
Consuelo Martinez, City of Escondido Deputy Mayor 
George A. Nava, City of Brawley Council Member 
John Minto, City of Santee Mayor
Judy Ritter, City of Vista Mayor 
Luke Hamby, City of Brawley Council Member 
Norma Kastner-Jauregui, City of Brawley Mayor Pro-Tempore 
Sam Couchman, City of Brawley Council Member 

42
305

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



LETTERS OF CONCURRENCE 
Resolution No. 2 

International Transboundary 
Pollution Flows 

43
306

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



CITY OF CALEXICO

Viva Calexico!

608 Heber Ave.

Calexico, CA 92231-2840

Tel: 760.768.2110
Fax: 760.768.2103

www.calexico.ca.gov

August 15, 2019

Jan Arbuckle, President
League of California Cities
1400 K Street, Suite 400
Sacramento, CA 95814

RE: Environmental and Water Quality Impacts Of International Transboundary River
Pollution Flow Resolution

President Arbuckle:

The city of Calexico strongly supports the San Diego County Division’s effort to submit a resolution

for consideration by the General Assembly at the League’s 2019 Annual Conference in Long Beach.

The Division’s resolution calls upon the Federal and State governments to restore and ensure proper

funding of the Border Water Infrastructure Program (BWIP) to address the devastating impacts of

international transboundary pollution flows into the waterways of the southernmost regions of

California (San Diego and Imperial Counties) and the Pacific Ocean.

Local government and the public support the State’s water and environmental quality objectives and

League policy has long supported efforts to ensure water quality and oppose contamination of water

resources. This resolution addresses the critical need for the federal and state governments to

recommit to work bi-nationally to develop and implement long-term solutions to address serious water

quality and contamination issues, such as discharges of untreated sewage and polluted sediment and

trash-laden transboundary flows originating from Mexico, that result in significant heath,

environmental and safety concerns in communities along California’s southern border impacting the

state.

As members of the League, our city values the policy development process provided to the General

Assembly. We appreciate your time on this issue.

44
307

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



Viva Calexico!

If you have any questions or require additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me at

760/768-2110.

Sincerely,

CITY OF CALEXICO

David Dale
City Manager

Cc: Honorable Mayor Bill Hodge

45
308

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



46
309

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



August 15, 2019 

Jan Arbuckle, President 
League of California Cities 
1400 K St. Suite 400 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

RE: Environmental and Water Quality Impacts Of International Transboundary River 
Pollution Flow Resolution 

President Arbuckle: 

The city of Imperial Beach appreciates and supports the San Diego County Division’s effort to 
submit a resolution for consideration by the full membership of the League of California Cities. 

The Division’s resolution calls on Federal and State government to address the impacts of 
transboundary pollution flows into the Southwestern regions of California. The pollution in these 
areas is an environmental disaster that threatens the health and general welfare of residents near 
the Mexican border in Imperial and San Diego Counties. 

I encourage all voting delegates and elected officials in attendance at the 2019 Annual League of 
California Cities Conference in Long Beach to support this important resolution as it addresses 
the critical need for the federal and state government to recommit to work bi-nationally to 
address the serious contamination issues and to develop and implement long-term solutions. 

I am available for any questions or additional information related to this letter of support. 

Sincerely, 

Andy Hall 
City Manger 

Cc: Honorable Mayor Serge Dedina 
Honorable Mayor Pro Tem Robert Patton 
Honorable Councilmember Paloma Aguirre 
Honorable Councilmember Ed Spriggs 
Honorable Councilmember Mark West 

47
310

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



August 16, 2019 

Jan Arbuckle, President 

League of California Cities 

1400 K Street, Suite 400 

Sacramento, CA 95814 

RE: Environmental and Water Quality Impacts Of International Transboundary River Pollution Flow 

Resolution 

President Arbuckle: 

The city of Imperial Beach strongly supports the San Diego County Division’s effort to submit a resolution 

for consideration by the General Assembly at the League’s 2019 Annual Conference in Long Beach.  

The Division’s resolution calls upon the Federal and State governments to restore and ensure proper funding 

of the Border Water Infrastructure Program (BWIP) to address the devastating impacts of international 

transboundary pollution flows into the waterways of the southernmost regions of California (San Diego and 

Imperial Counties) and the Pacific Ocean. 

Local government and the public support the State’s water and environmental quality objectives and League 

policy has long supported efforts to ensure water quality and oppose contamination of water resources. This 

resolution addresses the critical need for the federal and state governments to recommit to work bi-

nationally to develop and implement long-term solutions to address serious water quality and contamination 

issues, such as discharges of untreated sewage and polluted sediment and trash-laden transboundary flows 

originating from Mexico, that result in significant heath, environmental and safety concerns in communities 

along California’s southern border impacting the state. 

As members of the League, our city values the policy development process provided to the General 

Assembly. We appreciate your time on this issue. If you have any questions or require additional 

information, please do not hesitate to contact me at 619-423-8303. 

Sincerely, 

Serge Dedina 

Mayor 

48
311

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



49 312

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



50
313

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



51
314

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



52
315

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



53
316

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



54
317

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



55
318

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



56
319

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



57
320

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.



58
321

AGENDA ITEM NO: 21.


	Top
	1. ADM - Luna 50th Anniversary Proclamation 191007
	ADM - Proclamation Luna's 50th Anniversary

	2. ADM - Recognizing the Clovis Citizens Academy Members.
	3. ADM - Proclamation to Cristelle Rodriguez
	ADM - Proclamation for Cristelle Rodriguez

	4. ADM - Minutes 190916
	ADM - Minutes 190916

	5. ADM - BOOT Agreement 2019-2020
	ADM - BOOT Agreement 2019-2020 SR
	ADM - BOOT Agreement 2019-2020 ATT 1

	6. ADM - BOOT Report July - Sept 2019 191007
	ADM - BOOT First Qtr Rpt SR
	ADM - BOOT First Qtr Rpt ATT 1

	7. FIN - Investment Report June 2019  191007
	FIN - Investment Report - June 2019 SR
	FIN - Investment Report - June 2019 ATT 1
	FIN - Investment Report - June 2019 ATT 2
	FIN - Investment Report - June 2019 ATT 3
	FIN - Investment Report - June 2019 ATT 4

	8. FIN - Treasurer's Report June 2019  191007
	FIN - Treasurer's Report - June 2019 SR
	FIN - Treasurer's Report June ATT 1 Cash Balances
	FIN - Treasurer's Report June ATT 2 Inv Activity
	FIN - Treasurer's Report June ATT 3 Orig Maturities

	9. FIN - CFD Annex #59 ROI
	FIN - CFD Annex #59 ROI SR
	FIN - CFD Annex #59 ROI ATT 1 Res 19-___
	FIN - CFD Annex #59 ROI ATT 2 Map

	10. GSD - Approving Sideletters and Benefits Summaries
	GSD - Sideletters and Benefit Summaries - SR
	GSD - Sideletters and Benefit Summaries - ATT1 - RES 19-___

	11. GSD - Retiree Medical Plan 2019
	GSD-Retiree Medical 2020 SR
	GSD-Retire Medical ATT 1 Res. 19-___

	12. PDS - Grant Authorization
	PDS - Grant Authorization SR
	PDS - Grant Authorization ATT 1

	13. PDS - SB2 Grant
	PDS - SB2, Staff Report
	PDS - SB2, Res. 19-xx, Att 1

	14. Planning and Development Services - Approval CIP 16-10
	PDS - CIP 16-10 Bid Award SR
	PDS - CIP 16-10 Bid Award ATT 1

	15. Planning and Development Services - Final Acceptance CIP 17-15
	PDS - CIP 17-15 Final Acceptance SR
	PDS - CIP 17-15 Final Acceptance - ATT 1

	16. Planning and Development Services - Final Acceptance CIP 19-01
	PDS - CIP 19-01 Final Acceptance SR
	PDS - CIP 19-01 Final Acceptance - ATT 1

	17. Planning and Development Services - Final Acceptance CIP 19-02
	PDS - CIP 19-02 Final Acceptance SR
	PDS - CIP 19-02 Final Acceptance - ATT 1

	18. Planning and Development Services - Final Map T6273
	PDS - T6273 Final Map SR
	PDS - T6273 Final Map  ATT 1 Res. 19-___
	PDS - T6273 FInal Map ATT 2
	PDS - T6273 Final Map ATT 3

	19. FIN - CFD Annex #58 Public Hearing
	FIN - CFD Annex #58 Public Hearing SR
	FIN - CFD Annex #58 ATT 1 Res 19-___
	FIN - CFD Annex #58 ATT 2 Res 19-___
	FIN - CFD Annex #58 ATT 3 MAP draft

	20. Planning and Development Services - LMC Traffic Study
	PDS - LMC Traffic Study SR
	PDS - LMC ATT 1 Traffic Analysis by AMG
	PDS - LMC ATT 2 Traffic Analysis by Peters
	PDS - LMC ATT 3 Peer Review by Peters
	PDS - LMC ATT 4 EIR Chapter 3.5
	PDS - LMC ATT 5 Property Exchange Agreement

	21. ADM - LCC Reso
	ADM - LCC Resol-1 - SR
	ADM - LCC Resos ATT 1

	Bottom

